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13*̂^ Floor 
180 East Broad Street 
Columbus, OH 43215-3793 

RE: Hess Energy Marketing, LLC ~ 
Application For Certification as a Competitive Retail Electric 
Service (CRES) Provider _ 

- J S 
Dear Sir/Madam: * 

Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code, enclosed please 
find one original and 10 full copies of Hess Energy Marketing, LLC's Application for 
Certification as a Competitive Retail Electnc Service (CRES) Provider in the State of 
Ohio. 

In order to assist in our record keeping, please file stamp the additional copy of 
this cover letter and return it to me in the self-addressed stamped envelope provided for 
that purpose. If you have any questions, please contact me at (732) 750-7048. Thank 
you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Jay L. Kooper 
Director of Regulatory Affairs 

Enclosures 

Hess Corporation 
1 Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

doc e , , _ - - - - i - ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

Technician ^ ^ ^ ^^^e Processed ^ 4 2 i 2 p ^ ^ 

Tel: 732.750.7048 
Fax: 732.750.6670 
jkooper@hess.com 
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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 

PUCO USE ONLY 

Date Received Case Number 

-EL-CRS 

Version 

August 2004 

CERTIFICATION APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION 
PROVIDERS AND POWER MARKETERS 

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and 
title (Example: Exhibit A-13 Company History). All attachments should bear the legal name of 
the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence with 
the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street, Columbus, 
Ohio 43215-3793. 

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the form. 
You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use. 

A. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A-1 Applicant intends to be certified as: (check all that apply) 

• Retail Generation Provider 
Q Power Marketer 

D Power Broker 
D Aggregator 

A-2 Applicant's legal name, address, telephone number and web site address 

L e g a l N a m e Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 

A d d r e s s One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Te lephone # (732) 750-6000 W e b si te a d d r e s s ( i f a n y ) www.hessenergy.com 

A-3 List name, address, telephone number and web site address under which Applicant 
will do business in Ohio 

L e g a l N a m e Hess Energy Marl<eting, LLC 

A d d r e s s O"^ Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Te lephone #(732)750-6000 W e b si te a d d r e s s ( i f a n y ) www.hessenergy.com 

A-4 List all names under which the applicant does business in North America 
Please see Exhibit A-13 

http://www.hessenergy.com
http://www.hessenergy.com


A-5 Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters 

N a m e J^y L- Kooper 

T i t l e Director of Regulatory Affairs 

B u s i n e s s a d d r e s s one Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone # (732) 750-7048 Fax # (732) 750-6670 
E-mail address (if any) ii<ooper@hess.com 

A-6 Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints 

N a m e Jay L. Kooper 

T i t l e Director of Regulatory Affairs 

B u s i n e s s a d d r e s s one Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone # (732)750-7048 Fax # (732) 750-6670 
E-mail address (if any) ji<ooper@hess.com 

A-7 Applicant's address and toll-free number for customer service and complaints 

Customer Service address O"̂  ^̂ ^̂  f'̂ za, woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Toll-free Telephone # (800)437-7265 F a X # (732)750-6899 

E-mail address (if any) qcsteam@hess.com 

A-8 Applicant's federal employer identification number # 134921002 

A-9 Applicant's form of ownership (check one) 

n Sole Proprietorship p Partnership 
p Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) • Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
p Corporation p Other 

A-10 (Check all that apply) Identify each electric distribution utility certified territory in 
which the applicant intends to provide service, including identification of each customer 
class that the applicant intends to serve, for example, residential, small commercial, 
mercantile commercial, and industrial. (A mercantile customer, as defined in (A) (19) of Section 
4928.01 of the Revised Code, is a commercial customer who consumes more than 700,000 kWh/year or is 
part of a national account in one or more states). 

a First Energy 
Bl Ohio Edison 
•a Toledo Edison 
B Cleveland Electric Illuminating 

• Cincinnati Gas «& Electric 
D Monongahela Power 
a American Electric Power 

a Ohio Power 

• Residential 
a Residential 
• Residential 
D Residential 
n Residential 

a Commercial 
a Commercial 
a Commercial 
D Commercial 
• Commercial 

Bl Mercantile 
•a Mercantile 
Bl Mercantile 
D Mercantile 
a Mercantile 

D Residential BI Commercial B Mercantile 

B Industrial 
• Industrial 
B Industrial 
n Industrial 
• Industrial 

B Industrial 

mailto:ooper@hess.com
mailto:ooper@hess.com
mailto:qcsteam@hess.com


D Columbus Southern Power D Residential • Commercial B Mercantile EI Industrial 
B Dayton Power and Light D Residential • Commercial B Mercantile B Industrial 

A-11 Provide the approximate start date that the applicant proposes to begin delivering services 

September 1,2013 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

A-12 Exhibit A-12 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors, partners, 
or other similar officials. 

A-13 Exhibit A-13 "Corporate Structure," provide a description of the applicant's corporate 
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and 
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to 
customers in North America. 

A-14 Exhibit A-14 "Company History," provide a concise description of the applicant's 
company history and principal business interests. 

A-15 Exhibit A-15 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws," if applicable provide the 
articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

A-16 Exhibit A-16 "Secretary of State," provide evidence that the applicant has registered 
with the Ohio Secretary of the State. 

B. APPLICANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a list of all jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the 
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a description of the applicant's experience 
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing 
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with 
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. 



B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience," provide a concise summary of the applicant's 
experience in providing the service(s) it is seeking to be certified to provide (e.g. number 
and types of customers served, utility service areas, amount of load, etc.). 

B-4 Exhibit B-4 "Environmental Disclosure," provide a detailed description of how the 
applicant intends to determine its (a) generation resource mix, and (b) environmental 
characteristics, including air emissions and radioactive waste. This information shall 
include sufficient discussion so as to detail both the annual projection methodology and 
the proposed approach to compiling the quarterly actual environmental disclosure data. 
Additional details on this requirement may be obtained by referring to 4901:1-21-09. 

B-5 Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all 
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to 
be certified to provide. 

B-6 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of 
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for violation of any 
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 
• No D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of Consumer 
Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

B-7 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, 
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, 
suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 
0 No n Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-7 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

C-1 Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports," provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide 
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why. 



C-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filings." provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If 
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the 
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that 
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why. 

C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements," provide copies of the applicant's two most recent 
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified 
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this 
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life 
of the business. 

C-4 Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies of the applicant's financial 
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank 
commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of forecasted 
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the 
applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer. 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating." provide a statement disclosing the applicant's credit rating 
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet 
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a 
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, 
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the 
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant's parent or 
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy of the applicant's credit report from 
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information," provide a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made 
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent 
years preceding the application. 



C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information," provide a statement describing any dissolution or 
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the 
application. 

D. APPLICANT TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

D-1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations" provide a written description of the operational nature of the 
applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's operations will include the 
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and 
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange 
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers. 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise," given the operational nature of the applicant's 
business, provide evidence of the applicant's experience and technical expertise in 
performing such operations. 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel," provide the names, titles, e-mail addresses, 
telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in the operational 
aspects of the applicant's business. 

D-4 Exhibit D-4 "FERC Power Marketer License Number," provide a statement 
disclosing the applicant's FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers 
only) 

day of ^^g*^ ^ ' 6 
Year 

Sigrlatu adm^nist^ing oath 

My commission expirl^W 

"JANETTFARAGASSq 
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State of kkj h^ti 

County of M.'JJUS-t-/ 

AFFIDAVIT 

WtWkzjkt^ss. 
(Towfi) 

tl^r^sTcpV-^/' bt^lrVi/' , Affiant, being duly sworn/affirmed according to law, deposes and says that: 

He/she is the Pr-g^>Vf.4r (Office of Affiant) of [if<;s £/if/.j y /Hvk^^ ,̂ LLC (Name of Applicant); 

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant, 

1. The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the 
application for certification are true and complete and that it will amend its application while the 
application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the 
application. 

2. The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity 
pursuant to Division (A) of Secfion 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of 
Secfion 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

3. The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Sections 
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

4. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or 
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code. 

5. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any 
service offered or provided by the Applicant. 

6. The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code 
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process. 

7. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations 
concerning consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions. 

8. The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a 
contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements 
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. 

9. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
the electric distribution companies, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the 
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability of the electric service in 
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the 
Commission. 

10. If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere 
to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the 
appropriate regional reliability council(s), and (3) the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only 
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering) 



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the 
information supplied in the application within 30 days of such material change, including any change 
in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating customer 
complaints. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that 
he/she expects said ^^^licant to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof. 

Signature of Affiant &, Title 

2 ^ day of jAto 
onth 

'lol 
Year 

JANET T FABAGASSO 
Commissi$>piit?*9iW)aftl Title 

Notary Public, State OTNew Jersey 
My Commission Expires 

Febfuary 14. 2018 
My commission efpTreSTIT" 



Hess Energy Marketing LLC 
Exhibit A-12 

Principal Officers, Directors and Partners 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-12 

Exhibit A-12 "Principal Officers, Directors and Partners; Provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors and 
other similar officials. 

Response; Please see below for the list of the Principal Officers for Hess Energy 
Marketing, LLC ("HEM") and the enclosed excerpt page from Hess Corporation's 
2012 Annual Report (also contained in Exhibit C-1) for the Principal Officers and 
Directors of HEM's corporate parent, Hess Corporation. 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS 

Christopher Baldwin 
President 
Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6360 
cbaldwin@hess.com 

John Schultz 
Vice President 
Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6197 
jschultz@hess.com 

Nicholas Brountas 
Secretary 
Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
nbrountas@hess.com 

mailto:cbaldwin@hess.com
mailto:jschultz@hess.com
mailto:nbrountas@hess.com


Hess Energy Marketing LLC 
Exhibit A-12 

Principal Officers, Directors and Partners 

Stuart Steigerwald 
Treasurer 
Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6203 
ssteigerwald@hess.com 

mailto:ssteigerwald@hess.com


HESS 
CORPORATION 

B O A R D O F D IRECTORS 

John B. Hess" ' 
Chairman of We Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Samuel W. Bodman'^"" ' 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department of Energy; 
Former Deputy Secretary of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

Nicholas F. Brady <"<"'"' 
Chairman, Choptanl< Partners, Inc.; 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department of the Treasury; 
Former Chairman, 
Diiion, Read S Co., inc. 

Gregory P. Hill 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration & Production 

Edith E. Holiday «»'" 
Corporate Director and Trustee; 
Former Assistant to the President and 
Secretary of the Cabinet; 
Former General Counsel of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

Thomas H. Kean""^"^' 
President, THK Consulting, LLC; 
Former President, Drew University; 
Former Governor, State of New Jersey 

Risa Lavizzo-Mourey'^' 
President and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 

Craig G. Mat thews ' " 
Former Vice Chairman, 
Chief Operating Officer and Director, 
KeySpan Corporation; 
Former Chief Executive Officer 
and President, NUI, Inc. 

John H. Mull ln i l i '^ ' 
Chairman, Ridgeway Farm LLC; 
Former i\/lanaging Director, 
Dillon, Read & Co., Inc. 

Samuel A. Nunn " " ' ' 
Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 
Nuclear Threat Initiative (NTI); 
Former Senator, State of Georgia 

Frank A. Olson'" ' " ' 
Former Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Hertz Corporation 

James H. Quigley 
Former Chief Executive Officer, Deloitte 

Ernst H. von Metzsch '̂ ' 
l\/lanaging ti/lember, 
Cambrian Capital, L.P.; 
Former Senior Vice President 
and Partner, Wellington 
l\/1anagement Company 

Robert N. Wilson"'<""=' 
Chairman, IVIevion IVIedical Systems; 
Former Vice Chairman 
of the Board of Directors, 
Johnson & Johnson 

(1) Member of Executive Committee 

(2) Member of Audit Committee 

(3) Member of Compensation and 
Management Deveiopment Committee 

(4) Member of Corporate Governance 
and Nominating Committee 

C O R P O R A T E O F F I C E R S 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Gregory P. Hill 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration & Production 

F. Borden Walker 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Marketing & Refining 

Senior Vice Presidents 

Christopher J. Baldwin 

Gary A. Boubel 

John A. Gartman 

Timothy B. Goodell 
General Counsel 

Scott IVl. Heck 

Lawrence H. Ornstein 

Howard Paver 

John P. Rielly 
Chief Financial Officer 

John J. Scelfo 

R. Gordon Shearer 

John V. Simon 

Darius Sweet 

Michael R. Turner 

Mykel J. Ziolo 

Vice Presidents 

George G. Barry 
Secretary 

Robert M. Biglin 
Treasurer 

Elizabeth L. Cheney 

C. Martin Dunagin 

Indrani Franchini 

Richard J. Lawlor 

Drew Maioney 

Jonathon L. Pepper 

Harold I. Small 

Jonathan C. Stein 

Jeffery L. Steinhorn 

Kevin B. Wilcox 
Controller 

Jay R. Wilson 

14 



Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
Exhibit A-13 

Corporate Structure 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-13 

Exhibit A-13 "Corporate Structure"; Provide a description of the applicant's 
corporate structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all 
affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural 
gas to customers in North America 

Response: Please see the attached flow chart and list detailing Hess Corporation's 
corporate structure and Hess Energy Marketing, LLC's ("HEM") placement within 
this structure. HEM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess Corporation that is 
operated from within Hess Energy Marketing, which is the division that contains 
Hess' retail and wholesale electric and gas marketing operations (including Hess' 
licensed retail electric and gas operations in Ohio). 

HEM's parent company, Hess Corporation, is a licensed retail electric and gas 
supplier in Ohio under Certificate Numbers 10-208E(2) and 04-080G(5). 

HEM's affiliate, Hess Small Business Services, LLC, is a licensed retail electric and 
gas supplier in Ohio under Certificate Numbers 12-550E(1) and 12-138G(1). 
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LIST OF HESS CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES 
(Updated June 5, 2012) 

Air Hangar, Inc. 

Allied Petroleum Company 

Allied Petroleum Limited 

Allpet (Antilles) N.V. 

Amerada Hess Nigeria Limited 

Amerada Petroleum Corporation 

Amerada Petroleum Corporation of Libya 

Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Finance B.V. 

Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Holding B.V. 

Baku-Tibilisi-Ceyhan International Investment 
Company 

Baku-Tibilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Company 

Ballylongford Electricity Company Limited 

Bayonne Energy Center, LLC 

Bittern and Triton (UK) Limited 

Brendan Company 

Carigali Hess Operating Company Sdn. Bhd. 

CH Mutiara Petroleum 

Crown Landing LLC 

Cul de Sac Agencies, Limited 

Fisher Hess St. Lucia Limited 

Hess (ACG) Finance Company Limited 

Hess (ACG) Limited 

Hess (Agreb) Limited 

Hess (Algeria New Ventures) Limited 

Hess (Bahamas) Limited 

Hess (Borneo Block CAl) Limited 

Hess (BTC) Limited 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hess( 

Hessi 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Hess 

Egypt) Limited 

Faroes) Limited 

GEA) Limited 

Ghana) Limited 

Jndonesi 

Jndones 

;indones 

;indones 

;indones 

;indones 

Îndones 

'Indones 

l̂ lndones 

'Indones 

Jndones 

'Indones 

^Indones 

'Indones 

'Indones 

Îndones 

^Indones 

'Indones 

[̂ Indones 

;;indones 

'Indones 

l̂ lndones 

a-Deepwater) Limited 

a-I) Holdings Limited 

a-I) Limited 

a-II) Holdings Limited 

a-II) Limited 

a-III) Holdings Limited 

a-III) Limited 

a-IV) Holdings Limited 

a-IV) Limited 

la-IX) Holdings Limited 

la-IX) Limited 

la-Pangkah) Limited 

la-Semai V) Holdings Limited 

la-Semai V) Limited 

a-South Sesulu) Limited 

a-Tanjung Aru) Limited 

la-Tatihu) Holdings Limited 

la-V) Holdings Limited 

la-V) Limited 

la-VI) Holdings Limited 

la-VI) Limited 

la-VII) Holdings Limited 

S:\MSOFnCE\IA\JA\SUBSIDIARIES\LIST OF HESS CORP COMPANIES - KOOPER'S REQUEST.doc 
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Hess (Indonesia-VII) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VIII) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VIII) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-West Timor) Limited 

Hess (Kazakhstan) Limited 

Hess (Luxembourg) Exploration and Production 
Holding S.a.r.l. 

Hess (Malaysia-SB 302) Limited 

Hess (Malaysia-SK 306) Limited 

Hess (Netherlands) Exploration and Production 
Holding B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Investments B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Oil and Gas B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Oil and Gas Holdings C.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) U.S. GOM Ventures B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) U.S. Oil and Gas Holdings B.V. 

Hess (Oil & Gas) Limited 

Hess (Rhourde el Rouni) Limited 

Hess (Thailand) Limhed 

Hess (Vietnam-Block 16/1) Limited 

Hess Algeria Holdings Limited 

Hess Algeria Limited 

Hess Asia Holdings Inc. 

Hess Australia (Beetaloo) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (Dampier) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (North West Shelf) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (Offshore) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia Exploration (New Ventures) Pty 
Limited 

Hess Australia New Ventures Limited 

Hess Bakken Holdings Corporation 

Hess Bakken Investments I Corporation 

Hess Bakken Investments II, LLC 

Hess Bayorme LLC 

Hess Biofuels, LLC 

Hess Borneo (CAl) Holdings Limited 

Hess Brasil (BM-S-22) Limited 

Hess Brasil Petroleo Ltda. 

Hess Brazil Holdings Limited 

Hess Canada Exploration and Production ULC 

Hess Canada Gas Ltd. 

Hess Canada Holdings B.V. 

Hess Capital Corporation S.a.r.l. 

Hess Capital Limited 

Hess Capital Services Corporation 

Hess China Oil and Gas Limited 

Hess Colombia Holdings Limited 

Hess Colombia Limited 

Hess Communications Corporation 

Hess Corporation 

Hess Corporation of Nevada 

Hess Denmark ApS 

Hess Egypt Exploration Limited 

Hess Egypt West Mediterranean Limited 

Hess Energi ApS 

Hess Energy Exploration Limited 

Hess Energy Inc. 

Hess Energy Incentives, LLC 

Hess Energy New York Corporation 

Hess Energy Power & Gas Company (UK) Limited 

Hess Energy Power & Gas Company, LLC 

Hess Energy Services Company, LLC 



Hess Energy Trading Company, LLC 

Hess Energy Trading Company (UK) Limited 

Hess Energy Trading Company International, LLC 

Hess Energy Trading Company Singapore Pte. Ltd. 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Holdings Limited 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Inc. 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Investments Limited 

Hess Exploration (Bravo) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Briseis) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Carnarvon) Pty Limited 

Hess Exploration (Chester) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Glencoe) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Glenloth) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Lightfinger) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Makybe Diva) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Mentorc) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Moyet) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Nimblefoot) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 

Hess Exploration (Toporoa) Limited 

Hess Exploration and Production Malaysia, B.V. 

Hess Exploration Australia Pty Limited 

Hess Exploration Ireland Limited 

Hess Exploration Services Inc. 

Hess Finance 

Hess Gabon Investments Limited 

Hess Ghana (Paradise) Limited 

Hess Ghana Exploration Limited 

Hess Global Trading Limited 

Hess Holdings Algeria Limited 

Hess Holdings Indonesia West Timor Limited 

Hess Holdings UK Limited 

Hess Indonesia (North Masela) Limited 

Hess Indonesia New Ventures Limited 

Hess International Holdings Corporation 

Hess International Holdings Limited 

Hess International Limited 

Hess International Oil Corporation 

Hess International Petroleum, Inc. 

Hess Libya (Waha) Limited 

Hess Libya Exploration Limited 

Hess Libya Holdings Limited 

Hess Libya Limited 

Hess Lietuva Exploration, UAB 

Hess Limited 

Hess LLC of St. Lucia 

Hess LNG Crown Landing LLC 

Hess LNG Holdings LLC 

Hess LNG Limited 

Hess LNG LLC 

Hess LNG Trading LLC 

Hess Magreb Exploration Limited 

Hess Mart, Inc. 

Hess Mart of Cape Cod, LLC 

Hess Mart of Massachusetts, LLC 

Hess Microgen LLC 

Hess Microgen Services, Inc. 

Hess Middle East Holdings Limited 

Hess Middle East New Ventures Limited 

Hess Namibia Corporation 



Hess NEC, LLC 

Hess Netherlands Partnership Holdings, LLC 

Hess New Business Limited 

Hess New Ventures Exploration Limited 

Hess New Ventures Limited 

Hess Newark, LLC 

Hess Newark Plant Holdings, LLC 

Hess Nigeria Holdings Limited 

Hess Nominees Limited 

Hess Norge A/S 

Hess Norway Holdings Limited 

Hess NRS Holdings Limited 

Hess NWE Holdings 

Hess Offshore Response Company, LLC 

Hess Ohio Developments, LLC 

Hess Ohio Resources, LLC 

Hess Oil & Gas Sdn Bhd 

Hess Oil and Gas Holdings Inc. 

Hess Oil Company of Thailand (JDA) Limited 

Hess Oil Company of Thailand Ltd. Co. 

Hess Oil France 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Holdings, L.P. 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Limited 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Limited Partnership 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Terminal Holdings Limited 

Hess Oil Trading (UK) Limited 

Hess Oil Trading Limited 

Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. 

Hess Pangkah LLC 

Hess Peru, Inc. 

Hess Peru Holdings Limited 

Hess Pine Needle Company 

Hess Pipeline Corporation 

Hess Production (Australia) Pty Limited 

Hess Property Services Limited 

Hess Qatar Exploration Limited 

Hess Qatar Holdings Limited 

Hess Receivables LLC 

Hess Retail Services, Inc. 

Hess Services UK Limited 

Hess Shipping Guaranty Corporation 

Hess Shipping LLC 

Hess Small Business Services, LLC 

Hess Trading Limited 

Hess UK Investments Limited 

Hess UK Limited 

Hess Venezuela Limited 

Hess Ventures, Inc. 

Hess West Africa Holdings Limited 

Hetco Advisory Services U.K. Limited 

HOVENSA, LLC 

HOVIC Marketing Corp. 

Ira S. Bushey & Sons Inc. 

Jamestown Insurance Company Limited 

Kingsway Oil Limited 

Merit Oil of Connecticut, Inc. 

Merit Oil of Delaware, Inc. 

Merit Oil of Delaware, LP 

Mill River Pipeline, LLC 

Minos y Petroleos del Ecuador 



Natuna 2 B.V. 

New Zealand Exploration Limited 

New Zealand Petroleum Company Ltd. 

Nova Technology Fund 

Nuvera Fuel Cells, Inc. 

Nuvera Fuel Cells Europe, S.r.l. 

Oil Casualty Insurance Limited 

Oil Insurance Limited 

Ontario Terminals Inc. 

OOO Kondurchaneft 

OOO Samarskaya Oil Company 

Overseas Services Corporation 

Petroleos Yasuni C.A. 

Pine Needle LNG Company, LLC 

Red Star Towing and Transportation Company 

Samara Capital Corporation S.a.r.l. 

Samara-Nafta Holdings Limited 

Samara Holdings Limited 

Samara Investments Limited 

Schiehallion Oil & Gas Limited 

Shannon LNG Limited 

Sheridan Transportation Co. 

Solar Gas Inc. 

Somerset Holdings, LLC 

Southland Energy Resources Ltd. 

Spentonbush/Redstar Companies, Inc. 

St. Croix Petrochemical Corp. 

St. Lucia International Petrol Company Limited 

Tioga Gas Plant, Inc. 

Tower American Corporation 

Trabant Holding International Ltd. 

Triton Italy, Inc. 

Weaver's Cove Energy, LLC 

Weaver's Cove Energy Holdings I, LLC 

Wilco Food Services LLC 

WilcoHess LLC 

Wilco Transportation 

ZAO Samara-Nafta 



Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
Exhibit A-14 

Company History 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-14 

Exhibit A-14 "Companv History"; Provide a concise description of the applicant's 
company history and principal business interests. 

Response: Hess Corporation ("Hess") is organized and existing under the General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. It was incorporated under the name 
Amerada Hess Corporation in 1920 and was certified to do business within Ohio on 
October 29,1962. Hess' name was changed to Hess Corporation as of its Annual 
Shareholder's meeting held May 3,2006. 

Hess has delivered energy products since 1933, when its founder Leon Hess created 
one of the Northeast's most successful fuel oil businesses. Today, Hess is a leading 
total energy provider in the Eastern United States. In addition to being the largest 
supplier of fuel oil to commercial and industrial customers within its footprint, Hess 
is a leading supplier of natural gas and electricity to commercial and industrial 
customers in restructured states throughout the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions. 
Hess - through its Energy Marketing Department - sells natural gas, fuel oil, 
gasoline and electricity to tens of thousands of customers. Today, Hess is a $42 
billion energy company. 

Along with Hess' many years of experience, strength and growth, it is an innovative 
leader in providing a successful range of electric products and services including 
fixed-price and variable-price offerings, and a "green suite" of products that 
includes Hess Renewable (renewable energy), Hess Demand Response (demand 
response) and Hess C-Neutral (carbon reduction) products. 

Hess Energy Marketing, LLC ("HEM"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess 
Corporation, is organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the 
State of Delaware. Concurrent with this application, HEM has applied or is in the 
process of applying to every state within Hess' electric marketing footprint (NY, NJ, 
PA, DE, MD, DC, CT, RI, MA, NH, ME, and OH). 



Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
Exhibh A-15 

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-15 

Exhibit A-15 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws": If applicable, provide the 
articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

Response: Please see Hess Energy Marketing, LLC's ("HEM") LLC Agreement 
and HEM's corporate parent Hess Corporation's ("Hess") Articles of Incorporation. 
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LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT 

OF 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING LLC 

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT of HESS ENERGY 
MARKETING LLC, dated as of March 20, 2013, Capitalized terms used herein and not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in Article II, 

ARTICLE I 

FORMATION OF THE COMPANY 

Section 1.1, Formation of the Company. The Company was organized as a 
limited liability company under the Act by the filing of the Certificate with the Office of the 
Secretary of State of Delaware on March 20, 2013, The Member shall accomplish all filing, 
recording, publishing and other acts necessary or appropriate for compliance with all 
requirements for operation of the Company as a limited liability company under this Agreement 
and the Act and under all other laws of the State of Delaware and such other jurisdictions in 
which the Company determines that it may conduct business. 

Section 1,2. Name, The name of the Company is "FIESS ENERGY 
MARKETING LLC", as such name may be modified from fime to time by the Member as it may 
deem advisable. 

Secfion 1.3, Business of the Companv, Subject to the limitafions on the 
acfivifies of the Company otherwise specified in this Agreement, the business of the Company 
shall be the conduct of any business or activity that may be conducted by a limited liability 
company organized pursuant to the Act. 

Section 1,4, Location of Principal Place of Business. The location of the 
principal place of business of the Company shall be One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 or 
such other location as may be determined by the Member, In addition, the Company may 
maintain such other offices as the member may deem advisable at any other place or places 
within or without the United States. 

Secfion 1.5. Registered Agent. The registered agent for the Company shall be 
CT Corporation System, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 
19801 or such other registered agent as the Member may designate from time to time. 

Section 1.6. Term, The Company shall continue in perpetuity, unless the 
Company is earlier dissolved and terminated in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. 



ARTICLE II 

DEFINITIONS 

"Act" means the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, Chapter 434 of Title 
6 of the Delaware Code, 6 Del. Code §18-101 et seq., as in effect on the date hereof and as it 
may be amended hereafter from time to time. 

"Agreement" means this Limited Liability Company Agreement, as amended, 
modified or supplemented from time to time. 

"Certificate" means the Certificate of Formation of the Company, as amended, 
modified or supplemented from time to time. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time 
(or any succeeding law). 

"Companv" means the limited liability company formed by the filing of the 
Certificates and governed by this Agreement under the name "HESS ENERGY MARKETING 
LLC", 

"Fiscal Year" has the meaning specified in Section 5.2. 

"Member" means Fless Corporation, a Delaware corporation. 

"Person" means any individual, partnership, limited liability company, association, 
coiporation, trust or other entit)', 

"Regulation" means a Treasury Regulation promulgated under the Code. 

ARTICLE III 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Section 3,1. Capital Contributions. The Member shall make such contributions of 
cash or property from time to time to the Company as the Member may from time to time determine 
or as may be required by law. 

ARTICLE IV 

DISTRIBUTIONS 

Section 4.1, Distributions Generally, Subject to the provisions of Section 4.2, the 
Company shall make distributions to the Member at such times and in such amounts as determined 
in the sole discretion of the Member. 



Section 4.2, Limitations on Distributions. 

(a) Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary: 

(i) no distribution pursuant to this Agreement shall be made if such 
distribution would result in a violation of the Act; 

(ii) no distribution shall be made if such distribution would violate the 
terms of any, to the extent applicable, agreement or any other instrument to which 
the Company is a party. 

(b) In the event that a distribution is not made as a result of the application of 
paragraph (a) of this Section 4,2, all amounts so retained by the Company shall continue to be 
subject to all of the debts and obligations of the Company. The Company shall make such 
distribution (with accrued interest actually earned thereon) as soon as such distribution would not be 
prohibited pursuant to this Section 4.2. 

ARTICLE V 

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT, RECORDS 
AND FISCAL YEAR 

Section 5.1. Books and Records. Proper and complete records and books of 
account shall be kept by the Company in which shall be entered fully and accurately all transactions 
and other matters relative to the Company's business as are usually entered into records and books 
of account maintained by Persons engaged in businesses of a like character. The Company books 
and records shall be kept in a manner detennined by the Member in its sole discretion to be most 
beneficial for the Company. 

Section 5.2. Fiscal Year. ITie fiscal year of the Company (the "Fiscal Year") 
shall be the calendar year; provided, however, that the last Fiscal Year of the Company shall end on 
the date on which the Company is terminated. 

ARTICLE VI 

POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE MEMBER 

Section 6.1. Authority. Subject to the limitations provided in this Agreement, the 
Member shall have exclusive and complete authority and discretion to manage the operations and 
affairs of the Company and to make all decisions regarding the business of the Company. Any 
action taken by the Member on behalf of the Company shall constitute the act of and serve to bind 
the Company. In dealing with the Member acting on behalf of the Company, no Person shall be 
required to inquire into the authority of the Member to bind the Company. Persons dealing with the 
Company are entitled to rely conclusively on the power and authority of the Member as set forth in 
this Agreement. 



Section 6.2. Election of Directors and Officers; Delegation of Authority. The 
Member may, from time to time, designate one or more directors and officers with such titles as 
may be designated by the Member to act in the name of the Company with such authority as may be 
delegated to such directors or officers by the Member, Any such director or officer shall act 
pursuant to such delegated authority until such director or officer is removed by the Member. Any 
action taken by a director or an officer designated by the Member shall constitute tiie act of and 
serve to bind the Company. In dealing with the directors and officers acting on behalf of the 
Company, no Person shall be required to inquire into the authority of the directors and officers to 
bind the Company, Persons dealing with the Company are entitied to rely conclusively on the power 
and authority of any director or officer set fortli in this Agreement and any instrument designating 
such director or officer and the authority delegated to him or her. 

Section 6.3, Companv Funds. Company funds shall be held in the name of the 
Company and shall not be commingled with those of any other Person. Company funds shall be 
used only for the business of the Company, 

Section 6,4. Expenses, The Company shall pay for all expenses incurred in 
connection with the operation of the Company's business. The Member shall be entitled to receive 
out of Company funds reimbursement of all Company expenses expended by the Member or any of 
its affiliates. 

ARTICLE VII 

ADDITIONAL MEMBERS 

Section 7.1. Additional Members, The Member may admit additional Persons as 
members in the Company on such terms and conditions as the Member may determine, 

ARTICLE VIII 

TERMINATION OF COMPANY; LIQUIDATION 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS 

WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBER 

Section 8.1. Withdrawal. The Member may withdraw fi-om the Company at any 
time. 

Section 8.2, Dissolution of Companv. 

(a) The Company shall be dissolved, wound up and terminated as provided 
herein upon the first to occur of the following: 

(i) the date the Company is dissolved, wound up and terminated; and 

(ii) the withdrawal, resignation or bankruptcy of the Member (an "Event 
of Withdrawal"). 



(b) In the event of the dissolution of the Company for any reason, the Member 
or his successors or assigns (the "Liquidator") shall commence to wind up the affairs of the 
Company and to liquidate the Company assets. The Liquidator shall have full right and unlimited 
discretion to determine the time, manner and terms of any sale or sales of Company assets pursuant 
to such liquidation, giving due regard to the activity and condition of the relevant market and 
general financial and economic conditions, 

(c) The Liquidator shall have all of the rights and powers with respect to the 
assets and liabilities of the Company in connection with the liquidation and termination of the 
Company that it would have with respect to the assets and liabilities of the Company during the 
term of the Company. 

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Liquidator which is not the Member shall 
not be deemed the Member in this Company and shall not have any of the economic interests in the 
Company of the Member. 

Section 8.3. Distribution in Liquidation, The Company's assets shall be applied 
in the following order of priority: 

(a) first, to pay the costs and expenses of the winding up, liquidation and 
termination of the Company; 

(b) second, to creditors of tiie Company, in the order of priority provided by law, 
including fees and reimbursements payable to the Member of its affiliates, but not including those 
liabilities (other than habilities to the Member for any expenses of the Company paid by the 
Member or its affiliates, to the extent the Member or its affiliates, as the case may be, are entitled to 
reimbmsement hereunder) to the Member in its capacity as a Member; 

(c) third, to establish reserves reasonably adequate to meet any and all 
contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Company; provided, however, that at the 
expiration of such period of time as the Member may deem advisable, the balance of such reserves 
remaining after the payment of such contingencies or liabilities shall be distributed as hereinafter 
provided; and 

(d) fourth, to the Member. 

Section 8.4. Teimination. The Company shall terminate when all property owned 
by the Company shall have been disposed of and the assets shall have been distributed as provided 
in Section 8.3. The Liquidator shall then execute and cause to be filed a Certificate of Cancellation 
of the Company, 

ARTICLE IX 

AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT 

Section 9.1. Amendments, Amendments to this Agreement may be made only if 
embodied in an instrument signed by the Member, 



Section 9.2. Amendment of Certificate. In the event this Agreement shall be 
amended pursuant to tiiis Article IX. the Member shall amend the Certificate to reflect such change 
if they deem such amendment of the Certificate to be necessary or appropriate. 

ARTICLE X 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Governing Law, This Agreement and the riglits of the parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the law of the State of Delaware. 

Section 10,2, Effect. Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, this 
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their legal 
representatives, successors and permitted assigns. 

Section 10.3. Pronouns and Number, Wherever irom the context it appears 
appropriate, each teiTn stated in either the singular or the plural shall include the singular and the 
plural, and pronouns stated in either the masculine, feminme or nexiter shall include the masculine, 
feminine and neuter. 

Section 10,4, Captions, Captions contained in this Agreement are inserted only as 
a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit or extend the scope or intent of this Agreement 
or any provision hereof 

Section 10,5. Partial Enforceability, If any provision of this Agreement, or the 
application of such provision to any Person or circumstance, shall be held invalid, the remainder of 
tills Agreement, or the application of such provision to Persons or circumstances other than those to 
which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Agreement as of the 
date above first written. 

Member: 

HESS CORPORATION 

By: JjmL t^l^ 
Name: pQorm C. BE 
Title: /Vice President and Sectary 
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AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

RESTATED CERTIFICATE: 
OF 

INCORPORATION 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION, a corpotauon organized and existing under and by virtue of 
the Genera! Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, was incorporated under the name 
Amerada Corporation, lis original Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Secretary of 
State of Dcla-ware on February 7, 1920. 

This Restated Certificate of Incorporation was duly adopted by the Corporation's Board of 
Directors in accordance with the provisions of Seaion 245 of the General Corporatio'n Law of 
the State of Delaware and only restates and integrates and does not further amend the provisions 
of the Corporation's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as heretofore amended or supple­
mented, and there is no discrepancy between those provisions and the provisions of this 
Restated Certificate,of Incorporation. ' 

The text of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation as heretofore amended or supple­
mented is hereby restated without further amendments or changes to read as herein set forth in 
full: 

FIRST: The name of the Corporation is 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION. 

SECOND: The Corporation's registered office in the State of Delaware is located at No. 
1209 Oranp Street, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle. The name of its regis­
tered agent a\ such address is The Corporation Trust Company. 

THIRD: The purpose for which the Corporation is formed is to engage in any lawful act or 
activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of 
Delaware. 

FOURTH; The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall 
have authority to issue is 220,000.000 shares, of which 20,000,000 shares shall be shares of 
Preferred Stock, of the par value of $1 per share ("Preferred Stock"), and 200,000,000 shares 
shall be shares of Common Stock, of the par value of Si per share ("Common Stock"). 

The designations and the powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations 
or restrictions thereof, of each class of stock of the Corporation which are fixed by this Restated 
Certificate of Incorporation, and the express gram of authority to the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation to fix by resolution or resolutions the designations and the powers, preferences and 
rights of each such class, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, areas follows: 



SECTION I 

PREFERRED STOCK 

A. THE PREFERRED STOCK AS A CLASS. 

1. General Shares of Preferred. Stock may be issued from time to time in one or mort 
series, provided for herein or by the Board of Directors as permitted hereby. Each series shall be 
so designated as to distinguish the shares thereof from the shares of all other series. All shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be identical, except in respea of the particulars fixed herein for the series 
provided for herein and the particulars fixed by the Board of Directon for series provided for by 
the Board of Directors as permitted hereby. All shares of any one scries shall be identical in all 
respects with all the other shares of such series, except that if the shares of such series are entitled 
to cumulative dividends, such shares issued at different times may differ as to the dates from 
which dividends shall be cumulative. 

2. Dividends.. Tne holders of the Preferred Stock of each series shall be entitled to receive, 
when and as declared by the Board of Directors, out of funds legally available for that purpose, 
dividends (if any) at such rates as shall be fixed for such series hereb or by the Board.of 
Directors as permitted hereby, as the case may be, payable at such time or times as shall be fixed 
for such scries herein or by the Board of Directors as permitted hereby to stockholden of record 
on the respective record dates, not more than sixty nor less than ten days preceding such time or 
times, fixed for that purpose by the Board of Directors. Accumulations of dividends shall not 
bear interest. 

3. Redemption, 

(a) Riglit 10 Redeem and Price. The Corporation at the opfion of the Board of Directors 
may redeem the whole or any part of the shares of Preferred Stock of any series at such time or 
tiroes (if any) and at such price or prices (if any) as are provided for herein or by the Board of 
Directors as permitted hereby, as the case may be, for such series plus, in each case, an amount 
equal to all dividends (if any) accrued and unpaid on the shares of such series so to be redeemed 
to and including the date fixed for redemption (the total simt so payable per share on any such 
redemption being herein referred to as the "Redemption Price" and the date fixed for redemp­
tion being herein referred to as the "Redemption Date"), provided, however, that the foregoing 
option to redeem a part of the shares of Preferred Stock of any series, otherwise than by a 
redemption pro rata among the holders of all shares of such scries, may be exercised only if 
dividends payable for all past quarterly dividend periods on all outstanding shares of such series 
have been paid, or declared and set apart for payment, in full. If fewer than all outstanding 
shares of any series of Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the shares of such series to be 
redeemed shall be chosen by lot or pro rata in such manner as the Board of Directors may 
determine. 

(b) Notice and Effect ofDeposii of Redemption Funds. Notice of every such redemption 
shall be mailed to the holders of record of the shares of Preferred Stock so to be redeemed at 
their respective addresses as the same shall appear on the books of the Corporation, Such notice 
shall be mailed not less than thirty nor more than sixty days in advance of the Redemption Date 
to the holders of record of shares so to be redeemed. 

If. on the Redemption Date, the funds necessary for such redemption shall have been set 
aside by the Corporation, separate and apart from its other funds, in trust for the pro rata bcne&i 
of the holders of the shares so called for redemption, then, notwithstanding that any certificates 
for shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for 
cancellation, after the Redemption Date the right to receive dividends thereon shall cease to 
accrue and all rights of the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall 
forthwith, after the Redemption Date, cease and terminate, excepting only tije rigb.t of such 



holders to receive the Redemption Price for such shares but without interest, and such shares 
shall no longer be deemed outstanding. Any funds so set aside by the Corporation and 
unclaimed at the end of six years from the Redemption Date shall revert to the general funds of 
the Corporation, after which reversion the holden of such shares so called for redemption shall 
look only to the Corporation for payment of the Redemption Price. 

If. on or after the giving of such notice but before the Redemption Date, the Corporation 
shall deposit with any transfer agent for such shares of Preferred Stock, in trust to be applied to 
the redemption of the shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption, the funds necessary for 
such redemption, then, after the date of such deposit, all rights of the holden of the shares of 
Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall forthwith, after the date of such deposit, cease and 
terminate (excepting only the right of such holders to receive the Redemption Price therefor but 
without interest and the right to exercise on or before the close of business on the third business 
day prior to the Redemption Date any conversion.privilege not theretofore expired), and such 
shares will not, after the date of such deposit, be deemed outstanding. Any funds so deposited 
which shall not be required for such redemption because of the exercise of any such right of 
conversion subsequent to the making of such deposit shall be retumed to the Corporation, In 
case the holders of shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall not, at the end of six 
years from the Redemption Date, have claimed any funds so deposited, such transfer agent shall 
thereupon pay over to the Corporation such unclaimed funds, and such transfer agent shall 
thereafter be relieved of all responsibility in respect thereof to stich holders and such holders 
shall look only to the Corporation for payment of the Redemption Price. 

(c) Status of Reacquired Shares. Shares of any series of Preferred Stock which have been 
redeemed (whether through the operation of a sinking fund or otherwise) or purchased by the 
Corporation, or which, if convertible, have been converted into shares of stock of the Corpora­
tion of any other class or classes, shall, upon appropriate filing and recording to the extent 
required by law, have the status of authorized and unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be 
reissued as a part of any series of Prefenred Stock provided for herein or by the Board of 
Directors as permitted hereby. 

B. PREFERRED STOCK., S3.50 CuMUUTrvE CONVERTIBLE SERIES. 

There is hereby created a series of the Preferred Stock the designation, the number of shares 
and the terms and provisions of which (except as heretofore set forth herein) are as follows: 

1. Designation of Series and Number of Shares. This series of the Preferred Stock shall be 
designated "Preferred Stock, S3.50 Cumulative Convertible Series" (the "$3.50 Cumulative Pre­
ferred'), to consist of 12,000,000 shares. The Board of Directors is hereby authorized by resolu­
tion, to increase or decrease'(but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) the 
number of shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

2. Dividends. The holders of shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be entitled to 
receive cumulative dividends at the rale of S3.50 per share per annum in cash, and no more, 
except to the extent otherwise permitted by Paragraph 7 of this Subsection B, payable quarterly 
on the last days of January, April, 3uly and October in each year. Such dividends shall accrue 
and become cumulative, whether or not earned ordeclared, as to all shares of the S3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred issued on the date of the filing under the laws of Delaware of the Agreement and 
Plan of Merger dated as of January 15, 1969 between the Corporation and Hess Oil & Chemical 
Corporation, from June 20,1969, and, as to each share of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred issued 
thereafter, from such date as shall make the dividend rights of such share the same as the 
dividend rights per share of the then outstanding shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

Except as to dividends permitted by Paragraph 7 of this Subsection B, in case dividends for 
any quarterly dividend period on all shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and all shares of 



all other series of the Preferred Stock ranking on a parity with the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred as 
to dividends are not paid in ftill. all shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred and of all such 
other scries shall participate ratably in the payment of dividends for such period in proportion to 
the full amounts of dividends for such period to which they arc respectively entitled, provided, 
however, that no dividend shall be paid on any such other series for any dividend period until 
dividends payable on the S3.50 (Cumulative Preferred for all dividend periods prior to the first 
dividend period of any such other series shall have been paid, or declared and set apart for 
payment, in full. 

So long as any shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstanding, the Corporation 
shall not declare and pay or set apart for payment any dividends or make any other distribution 
on junior stock (being Common Stock or other stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the 
Preferred Stock as to dividends) and shall not redeeih (whether through the operation of a 
sinking fund or otherwise), purchase or otherwise acquire, or permit any subsidiary to purchase 
or otherwise acquire, any shares of such junior stock, if at the time of making such declaration, 
payment, distribution, redemption, purchase or acquisition the Corporation shall be in default 
with respect to any dividend payable on, or any obligation to retire, shares of the S3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred (provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation may at 
any rime redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of such junior stock in exchange for, or 
out of the net proceeds from the substantially concurrent sale or other issue of, other shares of 
such junior stock), and the Corporation shall not redeem (whether through the operation of a 
sinking fund or otherwise), purchase or otherwise acquire, or permit any subsidiary to purchase 
or otherwise acquire, any shares of any series of the Preferred Stock, or any other class of stock of 
the Corporation, ranking as to dividends on a parity with the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred, if at 
the time of making such redemption, purchase or acquisition the Corporation shall be in default 
with respect to any dividend payable on, or any obligation to retire, shares of the S3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred (provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation may at 
any time redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of such series or class in exchange for, or 
out of the net proceeds from the substantially concurrent sale or other issue of, other shares of 
such series or class). 

3. Redemption. The shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred may not be redeemed 
before June 20. 1974. On and after that date, such shares may be redeemed at S150 per share 
plus an amount equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to and including the Redemp­
tion Date, 

4. Liguidaiion. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or 
winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, after payment or provision for payment of the debts 
and other liabilities of the Corporation and all amounts due in such event on any class or series 
of stock of the Corporation ranking prior to the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred upon liquidation, 
the holders of the £3,50 Cumulative Preferred shall be entitled to receive, from the net assets of 
the Corporation (a) upon voluntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the 
Corporation, S150 per share; or (b) upon involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of 
the affairs of the Corporation. SI00 per share, plus in either event an amount equal to all 
dividends accrued and unpaid on such share up to and including the date fixed for distribution, 
and no more, before any distribution shall be made to the holders of the Common Stock or other 
stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the Preferred Stock upon liquidation, provided that 
the right of the holders of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred so to receive such amounts in any such 
eveni shall not constitute any restriction on the right, power or authority of the Board of Direc­
tors of the Corporation to declare and pay dividends or make any other distribution on the 
shares of the capital stock of the Corporation. 

If upon any such dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation its 
net assets shall be insufficient to permit the payment in full of the respective amounts to which 



the holders of all outstanding shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and all outstanding 
shares of stock of the Corporation ranking on a parity upon liquidation with the S3.5D Cumula­
tive Preferred upon such dissolution, liquidation or winding up are entitled in such event the 
entire remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed among the holders of the 
S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and such other stock in amounts proportionate to the full amounts 
to which they are respectively so entitled. 

Neither the merger nor consolidation of the Corporation, nor the sale, lease or conveyance 
of all or a part of its assets, shall be deemed to be a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, 
dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporauon within the meaning of this Para­
graph 4. 

5. Voting Rights. 
(a) General. The holders of shares of the S 3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be entitled lo 

one vote for each share of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred standing in their names on the books 
of the Corporation in the election of directors and on any question arising at any meeting of 
stockholders of the Corporation at which the holders of shares of the Common Stock or other 
stock of the Corporation into which shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred Stock are at the 
lime convertible have the right to vote; except that, whenever the conversion ratio of the S3.50 
Cumulative Preferred is adjusted as hereinafter in Paragraph 6 provided, the number of votes 
per share of the S3;50 Cumulative Preferred shall be increased or decreased by the proportion 
that the total number of votes to which the aggregate of the shares of Common Stock outstanding 
immediately prior to the event which caused such adjustment is entitled is increased or 
decreased by such event; provided that (i) the number of votes per share shall b no event be 
decreased to less than one, (ii) no franional vote shall result from any such increase or decrease, 
(iii) if the number resulting from any such increase or decrease includes a fraction which is one-
half or more, the number of votes per share resulting from such increase or decrease shall include 
one vote for such fraction, (iv) if the number resulting from any such increase or decrease 
includes a fraction which is less than one-half, no vote shall be included for such fraction in the 
number of votes per share resulting ft"om such increase or decrease (unless the number of votes 
per share would be decreased ,to less than one), and (v) at the time of any adjustment in the 
conversion ratio, all previous increases and decreases in the number of votes per share effected 
pursuant to the foregoing shall be disregarded, and the increase or decrease, if any, to be effected 
as a result of such adjustment shall be calculated as if the events which caused aU such previous 
increases and decreases occurred at the same time as the event which caused such adjustment. 
The holders of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and the Common Stock shall at all times vote, 
except as otherwise provided herein or required by law, together as one class, together with the 
holders of any other series or class of stock of the Corporation accorded the right to vote with the 
Common Stock together as one class. 

(b) Special As Class, (i) So long as any shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred are out­
standing, the Corporation shall noL without the affirmative vote at a duly authorized meeting or 
written consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the aggregate number of shares at the time 
outstanding of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and any other series of Preferred Stock accorded 
such class voting right, voting or consenting, as the case may be, separately as a class without 
regard to series, 

(A) create, or increase the authorized number of shares of, any class of stock ranking, 
either as to dividends or upon liquidation, prior to the Preferred Stock; or 

(fi) alter or change any of the provisions common to the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred 
and to one or more other outstanding series of Preferred Stock accorded such class voting 
right so as adversely to affect the preferences, special rights or powers given to the S3.50 



Cumulative Preferred and such other series of Preferred Stock, but nothing in this subdivi­
sion (B) contained shall require such a class vote or consent in connection with any increase 
in the total number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock or the authorization or increase 
of any class of stock ranking, either as to dividends or upon liquidation, on a parity with the 
Preferred Stock; or 

(C) consolidate with or merge into, or sell or transfer all or substantially all its property 
and assets to, another corporation unless the corporation resulting from such consolidation 
or merger or to which such sale or transfer is made will have no authorized or outstanding 
stock ranking, either as to 4ividends or upon liquidation, prior to the stock which the 
holders of the Preferred Stock receive in such event, 

(ii) So long as any shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstanding, the Corpora­
tion shall not, without the affirmative vote at a duly authorized meeting or wrinen consent of the 
holders of at least a majority of the shares at the time outstanding of the S3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred and any other series of Preferred Stock accorded such class voting right, voting or 
consenting, as the case may be, separately as a class without regard to series, create, or increase 
the total number of authorized shares of, any dass of stodc ranking, either as to dividends or 
upon liquidation, on a parity with the Preferred Stock. 

(c) Special as Series. So long as any shares of the S 3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstand­
ing, the Corporation shall not, without the afirmative vote at a duly authorized meeting or 
written consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the aggregate number of shares of the 
S3.50 Cumulative Preferred at the time outstanding, voting or consenting, as the case may be, 
separately as a series, (i) create, or increase the authorized number of shares of, any series of the 
Preferred Stock ranking, cither as to dividends or upon liquidation, prior to the S3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred, (ii) alter or change any of the provisions of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred, or 
any of the provisions of any other series, so as materially and adverseily to affect the preferences, 
special rights or powers given to the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred; provided, however, that where 
any such aheration or change affects one or more other series of Preferred Stock then outstand­
ing in the same manner, the voting right shall be as set forth in subparagraph (b) of this Para­
graph 5 or (iii) consolidate with or merge into, or sell or transfer all or substantially all its 
property and assets to, another corporation unless provision shall be made, as a part of the terms 
of such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer, whereby the holders of shares of the $3.50 Cumu­
lative Preferred outstanding immediately prior to such event shall be entitled to receive, on the 
happening of such event, in exchange for each such share so held by them, a security of the 
corporation resulting from such consolidation or merger or to which such sale or transfer shall be 
made, having dividend, voting and conversion rights and rights upon liquidation and redemp­
tion substantially equivalent to such rights as provided herein for shares of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred. 

(d) Right to Elect Directors. If and whenever dividends payable on the Preferred Stock 
shall be in default in an aggregate amount equivalent to six full quarterly dividends on all shares 
of the Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the number of directors constituting the Board of 
Directors shall be increased by two and the holders of the Prefenred Stock shall have, in addition 
to any other voting rights, the exclusive and special right, voting separately as a class without 
regard to series, to elect two persons to fill such directorships. Whenever such right shall have 
vested, it shall be exercised initially at the next following election of directors by the stockholders 
and shall continue until the dividends in default on the Preferred Stock shall have been paid in 
full or funds sufficient therefor set aside, and, when such dividends are paid or provided for, such 
right shall terminate, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent default in an 
aggregate amount equivalent to six full quarterly dividends. 



At any meeting held for the election of.directors at which the holders of shares of Preferred 
Stock shall have the right, voting as & class, to eleci directors as herein provided, the presence, in 
person or by proxy, of the holders of one-third of the number of shares of Preferred Stock at the 
time outstanding shall be required to constitute a quorum of such class for the election of any 
director by the holders of such class. At any such meeting or adjoumment thereof, (i) the 
absence of a quorum of Preferred Stock shall not prevent the election of directors other than 
those to be elected by the holders of shares of Preferred Stock voting as a dass and the absence of 
2 quorum for the election of such other directors shall npt prevent the election of the directors to 
be elected by holders of shares of Preferred Stock voting as a class, and (ii) in the absence of 
either or both such quorums, a majority of the holders present in person or by proxy of the stock 
or stocks which lack a quorum shall have power to adjourn the meeting for the election of 
directors which they are entitied to elect from time to time, without notice other than announce­
ment at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. The directors elected pursuant to this 
subparagraph (d) shall serve until the next annual meeting or until their respective successors 
shall be elected and shall qualify, provided, however, that when the right of the holders of the 
Preferred Stock to elect directors as herein provided shall terminate, the terms of office of all 
persons so elected by the holders of the Preferred Stock shall terminate, and the number of 
directors of the Corporation shall thereupon be such number as may be provided for in the by­
laws of the Corporation irrespective of any increase made pursDiant to this subparagraph (d). 
During any period in which the holders of shares of Preferred Stock have the right to elect 
directors as provided for herein, any vacancy in the directors elected by the holders of the 
Preferred Stock shall be filled by the vote of the remaining direttor theretofore elected by the 
holders of the Preferred Stock. 

6. Conversion Rights. 
(a) Original Conversion Price. Subject to the provisions for adjustments hereinafter set 

forth, shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be convertible at the option of the holder 
thereof, at any time on or after June 20,1970 upon surrender to any transfer agent for the $3.50 
Cumulative Preferred of the certificate or certificates evidencing the shares so to be convened, 
into fuliy paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock of the Corporation at the rate of 2.2 
shares of Common Stock for each share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred so surrendered for 
conversion. The right to convert shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred called for redemption 
shall terminate at the close of business on the third business day prior to the Redemption Date. 
Upon conversion, no payment or adjustment shall be made for dividends on the shares of the 
S3.50 Cumulative Preferred so converted, 

(b) Adjusimem of Conversion Ratio. The number of shares of Common Stock into which 
each share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred is convertible shall be subject to adjustment from 
time to time only as follows: 

(i) In case the Corporation shall (A) take a record of the holders of the Common Stock for 
the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in shares of 
stock of the Corporation of any class or series, (B) subdivide its outstanding shares of Common 
Slock, (C) combine its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares or 
(D) issue by reclassification of its Common Stock any shares of the Corporation of any class or 
series, the holder of each share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall thereafter be entitled to 
receive, upon the conversion of such share, the number of shares of stock of the Corporation 
which he would have owned or have been entitled to receive after the happening of any of the 
events described above had such share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred held by him been 
convened immediately prior to the happening of such event, such adjustment to become effec­
tive immediately after the opening of business on the day following such record date or the day 
upon which such subdivision, combination or reclassification becomes effective, as the case may 
be, provided, however, that no such adjustment shall be made in case the Corporation, shall (i) at 



any time during the period prior to the date set forth in subparagraph (a) of this Paragraph 6 (bui 
not more than once in such period) or (ii) at any time in any calendar year (but npt more than 
once in such calendar year) take a record of the holders of the Common Stock for the purpose of 
entitling them to receive a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock of the Corporation, 
unless such dividend exceeds 2'A% of the number of shares of CommonStock outstanding on the 
date such record is taken, in which case such adjustment shall be made but only on the basis of 
the amount by which the dividend exceeds 2'A% of such number of shares of Common Stock 
outstanding. 

When the Corporation takes a record of the holders cf the Common Stock for the purpose of 
entitling them to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in shares of stock of the 
Corporation for which an adjustment is required pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the Cor­
poration may in the discretion of the Board of Directors at the same time take a record of the 
holders of the $3,50 Cumulative Preferred for the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend 
or other distribution payable in such shares of stock of the Corporation in an amount thereof per 
share equal to the amount thereof which the holder of a share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred 
would have been entitled to receive had the share held by him been convened immediately prior 
to such taking of a record of the holders of the Common Stock, and, in such event, no adjustment 
shall be made in the conversion ratio of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred, 

For the purposes of this subparagraph (b), the term "Common Stock" means the Common 
Stock and any other stock of the Corporation resulting from a reclassification of the Common 
Stock or any such other stock. 

(ii) No fractional share of stock of the Corporation shall be issued upon any convenion but, 
in lieu of the issuance of the fraction of a share to which the holder would otherwise have been 
entitled, there shall be paid to the holder of the shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred sur­
rendered for conversion, as soon as practicable after the date such shaires are surrendered for 
conversion, an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the market value of a full share of 
the stock to be received upon the conversion, unless the Board of Directors shall determine to 
adjust fractional shares by the issue of fractional scrip certificates or in some other manner. For 
such purpose, the market value of the stock to be received upon the conversion shall be the last 
sales price thereof, regular way on the New York Slock Exchange, on the business day immedi­
ately preceding the date upon which the shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred arc sur­
rendered for conversion, or, in case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the 
closing bid and asked prices thereof, regular way on such Exchange on such day. If shares of the 
stock to be received upon conversion are not then listed on the New York Stock Exchange, such 
market value shall be determined in the manner fixed by the Board of Directors. 

(iii) No adjustment in the number of shares into which each share of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred is convenible shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or 
decrease of ai least 1/lOOlh of a share in the number of shares into which such share is then 
convenible; provided, however, that any adjustments which by reason of this subdivision are not 
required to be made shallbe carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent 

, adjusimenu 

(iv) Whenever any adjustmem is required in the shares into which each share of theS.3.50 
Cumulative Preferred is convertible, the Corporation shall fortbwhh (A) file with the transfer 
ageni or transfer agents for the shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred a statement describing 
in reasonable detail the adjustment and the method of calculation used and (B) cause a copy of 
such notice to be mailed to the holders of record of the shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred, 

(c) Reservation of Stock for Conversions. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and 
keep available out- of its authorized but unissued shares the full number of shares into which all 
shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred from time to lime outstanding arc convertible, but 
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shares held in the treasury of the Corporation may be delivered, in the Corporation's discretion, 
upon any conversion of shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred, 

(d) Issue Taxes. The Corporation will pay any and all issue and other taxes that may be 
payable in respect of any issue of shares on conversion of shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Pre­
ferred pursuant hereto. The Corporation shall not, however, be required to pay any tax which 
may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in such issue of shares in a name other than 
that in which the shares so converted were legistered, and no such issue shall be made unless and 
until the person requesting such issue has paid to the Corporation the amount of any such tax. or 
has established, to the satisfaction of the Corporation, that such tax has been paid. 

7. Dividends in Securities or Other Property. In the event the Corporation shall pay on any 
stock of the Corporation into which sharesof the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred are at the lime 
convertible, any dividend or other distribution consisting of securities of any corporation other 
than the Corporation, any evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation or any other assets 
(other than dividends and distributions in cash or shares of stock of the Corporation), it shall on 
the same date pay. on the shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred, a dividend or distribution 
consisting of such securities, evidences of indebtedness or other assets in an amount per share 
equal to the amount thereof which the holder of a share of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred would 
have been entitled to receive had the share held by him been convened immediately prior to the 
taking of a record of the holders of such stock of the Corporation for the purpose of entitling 
them to receive such dividend or distribution, such dividend or distribution on the shares of the 
$3.50 Cumulative Preferred to be payable to the holders of shares of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred who are holders of record on the books of the Corporation on the same date as is used 
for the taking of a record of the holders of such stock of the Corporation for such dividend or 
distribution. 

8. Offers of Securities. In the event the Corporation shall offer to sell (by issue of warrants, 
rights or options or otherwise) securities of the Corporation or of any other corporation to the 
holders of shares of any stock of the Corporation into which shares of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred are at the time convertible, the Corporation shall make the same offer to the holders of 
shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred, giving to each such holder of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred the right to purchase at the offer price the amount of such securities which such holder 
would have been entitled lo purchase had he convened each share of the $3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred held by him immediately prior to the taking of a record of the holders of such stock of 
the Corporation for the purpose of entitling them to receive such offer, such offer to the holders 
of shares of the $3,50 Cumulative Preferred to be made lo the holders of" shares of the $3.50 
Cumulative Preferred who are holders of record on the books of the Corporation on the same 
dale as is used for the taking of a record of the holders of such stock of the Corporation for such 
offer. 

9. Restriction on and Notice of Dividends. Until such time as shares of the $3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred shall be convertible at ihe option of the holden thereof as herein provided, the 
Corporation shall pay no cash dividend nor make any other cash distribution.on the Common 
Stock in excess of quarterly dividends at the quanerly rate of 7'A cents per share, with the first 
such dividend to be paid after the dale of the filing under the laws of Delaware of the Agreement 
and Plan of Merger dated as of January.' 15. 1969 between the Corporation and Hess Oil &. 
Chemical Corporation to be calculated as to amount and date of payment from the last date 
prior to such date of filing on which a dividend was paid on the Common Stock of Hess Oil & 
Chemical Corporation. After such time as shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be 
convertible at the option of the holder thereof as herein provided, and so long as any such shares 
remain outstanding, in the event the Corporation shall declare (i) any dividend or other distribu-
lion payable in shares of stock of the Corporation or (ii) any cash dividend or other cash distri­
bution per share on the Common Stock in excess of 120% of the average of the cash dividends 
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and other cash distributions per share on the Common Stock for the four calendar quarters nexi 
preceding the calendar quarter in which such declaration occurs, then, and in-any such event, the 
Corporation shall mail to each holder of the $3.50 Cumulative Preferred at the address of each 
such holder shown in the stock records of the Corporation a notice stating the day on which the 
books of the Corporation shall close, or a record shall be taken, for such dividend or distribution 
and the amount and charaacr of such dividend or distribution. Such notice shall be mailed at 
least 20 days in advance of such day therein specified. 

In applying the provisions of this Paragraph 9 at any time after'the Common Stock shall 
have been split-up or combined or after the Corporation shall have taken a record of the holders 
of the Common Stock for the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend or other distribu­
tion payable in shares of stock of the Corporation of any class or series (other than a dividend 
payable in shares of Common Stock for which no adjustment is required to be made pursuant to 
subparagraph (b) of Paragraph ,6 of this Subsection B), references to "7'A cents per share" and 
"cash dividends and distributions" shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect any such event, and 
for purposes of this Paragraph 9, the term "Common Stock" means the Common Stock and any 
other stock of the Corporation resulting from a reclassification of the Common Stock or any such 
other stock. 

C. ADomoNAL SERIES OF PREFERRED STOCK. 

Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors to create and provide for the 
issue of additional series of the Preferred Stock from time to time by resolution or resolutions, 
and, in connection with the creation of each such series, to fix, by the resolution or resolutions 
providing for the creation and issue of shares of such series, the following provisions of the 
shares of such series, so far as not inconsUtent with the provisions of this Article FOURTH 
applicable to all series of Preferred Stock: 

1. The designation of such series and the number of shares which shall constitute such 
series; 

2. The provisions, if any, for dividends on shares of such series, and, if provisions are 
made for dividends, the dividend rate and the times at which holders of shares of such series 
shall be entitled to receive the dividends, whether the dividends shall be cumulative, and, if 
so. from which date or dates, and the other conditions, if any, including rights of priority, if 
any, on which the dividends shall be paid, provided, that .iht dividend payment dates for 
shares of any series ranking as to dividends on a parity with the shares of any other series 
shall be the same as the dividend payment dates for such other series; 

3. The provisions, if any, for the redemption or purchase Of shares of such series, and, if 
provisions are made for redemption, the time or times and the price or prices at which the 
shares of such series shall be subject to redemption in whole or in part, and the other terms 
and conditions, if any, on which shares of such series may be redeemed or purchased; 

4. The rights, if any, to which holders of the shares of such seriK shall be entitled in the 
event of any voluntary or involunury dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of 
the Corporation; 

5. The sinking fund or purchase fund provisions, if any, for the redemption or purchase 
of shares of such scries and, if any such fund is so provided for the benefit of such shares, the 
amount of such fund and the manner of its application; 

6. The extent of the voting powers, if any, of the shares of such series; 
7. Whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible into, or exchangeable for, 

shares of any other class or classes of stock, or of any series thereof, of the Corporation, and, 
if so convertible or exchangeable, the conversion or exchange price or prices or rates, the 
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adjustments thereof and the other terms and condhions, if any. on wliich such shares shall 
be so convertible or exchangeable; and 

8. Any other preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, and 
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of shares of such series as are not fixed and 
determined hereby. 

SECTION II 

COMMON STOCK 

1. Voting Rights. Every holder of the Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each 
share of the Common Stock standing in his name on the books of the Corporation. 

2. Dividends. Subject lo the provisions of this Article FOURTH and any further provisions 
prescribed in accordance herewith, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive, 
when and as declared by the Board of Directors, out of funds legally available for that purpose, 
dividends payable either in cash, stock or otherwise. 

SECTION III 

PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS 

Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 8 of Subsection B of Section I hereof, no holder 
of any of the shares of the Preferred Stock or of the Common Stodc shall be entitled as of right as 
such holder to purchase or to subscribe for any shares of stock of the Corporation whether now 
or hereafter authorized, or bonds, certificates of indebtedness, debentures, or other securities 
convertible into or carrying any right to purchase stock of the Corporation of any cdass, and 
shares of any such stock, or such other securities convertible into or carrying any right to pur­
chase stock, may be issued and disposed of to such persons and upon such terms and for such 
lawful consideration as may be deemed advisable by the Board of Direaon. 

FIFTH: 1, Elections of Directors. Eleaions of Directors need not be by written ballot 
unless the By-Laws of the Corporation shall so provide, 

2. Number, Election and Terms of Directors. Except as otherwise fixed pursuant to the 
provisions of Article FOURTH hereof relating to the rights of the holders of any class or series of 
stock having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 
additional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors of the Corporation 
shall be fixed from rime to time by or pursuant to the By-Laws. The directors, other than those 
who may be elected by the holders of any class or series of stock having a preference over the 
Common Stock as lo dividends or upon liquidation, shall be classified, with respect to the lime 
for which they severally hold office, into three classes, as neariy equal in number as possible, as 
determined in the manner specified in the By-Laws, one class to hold office initially for a term 
expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 1986, another class to hold office 
initially for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 1987, and another 
class to hold office initially for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 
1988, with the members of each class to hold office until their successon are elected and quali­
fied. At each annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation, the successors lo the class 
of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring 
at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election, 

3. Stockholder Nomination of Director Candidates. Advance notice of nominations for the 
election of directors, other than by the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof, shall be given 
in the manner provided in the By-Laws. 
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4. Newly Created Directorships and-Vacancies. Except as otherwise fixed pursuant to the 
provisions of Article FOI'RTH hereof relating to the rights of the holders of any class or series of 
stock having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 
directors under specified circumsunces, newly created direaorships resulting from any increase 
in the number of directors and any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death. 
resignation, disqualification, removal or other cause shall be filled solely by the affirmative vote 
of a majority of the remaining directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the 
Board of Directors, Any director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold 
office for the remainder of the full term of the class of direaors in which the new directorship 
was created or the vacancy occurred and until such director's successor shall have been elected 
and qualified. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall 
shorten the term of any incumbent director. 

5. Removal of Directors. Subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of stock 
having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect direc­
tors under specified circumstances, any director may be removed from office, with or without 
cause, but only by the affirmarive vote of the holders of at least 80% of the combined voting 
power of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote gener­
ally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, 

6. Stockholder Action. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of 
the Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of such holders atvd 
may not be effected by any consent in writing by such holders. Except as otherwise required by 
law and suhject to the rights of the holders of any class or scries of stock having a preference over 
the Common Stock as to dividends or upon Uquidation, special meetings of stockholders of the 
Corporation may be called only by the Chairman of the Board or the President, and shall be 
called by the Secretary at the request of the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution approved 
by a majority of the entire Board of Directors. For purposes of this Article FIFTH, the term 
" entire Board of Directors" means the total number of directors which the Corporation would 
have if there were no vacancies. 

7. By-Low Amendments. The Board of Directors shall have power to make, alter, amend 
and repeal the By-Laws (except so far as the By-Laws adopted by the Stockholders shall other­
wise provide). Any By-Laws made by the directors under the powers conferred hereby may be 
altered, amended or repealed by the directors or by the stockholders. Mptvwthstanding the 
foregoing and anything contained in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary. 
Sections 7 and 10 of Article III, Seaions 1, 6, 8 and 9 of Article IV and Artidc XIV of the By-
Laws shall not be altered, amended or repealed and no provision inconsistent therewith shall be 
adopted without the affirmarive vote of the holders of at least 80% of the combined voting power 
of all the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in 
the election of directors, voting together as a single class. 

8. Amendment, Repeal, etc. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Restated Certifi­
cate of Incorporation to the contrary, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the 
combined voting power of all the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation 
entitled to vote generally in the election of direaors, voting together as a single class, shall be 
required to alter, amend, adopt any provision inconsistent with, or repeal, this Article FIFTH or 
any provision hereof. 

SIXTH: In furtherance and hot in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board 
of Directors is expressly authorized: 

To make, alter or repeal the By-Laws. Any By-Laws made by the Board of Directors under 
the power conferred hereby may be altered or repealed by the direaors or stockholders, 
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From time to lime, without the assent or vote of the stockholders, to fix the times for the 
declaraiion and payment of dividends, and to fix the amount to be reserved as working capital, 
over and above its capital stock paid in. and to authorize and cause to be executed mortgages 
and liens upon all the property of the Corporation or any part thereof. 

From time to time to sell any or all of the then unissued capital stock of the Corporation, 
whether the same be any of the original of its capital or of any increase thereof, without (subject 
10 the terms hereof) first offering the same to the stockholders then existing, and all such sales 
may be made upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem advisable. 

From time to time to. determine whether and to what extent and at what limes and places 
and under what conditions and regulations the accounts and books of the Corporation (other 
than the stock ledger), or any of them shall be open to the inspection of the stockholders; and no 
stockholder shall have any right of inspeaing any account, book or document of the Corpora­
tion, except as conferred by statute, unless authorized by resolution of the stockholders or 
directors. 

If the By-Laws so provide, to designate two or more of its number to constitute an Executive 
Committee, which Committee shall for the rime being, as provided by resolution of the Board of 
Directors or in the By-Laws of the Corporation, have and exercise any or all of the powers of the 
Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and have 
power to authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it 

The Corporation may in its By-Laws confer powers upon its directors in addition to the 
foregoing and in addition to the powers and authorities expressly conferred upon them by the 
statute . 

SEVENTH: A sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of 
the Corporation shall require the authorization thereof by the affirmative vote of the holders of 
two-thirds of the slock issued and outstanding having voting power at a stockholders' meeting 
duly called upon at least 20 days notice containing notice of the proposed sale, lease or exchange. 

EIGHTH: The Corporauon reserves the right to amend. aUer, change or repeal any provi­
sion contained in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter 
prescribed by statute, and all rights conferted upon stockholders herein are granted subject to 
this reservation. 

NINTH: The following provisions shall apply in addition to any other affirmative vote 
required by law or this Restated Certificate of Incorporation: 

SECTION I 

CERTMN BUSINESS CoMBiNA.TtoNS 

The affirmative vote of the holders of not less than two-thirds of the outstanding shares of 
Voting Stock (as hereinafter defined) held by stockholders other than the Acquiring Person (as 
hereinafter defined) with which or by or on whose behalf, directly or indirectly, a Business 
Combination (as hereinafter defined) is proposed, voting as a single class, shall be required for 
the approval or authorization of such Business Combination. Notwithstanding the foregoing 
the two-thirds voting requirement shall not be applicable if such Business Combination is 
approved by the Corporation's Board of Directors prior to the Acquiring Person becoming such 
or if the cash or fair market value of the property, securities or other consideration to be received 
per share by holders of shares of each class of Voting Stock in such Business Combination as of 
the date of consummation thereof is an amount not less than the higher of (a) the Highest Per 
Share Price or the Highest Equivalent Price (as these terms are hereinafter defined) paid by such 
.Acquiring Person in acquiring any of its holdings of Voting Slock, and (b) the Fair Market Price 
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(as hereinafter defined) of such dass of Voting Stock determined on the date the proposal for 
such Business Combination was first publicly announced, and such-consideration shall be in the 
same form and of the same kind as the consideration paid by such Acquiring Person in acquiring 
the shares of Voting Stock already acquired by it. If the Acquiring Person has paid for shares of 
Voting Stock with varying forms of consideration, the form of consideration to be received by 
the holders of Voting Slock shall be the form used to acquire the largest number of shares of 
Voting Stock acquired by such Acquiring Person. 

SECTION II 

DcnNmoNS, ETC. 
For purposes of this Article NINTH: 

1, Business Combination.. The term "Business Combination" shall mean (a) any merger or 
consolidation of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation with or into an: Acquiring 
Person, (b) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition, including, without limitation, 
a mortgage or any other security device, in a single transaaion or related series of transactions, 
of all or any Substantial Part (as hereinafter defined) of the assets either of the Corporation 
(including without limitation any voting securities of a subsidiary) or of a subsidiary of the 
Corporation to an Acquiring Person, (c) any merger or consolidation of an Acquiring Person 
with or into the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation, (d) any sale, lease, exchange, 
transfer or other disposition, including without limitation a mortgage or other security device, in 
a single transaction or related series of transactions, of all or any Substantial Part of the assets of 
an Acquiring Person to the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation, (e) the issuance of 
any securities of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporauon to an Acquiring Person. 
(0 any recapitalization, merger or consolidation that would have the effea of increasing the 
voii ng power of an Acquiring Person, (g) the adoption of any plan or proposal for the Uquidation 
or dissolution of the Corporation proposed, dhealy or indirectly, by or on behalf of an Acquir­
ing Person, (h) any merger or consolidation of the Corporation with a subsidiary of the Corpora­
tion proposed by or on behalf of an Acquiring Person, unless the surviving or consolidaied 
corporation, as the case may be, has a provision in its certificate of incorporation substantially 
identical lo this Article NINTH, and (i) any agreement, contract or other arrangement providing 
for any of the. transactions described in this definition of Business Combination. A person who 
is an Acquiring Person as of (x) the time any definitive agreement relating to a Business Combi­
nation is entered into, (y) the record date.for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice 
of and to vote on a Business Combination, or (z) immediately prior to the consummation of a 
Business Combination shall be deemed an Acquiring Person for purposes of this definition. 

1. Acquiring Person. The term "Acquiring Person " shall mean and include any individual, 
corporation (other than the Corporation), partnership or other person or entity which, together 
with its Affiliates and Associates (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as in effect at March 2,1983 (collectively, and as so in 
effect, the "Exchange Act")), and with any other individual, corporation (other than the Corpo­
ration), partnership or other person or entity with which it or they have any agreement, arrange­
ment or understanding with respect to acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of Voting Stoc^, 
Beneficially Owns (as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) in the aggregate 20% or more of 
the outstanding Voting Stock of the Corporation. A person or entity, its Affiliates and Associates 
and all such other persons or entities with whom they have any such agreement, arrangement or 
understanding shall be deemed a single Acquiring Person for purposes of this Artide NINTR 

3, Snbsianiial Pari. The term "Substantial Pari"shall mean an amount equal to more than 
20% of the fair market value of the total consolidated assets of the Corporation and its sub­
sidiaries taken as a whole as of the end of its most recent fiscal year ended prior to the time the 
determination is being made. 
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4. Rights to Acquire. Withoutlimitation.any share of Voting Stock of the Corporation thai 
any Acquiring Person has the right to acquire at any time (notwithstanding that Rule 13d-3 of 
the Exchange Act deems such shares to be beneficially owned only if such right may be exercised 
within 60 days) pursuant to any agreement, or upon exercise of conversion rights, warrants or 
options, or otherwise, shall be deemed to be Beneficially Owned by the Acquiring Pcraon and to 
be outstanding for purposes of Paragraph 2 of this Section IL . 

5. Other Consideration to Be Received. For the purposes of Seaion I of this Anicle NINTH. 
the lerm "other consideration to be received" shall include, without limitation. Common Stock. 
Preferred Stock or other capital stock of the Corporation retained by its existing stockholders 
other than the Acquiring Person with which or by or on whose behalf, directly or indirectiy. a 
Business Combination has been proposed or other panics to such Business Combination in the 
event of a Business Combination in which the Corporation is the surviving corporation. 

6. Voting Stock. The term "Voting Stock" shall mean all of the outstanding shares of 
capita! stock of the Corporation entitled to vote on each matter on which the holders of record of 
Common Stock of the Corporation shall be entitled to vote, and each reference to a percentage of 
shares of Voting Slock shall refer to such percentage of the votes entitled to be cast by such 
shares. 

7. Time of Acquisition. An Acquiring Person shall be deemed to have acquired a share of 
the Voting Stock of the Corporation at the time when such Acquiring Person became the Benefi­
cial Owner thereof. The price paid by an Acquiring Person for such shares held by a person or 
entity at the time it became pan of such Acquiring Person shall be deemed to be the higher of (a) 
the price paid upon the acquisition thereof by such person or entity a!nd (b) the market price of 
the shares in question at the time when such person or entity became part of such Acquiring 
Person. 

8. Highest Per Share Price; Highest Equivalent Price. The terms "Highest Per Share Price" 
and "Highest Equivalent Price " as used in this Anicle NINTH shall mean the following: If there is 
only one class of capita! stock of the Corporation issued and outstanding, the Highest Per Share 
Price shall mean the highest per share price that can be determined to have been paid at any time 
by the Acquiring Person by or on whose behalf, directly or indirectly, the Business Combination 
has been proposed for any share or shares of that class of capital stock. If there is more than one 
class of capita! siock of the Corporation issued and outstanding, the Highest Equivalent Price 
shall mean, with respect to each class and series of capital stock of the Corporation, the highest 
per share price equivalent of the highest price that can be determined to have been paid at any 
time by such Acquiring Person for any share or shares of any class or series of capital stock of the 
Corporation. In determining the Highest Per Share Price and Highest Equivalent Price, all 
purchases by an Acquiring Person shall be taken into account regardless of whether the shares 
were purchased before or after the Acquiring Person became an Acquiring Person. Also, the 
Highest Per Share Price and the Highest Equivalent Price shall include any brokerage commis­
sions, transfer taxes and soliciting dealers' fees paid by the Acquiring Person with respect to the 
shares of capital stock of the Corporation acquired by the Acquiring Person. The Highest Per 
Share Price and the Highest Equivalent Price shall be appropriately adjusted to take into account 
stock dividends, subdivisions, combinations and reclassifications, 

9. fair Market Price. The term "Fair Market Price" shall mean for any class of Voting 
Stock the highest closing sale price during the 30-day period immediately preceding the date in 
question of a share of such class of Voting Slock on the Composite Tape for New York Slock 
Exchange-listed stocks, or. if such class of Voting Stock is riot quoted on the Composite Tape, on 
the New York Stock Exchange, or, if such class of Voting Stock is not listed on such Exchange, 
on the principal United Slates securities exchange registered under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 on which such class of Voting Stock is listed, or, if such class of Voting Stock is not listed 

15 



on any such exchange, the highest closing bid quotation with respect to a share of such class of 
Voting Stock during the 30-day period preceding the date in question on the National Associa­
tion of Securities Dealers, inc. Automated Quotations System or any system then in use. or if no 
such quotations are available, the fair market value on the date in question of a share of such 
stock. 

SECTION III 

AMENDMENT 

The provisions set forth in this Article NINTH may not be amended, altered, changed or 
repealed in any respect unless such action is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of 
not less than two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Voting Stock of the Corporation at a 
meeting of the stockholders duly called for the consideration of such amendment, alteration, 
change or repeal; provided, however, that if such action has been proposed, directly or indirectly, 
on behalf of an Acquiring Person, it must also be approved by the affirmarive vote of the holden 
of not less than two-tiiirds of the outstanding shares of Voting Stock held by the stockholders 
other than such Acquiring Person. 

TENTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or 
its stockholders for moneury damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for 
liability which would otherwise exist under applicable law (i) for any breach of the director's 
duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not m good faith 
or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of 
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or (iv) for any transaaion from which the 
director derived an improper personal benefit. Any repeal or modification of, oradoption of any 
provision of this Restated Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent with, this Article TENTH by 
the stockholders of the Corporation or in any other manner as may be permitted by law shaill be 
prospective only and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a 
director of tite Corporauon existing at the time of such repeal, modification or adoption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Restated Certificate of incorporation has been executed on behalf 
of Amerada Hess Corporation by its Chairman of the Board, under its corporate seal, and 
attested by its Secretary this August 15, 1988. 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 
[CORPORATE SEAL} 

By: LEON HESS 

Chairman of the Board 
Attest: CARL T. TURSI 

Secretary' 
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RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

Amerada FIcss Corporation (the "Corpofadon"), a corporation organized and 
existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"), does hereby 
certify that: 

'ihe amendments to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of &e Corporation 
set forth below have been duly adopted in accordance wiih the provisions of Section 242 of the 
DGCL: 

Article FIRST of the Restated Calificalc of IncoipOTalion of the Corporation is hereby 
deleted in Its entirety and the following mserted in lieu ttereof: 

FIRST: The name ofthe Corporation is 

Hess Corporation. 

The first paragraph of Article FOURTH of the Restated Certificate of Incoiporation of 
the Corporation is hereby deteted b its cntirct)' aad the foUowit̂  inserted in E«i thereof; 

"FOURTH: The total number of shares of all classes of slock which the 
Corporation shall have authority to isisue is 620,000,000 shares of whieh 
20,000,000 silmrBS shall be shares of Preferred Stock, of the par value of $1 per 
share (̂ *Preferred Stoci '̂), and 600,OGO,OOG shares shall be shares of Common 
Stock, ofthe par value of SI per steire tCommon Stoc^." 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of 
Amendment to be duly executed and acknowledged by J. Barclay Colikis, its authorized officer, 
in accordance wiffi Section 103 of ihe DGCL. 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

Dated: May 3,2006 

Title: Executfve Vice President 

StiMSOFFICBJAViUiC NAME CHArXSaCollfialiAiDeadRsuitlCinlnKWfilXX: 
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AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

By-Laws 

ARTICLE 1, 
OmCES 

SECTION I. Registered Offict. The registered office shall be in the City of 
•Wilmington, County of New Castle, State of Delaware. 

. SECTION 2, Other Offices. The Corporation may also -have an ofRce in New 
York, New York, and offices at such other places within or without the Stats of 
Delaware as the Board of Directors may finm time to time designate or the business 
of the Corporation may require. 

ARTICLE IL 
SEAL 

The corporate seal shall have inscribed ftierson Ihe name of the Corporation, the 
year of its organization and the words "Corporate Seal, Delaware". The seal may be 
used by causing h or a facsimile thereof to be impressed, affixed, reproduced or 
otherwise used. 

• ARTICLEin. 
STOCKHOLPS^'MESriNQS 

SECTION 1. Place. All meetings ofthe stockholders shall be held at such place 
eitiier within or without the State of Delaware as may be fixed by the Board of 
Directors. 

SECTtON 2, Date and Time of Anraml Meeting. An annual meeting of 
stockholders shall be held on the date and at the fime fixed by the Board of Directors, 
when tiie stockholders shall elect a Board of Directors and transact such other 
business as may properly be brought before the meeting. 

SECTION 3. Quorum and Adjaummml The holders of a majority of the stock 
issued and outstanding and entitled to vote tiiereat, present in person or represented by 
proxy, shall be requisite and shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of fiie 
stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, by the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation, or by these By-Laws, If, however, siah majority shall not be present 
or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote 
thereat, present in person or by proxy,-shall have power to adjourn the meeting finm 
time to time, without notice other than announcemem at the meeting, until the 
requisite amount of voting stock shall be present At such adjourned meeting at which 
the requisite aniount of voting stock shall be represented, any business may be 
transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. 



SECTION 4. Voting. At each meeting of the stockholders, every stoddiolder 
having the right to vote shall be entitled to vote in person, or by proxy appointed by 
an instrument in writing subscribed by such stockholder or by his duly autiioriad 
attorney and bearing a date not more than three years prior to said meeting, unless 
said instaimsnt provides for a longer period. The vote for directors shall be by ballot 
All elections shall be had and all questions decided by a plurality ofthe votes cast 

SECTION 5. Notice of Annual Meetings. Written notice of the annual meeting, 
stating the place, date and hour of tiie meeting, shall be delivered in person, or mailed 
postage,prepaid, to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat at such address as appears 
on the records of the Corporation, not less than ten nor more tiian fifty days before Ihe 
date ofthe meeting. 

SECTION 6. List cf Stockholders. The Secretary shall prqiare and mate, at least 
ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of stockholders entitled 
to vote at said meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of 
each stockholder and die number of shares registered m the name of each stockholder. 
Such list shall be open to tiie examination of any stockholder for any purpose 
germane to the meetmg, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten 
days prior to the meeting either at the place where the meeting is to be held or at a 
place specified in the notice of meeting within the city where the meeting is to be 
held. Such list shall be produced and kept at the time and place of tte meeting during 
the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present 

SHCTION 7, Call of Special Meetings. Except as otherwise required by law and 
subject to the rights ofthe holders of any class or series of stock having a preference 
over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation, special meetings of the 
stockholders for any purpose or pinposes may be called only by the Chairman of the 
Board or the President, and shall be called by the Secretary at the request of fiie Board 
of Directors pursuant to a resolution approved by a majority of the entire Board of 
Directors, 

SECTION 8, Bisiness at Special Meetings. Business transacted at all special 
meetings shall be confined to the ptirpose or purposes stated in the notice. 

SECTION?, Notice of Spscial Meetings. Written notice of a special meeting of 
stockholders, stating tiie place, date and hour of the meeting and the purpose or 
purposes for which it is called, shall be delivered in person, or mailed postage 
prepaid, at least ten days before such meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote 
thereat at such address as appears on the records of the Corporation. 

• SECTION 10. Stockholder Action: How Tafcen. Any action required or pemiitted Amendment 
to be taken by tlie stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called authorized March 6, 
annual or special meeting of such holders and may not be effected by any consent in 1985, effective May 
writing by such holders. 13, 19S5. 

Amendment 
authorized March 6, 
1985, effective May 
13, 19S5, 



ARTICLE IV. 
DiRECTtJRS 

SECTSON 1, (a) Number, Bection and Terms. Except as otherwise fixed 
pursuant to the provisions of Article FOURTH of the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation relating to tiie rights ofthe holders of any class or series of stock having 
a prsfereancB over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 
addhional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors shall be 
fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors but shall not be less than three. The 
directors, other than those who my be elected by the holders of any class or series of 
stock having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon 
liquidation, ^ 1 ! be classified, with respect to the lime for which tiiey severally hold 
office, into three classes, as nearly equal in number as possible, as dBtennined by the 
Board of Dirccton, one class to hold office initially for a tenn expiring at the annual 
meeting of stockholders to be held in 1986, another class to hold office inhially for a 
term expiring at ti:ie annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 1987, and another 
class to hold office initially for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders 
lo be held in 1988, with the members of each class to hold olSce until their 
successors are elected and qualified. At each annual meeting of stockholders, the 
successon of the class of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be elected 
to hold office for a tenn expiring at the annual meeting of stockholdens held in the 
third year following the year of their election. 

The term "entire Board" as used in .these By-Laws means the total number of 
directors which the Corporation would have if there were no vacancies. 

(b) Stockholder Nomination of Director Candidates. Subject to the ri^ts of 
holder? of any class or series of stock having a preference over the Common Stock as 
to dividends or upon liquidation, nominations for the election of directors may be 
made by the Board' of Directors or a commhtee appointed by tiie Board of Directors 

. or by any stockholder entitled to vote in the election of directors generally. However, 
any stockholder entitied to vote m the election of directois generally may nommate 
one or more persons for election as directors at a meeting only if written notice of 
such stockholder's intent to make such nomination or nominations has been-given, 
either by personal delivery or by United States mail, post^e prepaid, to tiie Secreiary 
ofthe Corporation not later than (i) with respect to an election to be held at an annual 
meeting of stockholders, ninety days prior to the anniversary date of tiie immediately 
preceding annual meeting, and (ii) with respect to an election to be held at a special 
meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the close of business on the 
tenth day following the date on which notice of such meeting is first given to 
stockholders, Each such notice sh^l set forth: (a) tiie name and address of the 
stockholder who intends to make tine nomination and of the person or persons to be 
nominated; (b) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of 
the Coiporation entitied to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by 
proxy at the meeting to nominate tine person or persons specified in the notice; (c) a 
description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder and each 
nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to 
which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the stockholder, (d) such 
other information regarding each nominee proposed by such stockholder as would be 
required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy mles of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, had the nominee been nominated, or intended 

Amendment 
authorizEd March 6, 
1985, effective 
May 13,1985. 
(supersedes 
amendment of 
October 5,1983) 

Amendment 
authorized March 6, 
1985, effective 
May 13,1985. 
(supersedes 
amendment of 
October S, 1983) 



to be nominated, by the Board of Directors; and (e) the consent of each nominee to 
serve as a director of the Corporation If so elected. The presiding officer of the 
meeting may refiise to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made in 
compliance with the fbregoing procedure. 

SECTION 2, Powers. In addition to the powers and authorities by these By-Laws 
expressly conferred upon it, the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of 
die Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by the General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, by the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation or by these By-Laws directed or required to be exercised or done 
exclusively by the stockholders. 

SECTION 3, Expenses and Fees. Each director my be allowed expenses, if any, 
for attendance at each regular or special meeting ofthe Board of Directors and of any 
committee thereof, and each director who is not an employee of the Corporation or 
any of it's subsidiaries shall receive for services rendered as a director or as a member 
of any committee ofthe Board of Directors such compensation as may be fixed by the 
Board of Directors. Nothing herein contained shall be constmed to preclude any 
director from serving the Corporation in any other capachy and receiving 
compensation therefor. 

SECTJOK 4. Organization Meeting. As soon as practicable after tiie annual 
meeting of the stockholders, a meeting of the newly elected Board of Directors for tiie 
purpose of organization and the election of officers and otherwise shall be held upon 
the call and notice specified in Section 5 of this Article. 

SECTION 5. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings ofthe Board of Directors shall 
be held without notice at the principal office ofthe Corporation in New York, New 
York, or at such otiier place within or without the State of Delaware as shall be fixed 
by the Board of Directors, at surfi times as shall be determined by tiie Board of 
Directors. 

SECTION 6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may Amendment 
be called by the Chairman of the Board or the President, on two days' notice to each authori2ed March 6, 
director, personally, by mail or by telegram, and shall be called by the Secretary in 1985. effective May 
like manner and on like notice on ttte written request of a majority of the entire Board 13,1985. 
of Directors, Special meetings ofthe Board of Directors shall be held at the place and 
time designated in die notice of meeting. 

SECTION 7. Quorum. At all meetings of fee Board of Directors at least fifty per 
cent of the directors then in office shall be necessary and suffjcient to constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business, and the vote of a majority of the directors 
present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of 
Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by the General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, by tiie Restated Certificate of 
! ncorporation or by these By-Laws. 

SECTION 8, Newly Created Directorships and Vacancies. Except as otherwise Amendment 
fixed pursuant to the provisions of Article FOURTH of the Restated Certificate of autiiorized March 6, 
Incorporation relating to tiie rights ofthe holders of any class or series of stock having 1985, effective May 
a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 13,1985. 



directors under specified circumstances, newly created directorships resulting from 
any increase in the number of directots and any vacancies on the Board of Directors 
resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other cause siall be 
filled solely by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors tiien in 
office, even tliough less than a quorum of tiie Board of Directors. Any director elected 
in accordance with tiie preceding sentence shall hold office for the remainder of the 
full term of die class of directors in which the new directorship was created or the 
vacaicy occurred and until such director's successor shall have been elected and 
qualified. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors 
slrnll shonen the term of any incumbent director. 

SECTION 9, Removal. Subject to the rights of any class or series of stock having 
a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 
directors under specified circumstances, any director may be removed from office, 
with or without cause, but only by the affirmative vote of the holders of leMt 80% of 
the combined voting power of fee then outstanding shares of capital SiazY of the 
Corporation entitied to vote generally in (he election of directors, voting together as a 
single class. 

SECTION 10. Action Without Meeting The provisions of these By-Laws covering Redasignationas 
noticesatid meeting to tiie contrary notwithstanding, any action required or permitted Section 10 
to be tal<sn at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any cotnmittee tiiereof may autiiorized March 6, 
be taken without a meeting if all members of the .Board of Dir&SDts or of such 1985, effective May 
committee, as tiie case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings 13,1985. (previously 
are filed wife the minutes of proceedings of theBoard of Directors or committee. Section 9) 

Amendment 
authorized March 6, 
1985, effective May 
13,1985. 

ARTICLE V. 
COMMITTEES 

The Board of Directors, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole 
Board of Directors, may desipate one or more committees, each committee to consist 
of two or more of the directors of the Coiporation. Each such committee, to the 
extent provided in these By-Laws or as authorized by the Board of Directors, shall 
have and may exercise the powers ofthe Board of Directors in the management ofthe 
business and affairs ofthe Corporation, and may authorize the seal of tiie Corporation 
to be affixed to all papers which may require it 

Each such committee shall keep a record of its proceedings and ail actions of 
each such committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors at the meeting tiiereof 
next succeeding the taking of such action. 

Each such committee shall fix its own mles of procedure, but tiie presence of at 
least fifty per cent of tiie members of the whole committee shall in each case bs 
necessary to constitute a quomm of the committee and the affirmative vote of a 
majority ofthe members ofthe committee present at the meeting shall be necessary to 
take any action. In the absence of a member of any such committee, the member or 
members thereof present at aiiy meeting and not disqualified from voting, whetiier or 
not be or they constitute, a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member ofthe 
Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified 
person. 



ARTICLE VI, 
OFHCERS 

SECTION L TUles. The ofRtxis of tiis Corporation shall be a Chairman of tiw 
Board, a Chairman of tiie Executive Conmuttee, a PrKiident, one or more Vice 
Presidents (one or more of whom maybe designated Senior Executive Vice President, 
Executive Vice Presideait, Group Vice President or Senior Vice President), a 
Secretary, a Controller, an Auditor and a Treasurer.' 

Amendment 
authorized and 
effective January 8, 
1986, (supercede 
amendments of 
January 9,1980) 

SECTION 2. Election. The Board of Directors at its first meeting after -each 
annua! meeting of stockholders shall elect the Chairman of the Board, tiie Chairman 
of the Executive Committee and the President fram their own number, and in addition 
shall elect one or more Vice Presidents (one or more of whom may be designated as 
Senior Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Group Vice President or 
Senior Vice President), the Secretary, tiie Controller, tiie Auditor and the Treasurer, 
who need not be members ofthe Board of Directors. 

SECTIONS, other Officers. The Board of Directors may ^ o i n t one or more 
Assistant Secretaries, one or more Assistant Controllers, one of more Assistant 
Auditors and one or more Assistant Treasurers, and such other officers and agents as 
it shall deem necessary, who shall- hold their offices for sudi terras and shall exercise 
such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors, 

S ECTION 4. Salaries, The salaries of the elected officers of tiie Corporation .shall 
be- fixed by the Board of Directors. Tbs salaries, wages of compensation of ^1 other 
employees, representatives and agents ofthe Corporatiotv shall be fixed by tiie Board 
of Directors to the extent determined from time to time by the Board of Directors and 
otherwise in the mamer determined by the Chairman of the Board. 

SECTION 5, Terms of Office. The officers of tiie Corporation shall hold office 
until their successors are chosen and qualified. Any officer elected or appointed by 
tiie Board of Dirtators my be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the whole Board of Directors. If tiie office of any officer shall become • 
vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors. 

SECTION 6, Other Powers. In addition to tiie powers and duties hereinafter 
specifically prescribed for the respective officers, the Board of Dhectois may from 
time to time impose or confer upon any of the officers such additional duties and 
powers as the Board of Directors may see fit, and tiie Board of Directors may from 
time to time impose or confer any or all of the duties and powers hereinafter 
spectfical ly prescribed for any officer upon any other officer or officers. 

SECTION 7. Divisions and Division Officers. The Board of Dhectois msy from 
time to time establish one or mors operating or administrative divisions of tiie 
Corporation and assign to such divisions responsibilities for-such of the Corporation's 
business, operations and affairs as the Board may determine. The Board of Directors, 
or the Chairman ofthe Board, the President, or any otiier officer ofthe Corporation so 
authorized by the Board, may appoint officers of a division for such temas and having 
such tides, exercising such powers and performing such duties as the Board or such 

Amendment 
autiioriztd and 
effective January 8, 
1986, (supercedes 
amendments of 
January?, 1980) 

Amendment 
authorized and 
effective May 1 
2002 



appointing officer of the Corporation may detennine. An officer of a division shall 
not as such be an officer of tiie Corporation. An officer of a division shall have tiie 
power to execute and deliver contracts and other documents relating to the business, 
opemtions and affairs of such officer's division oti behalf of the Corporation, but shall 
not have such power witii respect to any otiier division ofthe Corporation. An officer 
of a division may be removed with or without cause by the Board of Directors or by 
the Chairman ofthe Board, the President or any other officer ofthe Corporation then 
authorized by the Board to appoint officers of a division. 

ARTICLE VII. 
DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

Amendment 
autiiorized and 
effective December 2, 
1970. 

Amendment 
autiiorized August!, 
1972, effective 
September 1, 1972, 
(supercedes 
amendment of 
December 2. 1970) 

SECTION 1, Chairman of the Board. .The Chairman of tiie Board shall be the 
chief executive officer of the Corporation; he shall preside at meetings of tiie 
stockholders and the Board of Directors; he shall, subject to control by the Board of 
Directors, have full power and complete autiiority in the management ofthe business 
and affairs of tiie Corporation and shall see tiial all orders and resolutions of the Board 
of Directors and of all commhtees tiiereof are carried into effect. The Chairman of 
the Board shall perform the duties ofthe Chairman ofthe Executive Committee in his 
absence or inability to act 

SECTION 2. Chairman o/ the Executive Committee, The Chairman of tiie 
Executive Committee of .the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall preside at 
meetings of said Executive Committee. No action of tiie Executive Committee shall 
be valid unless the Chairman of the Executive Commtttee or, in his absence or 
inability to act, .tine Chairman of the Board shall concur therein. The Chairman of tiie 
Executive Committee, subject to control by the Board of Directors, shall (a) have 
responsibility for the capital expendkure budget, (b) review and rati-^ operating 
expense budgets, (c) review financial affairs ofthe Corporation, including the status 
of capila! expendhure and operating expense budgets, and (d) report his findings, 
together with his recommendations, to the Board of Directors of tiie Corporation. He 
shall perfonn such other duties as may be presaibed from time to time by tiie Board 
of Directors or by these By-Laws. 

SECTION 3. Chairman of the Finance Committee. The Chahman of the Finance 
Committee shall preside at meetings of the Finance Commtttee. No action of the 
Finance Committee shall be valid unless the Chairman of tiie Finance Commtttee 
shall concur therein. The Chairman of the Finance Committee shall perform such 
other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors or by 
these By-Laws. 

SECTION 4. President. The President shall perfonn such duties as may be Amendment 
assigned to him from time to time, by the Board of Directors or the Chairman of tite authorized and 
Board. The President shall perform the duties of tiie Cnatrman of tiie Board in his effective January 9, 
absence or inability to act 1980. 

SECTION 5, Senior Vice Executive Presidents and Executive Vice Presidents. Amendment 
The Senior Executive Vice Presidents and tiie Executive Vice Presidents shall autiiorized and 
perform such duties as may be assigned to tiiem from time to time by the Board of effective January E, 
Directors or the Chairman of tiie Board. 19X6. 

Amendment 
authorized and 
effectiveMayS, 1980. 
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SECTION 6. Ftce Presidents. The Vice Pnsidents (includuig Group Vice Amendnient 
Presidents and Senior Vice Presidents) shall perform such duties as may be autiiorized and 
assigned to tiiem from time to time by tiie Board of Directors or tiie Chairman of effective 
the Board. August 2,1972. 

SECnON 7. Secreiary. The Secretary shall attend and keep -flie minutes and 
records of all meetings of tiie rtookholders and of the Board of Directors. He shall 
give or cause to he given notice of all meetings of stockholders and of tiie Board of 
Directors. He shall keep in safe custody the seal of the Corporation. He shall have 
power when required to affix the seal to any histniment, and when so affbced the seal 
shall be attested by the signamre of the Secretary or such other officer or agents as 
may be designated by tiie Board of Directors. The Secretary shall perform such otiier 
duties as may be prescribed by tide Board of Directors or the Chainman ofthe Board. 

SECTION 8. Assistant Corporate Secretaries and Assistant Secretaries. The Amendment 
Assistant Corporate Secretary, or Assistant Corporate Secretaries and fiie Assistant authotized and 
Secretary or Assistant Secretaries shall perform such ofthe duties ofthe Secretary and effective 
such otiier duties as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors, the November 4,1981. 
Chairman ofthe Board or the Secretary. 

SECTION 9. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have general charge of tiie corporate 
funds and securities and shall keep or cause to be kept fiill and accurate accounts of 
receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Corporation, and shall deposh or 
cause to be deposited all moneys and other valuable effects in the name and to the 
credit of the Corporfflion, in such depositories as may be designated pursuant to tiiese 
By-Laws or by the Board of Directors. He shall see that proper vouchers are taken for 
all disbursements, and shall render to tiie Chairman of tiie Board and tiie Board of 
Directors, whenever required, and account of all transactions of his offiM, He shall 
perform such otiier duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or tiae 
Chairman of the Board. 

He shall give the Corporation a bond if required by the Board of Directors, in a 
sum and with one or more sureties satisfactory to tiie Board of Directors, for the 
faithful perfoiroance of the duties of his office and for the restoration to tiie 
Corporation, in case of his deatii, resignation, retirement, or removal from ofRce, of 
all books, papers, vouchers, money and otiier property of whatever kind in his 
possession or under his control belonging to the Corporation. 

SECTION 10. Assisiani Treasurers. The Assistant Treasurer or Asastant 
Treasurers shall penbrm such of tiie duties ofthe Treasurer and such other duties as 
may be assigned to him or tiiem from time to time by the Board of Directors, tiie 
Chairman ofthe Board or the Treasurer. 

SECTION 11. Controller. The Controller shallbe tiic-chiaf accounting officer of 
the Corporation and shall be in charge of and shall be responsible for, accounting and 
accounting methods, budgets and preparation of statistics to assist in executive control 
of the Corporation. He shall prepare such financial statements and reports and 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or die 
Chairman ofthe Board. 



SECTION 12. Assistant Controllers. The Assistant Controller or Assistant 
Controllers shall perform such of the duties of tiie Controller and such other duties as 
may be assigned to him or them from time to time by the Board of Directors, the 
Chairman of tiie Board of tiie Controller. 

SECTION 13. Auditor. The Auditor shall review the accounting, financial, and 
related operations and. shall be responsible for measuring titie effectiveness of controls. . 
He shall appraise procedures, verify tiie extent of compliance with controls, prevent 
and detect fraud or dishonesty, and perfonn such other duties as may be prescribed by 
the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board. 

SECTION 14. Assistant Auditors. The Assistant Auditor or Assistant Auditon 
shall perfomi such of the duties of tiie Auditor and such other duties as may be 
assigned to him or tiiem by tiie Board of Directors, the Chaimian ofthe Board or the 
Auditor. 

ARTICLE VIIL 
lNDEMNinCA.TION 

Every person who is or was a director, officer or employee ofthe Corporation, or 
of any other corporation which he serves or served as such at tiie request of the 
•Corporation, shall, in accordance with this Article VIII but not if prohibited by law, 
,be indemnified by the Corporation as hereinafter provide agmrBt reasonable expense 
and any liability paid or incurred by him inconiBCtion wjtii or resulting from any 
threatened or actual claim, ^tion, suit or proceeding (whetiiar brought by or in tiie 
right of tine Corporation or such other corporation or otiierwise), civil, criminal, 
administrative or investigative, in which he may be involved, as a pany or otherwise, 
by reason of his being or having been a director, officer or employee of the 
Corporation or such other corporation, or by reason of any action taken or not taken 
in his capacity as such director, officer or employee, whetiier or not he continues to 
be such at the time such expense or liability shall have been paid or inounred. 

As. used in this Anicle VIII, the term "expense" shall mean counsel fees and 
disbursements and all otiier expenses (except any liabilhy) relating to any such ci^m, 
action, suit or proceeding, and the term "liability" shall mean amounts of judgments, 
fines or penalties against and amounts paid in settlement by, a director, officer or 
employee witii respect to any such cMm, action, suit or proceeding. 

Any person referred to in the first paragraph of this Article VIII who has been 
wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, with respect to any claim, action, suh or 
proceeding of the character described in such first paragraph shall be reimbursed by 
the Corporation for his reasonable expense. 

Any other person claiming indemnification under the .first paragraph of tiiis 
Article VIII shall be reimbursed by the Corporation for his reasonable expense and for 
any liability (otiier tiian any amount paid to tiie Corporation) if a Refscee shall deliver 
to the Corporation his written fmdlng thai such person acted In good feith in what tiie 
reasonably believed to be the best interests of the Corporation, and, in addition, with 
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, reasonably believed tiiat his conduct was 
lawful. The termination of any claim, action, suit or proceeding of tiie character 
described in tiie first paragraph of titis Anicle Vill. by judgment, setQemenl (whetiier 
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with or witiiout court approval), adverse decision or conviction after trial or upon a 
plea of guihy or of nolo contaidere, or its equivalent, shall not create a presumption 
that a director, officer or employee did not meet tiie foregoing standards of conduct 
The penon claiming indemnification shall at tiie request ofthe Referee appear before 
htm and answer questions which the Referee deems relevant and shall be given ample 
opportunity to present to the Referee evidence upon which he relies for 
indemnification; and the Corporation shall, at tiae request of the Referee, make 
available to the Referee facts, opinions or otiier evidence in any way relevant for Hs 
finding which are within tiie possession or control ofthe Corporation. As used in tiiis 
Article VIII, the term "Referee" shall mean independent legal counsel (who may be 
regular counsel of tiie Corporation), or other disinterested person or persons, selected 
by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (whether or not a disinterested quorum 
exists) to act as such hereunder. 

Any expense incurred with respect to any claim, action, suh or proceeding of tiie 
cliaracter described in the first paragraph of this Article VIII may be advanced by the 
Corporation prior to tiie final disposition tiiereof upon receipt of an undertaking made 
by or on behalf of the recipient to repay such advance If it is ultimately determined 
that he is not ro be indemnified under tius Article VIII or, if it isuhimately determined 
that he is to be indemnified under tiiis Article VIII, to tiie extent that the advance 
exceeds tiie amount of the mdemntfication. 

If any clause or provision of this Article VIII shall for any reason be determined 
to be invalid, the provisions hereof shall not otiierwise be affected tiiereby but shall 
remain in full force and effect 

The rights of indemnification provided in tiiis Article Vin shall be in addition to 
any rights to which any such director, officer or employee may otherwise be entitied 
by contract or as a matter of law and, in the event of such person's death, such rights 
shall extend to his heirs and legal representatives, 

ARTICLE DC. 
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK 

SECTION 1, Form. Every holder of stock in the Corporation shall be entitied to 
have a certificate signed by, or in the name ofthe Corporation by, tiie Chairman of tiie 
Board, or the Chairman of the Executive Committee, or the President, or a Vice 
President and the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or tiie Secretary or an Assistant 
Secretary of the Corporation certifying the number of shares owned by him in tiie 
Corporation. If such certificate is countersigned (1) by a transfer agent other than the 
Corporation or its employee, or (2) by a registrar otiier titan tifie Corporation or its 
employee, the signatures ofthe officers ofthe Corporation may be facsimiles. In case 
any officer who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a , 
certificate shall have ceased to be such officer before such certificate is issued, h may 
be issued by tiie Corporation with the same effect as if he were such officer at tiie date 
of issue. 
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SECTION l Transfer, upon surrender to tiie Corporation or tiie transfer agent of 
tiie Corporation of a cerfficate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper 
evidence of succession, assignment or authority to transfer, it shall be tiie duty of tiie 
Coiporation to issue a new certificate to tiie person entitied thereto, cancel the old 
certificate and record the transaction upon its books. 

SECnOK 3. Fixing Date for Determinaiion of SloMiolders cf Record. In order 
that the Corporation may determine tiie Stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at 
any meeting of stockholders or at any adjournment tiiereof, or entitied to receive 
payment of any dividend or distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitied to 
exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock or for 
the purpose of any other la-wful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in ^vance, a 
record date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date 
of such meeting, nor more than sixty days prior to any other action. 

SECTION 4, Holder of Record The Corporation shall be entitled to treat tiie 
holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder in fact tiiereof and 
accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or otiier claim to or interest 
in such share on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or 
other notice thereof, save as expressly provided by tiie General Corporation Law of 
the State of Delaware, 

SECTION 5. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates, Any person claiming a 
certificate of stock to be lost, stolen or destroyed shall make an affidavit or 
affirmation of that fact and advertise the same in such manner as the Corporation may 
require and shall, if tiie Corporation so requires, give tiie Corporation a bond of 
indemnity, in form and witii one or more sureties satisfectory to tiie Corporation and 
in an amount deemed by the Corporation sufficient to indemnify the Corporation, 
whereupon a new certificate may be issued of the same tenor and for die same 
number of shares as tiie one alleged to be lost, stolen or destroyed. 

ARTICLE X. 
NOTICES 

Amendment 
autiiorized March 6, 
1985, effective May 
13,1985. 

SECTION l. Notice by Mail Whenever under tiie provisions ofthe General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, or of the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation or of these By-Laws notice is required to be given to any direttor or 
stockholder, such notice may be given in writing by mail, addressed to such director 
or stockholder at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation by 
depositing the same in a post office or letter box, post prepaid and such notice shall be 
deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be thus mailed. 
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SECTION 2. FFfliver of Notice, Any notice reqmred to be ^ e n under these By-
Laws, the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, or tiie General Corporation Law of 
tiie State of Delaware, may be waived in. writing, signed by tiie person or persons 
emitied to said notice, whetitisr before or after tiie time stated therein, and such written 
waiver shall be deemed equivalent to notice. Neither the business to be transacted at, 
nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of tiie stockholders or ofthe Board 
of Directors (or committees tiiereof) need be specified in any vwitten waver of notice. 

ARTICLE XI, 
INSPECTION O F BOOKS 

The Board of Directors shall determine from time to time whether and, if 
allowed, when and under what conditions and regulations tiie accounts and books of 
the Corporation (except such as may by statute be specifically open to inspection) or 
any of them shall be open to tiie inspection ofthe stockholders, and the stockholder's 
rights in this respect are and shall be restricted and Ihnited accordingly. 

ARTICLE XII. 
CHECK AND NOTES 

The moneys of tiie Corporation shall be-deposited in tiie name of tiie Corporation 
in such bank or banks as tiie Chairman of the Board, tiie Chantnan ofthe Executive 
Committee, the President or a Vice President and tiie Treasurer or an Assistant 
Treasurer ofthe Corporation may from time to time designate, and all checks, notes, 
drafts and bills of exchange of tiie Corporation shall be signed by such officers or 
agents as tiie Chairman of tiie Board, the Chairman of tiie Executive Committee, tiie 
President or a Vice President, and the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer of tiie 

- Corporation may from time to time designate. -

ARTICLE Xm, 
FISCAL YEAR 

The fiscal year shall begin tiie first day of January in each year, 

ARTICLE XIV, 
AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS 

SECTION I. By the Stockholders. Subject to tiie provisions of the Restated 
Certificate of incorporation, these By-Laws may be altered, amended or repealed, or 
new By-Laws enacted, at any special meeting of tiie stockholders if duly called for 
that purpose (provided tiiat in the notice of such special meeting, notice of such 
purpose shall be given), oi at any annual meeting, by the affirmative vote of a 
maj ority of tiie stock represented and entitied to vote thereat. 

Amendment 
autiiorized March 6, 
1985, effective May 
13,1985. 

^ECnO}^ 1. By. the Board of Directors. Subject to tiie laws of the State of Amendment 
Delaware, tiie Resisted Certificate of Incorporation and tiiese By-Laws, these By- autiiorized March 6, 
Laws may also be altered, amended or repealed, or new By-Laws enacted, by the 1985, effective May 
Board ofDirectorsatanymeeting ofthe Board of Directors. 13,1985. 



Hess Energy Marketing, LLC 
Exhibit A-16 

Secretary of State 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-16 

Exhibit A-16 "Secretary of State"; Provide evidence that the applicant has registered 
with the Ohio Secretary of State. 

Response: Please see the enclosed documentation confirming Hess Energy 
Marketing, LLC's registration with the Ohio Secretary of State. 



*201309100086* 
DATE: DOCUMENT ID DESCRIPTION FILING EXPED PENALTY CERT COPY 
04/01/2013 201309100086 REG. OF FOR. PROFIT LIM. LIAB. CO. 125.00 100.00 .00 .00 .00 

(LFP) 

Receipt 
This is not a bill. Please do not remit payment. 

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 
4400 EASTON COMMONS WAY, STE 125 
ATTN: JAMES H TANKS III 
COLUMBUS, OH 43219 

S T A T E OF O H I O 
C E R T I F I C A T E 

Ohio Secretary of State, Jon Husted 
2186521 

It is hereby certified that the Secretary of State of Ohio has custody ofthe business records for 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 

and, that said business records show the filing and recording of: 

Document(s) Document No(s): 

REG. OF FOR. PROFIT LIM. LIAB. CO. 201309100086 

Effective Date: 03/29/2013 

Witness my hand and the seal of the 
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio 
this 1st day of April, A.D. 2013. 

United States of America 
State of Ohio 

Office ofthe Secretary of State Ohio Secretary of State 

Q^^fhMJ 



Hess Energy Marlieting, LLC 
Exhibit B-1 

Jurisdictions of Operation 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-1 

Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation"; Provide a list of all jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest ofthe applicant is, at the date of the filing ofthe 
application, certified, licensed, registered or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services. 

Response; Hess Corporation ("Hess"), Hess Energy Marketing, LLC's ("HEM") 
corporate parent, is authorized to provide retail electric services in: New York, 'New 
Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Connecticut, 
Rhode Island, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Maine and Ohio. 

Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS"), HEM's corporate affiliate, is 
authorized to provide retail electric service in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, 
Maryland and Ohio. 

Hess and HSBS are wholesale power marketers with market-based rate 
authorization granted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission under FERC 
Docket Nos. ER-06-1280 and ER-11-3623, respectively. 

HEM has applied or is in the process of applying for authorization to provide retail 
electric service in all states where Hess currently has such authorization. HEM is in 
the process of obtaining market-based rate authorization from FERC under Docket 
No. ER-13-1192. 



Hess Energy Marlceting, LLC 
Exliibit B-2 

Experience & Plans 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-2 

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans"; Provide a description ofthe applicant's 
experience and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, 
providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in 
accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised 
Code. 

Response; Hess Energy Marketing, LLC ("HEM") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Hess Corporation ("Hess"), a leading total energy provider for over 4,000 
commercial and industrial customer located in 12 states within its retail electric 
marketing footprint, since entering the retail electric marketing business in 1999, 
Hess is experienced in the full business cycle of electric marketing including; 
contracting, contract administration, load aggregation, procurement, forecasting 
and scheduling, risk management, energy management, customer service and billing 
and all other customer protections enumerated in Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised 
Code. 
As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess Corporation ("Hess"), HEM will utilize the 
operations infrastructure of Hess' Energy Marketing division to ensure reliable 
delivery of products and services to its customers. 

With respect to customer billing, HEM, like its parent company Hess and affiliated 
Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS") will operate a proprietary customer 
information system that produces billing statements for its customers and contains 
the information needed to respond to customer inquiries and complaints. The 
system will retain customer information for a minimum of three years. 

With respect to customer inquiries, customers interested in obtaining information 
about HEM willhave a variety of options through HEM's; (1) Website 
(www.hessener2v.com); (2) Toil-Free Number (800-437-7265); (3) Sales 
Representative in the Region (Don Diel, Regional Sales Manager, Phone; (412) 494-
7209, Fax; (412) 494-7201, E-Mail; didel(a)hess.com). 

With respect to customer service, our toll-free call center and local marketing 
representatives are available during normal business hours and the hessenergy.com 
website can be accessed 24 hours a day. 

http://www.hessener2v.com
http://hessenergy.com


Hess Energy Marlceting, LLC 
Exhibit B-2 

Experience & Plans 

With respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution, customers may contact 
our toll-free number at (800) 487-7265 or e-mail the HEM Quality Service 
Department at qcsteam@hess.com. Complaints or disputes not settled within 60 
days may be submitted to the Ohio Public Utility Commission for resolution and 
HEM will fully comply with any additional rules and requirements set forth by the 
PUC with respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution process. 

mailto:qcsteam@hess.com
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HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-3 

Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience"; Provide a concise summary ofthe 
applicant's experience in providing the service(s) it is seeking to be certified to provide 
(e.g., number and types of customers served, utility service areas, amount of load, etc.). 

Response; Hess Corporation ("Hess") is a $42 billion energy company with over 79 
years of experience in providing reliable energy services to retail customers. Hess, 
which began serving retail electric customers in 1999, serves approximately 4,000 
commercial and industrial customers and 5,500 peak megawatts across 12 states and 
three Independent System Operators. As such, Hess is experienced in the full 
business cycle of electric marketing including; contracting, contract administration, 
load aggregation, procurement, forecasting and scheduling, risk management, 
energy management, customer service and billing and all other customer 
protections enumerated in Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. Hess also actively 
participated in regulatory proceedings throughout the states in which it serves. Hess 
is currently a licensed Competitive Retail Electric Supplier in Ohio (Certificate 
Number 10-208E(2)). 

Hess Energy Marketing, LLC ("HEM") has been established as a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Hess. Through its use of Hess Corporation's Energy Marketing 
division's operations infrastructure, HEM is experienced in the full business cycle of 
electric marketing including; contracting, contract administration, load aggregation, 
procurement, forecasting and scheduling, risk management, energy management, 
customer service and billing and all other customer protections enumerated in 
Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. 
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Environmental Disclosure 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-4 

Exhibit B-4 "Environmental Disclosure"; Provide a detailed description of how the 
applicant intends to determine its (a) generation resource mix, and (b) environmental 
characteristics, including air emissions and radioactive waste. This information shall 
include sufficient discussion so as to detail both the annual projection methodology 
and the proposed approach to compiling the quarterly actual environmental disclosure 
data. Additional details on this requirement may be obtained by referring to 4901:1-
21-09. 

Response; Hess Energy Marketing, LLC ("HEM") expects the generation resource 
mix and environmental characteristics of the power it sells to customers in Ohio to 
consist of the average regional generation resource mix and average regional 
emission rates for air emissions and radioactive waste. Such data is available to 
HEM through regional wholesale markets in which it actively participates (e.g., the 
PJM GATS database). HEM intends to use the regional average data published by 
this source or any other source approved by the Commission. HEM intends to 
disclose environmental data to customers and the Commission through 
environmental disclosure labels in a manner fully consistent in both format and 
timing as set forth in Rule 4901;l-21-09. 
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Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-5 

Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations"; Provide a description of 
all existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking 
to be certified to provide. 

Response; None. 
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Annual Reports 

HESS ENERGY MARKETING, LLC 
EXHIBIT C-1 

Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports"; Provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. 

Response; Enclosed please find Hess Corporation's 2012 and 2011 Annual Reports. 
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FINANCIAL AND 
OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS 
HESS CORPORATION 

Amounts in millions, except per share data 

Financial — for the year 

Sales and other operating revenues 

Net income attributable to Hess Corporation 

Net income per share diluted 

Common stock dividends per share 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Capital and exploratory expenditures 

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 

Financial — at year end 

Total assets 

Total debt 

Total equity 

Debt to capitalization ratio^"" 

Common stocl< price 

Operating — for the year 

Production — net 

Crude oil and natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day) 

United States 

International 

Total 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 

United States 

International 

Total 

Barrels of oil equivalent (thousands of barrels per day) 

2012 

$ 37,691 

$ 2,025 

$ 5.95 

$ .40 

$ 5,660 

$ 8,265 

340.3 

2012 

$43,441 

$ 8,111 

$21,203 

27.7% 

$ 52.96 

2012 

124 

179 

303 

119 

497 

616 

406 

2011 

$ 38,466 

$ 1.703 

$ 5.01 

$ .40 

$ 4,984 

$ 7462 

339.9 

2011 

$ 39,136 

$ 6,057 

$ 18,592 

24.6% 

$ 56.80 

2011 

94 

172 

266 

100 

523 

623 

370 

(a) Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt and total equity. 



LETTER TO 
SHAREHOLDERS 

John B. Hess 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

This past year has been one of significant progress 

for Hess as we continued our transformation from 

an integrated oil and gas company to a focused, 

higher growth, lower risk pure play exploration and 

production ("E&P") company. 

Our reported net income for the year was the third 

highest in company history and our cash flow was 

the highest in our history. 

Specifically, E&P earned $2.2 billion on a crude oil 

and natural gas production base of 406,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day, which represented a 10 

percent increase from 2011. These strong financial 

and operating results were driven by an 87 percent 

increase in production in our leading position in the 

Bakken shale oil play in North Dakota. At year end, 

we had replaced 141 percent of our production at a 

finding, development and acquisition cost of about 

$38 per barrel of oil equivalent. Our proved reserves 

stood at 1.553 billion barrels of oil equivalent and 

our reserve life was 10.3 years. 

MULTI-YEAR TRANSFORMATION 
TO PURE PLAY E&P COMPANY 

Our Board and management team have been in the 

process of transforming Hess into a more focused 

and higher growth exploration and production 

company. On March 4, 2013, we announced 

the culmination of that process by exiting our 

downstream businesses and becoming a pure play 

E&P company. Specifically, we are divesting our 

retail, energy marketing and trading businesses; 

divesting our E&P assets in Indonesia and Thailand; 

and pursuing the monetization of our Bakken 

midstream assets. Proceeds from all initiatives 

announced to date will be used first to strengthen 

our balance sheet in order to fund future growth; 

next to increase returns to all shareholders through 

a 150 percent increase in our annual dividend to $1 

per share commencing in the third quarter of 2013, 

as well as to repurchase up to $4 billion of Hess 

shares. We also expect to return additional capital to 

shareholders in connection with the monetization of 

our midstream Bakken assets expected in 2015. 

There have been essentially three phases that this 

transformation has followed. Beginning in 2010, with 

Phase One, we began a process of continuing to 

invest in our growth engines for the future, focusing 

the upstream business by pruning mature assets and 

reducing our exposure to the downstream business. 

We substantially built upon our leadership position in 

the Bakken, including adding 250,000 net acres in 

2010; established a core position in the emerging 

Utica shale play in Eastern Ohio and, through a series 

of transactions, increased our ownership interest in 

the Valhall Field in Norway. We also closed our 

HOVENSA joint venture refinery in St. Croix, U.S. 

Virgin Islands in the first quarter of 2012. 

In Phase Two, highlighted on our July 2012 earnings 

call, for the first time we publicly communicated how 

we were at a mid-point of Hess' strategic 

transformation and specified steps the company was 

committed to making in the future in support of that 

process. These steps included focusing our E&P 



strategy on lower risk and higher growth shale 

assets, including our Bakken and Utica positions; 

exploiting existing discoveries, such as Tubular 

Bells in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and the 

North Malay Basin in the Gulf of Thailand; narrowing 

our exploration focus to a few key areas such as 

offshore Ghana; further divesting upstream assets 

to focus on our growth engines; continuing to 

reduce our exposure to downstream by completing 

our exit from the refining business with the closure 

of our Port Reading, New Jersey refinery and 

divesting our terminal network; and reducing our 

capital expenditures by increasing efficiencies in 

the Bakken and sharpening our focus in exploration. 

Phase Three, announced March 4, 2013, will 

complete our transformation to a pure play E&P 

company as we exit what remains of the 

downstream and further focus our E&P portfolio 

on future growth. 

SAFETY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Overall workforce safety performance improved 

14 percent in 2012. The programs we introduced 

in response to the deterioration in contractor safety 

performance in 2011 proved effective, particularly 

in our growing business in the Bakken. 

In 2012, the company continued its support of 

projects in education, health, and community 

development in partnership with communities 

where we do business. In Ghana, we launched the 

Hess scholars program, a three-year initiative to 

increase access to secondary education for 

promising low-income students. In North Dakota, 

we began Succeed 2020, a program to improve 

school to career transitioning through integration 

of college and career counseling, improving student 

achievement through teacher training, and 

developing strategies to address the achievement 

gap for at risk students. Hess provided significant 

support to relief efforts in the wake of Hurricane 

Sandy, mobilizing staff and resources to ensure that 

nearly all of our retail stations in the affected region 

would remain fully operational before, during and 

after the storm. The company provided $5 million 

to the Mayor's Fund to Advance New York City and 

the Hurricane Sandy New Jersey Relief Fund. 

OUR COMMITMENT 

We are committed to delivering long-term 

sustainable value to all of our shareholders and 

believe the roadmap that we laid out earlier this 

month is the best way to achieve this goal. 

I would like to thank our existing directors. Former 

Treasury Secretary Nicholas Brady, former Governor 

Thomas Kean, former Senator Sam Nunn and Frank 

Olson will be retiring from our Board. Two of our 

senior executives, Greg Hill and Borden Walker, 

also are leaving the Board but will continue in their 

current leadership roles. All of these directors have 

served with distinction and there is no stronger 

statement of their leadership and contribution to 

this company than the quality of the incoming 

members who will follow in their footsteps. Our 

directors, along with our management team, 

deserve credit for building our company today and 

positioning us to create near and long-term value 

for all of our shareholders. As we complete our 

transformation to a pure play E&P company, we are 

adding six world-class independent directors to the 

Board: John Krenicki, Dr. Kevin Meyers, Fred 

Reynolds, Bill Schrader, Dr. Mark Williams and Jim 

Quigley. They bring the right mix of top corporate 

leadership, operational and financial expertise and 

top level E&P experience. We do not think there is 

a better team anywhere for what we are trying to 

achieve. These independent directors agreed to join 

our Board because they believe in our outstanding 

plan, and they recognize that our plan is the right 

plan for all of our shareholders. 

I want to express my gratitude to our employees, 

who continue to deliver strong performance to 

maximize the value of our assets for shareholders. 

I especially want to thank you, our shareholders, for 

your continued interest and support. 

u. 6-%!^ 

John B. Hess 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

March 4, 2013 
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PRODUCTION 

In 2012, net production averaged 406,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day, up from 370,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day in 2011. This 10 percent 

increase was primarily driven by production growth 

in the North Dakota Bakken shale oil play. 

Net production from the Bakken rose to 56,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day from 30,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day the previous year. During 

2012, we brought online 206 new wells while 

continuing to invest in infrastructure projects, 

including expanded export capability at the Tioga 

Rail Terminal, which commenced operation in April, 

and the Tioga gas plant expansion, expected to 

start up in late 2013. 

In Libya, production averaged 21,000 barrels of 

oil equivalent per day, up from 4,000 barrels of 

oil equivalent per day the previous year. In the 

deepwater Gulf of Mexico, net production from 

the Llano field averaged 8,000 barrels of oil 

equivalent per day in 2012, compared to 5,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day in 2011. The 

Llano-3 well was shut-in for most of 2011 and 

returned to production during the second quarter 

of 2012 following a well workover. The Llano-4 

production well was spudded during the fourth 

quarter of 2012 and is planned to commence 

production during the second half of 2013. 

These increases were offset somewhat by 

the major field redevelopment project at the 

BP-operated Valhall Field offshore Norway, 

which resulted in production averaging 13,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day, versus 22,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day in 2011. 

DEVELOPMENTS 

In the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, development 

drilling was commenced at the Tubular Bells project 

and hull and topsides fabrication progressed, with 

first production targeted for 2014. Hess has a 57 

percent interest and is the operator of the Tubular 

Bells project. 

Also in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, the owners 

of the Pony and Knotty Head discoveries executed 

a Joint Operating Agreement among its five 

partners designating Hess as operator (20%) and 

renaming the unitized project as "Stampede." The 

Stampede project is expected to commence front 

end engineering and design work in 2013. 

In the Norwegian North Sea, redevelopment of 

the Valhall Field (64% working interest) progressed 

with the completion of the pipelines switchover in 

September. Hook up and commissioning of the 

new integrated processing and hotel platform was 

completed and hydrocarbon exports resumed in 

January 2013. In the Danish North Sea, East and 
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North wellhead platform jackets and topsides were 

installed as part of the Phase 3 development of the 

South Arne Field (62% working interest, operator). 

The pipeline bundle was also successfully installed 

at South Arne and hook-up and commissioning is 

underway for a second half 2013 startup. 

In Asia, development of the Malaysia/Thailand 

Joint Development Area (Hess 50%) progressed 

with the installation of wellhead platforms 8 and 

9, the fabrication of wellhead platform 10, and 

the sanctioning of wellhead platform 11. First 

production was achieved at wellhead platform 

7 in May. The JDA Booster Compression project 

was sanctioned in June. In Malaysia, Hess was 

selected by the national oil company, PETRONAS, 

to develop, as 50 percent owner and operator, 

the North Malay Basin project. Hess signed three 

production sharing contracts that included 

acquisition of 50 percent of the Bergading Field. 

The first phase of the development, the Early 

Production System, was sanctioned and is expected 

to start production in the second half of 2013. 

EXPLORATION 

In January 2013, the company completed drilling 

of its seventh consecutive successful exploratory 

well on the Deepwater Tano/Cape Three Points 

block offshore Ghana. The wells were drilled by the 

Stena Drillmax drillship in a range of water depths 

between 5,623 and 8,245 feet. Hess achieved 

outstanding performance in terms of drilling time 

and cost-per-foot, with gross well costs averaging 

$40 million for the last three wells, including 

success case logging. 

Based on the results of these wells and Hess' 

extensive experience in Equatorial Guinea, where 

the geology is similar, the company plans to submit 

an appraisal plan to the Ghanaian government for 

approval during the second quarter of 2013. In 

parallel, Hess has begun pre-development studies 

on the block. Hess holds a 90 percent working 

interest in the block and is the operator. GNPC is 

a 10 percent equity interest partner and is carried 

through to the production phase of the license. 

In Ohio, Hess began to appraise our strategic 

acreage position in the Utica Shale, concentrated in 

Guernsey, Harrison, Jefferson, Belmont and Noble 

counties. The position is the sum of joint venture 

acreage with CONSOL Energy and acreage leased 

100 percent by Hess. In 2012, we commenced a 

comprehensive appraisal program and drilled 12 

wells. We progressed well completion and facilities 

connections, and continue to move forward with a 

comprehensive seismic program. Hess also opened 

a regional office in Steubenville, Ohio from which to 

coordinate operations in the area. In 2013 we plan 

to drill approximately 30 wells as we continue 

appraisal activities. 
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Hess is committed to operating with excellence 

and integrity in order to help meet the world's 

growing energy needs. We strive each day to be 

a trusted energy partner that ensures the safety 

of our workforce and host communities, protects 

and preserves the environment, and makes a 

lasting and positive social impact where we 

operate. Sustainable business practices are 

essential to how we operate. 

Overall workforce safety performance improved 

14 percent in 2012 and was the best performance 

since we began tracking data in 2004. The 

programs we introduced in 2012 in response to 

the deterioration in contractor safety performance 

in 2011 have proven effective, in particular in 

addressing the challenges we faced in our growing 

business in the Bakken oil shale in North Dakota. 

Our focus on safety continues in 2013 with the 

execution of our process safety program across the 

enterprise. The program addresses improving 

process safety leadership capability; strengthening 

our process safety governance, support and 

assurance; and deepening engagement and 

reinforcing accountability. Over the next two years, 

the program will further strengthen our ability to 

manage potential catastrophic risks in our business. 

We will build on available industry experience and 

practice to enhance process safety elements within 

our management system framework, resulting in 

process safety being owned deep in the organization, 

and being integral to every business decision. 

Hess assesses, monitors and has taken steps to 

reduce our carbon footprint at existing and future 

operations. We continue to implement our five-year 

climate change strategy based on a 2008 baseline. 

Our goal is a 20 percent reduction in net equity 

greenhouse gas emissions intensity by the end of 

2013. We are currently about two-thirds of the way 

towards achieving this goal. We have decreased 

flaring from our combined operations in Algeria and 

Equatorial Guinea by more than 50 percent during 

the past several years, achieving our 2013 flare 

reduction target ahead of schedule. In 2012 we 

also integrated the cost of carbon in all significant 

future capital investment decisions. We aim to be 

top quartile for the quality of our climate change 

disclosures. For the fourth consecutive year, Hess 

was included in the Carbon Disclosure Project's 

Global 500 and S&P leadership indices. 

Hess is an active participant and supporter of a 

number of international multi-stakeholder frameworks 

that promote transparency, advance human rights 

and seek to protect and preserve the environment. 

In 2012 we focused on operationalizing those 

commitments by training all country managers and 

GSR staff, developing implementation guidelines and 

tools, and incorporating language reflecting our 

expectations regarding the voluntary commitments 

into supplier contracts. We are committed to 

productive stakeholder engagement and dialogue 

through town halls, individual meetings and more 

structured feedback processes. In 2012 we began a 

more systematic stakeholder mapping and 

engagement process at the asset level and plan to 

build on that work in 2013. 

In 2012, the company invested in projects in 

education, health, and community development. 

In Ghana, we launched the Hess scholars program, 

a three-year initiative to increase access to secondary 

education for promising low-income students. The 

first five-year phase of our education program in 

Equatorial Guinea to improve the quality of primary 

education concluded. The program certified nearly 

1,000 primary school teachers, introduced active 

learning to 54 schools, established school libraries 

across the country and equipped them with 180,000 

books, and built management and planning capacity 

at the Ministry of Education. We are now about to 

launch phase two, which will focus on improving the 

quality of education for secondary school students 

through teacher training and school-based, back to 

school and vocational training learning. 

Succeed 2020, a program to improve school to 

career transition in North Dakota, got underway 

in 2012. Program activities include enhancing 

integration of college and career counseling from 

grades 7 upward, improving student achievement 

through teacher training, developing strategies to 

address the achievement gap with at risk students, 

using distance learning to expand access to 

academic and technical courses and building 

partnerships between the business community, 

school districts and higher education institutions. 

12 
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The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant amounted to $13,123,000,000 computed 
using the outstanding common shares and closing market price on June 30, 2012. 

At December 31, 2012, there were 341,527,617 shares of Common Stock outstanding. 

Part III is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 
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PARTI 

Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties 

Hess Corporation (the Registrant) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1920. The Registrant and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Corporation or Hess) operate in two segments, Exploration and 
Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment explores for, develops, produces, 
purchases, transports and sells crude oil and natural gas. The M&R segment purchases, markets and trades 
refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity. The Corporation also operates terminals and retail 
gasoline stations, most of which include convenience stores, that are located on the East Coast of the United 
States. Through February 2013, the Corporation also manufactured refined petroleum products. In January 2013, 
the Corporation announced its decision to cease refining operations at its Port Reading facility in February and 
pursue the sale of its terminal network. In January 2012, HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a 50% owned joint 
venture in the U.S. Virgin Islands, shut down its refinery. The Corporation and its joint venture partner plan to 
pursue the sale of HOVENSA, while the complex is operated as an oil storage terminal. 

The Corporation has for more than two years been engaged in transforming itself into an essentially E&P 
business focused on the Corporation's most promising properties and operations and intends to continue to 
pursue this strategy. 

See also the Overview in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations. 

Exploration and Production 

The Corporation's total proved developed and undeveloped reserves at December 31 were as follows: 

Developed 
United States 
Europe (c) . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Undeveloped 
United States 
Europe (c) . . , 
Africa 
Asia 

Total 
United States , 
Europe (c) . . , 
Africa 
Asia 

Crude Oil, 
Condensate & 
Natural Gas 
Liquids (a) 

2012 

(Millions 

280 
181 
188 
27 

676 

193 
235 
46 
21 

495 

473 
416 
234 
48 

1,171 

2011 

of barrels) 

190 
212 
194 
25 

621 

183 
282 
56 
27 

548 

373 
494 
250 
52 

1,169 

Natural Gas 

2012 2011 

(Millions of mcf) 

232 
190 
122 
676 

1,220 

168 
167 
20 

720 

1,075 

400 
357 
142 

1,396 

2,295 

199 
273 
63 

677 

1,212 

161 
290 

8 
752 

1,211 

360 
563 
71 

1,429 

2,423 

Total Barrels of 
Oil Equivalent 

(BOE) (b) 

2012 2011 

(Millions of barrels) 

318 
213 
208 
140 

879 

222 
263 
49 

140 

674 

540 
476 
257 
280 

1,553 

223 
258 
204 
138 

823 

210 
331 
57 

152 

750 

433 
589 
261 
290 

1,573 

(a) Total natural gas liquids reserves were 136 million barrels (76 million barrels developed and 60 million barrels undeveloped) at 
December 31, 2012 and 113 million barrels (56 million barrels developed and 57 million barrels undeveloped) at December 31, 2011. 



Natural gas liquids reserves in the United States were 78% and 70% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Natural gas liquids 
reserves in Norway were 17% and 22% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

(b) Reflects natural gas reserves converted on the basis of relative energy content of six mcf equals one barrel of oil equivalent (one mcf 
represents one thousand cubic feet). Barrel of oil equivalence does not necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of 
natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been substantially lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent 
past. See the average selling prices in the table on page 8. 

(c) Proved reserves in Norway, which represented 21% and 23% of the Corporation's total reserves at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively, were as follows: 

Crude Oil, Condensate & Total Barrels of Oil 
Natural Gas Liquids Natural Gas Equivalent (BOE) 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) (Millions of barrels) 
Developed 102 108 73 137 114 131 
Undeveloped 182 185 146 251 207 227 

Total 284 293 219 388 321 358 

26 
11 

37 
44 

12 
11 

23 
52 

On a barrel of oil equivalent (boe) basis, 43% of the Corporation's worldwide proved reserves were 
undeveloped at December 31, 2012 compared with 48% at December 31, 2011. Proved reserves held under 
production sharing contracts at December 31, 2012 totaled 10% of crude oil and natural gas liquids reserves and 
52% of natural gas reserves, compared with 12% of crude oil and natural gas liquids reserves and 51% of natural 
gas reserves at December 31, 2011. See the Supplementary Oil and Gas Data on pages 80 through 88 in the 
accompanying financial statements for additional information on the Corporation's oil and gas reserves. 

Worldwide crude oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas production was as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 

Crude oil (thousands of barrels per day) 
United States 

Bakken 47 
Other Onshore 13 

Total Onshore 60 

Offshore _48 

Total United States J08 _81 75 

Europe 
Russia 49 
United Kingdom 15 
Norway* 11 
Denmark 9 

84 89 

Africa 
Equatorial Guinea 48 
Libya 20 
Algeria 7 
Gabon — 

75 66 113 

Asia 
Azerbaijan 7 6 7 
Indonesia 6 3 2 
Other 4 4 4 

17 13 13 

Total 284 249 289 

45 
14 
20 
10 

42 
19 
16 
11 

54 
4 
8 
— 

69 
23 
11 
10 



2012 2011 2010 

Natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day) 
United States 

Bakken 5 2 2 
Other Onshore 5 5 5 

Total Onshore 10 7 7 
Offshore 6 6 7 
Total United States _16 _13 14 

Europe* 2 3 3 
Asia 1 1 1 
Total ^ _JJ_ 18 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 
United States 

Bakken 27 13 9 
Other Onshore _ J^ _ ^ 29 

Total Onshore 54 39 38 
Offshore _65 _61 _70 
Total United States J19 _ m 108 

Europe 
United Kingdom 25 41 93 
Norway* 10 29 29 
Denmark 8 _11 _ i 2 

43 81 134 
Asia and Other 

Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) 252 267 282 
Thailand 90 84 85 
Indonesia 66 56 50 
Malaysia 39 35 8 
Other 7 _ - 2 

454 442 427 
Total 616 623 _669 
Barrels of oil equivalent (per day)** 406 370 418 

* Norway production for 2012 included 11 thousand barrels per day of crude oil, 0.5 thousand barrels per day of natural gas liquids and 
8 thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valhall Field. Norway production for 2011 included 18 thousand barrels per day of 
crude oil, 1 thousand barrels per day of natural gas liquids and 15 thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valhall Field. Norway 
production for 2010 included 14 thousand barrels per day of crude oil, 1 thousand barrels per day of natural gas liquids and 
13 thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valhall Field. 

** Reflects natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil equivalence 
does not necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been 
substantially lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent past. See the average selling prices in the table on page 8. 

A description of our significant E&P operations is as follows: 

United States 
At December 31, 2012, 35% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in the United States. 

During 2012, 41% of the Corporation's crude oil and natural gas liquids production and 19% of its natural gas 
production were from United States operations. The Corporation's production in the United States was from 
offshore properties in the Gulf of Mexico, and onshore properties principally in the Williston Basin of North 
Dakota as well as in the Permian Basin of Texas. 

Onshore: In North Dakota, the Corporation holds approximately 725,(X)0 net acres in the Bakken oil shale 
play (Bakken). In 2012, the Corporation invested $3.1 billion in drilling and infrastructure projects in the Bakken 
and substantially completed its "held by production" drilling program undertaken during 2011 and 2012 to hold 
acreage from the acquisitions in 2010 of TRZ Energy, LLC and American Oil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas). In 
the fourth quarter, the Corporation moved to pad drilling, which involves sequentially drilling a number of wells on 
a pad followed by sequential completion of the wells. This pad drilling is expected to lead to a temporary flattening 
of the production profile until mid-2013. Bakken production is expected to average between 64,000 barrels of oil 
equivalent per day (boepd) and 70,0(X) boepd for the full year of 2013, with most of the increase expected to occur 
in the second half of the year. Infrastructure investments in 2012 included completion of a crude oil rail loading and 



storage facility, which was operational in the first quarter, and the continued expansion of the Tioga gas plant. In 
2013, the Corporation anticipates operating 14 rigs and completing the Tioga gas plant expansion project in the 
fourth quarter. 

In Texas, the Corporation operates and holds a 34% interest in the Seminole-San Andres Unit. The 
Corporation also holds approximately 45,000 net acres in the Cotulla area of the Eagle Ford Shale, where first 
production commenced in May 2011. 

In Ohio's Utica Shale, the Corporation owns a 100% interest in approximately 95,000 acres. The 
Corporation also owns a 50% undivided interest in CONSOL Energy Inc.'s (CONSOL) approximately 200,000 
gross acres, which will be amended pursuant to the joint venture's ongoing title verification procedure. CONSOL 
announced on January 31, 2013, that there are chain of title issues with respect to approximately 36,000 acres, 
most of which likely cannot be cured and that the value of the Corporation's carry obligation associated with 
these acres will reduce by approximately $146 million. The reduction in carry and validation of title on other 
acreage is being separately analyzed by the Corporation and will not be finally determined until the title 
verification process is completed. In 2012, the Corporation participated in 12 wells, 10 of which were joint 
venture wells with CONSOL. The Corporation has also contracted to acquire seismic data. In 2013, the 
Corporation plans to drill five wells on its 100% owned acreage and 27 wells with CONSOL, as well as acquire 
the seismic data. 

Offshore: The Corporation's production offshore in the Gulf of Mexico was principally from the Shenzi 
(Hess 28%), Llano (Hess 50%>), Conger (Hess 38%), Baldpate (Hess 50%), Hack Wilson (Hess 25%) and Penn 
State (Hess 50%) fields. 

At the Shenzi Field, development drilling continued during 2012 with the completion of two wells. During 
2013, the operator plans to complete two production wells and drill one additional water injection well. At the 
outside operated Llano Field, a successful workover was completed on the Llano #3 well and drilling of the 
Llano #4 production well commenced in fourth quarter of 2012. At the operated Conger Field, the Corporation 
plans to acquire seismic data during 2013. 

At the Tubular Bells Field (Hess 57%) in the Mississippi Canyon Area of the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, the 
field development was advanced with the ongoing construction of a floating production system, batch drilling of 
the top hole sections of the well program and drilling and completion of one well. Development drilling will 
continue throughout 2013 and first production is anticipated in 2014. 

During the third quarter of 2012, the Corporation signed an exchange agreement with the partners of Green 
Canyon Block 512 that contains the Knotty Head discovery and is in the same reservoir as the Corporation's 
Pony discovery on the adjacent Block 468. Under this agreement, the Corporation was appointed operator and 
has a 20% working interest in the blocks, now collectively referred to as Stampede. Field development planning 
is progressing and the project is targeted for sanction in 2014. 

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation had interests in 252 blocks in the Gulf of Mexico, of which 223 
were exploration blocks comprising approximately 855,000 net undeveloped acres, with an additional 66,000 net 
acres held for production and development operations. During 2012, 49 leases in which the Corporation held an 
interest either expired or were relinquished. 

Europe 

At December 31, 2012, 31% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in Europe (Norway 
21%, Denmark 4%, Russia 5% and United Kingdom 1%). During 2012, 28% of the Corporation's crude oil and 
natural gas liquids production and 7% of its natural gas production were from European operations. 

Norway: Substantially all of the 2012 Norwegian production was from the Corporation's interest in the 
Valhall Field (Hess 64%). At December 31, 2012, the Corporation also held an interest in the Hod Field (Hess 
63%). 

At the Valhall Field, a multi-year redevelopment project was completed in early 2013. The project included 
the installation of a new production, utilities and accommodation platform and expansion of gross production 
capacity to 120,000 barrels of liquids per day and 143,000 mcf of natural gas per day. In July 2012, the field was 
shut-in to complete the installation and commissioning of the new facilities and production resumed in January 
2013. The operator plans a multi-year development drilling program commencing in 2013. 

In January 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Snohvit Field (Hess 3%), a 
liquefied natural gas development, offshore Norway. 



United Kingdom: Production in the United Kingdom North Sea was from the Corporation's outside-
operated interests m the Beryl (Hess 22%), Nevis (Hess 27%), Schiehallion (Hess 16%) and Bittern (Hess 28%) 
fields. The Corporation also has interests in the Atlantic (Hess 25%), Cromarty (Hess 90%), Fife, Flora and 
Angus (Hess 85%), Fergus (Hess 65%), Ivanhoe and Rob Roy (Hess 77%), Renee (Hess 14%) and Ruble (Hess 
19%) fields. These fields are no longer producing and decommissioning activities have commenced. 

In September 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Schiehallion Field, its share of 
the associated floating production, storage and offloading vessel, and the West of Shetland pipeline system. In 
October 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Bittern Field and the associated Triton 
floating production, storage and offloading vessel. In October 2012, the Corporation also announced that it had 
reached an agreement to sell its interests in the Beryl and Nevis fields and its interest in the Scottish Area Gas 
Evacuation (SAGE) pipeline (Hess 11%). This transaction was completed in January 2013, see Note 21, 
Subsequent Events in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Denmark: Production comes from the Corporation's operated interest in the South Ame Field (Hess 
62%), offshore Denmark. In 2012, the Corporation continued its phase three development program where two 
new wellhead platforms were successfully installed in the field. Hook-up and commissioning of the new 
platforms was ongoing at year-end and development drilling is expected to commence in the first half of 2013. 
First oil from the phase three development is anticipated in the second half of 2013. 

Russia: The Corporation's activities in Russia are conducted through its interest in Samara-Nafta, a 
subsidiary operating in the Volga-Urals region (Hess 90%). As of December 31, 2012, this subsidiary had 
exploration and production rights in 23 license areas. In November 2012, the Corporation announced that it will 
pursue the sale of Samara-Nafta. 

France: The Corporation has a 100% interest in and is operator of approximately 630,000 acres in the 
Paris Basin. In July 2011, the French government implemented a law prohibiting the use of hydraulic fracturing. 
In 2013, the Corporation plans to drill three conventional vertical wells, which will be logged and cored to gain 
subsurface data. 
Africa 

At December 31, 2012, 16% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in Africa (Equatorial 
Guinea 4%, Libya 11% and Algeria 1%). During 2012, 25% of the Corporation's crude oil and natural gas 
liquids production was from its African operations. 

Equatorial Guinea: The Corporation is operator and owns an interest in Block G (Hess 85% paying 
interest) which contains the Ceiba Field and the Okume Complex. The national oil company of Equatorial 
Guinea holds a 5% carried interest in Block G. During 2012, the Corporation completed three workovers and 
drilled three production wells in the Ceiba Field with a fourth well spud late in the fourth quarter. During 2013, 
the Corporation plans to complete this well and tie in the four wells. The Corporation also plans to drill two 
production wells at the Okume Complex beginning in the latter part of 2013. 

Libya: The Corporation, in conjunction with its Oasis Group partners, has production operations in the 
Waha concessions in Libya (Hess 8%). The Corporation also owns a 100% interest in offshore exploration 
Area 54 in the Mediterranean Sea, where two wells discovered natural gas. In response to civil unrest in Libya 
and the resulting imposition of economic sanctions, production at the Waha fields was suspended in the first 
quarter of 2011. As a result, the Corporation delivered force majeure notices to the Libyan government covering 
its exploration and production interests. During the fourth quarter of 2011, the sanctions were lifted, force 
majeure was withdrawn at Waha and production resumed. The force majeure covering the Corporation's offshore 
exploration interests was withdrawn in March 2012. The Corporation is pursuing commercial options for its 
exploration interests. 

Algeria: The Corporation has a 49% interest in a venture with the Algerian national oil company that 
redeveloped three oil fields. The Corporation also has an interest in Bir El Msana (BMS) Block 40IC (Hess 
45%). The Corporation sanctioned a small development project at BMS in 2011 and advanced the construction of 
facilities and development drilling during 2012. 

Ghana: The Corporation holds a 100% paying interest and is operator of the Deepwater Tano Cape Three 
Points license. The Ghana National Petroleum Corporation holds a 10% carried interest in the block. Through 
February 2013, the Corporation has drilled seven consecutive successful exploration wells, including four 
discoveries made in 2012 and two completed in early 2013. Based on the results of these wells, the Corporation 
plans to submit an appraisal plan to the Ghanaian govemment for approval on or before June 2, 2013 and has also 
begun pre-development studies on the block. 



Asia 
At December 31, 2012, 18% ofthe Corporation's total proved reserves were located in the Asia region (JDA 

8%, Indonesia 5%, Thailand 3%, Azerbaijan 1% and Malaysia 1%). Dtu-ing 2012, 6% ofthe Corporation's crude 
oil and natural gas liquids production and 74% of its natural gas production were from its Asian operations. 

Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA): The Corporation owns an interest in Block A-18 
of the JDA (Hess 50%) in the Gulf of Thailand. In 2012, the operator continued development drilling, 
constructed wellhead platforms and sanctioned a compression project. In 2013, the operator intends to progress 
the compression project and the installation of new wellhead platforms. 

Malaysia: The Corporation's production in Malaysia comes from its interest in Block PM301 (Hess 50%), 
which is adjacent to and is unitized with Block A-18 of the JDA where the natural gas is processed. The Corporation 
also owns a 50% interest and is the operator of Blocks PM302, PM325 and PM326B located in the North Malay Basin 
(NMB), offshore Peninsular Malaysia, where in 2012 it signed agreements with its partner to develop nine discovered 
natural gas fields as well as acquire seismic and drill exploration weUs. First production from an early production 
system is forecast to commence in the second half of 2013 with a second phase of development targeted for first 
production in 2016. In addition, the Corporation owns an interest in Block SB302 (Hess 40%). Technical and 
commercial evaluations are underway to assess potential development alternatives for this block. 

Indonesia: The Corporation's production in Indonesia comes from its interests offshore in the operated 
Ujung Pangkah project (Hess 75%) and the outside-operated Natuna A Field (Hess 23%). At the Pangkah Field, 
the Corporation drilled and completed five production wells during 2012 and plans further drilling in 2013. At 
the Natuna Field, construction began on two new wellhead platforms in 2012 and facility construction and other 
infrastructure work will continue in 2013. 

The Corporation also owns interests in the offshore South Sesulu Block (Hess 100%), Timor Sea Block 1 
(Hess 100%), Semai V Block (Hess 100%) and Kofiau Block (Hess 43%) as well as the West Timor Block (Hess 
49%) that includes onshore and offshore acreage. 

Thailand: The Corporation's production in Thailand comes from the offshore Pailin Field (Hess 15%) and 
the operated onshore Sinphuhorm Block (Hess 35%). During 2012, development drilling continued at Pailin. In 
2013, there will be further development drilling at both Pailin and Sinphuhorm. 

Azerbaijan: The Corporation has interests in the Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli (ACG) fields (Hess 3%) in the 
Caspian Sea and in the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan (BTC) oil transportation pipeline company (Hess 2%). In September 
2012, the Corporation reached an agreement to sell its interests in ACG and BTC. This transaction is expected to 
close in the first quarter of 2013. 

Australia: The Corporation holds an interest in an exploration license covering approximately 
780,000 acres in the Carnarvon basin offshore Western Australia (WA-390-P Block, also known as Equus) (Hess 
100%). The Corporation has drilled all of the 16 commitment wells on the block, 13 of which were natural gas 
discoveries. Appraisal of the discoveries was completed in mid-2012. Development planning and commercial 
activities, including negotiations with potential liquefaction partners continued in 2012 and will continue in 2013. 
Successful negotiation with a thhd party hquefaction partner is necessary before the Corporation can negotiate a 
gas sales agreement and sanction development of the project. 

The Corporation also has a participation agreement under which it has the option to earn a 63% working 
interest in more than 6.2 million acres in the Beetaloo Basin, onshore Northern Tertitory Australia (Hess 100% 
paying interest). In 2012, the Corporation completed its seismic data acquisition program. In addition, the 
Corporation acquired approximately 1.9 million net acres in the Caiming Basin, Western Australia. An 
aeromagnetic survey of this acreage was completed in 2012. 

Brunei: The Corporation has an interest in Block CA-1 (Hess 14%). In 2012, the operator drilled two 
wells, Jagus East and Julong East, which both encountered hydrocarbons. These wells are being evaluated and 
additional exploration and appraisal drilling is planned for 2014. 

Kurdistan Region of Iraq: The Corporation is operator and has an 80% paying interest in the Dinarta and 
Shakrok exploration blocks, which have a combined area of more than 670 square miles. The terms of the 
production sharing contracts require the acquisition of 2D seismic and the drilling of at least one well on each of 
the blocks. During 2012, the Corporation commenced a seismic program on both of its blocks. The Corporation 
plans to complete this seismic program and commence drilling of its two commitment wells in 2013. 

China: The Corporation has signed a joint study agreement with PetroChina to evaluate unconventional 
oil and gas resource opportunities covering approximately 200,000 gross acres in the Santanghu Basin. 



Sales Commitments 

In the E&P segment, the Corporation has contracts to sell fixed quantities of its natural gas and natural gas 
liquids (NGL) production. The natiu^al gas contracts principally relate to producing fields in Asia. The most 
significant of these commitments relates to the JDA where the minimum contract quantity of natural gas is 
estimated at 107 million mcf per year based on current entitlements under a sales contract exphing in 2027. 
There are additional natural gas supply commitments on producing fields in Thailand and Indonesia which 
currently total approximately 46 million mcf per year under contracts expiring in years 2021 through 2029. The 
estimated total volume of production subject to sales commitments under all of these contracts is approximately 
2.35 biUion mcf of natural gas. 

The Corporation also has NGL contracts relating to its Bakken production with delivery commitments 
beginning in November 2013. The minimum contract quantity under these contracts, which expire in 2023, is 
approximately 7 million barrels per year, or approximately 70 million barrels over the life of the contracts. 

The Corporation has not experienced any significant constraints in satisfying the committed quantities 
required by its sales commitments and it anticipates being able to meet future requirements from available proved 
and probable reserves. 

Natural gas is marketed by the M&R segment on a spot basis and under contracts for varying periods of time 
to local distribution companies, and commercial, industrial and other purchasers. These natural gas marketing 
activities are primarily conducted in the eastern portion of the United States, where the principal source of supply is 
purchased natural gas, not the Corporation's production from the E&P segment. The Corporation has not 
experienced any significant constraints in obtaining the required supply of purchased natural gas. 

Average selling prices and average production costs 

2012 2011 2010 

Average selling prices (a) 
Crude oil (per barrel) 

United States $ 92.32 $ 98.56 $ 75.02 
Europe (b) 74.14 80.18 58.11 
Africa 89.02 88.46 65.02 
Asia 107.45 111.71 79.23 

Woridwide 86.94 89.99 66.20 

Natural gas liquids (per barrel) 
United States $ 40.75 $ 58.59 $ 47.92 
Europe (b) 78.43 75.49 59.23 
Asia 77.92 72.29 63.50 

Worldwide 47.81 62.72 50.49 

Natural gas (per mcf) 
United States $ 2.09 $ 3.39 $ 3.70 
Europe (b) 9.50 8.79 6.23 
Asia and other 6.90 6.02 5.93 

Worldwide 6.16 5.96 5.63 

Average production (lifting) costs per barrel of oil equivalent 
produced (c) 

United States $ 18.25 $ 16.30 $ 12.61 
Europe (b) 29.56 25.13 17.55 
Africa 14.45 15.95 11.00 
Asia and other 11.13 10.62 8.16 

Worldwide 18.52 17.40 12.61 

(a) Includes inter-company transfers valued at approximate market prices and the effect ofthe Corporation's hedging activities. 
(b) The average selling prices in Norway for 2012 were $109.23 per barrel for crude oil, $58.48 per barrel for natural gas liquids and 

$12.21 per mcf for natural gas. The average selling prices in Norway for 2011 were $112.38 per barrel for crude oil, $62.07 per barrel 
for natural gas liquids and $9.77 per mcf for natural gas. The average selling prices in Norway for 2010 were $79.47 per barrel for 
crude oil, $52.26 per barrel for natural gas liquids and $7.32 per mcf for natural gas. The average production (lifting) co.sts in Norway 
in 2012 were $62.38 per barrel of oil equivalent produced, reflecting the shutdown of production from July 2012 through year-end. The 
average production (lifting) costs in Norway were $31.09 per barrel of oil equivalent produced in 2011 and $18.33 per barrel of oil 
equivalent produced in 2010. 



(c) Production (lifting) costs consist of amounts incurred to operate and maintain the Corporation's producing oil and gas wells, related 
equipment arul facilities, transportation costs and production and severance taxes. The average production costs per barrel of oil equivalent 
reflect the crude oil equivalent ofimtural gas production convened on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). 

The table above does not include costs of finding and developing proved oil and gas reserves, or the costs of 
related general and administrative expenses, interest expense and income taxes. 

Gross and net undeveloped acreage at December 31,2012 
Undeveloped 
Acreage (a) 

Gross Net 

(In thousands) 
United States 2,310 1,594 
Europe (b) 1,517 1,278 
Africa 8,009 4,625 
Asia and other 15,322 9,937 

Total (c) 27,158 17,434 

(a) Includes acreage held underproduction sharing contracts. 
(b) Gross and net undeveloped acreage in Norway was 61 thousand and 9 thousand, respectively. 
(c) Licenses covering approximately 35% ofthe Corporation's net undeveloped acreage held at December 31, 2012 are scheduled to expire 

during the next three years pending the results of exploration activities. These scheduled expirations are largely in Africa, Asia and the 
United States. 

Gross and net developed acreage and productive wells at December 31,2012 

United States 
Europe (b) . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Total 

Developei 
Acreage 

Applicable 
Productive \ 

Gross 

d 

to 
Veils 

Net 

(In thousands) 
1,177 795 
1,053 885 
9,832 933 
2,246 638 

14,308 3,251 

Oil 

Gross 

1,767 
292 
811 
86 

2,956 

Productive Wells (a) 

Net 

776 
216 
125 
15 

1,132 

Gas 

Gross 

58 
12 

456 

526 

Net 

47 
2 

100 

149 

(a) Includes multiple completion wells (wells producing from different formations in the same bore hole) totaling 31 gross wells and 21 net 
wells. 

(b) Gross and net developed acreage in Norway was 57 thousand and 36 thousand, respectively. Gross and net productive oil wells in 
Norway were 46 and 30, respectively. 

Number of net exploratory and development wells drilled at December 31 
Net Exploratory Wells Net Development Wells 

Productive wells 
United States 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Dry holes 
United States . 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Total 

2012 

3 
3 
3 
3 

12 

1 
3 

2 
6 

18 

2011 

20 
6 
1 
4 

31 

2 
1 
1 
4 

35 

2010 

1 
1 
6 
8 

5 

2 
2 
9 

17 

2012 

184 
23 

1 
20 

228 

— 

— 
228 

2011 

98 
25 

1 
18 

142 

— 

— 
142 

2010 

83 
18 
11 
7 

119 

1 

1 
120 



Number of wells in process of drilling at December 31,2012 

United States 
Evurope* . . . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Total 

Gross 
Wells 

117 
17 
6 

28 

168 

Net 
Wells 

53 
15 
2 
9 

79 

* Gross and net wells in process of drilling in Norway were 3 and 2, respectively. 

Marketing and Refining 

Marketing 

The Corporation markets refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity on the East Coast of the 
United States to the motoring public, wholesale distributors, industrial and commercial users, other petroleum 
companies, governmental agencies and public utilities. 

The Corporation had 1,361 HESS® gasoline stations at December 31, 2012, including stations owned by its 
WilcoHess joint venture (Hess 44%). Approximately 93% of the gasoline stations are operated by the Corporation or 
WilcoHess. Of the operated stations, 96% have convenience stores on the sites. Most of the Corporation's gasoline 
stations are in New York, New Jersey, Peimsylvania, Florida, Massachusetts, North CaroUna and South Carolina. 

The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes; 
2012* 2011* 2010* 

Refined petroleum product sales (thousands of barrels per day) 
Gasoline 209 222 242 
Distillates 113 123 120 
Residuals 53 65 69 
Other 14 20 40 

Total refined petroleum product sales 389 430 471 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 2,300 2,200 2,000 
Electricity (megawatts round the clock) 4,500 4,400 4,100 

* Of total refined petroleum products sold, a total of approximately 16%, 37% and 41% was obtained from HOVENSA and Port Reading 
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In January 2012, HOVENSA shut down its refinery. In January 2013, the Corporation announced 
its decision to cease refining operations in February at its Port Reading facility. 

The Corporation does not anticipate any disruption to product supply to its Marketing operations as a result 
of the shutdown of its Port Reading facility. 

The Corporation owns 19 terminals with an aggregate storage capacity of 28 million barrels in its East Coast 
marketing areas, including the storage capacity at Port Reading. The Corporation also owns a terminal in St. 
Lucia with a storage capacity of 10 million barrels, which is operated for third party storage. In January 2013, the 
Corporation announced that it will pursue the sale of its terminal network. 

During 2012, operations commenced at the Bayonne Energy Center, LLC (Hess 50%), a joint venture 
established to build and operate a 512-megawatt natural gas fueled electric generating station in Bayonne, New 
Jersey, which provides power to New York City. During 2012, the Corporation also formed a joint ventme (Hess 
50%) to build a 655-megawatt natinal gas fueled electric generating facility in Newark, New Jersey. In addition, 
a subsidiary of the Corporation is exploring the development of fuel cell and hydrogen reforming technologies. 

Refining 

HOVENSA: The Corporation owns a 50% interest in HOVENSA, a joint venture with a subsidiary of 
Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. (PDVSA). In January 2012, HOVENSA shut down its refinery in St. Croix, U.S. 
Virgin Islands. During 2012 and continuing into 2013, HOVENSA and the Govemment of the Virgin Islands 
engaged in discussions pertaining to HOVENSA's plan to run the facility as an oil storage terminal while the 
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Corporation and its joint venture partner pursue a sale of HOVENSA. For further discussion of the refinery 
shutdown, see Note 5, HOVENSA L.L.C. Joint Venture, in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Port Reading Facility: The Corporation owns a fluid catalytic cracking facility in Port Reading, New 
Jersey, with a capacity of 70,000 barrels per day. This facility, which processes residual fuel oil and vacuum gas 
oil, operated at a rate of 59,000 barrels per day in 2012, 63,000 barrels per day in 2011 and 55,000 barrels per 
day in 2010. Substantially all of Port Reading's production was gasoline and heating oil. In January 2013, the 
Corporation announced its decision to cease refining operations in February at its Port Reading facility. 

The Corporation has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy-related 
commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes energy commodity and derivative trading 
positions for its own account. 

For additional financial information by segment see Note 18, Segment Information in the notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Competition and Market Conditions 
See Item lA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations, for a discussion of competition and 

market conditions. 

Other Items 
Gulf of Mexico Update 

The Corporation currently holds interests in 223 exploration blocks in the Gulf of Mexico, in addition to 29 
developed blocks. The Corporation received approval for its oil spill response plan for the Gulf of Mexico in 
May 2012 and is currently awaiting approval for an updated Gulf of Mexico Operator Oil Spill Contingency Plan 
in response to recent regulatory changes. The Corporation also fully implemented the Bureau of Safety and 
Enviromnental Enforcement required. Safety and Environmental Management System in 2012. 

Emergency Preparedness and Response Plans and Procedures 
The Corporation has in place a series of business and asset-specific emergency preparedness, response and 

business continuity plans that detail procedures for rapid and effective emergency response and enviromnental 
mitigation activities. These plans are risk appropriate and are maintained, reviewed and updated as necessary to 
ensiu-e their accuracy and suitability. Where appropriate, they are also reviewed and approved by the relevant 
host govemment authorities. 

Responder training and drills are routinely held worldwide to assess and continually improve the 
effectiveness of the Corporation's plans. The Corporation's contractors, service providers, representatives from 
govemment agencies and, where applicable, joint venture partners participate in the drills to ensure that 
emergency procedures are comprehensive and can be effectively implemented. 

To complement intemal capabilities and to ensure coverage for its global operations, the Corporation 
maintains membership contracts with a network of local, regional and global oil spill response and emergency 
response organizations. At the regional and global level, these organizations include Clean Gulf Associates 
(CGA), Marine Well Containment Company (MWCC), Wild Well Control (WWC), National Response 
Corporation (NRC) and Oil Spill Response (OSR). CGA is a regional spill response organization and MWCC 
provides the equipment and personnel to contain an underwater well control incident in the Gulf of Mexico. 
WWC provides firefighting, well control and engineering services globally. NRC and OSR are global response 
organizations and are available to assist the Corporation when needed anywhere in the world. In addition to 
owning response assets in their own right, these organizations maintain business relationships that provide 
immediate access to additional critical response support services if required. These owned response assets 
included nearly 300 recovery and storage vessels and barges, more than 250 skinmiers, over 300,000 feet of 
boom, and significant quantities of dispersants and other ancillary equipment, including aircraft. If the 
Corporation were to engage these organizations to obtain additional critical response support services, it would 
fund such services and seek reimbursement under its insurance coverage described below. In certain 
circumstances, the Corporation piffsues and enters into mutual aid agreements with other companies and 
govemment cooperatives to receive and provide oil spill response equipment and persoimel support. The 
Corporation maintains close associations with emergency response organizations through its representation on 
the Executive Committee of CGA and the Board of Directors of OSR. 
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The Corporation continues to participate in a number of industry-wide task forces that are studying better 
ways to assess the risk of and prevent onshore and offshore incidents, access and control blowouts in subsea 
environments, and improve containment and recovery methods. The task forces are working closely with the oil 
and gas industry and intemational govemment agencies to implement improvements and increase the 
effectiveness of oil spill prevention, preparedness, response and recovery processes. 

Insurance Coverage and Indemnification 
The Corporation maintains insmrance coverage that includes coverage for physical damage to its property, 

third party liability, workers' compensation and employers' liability, general liability, sudden and accidental 
pollution and other coverage. This insurance coverage is subject to deductibles, exclusions and limitations and 
there is no assurance that such coverage will adequately protect the Corporation against liability from all 
potential consequences and damages. 

The amount of insurance covering physical damage to the Corporation's property and liability related to 
negative enviromnental effects resulting from a sudden and accidental pollution event, excluding Atlantic Named 
Windstorm coverage for which it is self-insured, varies by asset, based on the asset's estimated replacement 
value or the estimated maximum loss. In the case of a catastrophic event, first party coverage consists of two tiers 
of insurance. The first $300 million of coverage is provided through an industry mutual insurance group. Above 
this $300 million threshold, insurance is carried which ranges in value up to $2.25 billion in total, depending on 
the asset coverage level, as described above. Additionally, the Corporation carries insurance which provides third 
party coverage for general liability, and sudden and accidental pollution, up to $1 biUion. 

Other insurance policies provide coverage for, among other things: charterer's legal liability, in the amount 
of $500 million per occurrence and aircraft liability, in the amount of $300 million per occurrence. 

The Corporation's insurance policies renew at various dates each year. Future insurance coverage could 
increase in cost and may include higher deductibles or retentions, or additional exclusions or limitations. In 
addition, some forms of insurance may become unavailable in the future or unavailable on terms that are deemed 
economically acceptable. 

Generally, the Corporation's drilling contracts (and most of its other offshore services contracts) provide for 
a mutual hold harmless indemnity stmcture whereby each party to the contract (the Corporation and Contractor) 
indemnifies the other party for injuries or damages to their personnel and property (and, often, those of its 
contractors/subcontractors) regardless of fault. Variations may include indemnity exclusions to the extent a claim 
is atttibutable to the gross negligence and/or willful misconduct of a party. Third-party claims, on the other hand, 
are generally allocated on a fault basis. 

The Corporation is customarily responsible for, and indemnifies the Contractor against all claims, including 
those from third-parties, to the extent attributable to pollution or contamination by substances originating from its 
reservoirs or other property (regardless of fault, including gross negligence and willful misconduct) and the 
Contractor is responsible for and indemnifies the Corporation for all claims attributable to pollution emanating 
from the Contractor's property. Additionally, the Corporation is generally liable for all of its own losses and most 
third-party claims associated with catastrophic losses such as blowouts, cratering and loss of hole, regardless of 
cause, although exceptions for losses attributable to gross negligence and/or willful misconduct do exist. Lastly, 
many offshore services contracts include overall limitations of the Contractor's liability equal to the value of the 
contract or a fixed amount. 

Under a standard joint operating agreement (JOA), each party is liable for all claims arising under the JOA, 
not covered by or in excess of insurance carried by the JOA, to the extent of its participating interest (operator or 
non-operator). Variations include indemnity exclusions when the claim is based upon the gross neghgence and/or 
willful misconduct of a party, in which case such party is solely Uable. However, under some production sharing 
contracts between a governmental entity and commercial parties, liability of the commercial parties to the 
govemmental entity is joint and several. 

Environmental 
Compliance with various existing environmental and pollution control regulations imposed by federal, state, 

local and foreign govemments is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's financial 
condition or results of operations. The Corporation spent $19 million in 2012 for environmental remediation. The 
Corporation anticipates capital expenditiu"es for facilities, primarily to comply with federal, state and local 
envhonmental standards, other than for the low sulfm: requirements, of approximately $75 million in 2013 and 
approximately $60 million in 2014. For further discussion of envkomnental matters see the Environment, Health 
and Safety section of Item7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations. 
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Number of Employees 
The number of persons employed by the Corporation at year-end was approximately 14,775 in 2012 and 

14,350 in 2011. 

Other 
The Corporation's internet address is www.hess.com. On its website, the Corporation makes available free 

of charge its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form lO-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and 
amendments to those reports filed or fumished piu"suant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Exchange Act as soon as 
reasonably practicable after the Corporation electtonically files with or furnishes such material to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. The contents ofthe Corporation's website are not incorporated by reference in this 
report. Copies of the Corporation's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, its Corporate Govemance Guidelines 
and the charters of the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Management Development Committee and the 
Corporate Govemance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors are available on the Corporation's 
website and are also available free of charge upon request to the Secretary of the Corporation at its principal 
executive offices. The Corporation has also filed with the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) its annual 
certification that the Corporation's Chief Executive Officer is unaware of any violation of the NYSE's corporate 
govemance standards. 

Item lA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations 
Our business activities and the value of oru" securities are subject to significant risk factors, including those 

described below. The risk factors described below could negatively affect our operations, financial condition, 
liquidity and results of operations, and as a result, holders and purchasers of our securities could lose part or all 
of their investments. It is possible that additional risks relating to our securities may be described in a prospectus 
supplement if we issue securities in the future. 

Our business and operating results are highly dependent on the market prices of crude oil, natural 
gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, which can be very volatile. Our estimated proved reserves, 
revenue, operating cash flows, operating margins, future eamings and ttading operations are highly dependent on 
the prices of cmde oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, which are volatile and influenced 
by numerous factors beyond our control. Changes in commodity prices can also have a material impact on 
collateral and margin requirements under our derivative contiacts. The major foreign oil producing countries, 
including members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (OPEC), exert considerable influence 
over the supply and price of cmde oil and refined petroleum products. Their ability or inability to agree on a 
common policy on rates of production and other matters has a significant impact on the oil markets. The 
commodities trading markets as well as other supply and demand factors may also influence the selling prices of 
cmde oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity. To the extent that we engage in hedging 
activities to mitigate commodity price volatility, we may not realize the benefit of price increases above the 
hedged price. In order to manage the potential volatility of cash flows and credit requirements, the Corporation 
utilizes significant bank credit facilities. An inability to renew or replace such credit facilities or access other 
sources of funding as they mature would negatively impact our liquidity. 

If we fail to successfully increase our reserves, our future crude oil and natural gas production will be 
adversely impacted. We own or have access to a finite amount of oil and gas reserves which will be depleted 
over time. Replacement of oil and gas production and reserves, including proved undeveloped reserves, is subject to 
successful exploration drilling, development activities, and enhanced recovery programs. Therefore, future oil and 
gas production is dependent on technical success in finding and developing additional hydrocarbon reserves. 
Exploration activity involves the interpretation of seismic and other geological and geophysical data, which does not 
always successfully predict the presence of commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. DrilUng risks include 
imexpected adverse conditions, irregularities in pressure or formations, equipment failure, blowouts and weather 
interruptions. Future developments may be affected by uirforeseen reservoir conditions which negatively affect 
recovery factors or flow rates. The costs of drilling and development activities have increased in recent years which 
could negatively affect expected economic returns. Reserve replacement can also be achieved through acquisition. 
Similar risks, however, may be encountered in the production of oil and gas on properties acquired from others. 

There are inherent uncertainties in estimating quantities of proved reserves and discounted future net 
cash flows, and actual quantities may be lower than estimated. Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating 
quantities of proved reserves and future net revenues from those reserves. Actual future production, oil and gas 
prices, revenues, taxes, capital expenditures, operating expenses, and quantities of recoverable oil and gas 
reserves may vary substantially from those assumed in the estimates and could materially affect the estimated 
quantities of our proved reserves and the related future net revenues. In addition, reserve estimates may be 
subject to downward or upward changes based on production performance, purchases or sales of properties, 
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results of future development, prevailing oil and gas prices, production sharing contracts, which may decrease 
reserves as cmde oil and natural gas prices increase, and other factors. 

We do not always control decisions made under joint operating agreements and the partners under 
such agreements may fail to meet their obligations. We conduct many of our exploration and production 
operations under joint operating agreements in which we may share control with other parties to the agreement. 
There is a risk that these parties may at any time have economic, business, or legal interests or goals that are 
inconsistent with ours, or these parties may be unable to meet their economic or other obligations and we may be 
requned to fulfill those obligations alone. If we fail to jointly control operations, business decisions and other 
actions, the value of our investment may be adversely affected. 

We are subject to changing laws and regulations and other governmental actions that can 
significantly and adversely afi'ect our business. Federal, state, local, territorial and foreign laws and 
regulations relating to tax increases and rettoactive tax claims, disallowance of tax credits and deductions, 
expropriation or nationalization of property, mandatory govemment participation, cancellation or amendment of 
contract rights, and changes in import and export regulations, limitations on access to exploration and 
development opportunities, as well as other political developments may affect our operations. As a result of the 
accident in April 2010 at the BP p.l.c. (BP) operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of Mexico (in which the 
Corporation was not a participant) and the ensuing significant oil spill, a temporary drilling moratorium was 
imposed in the Gulf of Mexico. While this moratorium has since been lifted, significant new regulations have 
been imposed and further legislation and regulations may be proposed. The new regulatory environment has 
resulted in a longer permitting process and higher costs. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform Act, enacted in 
2010 (Dodd-Frank Act), delegated mlemaking responsibilities to carry out the Act to various U.S. govemment 
agencies. Our business could potentially be adversely impacted by one or more of the final rales under this Act, 
including potential additional costs to engage in certain derivative ttansactions. On August 22, 2012, the 
Securities and Exchange Commission issued final mles, as required by the Dodd-Frank Act, regarding disclosure 
of payments by resource extraction issuers, pursuant to which, beginning in 2014, we will be requhed to provide 
information about payments made to govemments for the commercial development of oil, natural gas, or 
minerals. 

Political instability in areas where we operate can adversely affect our business. Some of the 
intemational areas in which we operate, and the partners with whom we operate, are politically less stable than 
other areas and partners. Political unrest in North Africa and the Middle East has affected and may affect our 
operations in these areas as well as oil and gas markets generally. The threat of terrorism around the world also 
poses additional risks to the operations of the oil and gas industry. 

Our oil and gas operations are subject to environmental risks and environmental laws and regulations 
that can result in significant costs and liabilities. Our oil and gas operations, like those of the industry, are 
subject to environmental risks such as oil spills, produced water spills, gas leaks and raptures and discharges of 
substances or gases that could expose us to substantial liability for pollution or other environmental damage. For 
example, the accident at the BP operated Macondo prospect in April 2010 resulted in a significant release of 
cmde oil which caused extensive environmental and economic damage. Our operations are also subject to 
numerous United States federal, state, local and foreign envhonmental laws and regulations. Non-compliance 
with these laws and regulations may subject us to administrative, civil or criminal penalties, remedial clean-ups 
and natural resource damages or other liabilities. In addition, increasingly stringent environmental regulations 
have resulted and will likely continue to result in higher capital expenditures and operating expenses for us and 
the oil and gas industry in general. 

Concems have been raised in certain jurisdictions where we have operations concerning the safety and 
envhonmental impact of the drilling and development of unconventional oil and gas resources, particularly 
hydraulic fracturing, water usage, flaring of associated natural gas and air emissions. While we believe that these 
operations can be conducted safely and with minimal impact on the environment, regulatory bodies are 
responding to these concems and may impose moratoriums and new regulations on such drilling operations that 
would likely have the effect of prohibiting or delaying such operations and increasing their cost. For example, a 
moratorium prohibiting hydraulic fracturing is currently impacting the Corporation's operations in France. 

Concerns about climate change may result in significant operational changes and expenditures and 
reduced demand for our products. We recognize that climate change is a global environmental concem. 
Continuing political and social attention to the issue of climate change has resulted in both existing and pending 
intemational agreements and national, regional or local legislation and regulatory measures to limit greenhouse 
gas emissions. These agreements and measures may require significant equipment modifications, operational 
changes, taxes, or purchase of emission credits to reduce emission of greenhouse gases from our operations, 
which may result in substantial capital expenditures and compliance, operating, maintenance and remediation 
costs. In addition, we market petroleum fuels, which through normal customer use result in the emission of 
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greenhouse gases. Regulatory initiatives to reduce the use of these fuels may reduce oin sales of, and revenues 
from, these products. Finally, to the extent that climate change may result in more extreme weather related 
events, we could experience increased costs related to prevention, maintenance and remediation of affected 
operations in addition to higher costs and lost revenues related to delays and shutdowns. 

Our industry is highly competitive and many of our competitors are larger and have greater 
resources than we have. The pettoleum industry is highly competitive and very capital intensive. We 
encounter competition from numerous companies in each of our activities, including acquiring rights to explore 
for cmde oil and natural gas, and in purchasing and marketing of refined petroleum products, natural gas and 
electricity. Many competitors, including national oil companies, are larger and have substantially greater 
resources. We are also in competition with producers and marketers of other forms of energy. Increased 
competition for worldwide oil and gas assets has significantly increased the cost of acquisitions. In addition, 
competition for drilling services, technical expertise and equipment may affect the availability of technical 
personnel and drilling rigs, resulting in increased capital and operating costs. 

Catastrophic events, whether naturally occurring or man-made, may materially afiect our operations 
and financial conditions. Our oil and gas operations are subject to unforeseen occurrences which have 
affected us from time to time and which may damage or destroy assets, interrapt operations and have other 
significant adverse effects. Examples of catastiophic risks include hurricanes, fires, explosions, blowouts, such as 
the accident at the Macondo prospect, pipeline interraptions and raptures, severe weather, geological events, 
labor disputes or cyber-attacks. During 2012, we incurred charges for repairs and other expenses relating to the 
effects of Hurricane Sandy which hit the Northeast Coast of the United States. Although we maintain insurance 
coverage against property and casualty losses, there can be no assurance that such insurance will adequately 
protect the Corporation against liability from all potential consequences and damages. Moreover, some forms of 
insurance may be unavailable in the future or be available only on terms that are deemed economically 
unacceptable. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 
The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasoline, has been 

a party to lawsuits and claims related to the use of methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) in gasoline. A series of 
similar lawsuits, many involving water utilities or govemmental entities, were filed in jurisdictions across the 
United States against producers of MTBE and petroleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, 
including the Corporation. The principal allegation in all cases was that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective 
product and that these parties are strictly liable in proportion to their share of the gasoline market for damage to 
groundwater resources and are required to take remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the 
environment of releases of MTBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 
2010 and 2011, additional cases were settled including an action brought in state court by the State of New 
Hampshire. Two separate cases brought by the State of New Jersey and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
remain unresolved. In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 million was recorded to cover all of the known MTBE cases 
against the Corporation. 

The Corporation received a dkective from the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
(NJDEP) to remediate contamination in the sediments of the lower Passaic River and the NJDEP is also seeking 
natural resource damages. The directive, insofar as it affects the Corporation, relates to alleged releases from a 
petroleum bulk storage terminal in Newark, New Jersey now owned by the Corporation. The Corporation and 
over 70 companies entered into an Administrative Order on Consent with the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) to study the same contamination. The NJDEP has also sued several other companies linked to a facility 
considered by the State to be the largest contributor to river contamination. In January 2009, these companies 
added third party defendants, including the Corporation, to that case. In June 2007, the EPA issued a draft study 
which evaluated six alternatives for early action, with costs ranging from $900 million to $2.3 billion for all 
parties. Based on adverse comments from the Corporation and others, the EPA is reevaluating its altematives. In 
addition, the federal trastees for natural resources have begun a separate assessment of damages to natural 
resources in the Passaic River. Given the ongoing studies, remedial costs cannot be reliably estimated at this 
time. Based on currently known facts and circumstances, the Corporation does not believe that this matter will 
result in a material liability because its terminal could not have contributed contamination along most of the 
river's length and did not store or use contaminants which are of the greatest concem in the river sediments, and 
because there are numerous other parties who will likely share in the cost of remediation and damages. 

On July 25, 2011, the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and Natural Resources commenced an 
enforcement action against HOVENSA by issuance of documents titled "Notice Of Violation, Order For 
Corrective Action, Notice Of Assessment of Civil Penalty, Notice Of Opportunity For Hearing" (the "NOVs"). 
The NOVs assert violations of Virgin Islands Air Pollution Control laws and regulations arising out of odor 
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incidents on St. Croix in May 2011 and proposes total penalties of $210,000. HOVENSA believes that it has 
good defenses against the asserted violations. 

In July 2004, Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. (HOVIC), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, and 
HOVENSA, each received a letter from the Commissioner of the Virgin Islands Department of Plaiming and 
Natural Resources and Natural Resources Tmstees, advising ofthe Trastee's intention to bring suit against HOVIC 
and HOVENSA under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA). 
The letter alleges that HOVIC and HOVENSA are potentially responsible for damages to natural resources arising 
from releases of hazardous substances from the HOVENSA refinery, which had been operated by HOVIC imtil 
October 1998. An action was filed on May 5, 2(X)5 in the District Court of the Virgin Islands against HOVENSA, 
HOVIC and other companies that operated industrial facilities on the south shore of St. Croix asserting that the 
defendants are liable imder CERCLA and territorial statutory and common law for damages to natural resources. 
HOVIC and HOVENSA are continuing to vigorously defend this matter and do not believe that this matter will 
result in a material liability as they believe that they have strong defenses against this complaint. 

The Corporation periodically receives notices from the EPA that it is a "potential responsible party" under 
the Superfund legislation with respect to various waste disposal sites. Under this legislation, all potentially 
responsible parties are jointly and severally liable. For certain sites, the EPA's claims or assertions of liability 
against the Corporation relating to these sites have not been fully developed. With respect to the remaining sites, 
the EPA's claims have been settled, or a proposed settlement is under consideration, in all cases for amounts that 
are not material. The ultimate impact of these proceedings, and of any related proceedings by private parties, on 
the business or accounts of the Corporation cannot be predicted at this time due to the large number of other 
potentially responsible parties and the speculative nature of clean-up cost estimates, but is not expected to be 
material. 

The Corporation is from time to time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including 
proceedings relating to other environmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or 
when such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings 
that are in their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues 
may need to be resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual 
matters before a loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in 
management's opinion, based upon currently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings is 
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of 
the Corporation. 
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PART II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases 
of Equity Securities 

Stock Market Information 

The common stock of Hess Corporation is traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker 
symbol: HES). High and low sales prices were as follows: 

2012 2011 

Quarter Ended 
March 31 . . . 
June 30 
September 30 
December 31 

High 

$67.86 
60.20 
57.34 
55.96 

Low 

$54.10 
39.67 
41.94 
48.20 

High 

$87.40 
87.19 
77.12 
66.49 

Low 

$76.00 
67.65 
50.42 
46.66 

Performance Graph 

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the five year shareholder retum on a $100 investment in the 
Corporation's common stock assuming reinvestment of dividends, against the cumulative total retums for the 
following: 

• Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 Stock Index, which includes the Corporation, 

• AMEX Oil Index, which is comprised of companies involved in various phases of the oil industry 
including the Corporation, and 

• Proxy Peer Group comprising 16 oil and gas peer companies, including the Corporation. 

Comparison of Five-Year Shareholder Retums 
Years Ended December 31, 
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2007 

$100.00 

$100.00 

$100.00 

$100.00 

2008 

$53.45 

$63.01 

$64.52 

$65.84 

2009 

$60.72 

$79.69 

$73.01 

$84.54 

2010 

$77.33 

$91.71 

$85.45 

$95.56 

2011 

$57.74 

$93.62 

$88.95 

$93.23 

2012 

$54.25 

$108.59 

$92.60 

$94.25 

The graph above has been amended to show the Corporation's performance against the Proxy Peer Group, 
since this comparator group is used in the Proxy Statement. In future years, the AMEX Oil Index data will not be 
included in this graph. 

17 



Holders 

At December 31, 2012, there were 4,215 stockholders (based on the number of holders of record) who 
owned a total of 341,527,617 shares of common stock. 

Dividends 

Cash dividends on common stock totaled $0.40 per share ($0.10 per quarter) during 2012, 2011 and 2010. 

Equity Compensation Plans 

Following is information on the Registrant's equity compensation plans at December 31, 2012: 

Number of 
Securities 

Remaining 
Available for 

Number of Future Issuance 
Securities to Weighted Under Equity 

be Issued Average Compensation 
Upon Exercise Exercise Price Plans 
of Outstanding of Outstanding (Excluding 

Options, Options, Securities 
Warrants and Warrants and Reflected in 

Rights (a) Rights (b) Column (a)) (c) Plan Category 

Equity compensation plans approved by security 
holders 

Equity compensation plans not approved by security 
holders** 

12,903,000 $61.45 12,398,000* 

* These securities may be awarded as stock options, restricted stock, performance share units or other awards permitted under the 
Registrant's equity compensation plan. 

** The Corporation has a Stock Award Program pursuant to which each non-employee director annually receives approximately $175,000 
in value ofthe Corporation's common stock. These awards are made from shares purchased by the Corporation in the open market. 

See Note 11, Share-based Compensation in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further 
discussion ofthe Corporation's equity compensation plans. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

The following is a five-year summary of selected financial data that should be read in conjunction with the 
Corporation's consoHdated financial statements and the accompanying notes and Item 7. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Annual 
Report: 

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
(In millions, except per share amounts) 

Sales and other operating revenues 
Cmde oil and natural gas liquids $10,332 $ 9,065 $ 7,235 $ 5,665 $ 7,764 
Natural gas (including sales of purchased gas) . . . 4,688 5,526 5,723 5,894 8,800 
Refined petroleum products 18,481 19,459 16,103 12,931 19,765 
Electricity 2,722 2,957 3,165 3,408 3,451 
Convenience store sales and other 

operating revenues 1,468 1,459 1,636 1,716 1,354 

Total $37,691 $38,466 $33,862 $29,614 $41,134 

Net income attiributable to Hess Corporation $ 2,025(a) $ 1,703(b) $ 2,125(c) $ 740(d) $ 2,360(e) 

Eamings per share 
Basic $ 5.98 $ 5.05 $ 6.52 $ 2.28 $ 7.35 
Diluted $ 5.95 $ 5.01 $ 6.47 $ 2.27 $ 7.24 

Total assets $43,441 $39,136 $35,396 $29,465 $28,589 
Total debt $ 8,111 $ 6,057 $ 5,583 $ 4,467 $ 3,955 
Total equity $21,203 $18,592 $16,809 $13,528 $12,391 
Dividends per share of common stock $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 

(a) Includes after-tax income of $661 million relating to gains on asset sales and income from the partial liquidation of last-in, first-out 
(LIFO) inventories, partially offset by after-tax charges totaling $634 million for a.sset impairments, dry hole expense, income taxes and 
other charges. 

(h) Includes after-tax charges totaling $694 million relating to the shutdown of the HOVENSA LLC. (HOVENSA) refinery, asset 
impairments and an increase in the United Kingdom supplementary tax rate, partially offset by after-tax income of $413 million relating 
to gains on asset sales. 

(c) Includes after-tax income of $1,130 million relating to gains on asset sales, partially offset by after-tax charges totaling $694 million for 
an asset impairment, an impairment of the Corporation's equity investment in HOVENSA, dry hole expense and premiums on 
repurchases of fixed-rate public notes. 

(d) Includes after-tax expenses totaling $104 million relating to repurchases of fixed-rate public notes, retirement benefits, employee 
severance costs and as.set impairments, partially offset by after-tax income totaling $101 million principally relating to the resolution of 
a United States royalty dispute. 

(e) Includes after-tax expenses totaling $26 million primarily relating to asset impairments and hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico. 
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
Overview 

Hess Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Corporation or Hess) operate in two segments. Exploration and 
Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The Corporation has made significant progress in its 
transformation from an integrated oil and gas company to a predominantly E&P company following the 
shutdown of the HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA) joint venture refinery in January 2012, and its decision in 
January 2013 to cease refining operations at its Port Reading facility and pursue the sale of its terminal network. 
Following these actions, over 90 percent ofthe Corporation's capital employed will be in its E&P segment. The 
Corporation also has shifted its E&P growth strategy from one based primarily on high impact exploration to one 
based on a combination of the development of unconventional resources, exploitation of existing discoveries and 
a smaller, more focused exploratory program. The Corporation intends to continue to piursue its strategy of 
transforming itself into an essentially E&P business focused on the Corporation's most promising properties and 
operations. 

On January 29, 2013, Elliott Management Corporation (Elliott) sent a letter to Hess shareholders informing 
them that affiliates of Elliott beneficially own 4 percent of the outstanding common stock of the Corporation and 
are nominating five individuals for election as directors at the Corporation's 2013 Annual Meeting. Among other 
things, Elliott stated its view that Hess should (1) spin off the Corporation's Bakken assets along with the Eagle 
Ford and Utica acreage; (2) divest the Corporation's downstream assets and place midstream assets into a master 
limited partnership (MLP) or real estate investment tmst (REIT) stmcture; and (3) divest assets from the 
Corporation's remaining intemational portfolio. The Corporation is in the process of reviewing ElUott's 
proposals with the Board and its advisors and intends to respond in the near future. 

Net income in 2012 was $2,025 million compared with $1,703 million in 2011 and $2,125 million in 2010. 
Diluted eamings per share were $5.95 in 2012 compared with $5.01 in 2011 and $6.47 in 2010. A table of items 
affecting comparability of eamings between periods is shown on page 22. 

Exploration and Production 
The Corporation's total proved reserves were 1,553 million barrels of oil equivalent (boe) at December 31, 

2012 compared with 1,573 million boe at December 31, 2011 and 1,537 million boe at December 31, 2010. 
E&P eamings were $2,212 million in 2012, $2,675 million in 2011 and $2,736 million in 2010. Excluding 

items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, E&P net income was $2,256 million, $2,431 million 
and $2,004 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Average realized cmde oil selling prices were $86.94 
per barrel in 2012, $89.99 in 2011 and $66.20 in 2010, mcluding the impact of hedging. Average realized natural 
gas selling prices were $6.16 per mcf in 2012, $5.96 in 2011 and $5.63 in 2010. Production averaged 
406,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) in 2012, 370,000 boepd in 2011 and 418,000 boepd in 2010. 
The Corporation currently expects total worldwide production to average between 375,000 boepd and 390,000 
boepd in 2013. This forecast assumes Russian operations remain in the portfolio for the full year. 

The following is an update of significant E&P activities during 2012: 
• In North Dakota, net production from the Bakken oil shale play averaged 56,000 boepd during 2012, an 

increase of 87% from 30,000 boepd in 2011. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Corporation substantially 
completed "held by production" drilling in the Bakken and is transitioning to pad drilling, which involves 
sequentially drilling a number of wells on a pad followed by sequential completion of the wells. This pad 
drilling process is expected to lead to a temporary flattening of the Bakken production profile until mid-
2013. Bakken production is expected to average between 64,000 boepd and 70,000 boepd for the full year 
of 2013, with most of the increase from 2012 expected to occur in the second half of the year. 

• At the Valhall Field, a multi-year redevelopment project was advanced in 2012 and completed in early 
2013. The project included the installation of a new production, utilities and accommodation platform and 
expansion of gross production capacity to 120,000 barrels of liquids per day and 143,000 mcf of natural 
gas per day. In July 2012, the field was shut-in to complete the installation and commissioning ofthe new 
facilities and production resumed in January 2013. 

• The Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Schiehallion Field (Hess 16%), the Bittem Field 
(Hess 28%) and related assets in the United Kingdom North Sea, and the Snohvit Field (Hess 3%), offshore 
Norway, for total cash proceeds of $843 million. These transactions resulted in pre-tax gains totaling $584 
million ($557 milUon after income taxes). These assets were producing at an aggregate net rate of 
approximately 15,000 boepd at the time of sale and had a total of 83 million boe of proved reserves. 
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• In October, the Corporation also announced that it had reached an agreement to sell its interests in the 
Beryl fields in the United Kingdom North Sea. These assets were producing at an aggregate net rate of 
approximately 15,000 boepd at the time of sale and had a total of 21 million boe of proved reserves. The 
sale was completed in January 2013 for cash proceeds of approximately $440 million. 

• In September, the Corporation reached an agreement to sell its interests in the Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli 
(ACG) fields (Hess 3%) in Azerbaijan and its interest in the associated Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan (BTC) 
pipeline (Hess 2%) for approximately $1 billion, subject to normal closing adjustments. The ttansaction, 
which is expected to close in the first quarter of 2013, is subject to govemment and regulatory approvals. 

• In June, the Corporation signed agreements with its partner to develop nine discovered natural gas fields 
in the North Malay Basin, located offshore Peninsular Malaysia. The Corporation will have a 50% 
interest and is the operator. First production is forecast to commence from an early production system in 
the second half of 2013. 

• During the third quarter of 2012, the Corporation signed an exchange agreement with the partners of 
Green Canyon Block 512 that contains the Knotty Head discovery and is in the same reservoir as the 
Corporation's Pony discovery on the adjacent Block 468. Under this agreement, the Corporation was 
appointed operator and has a 20% working interest in the blocks, now collectively referred to as 
Stampede. Field development planning is progressing and the project is targeted for sanction in 2014. 

• During the year, the Corporation completed four successful exploration wells on the Deepwater Tano Cape 
Three Points block, offshore Ghana. In early 2013, the Corporation completed two additional successful 
wells, resulting in a total of seven consecutive successful exploration wells. Based on the results of these 
wells, the Corporation plans to submit an appraisal plan to the Ghanaian govemment for approval on or 
before June 2, 2013. In parallel, the Corporation has begun pre-development studies on the block. 

Marketing and Refining 
Results from M&R activities were eamings of $231 million in 2012, a loss of $584 million in 2011 and a 

loss of $231 million in 2010. Excluding items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, M&R 
eamings were $160 million in 2012, a loss of $59 million in 2011 and eamings of $58 million in 2010. In January 
2012, HOVENSA shut down its refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Virgin Islands. The Corporation and its joint ventiu-e 
partner plan to pursue the sale of HOVENSA, while the complex is operated as an oil storage terminal. In 
January 2013, the Corporation announced its decision to cease refining operations in Febraary at its Port Reading 
facility and pursue the sale of its terminal network. 

Liquidity and Capital and Exploratory Expenditures 
Net cash provided by operating activities was $5,660 milhon in 2012, $4,984 million in 2011 and 

$4,530 million in 2010. At December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents totaled $642 million, an increase from 
$351 million at December 31, 2011. Total debt was $8,111 milhon at December 31, 2012 and $6,057 million at 
December 31, 2011. The Corporation's debt to capitalization ratio at December 31, 2012 was 27.7% compared 
with 24.6% at the end of 2011. 

Capital and exploratory expenditures were as follows: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
Exploration and Production 

United States $4,763 $4,305 $2,935 
Intemational 3,383 3,039 2,822 

Total Exploration and Production 8,146 7,344 5,757 
Marketing, Refining and Corporate 119 118 98 

Total capital and exploratory expenditures $8,265 $7,462 $5,855 

Exploration expenses charged to income included above: 
United States $ 142 $ 197 $ 154 
Intemational 328 259 209 

Total exploration expenses charged to income included above . . . . $ 470 $ 456 $ 363 

The Corporation anticipates investing $6.8 billion in capital and exploratory expenditures in 2013, 
substantially all of which is targeted for E&P operations. 
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Consolidated Results of Operations 
The after-tax income (loss) by major operating activity is summarized below: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions, 
except per share amounts) 

Exploration and Production $ 2,212 $ 2,675 $ 2,736 
Marketing and Refining 231 (584) (231) 
Corporate (158) (154) (159) 
Interest expense (260) (234) (221) 

Net income attiibutable to Hess Corporation $ 2,025 $ 1,703 $ 2,125 

Net income per share — diluted $ 5.95 $ 5.01 $ 6.47 

The following table summarizes, on an after-tax basis, items of income (expense) that are included in net 
income and affect comparability between periods. The items in the table below are explained on pages 25 
through 27. 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Exploration and Production $ (44) $ 244 $ 732 
Marketing and Refining 71 (525) (289) 
Corporate — — (7) 

$ 27 $ (281) $ 436 

In the following discussion and elsewhere in this report, the financial effects of certain transactions are 
disclosed on an after-tax basis. Management reviews segment eamings on an after-tax basis and uses after-tax 
amounts in its review of variances in segment eamings. Management believes that after-tax amounts are a 
preferable method of explaining variances in eamings, since they show the entire effect of a transaction rather 
than only the pre-tax amount. After-tax amounts are determined by applying the income tax rate in each tax 
jurisdiction to pre-tax amounts. 

Comparison of Results 
Exploration and Production 

Following is a summarized income statement ofthe Corporation's E&P operations: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Sales and otiier operating revenues* $10,893 $10,047 $ 8,744 
Gains on asset sales 584 446 1,208 
Other, net 99 18 25 

Total revenues and non-operating income 11,576 10,511 9,977 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 2,752 2,352 1,924 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease 

unpanment 1,070 1,195 865 
General, administrative and other expenses 314 313 281 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,853 2,305 2,222 
Asset impairments 582 358 532 

Total costs and expenses 7,571 6,523 5,824 

Results of operations before income taxes 4,005 3,988 4,153 
Provision for income taxes 1,793 1,313 1,417 

Results of operations attributable to Hess Corporation $ 2,212 $ 2,675 $ 2,736 

* Amounts differ from E&P operating revenues in Note 18, Segment Information in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
primarily due to the exclusion of sales of hydrocarbons purchased from third parties. 
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After considering the E&P items affecting comparability of eamings between periods in the table on 
page 25, the remaining changes in E&P eamings are primarily attributable to changes in selling prices, 
production and sales volumes, operating costs, depreciation, depletion and amortization, exploration expenses 
and income taxes, as discussed below. 

Selling Prices: Lower average realized selling prices, primarily from crade oil and natural gas liquids, 
decreased E&P revenues by approximately $380 million in 2012 compared with the corresponding period in 
2011. Higher average selling prices increased E&P revenues by approximately $2,400 million in 2011 compared 
with 2010. 

The Corporation's average selling prices were as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 

Crade oil — per barrel (including hedging) 
United States $ 92.32 $ 98.56 $ 75.02 
Europe 74.14 80.18 58.11 
Afiica 89.02 88.46 65.02 
Asia 107.45 111.71 79.23 

Worldwide 86.94 89.99 66.20 

Crade oil — per barrel (excluding hedging) 
United States $ 93.96 $ 98.56 $ 75.02 
Europe 75.06 80.18 58.11 
Africa 110.92 110.28 78.31 
Asia 109.35 111.71 79.23 

Worldwide 93.70 95.60 71.40 

Natural gas liquids — per band 
United States $ 40.75 $ 58.59 $ 47.92 
Europe 78.43 75.49 59.23 
Asia 77.92 72.29 63.50 

Worldwide 47.81 62.72 50.49 

Natural gas — per mcf 
United States $ 2.09 $ 3.39 $ 3.70 
Europe 9.50 8.79 6.23 
Asia and other 6.90 6.02 5.93 

Worldwide 6.16 5.96 5.63 

In October 2008, the Corporation closed Brent crade oil hedges covering 24,000 barrels per day from 2009 
through 2012 by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. The deferred after-tax losses, as of 
the date the hedge positions were closed, were recorded in eamings as the contracts matured. The Corporation 
also entered into Brent crade oil hedges using fixed-price swap contracts to hedge 120,000 boepd of crade oil 
sales volumes for the full year of 2012 at an average price of $107.70 per barrel. Crade oil hedges reduced E&P 
eamings by $431 million ($688 million before income taxes) in 2012, $327 million ($517 million before income 
taxes) in 2011 and $338 million ($533 million before income taxes) in 2010. Both of these hedge programs 
matured as of December 31, 2012. In January and Febraary 2013, the Corporation entered into Brent crade oil 
hedges using fixed-price swap contracts to hedge 90,000 boepd of cmde oil sales volumes for the remainder of 
the calendar year at an average price of approximately $109.70 per barrel. 

Production and Sales Volumes: The Corporation's crade oil and natmral gas production was 406,000 
boepd in 2012, 370,000 boepd in 2011 and 418,000 boepd in 2010. Approximately 75% in 2012, 72% in 2011 
and 73% in 2010 of the Corporation's production was from crade oil and natural gas liquids. The Corporation 
curtently expects total worldwide production to average between 375,000 boepd and 390,000 boepd in 2013. 
This forecast assumes Russian operations remain in the portfolio for the full year. 
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The Corporation's net daily worldwide production was as follows: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In thousands) 
Crade oil — barrels per day 

United States 
Bakken 47 26 12 
Other Onshore _13 _U_ _[]_ 

Total Onshore 60 37 23 
Offshore _48 _44 _52 

Total United States 108 81 75 
Europe 84 89 88 
Africa 75 66 113 
Asia _17 ^ _ [ 3 

Total 2M 249 289 

Natural gas liquids — barrels per day 
United States 

Bakken 5 2 2 
Other Onshore 5 5 5 

Total Onshore 10 7 7 
Offshore 6 6 7 

Total United States 16 13 14 
Europe 2 3 3 
Asia 1 1 1 

Total _19 __17 18 

Natiu âl gas — mcf per day 
United States 

Bakken 27 13 9 
Other Onshore ^ 7 ^ 6 _J9 

Total Onshore 54 39 38 
Offshore _65 _61 70 

Total United States 119 100 108 
Europe 43 81 134 
Asia and other _454 _442 _427 

Total _616 _623 _669 

Barrels of oil equivalent — per day* 406 370 418 

* Reflects natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil equivalence does 
not necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been substantially 
lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent past. See the average selling prices table. 

United States: Crade oil, natural gas liquids and natiural gas production in the United States was 
higher in 2012 compared with 2011, primarily due to new wells in the Bakken oil shale play. In the second 
quarter of 2012, production restarted from a well at the Llano Field after a successful workover of the well, 
which had been shut-in for mechanical reasons since the first quarter of 2011. Crade oil production was higher in 
2011 compared with 2010, primarily due to new wells in the Bakken oil shale play, partly offset by lower 
production due to the shut-in well at the Llano Field. Natural gas production was lower in 2011 compared with 
2010, primarily due to this shut-in well at the Llano Field. 

Europe: Crade oil production in 2012 was lower than 2011, primarily due to downtime at the Valhall 
Field in Norway which was shut-in from mid-July 2012 until January 2013 in order to complete a field 
redevelopment project. Cmde oil production in 2011 was comparable to 2010, as higher production from Norway 
and Russia was largely offset by lower production from the Corporation's United Kingdom North Sea assets. 
Natural gas production was lower in 2012 compared with 2011, primarily due to the sale of the Snohvit Field, 
offshore Norway, in January 2012, downtime at the Valhall Field as noted above and natural decline at the Beryl 
Field in the United Kingdom North Sea. Natural gas production was lower in 2011 compared with 2010, 
primarily due to the sale in Febraary 2011 of certain natural gas producing assets in the United Kingdom North 
Sea. 
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Africa: Crade oil production increased in 2012 compared with 2011, mainly due to the resumption of 
production in Libya, partly offset by lower production in Equatorial Guinea due to downtime and natural field 
decline. Following the lifting of the economic sanctions imposed in response to civil unrest, the Corporation's 
production in Libya resumed dining the fourth quarter of 2011 after being shut-in from the first quarter of 2011. 
Crade oil production decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 due to the suspension of production in Libya, the 
exchange in September 2010 of the Corporation's interests in Gabon for increased interests in Norway, lower 
production entitlement in Equatorial Guinea and Algeria as a result of higher selling prices and natural decline in 
Equatorial Guinea. 

Asia and other: Natural gas production in 2012 was higher than 2011, primarily due to new wells at 
the Pangkah Field in Indonesia and a full year's contribution from the Gajah Bam Complex at the Natuna A Field 
in Indonesia, which commenced production in the fourth quarter of 2011. Natmal gas production in 2011 was 
higher than 2010, primarily due to higher nominations at Block PM301 in Malaysia and first production from the 
Gajah Bam Complex. 

Sales volumes: Higher sales volumes and other operating revenues increased revenue by 
approximately $1,225 million in 2012 compared with 2011, and lower sales volumes and other operating 
revenues decreased revenue by approximately $1,100 million in 2011 compared with 2010. 

Operating Costs and Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization: Cash operating costs, consisting of 
production expenses and general and administrative expenses, increased by $401 million in 2012 compared with 2011 
and increased by $460 milUon in 2011 compared with 2010. The increase in 2012 reflects higher production taxes as a 
result of increased production volumes at the Bakken oil shale play and in Russia, together with higher operating and 
maintenance costs at the Valhall Field in Norway, the Llano Field m the United States and the Bakken. The increase m 
costs in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily due to higher production taxes as a result of higher selling prices, 
together with higher operating and maintenance expenses, mainly in Norway and the Bakken. 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization charges increased by $548 million in 2012 and $83 million in 
2011, compared with the corresponding amounts in prior years. The increase in 2012 was primarily due to higher 
volumes and per bartel costs. The increase in 2011 was primarily due to higher per barrel costs, reflecting higher 
finding and development costs. In addition, the higher per barrel rates in 2012 and 2011 were largely due to 
greater production contribution from unconventional assets. 

Excluding items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, cash operating costs per barrel of oil 
equivalent were $20.63 in 2012, $19.71 in 2011 and $14.45 in 2010. Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
costs per barrel of oil equivalent were $19.20 in 2012, $17.06 in 2011 and $14.56 in 2010. For 2013, cash 
operating costs are estimated to be in the range of $21.00 to $22.00 per barrel and depreciation, depletion and 
amortization costs are estimated to be in the range of $19.00 to $20.00 per barrel, resulting in total unit costs of 
$40.00 to $42.00 per barrel of oil equivalent. 

Exploration Expenses: Exploration expenses decreased in 2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to lower 
dry hole expenses and lease amortization. Dry hole expenses in 2012 included amounts associated with two 
exploration wells, Ness Deep in the Gulf of Mexico and Ajek-1, offshore Indonesia. Exploration expenses increased 
in 2011 from 2010, mainly due to higher dry hole expenses, which included amounts relating to two exploration 
wells on the Semai V Block, offshore Indonesia, and a well in the North Red Sea Block 1, offshore Egypt. 

Income Taxes: Excluding the impact of items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, the 
effective income tax rates for E&P operations were 45% in 2012, 38% in 2011 and 44% in 2010. The increase in the 
effective income tax rate in 2012 compared with 2011 was predominantly due to the resumption of Libyan 
operations. The effective income tax rate for E&P operations in 2013 is estimated to be in the range of 46% to 50%. 

Items Affecting Comparability of Earnings Between Periods: Reported E&P eamings include the 
following items affecting comparability of income (expense) before and after income taxes: 

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes 
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 

Gains on asset sales $ 584 
Asset impairments (582) 
Dry hole and other expenses (86) 
Income tax adjustments — 

$446 
(358) 

— 
— 

(In millions) 
$1,208 $ 557 

(532) (344) 
(101) (56) 

— (201) 

$413 
(140) 

— 
(29) 

$1,130 
(334) 
(64) 
— 

$ (84) $ 88 $ 575 $ (44) $ 244 $ 732 
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2072: The Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Schiehallion Field (Hess 16%), the Bittem 
Field (Hess 28%) and related assets, which are all located in the United Kingdom North Sea, and the Snohvit 
Field (Snohvit) (Hess 3%), offshore Norway, for total cash proceeds of $843 million. These transactions resulted 
in pre-tax gains totaling $584 million ($557 million after income taxes). These assets were producing at an 
aggregate net rate of approximately 15,000 boepd at the time of sale and had a total of 83 million boe of proved 
reserves. See also Note 2, Dispositions in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During 2012, E&P recorded three asset impairment charges totaling $582 million ($344 million after 
income taxes). As a result of a competitive bidding process, the Corporation obtained additional information 
relating to the fair value of its interests in the Cotulla area of the Eagle Ford Shale in Texas in Febraary 2013. 
Based on this information and management's anticipated plan for the assets as of December 31, 2012, the 
Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $315 million ($192 million after income taxes). The Corporation 
also recorded charges of $208 million ($116 million after income taxes) related to increases in estimated 
abandonment liabilities primarily for non-producing properties which resulted in the book value of the properties 
exceeding their fair value. In addition, the Corporation recorded a charge of $59 million ($36 million after 
income taxes) in the second quarter related to the disposal of certain Eagle Ford properties as part of an asset 
exchange with its joint venture partner. 

During the third quarter of 2012, the Corporation decided to cease further development and appraisal 
activities in Pern. As a result, the Corporation recorded exploration expenses totaling $86 million ($56 million 
after income taxes) to write off its exploration assets in the country. 

In July 2012, the govemment of the United Kingdom changed the supplementary income tax rate apphcable 
to deductions for dismantlement expenditures to 20% from 32%. As a result, the Corporation recorded a one-time 
charge in the third quarter of 2012 of $115 million for deferred taxes related to asset retirement obligations in the 
United Kingdom. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Corporation recorded an income tax charge of $86 million for 
a disputed application of an intemational tax treaty. 

2077: The Corporation completed the sale of its interests in certain natural gas producing assets in the 
United Kingdom North Sea, the Snorre Field (Hess 1%), offshore Norway, and the Cook Field (Hess 28%) in the 
United Kingdom North Sea for total cash proceeds of $490 million. These disposals resulted in pre-tax gains 
totaling $446 million ($413 million after income taxes). These assets had an aggregate net productive capacity of 
approximately 17,500 boepd at the time of sale. 

In the thhd quarter of 2011, the Corporation recorded asset impairment charges of $358 milhon ($140 
million after income taxes) related to increases in the Corporation's estimated abandonment liabilities primarily 
for non-producing properties in the United Kingdom North Sea which resulted in the book value ofthe properties 
exceeding their fair value. 

In July 2011, the United Kingdom increased the supplementary tax rate on petroleum operations to 32% 
from 20% with an effective date of March 24, 2011. As a result, the Corporation recorded a charge of $29 milhon 
to increase deferred tax liabilities in the United Kingdom. 

2070.- The Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the United 
Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway. This 
non-monetary transaction, which was recorded at fan value, resulted in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 million ($1,072 
million after income taxes). The Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural gas 
development project in Indonesia (Hess 25%) for cash proceeds of $183 million. The ttansaction resulted in a 
gain of $58 million. 

The Corporation recorded an asset impairment charge of $532 million ($334 million after income taxes) to 
fully impair the carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med 
Block), located offshore Egypt when the Corporation and its partners notified the Egyptian authorities of their 
decision to cease exploration activities and to relinquish a significant portion of the block. The West Med Block 
was relinquished in 2011. The Corporation also recorded $101 million ($64 million after income taxes) of dry 
hole expenses related to previously suspended well costs on the West Med Block offshore Egypt and Block BM-
S-22 offshore Brazil, both of which were drilled prior to 2010. 

Marketing and Refining 
Results from M&R activities were eamings of $231 million in 2012, a loss of $584 milhon in 2011 and a 

loss of $231 million in 2010. Excluding items affecting comparability of eamings between periods in the table 
below, M&R results were eamings of $160 million in 2012, a loss of $59 million in 2011 and eamings of $58 
million m 2010. 
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M&R Sales and other operating revenue were $25,520 million, $27,936 million and $24,885 million in 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In 2012, Sales and other operating revenue decreased compared with 2011, 
reflecting lower refined petroleum product sales volumes together with lower gas and electricity selling prices. In 
2011, Sales and other operating revenues increased compared with 2010, primarily due to higher refined 
petroleum product selling prices partially offset by the effect of lower refined pettoleum product sales volumes. 

Items Affecting Comparability of Earnings Between Periods: Reported M&R eamings include the 
following items affecting comparability of income (expense) before and after income taxes: 

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes 

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
LIFO inventory liquidation $ 165 $ — $ — $ 104 $ — $ — 
Asset impairments and other charges (43) — — (33) — — 
Charges related to equity investment m HOVENSA — (875) (300) — (525) (289) 

$ 122 $(875) $(300) $ 71 $(525) $(289) 

In 2012, the Corporation recorded income of $165 million ($104 million after income taxes) from the partial 
liquidation of last-in, first-out (LIFO) inventories. The Corporation also recorded charges of $43 million ($33 
million after income taxes) for asset impairments to certain marketing properties and other charges. 

As a resuh of continued substantial operating losses and unsuccessful efforts to improve operating 
performance by reducing refining capacity, HOVENSA prepared an impairment analysis as of December 31, 
2011, which concluded that undiscounted future cash flows would not recover the carrying value of its long-lived 
assets, and recorded an impairment charge and other charges related to the decision to shut down the refinery. In 
2011, the Corporation recorded a charge of $875 million ($525 million after income taxes) due to the impairment 
recorded by HOVENSA and other charges associated with its decision to shut down the refinery. The 
Corporation's share ofthe impairment related losses recorded by HOVENSA represented an amount equivalent 
to the Corporation's financial support to HOVENSA at December 31, 2011, its planned future funding 
conunitments for costs related to the refinery shutdown, and a charge of $135 million for the write-off of related 
assets held by the subsidiary which owns the Corporation's investment in HOVENSA. A deferred income tax 
benefit of $350 million, consisting primarily of U.S. income taxes, was recorded on the Corporation's share of 
HOVENSA's impairment and refinery shutdown related charges. 

In December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $300 milhon before income taxes 
($289 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of its equity investment in HOVENSA to fair 
value. 

Marketing: Marketing operations, which consist principally of retail gasoline and energy marketing 
activities, generated eamings of $209 million in 2012, $185 million in 2011 and $215 million in 2010. Excluding 
items affecting comparability of eamings between periods. Marketing eamings were $138 million in 2012, $185 
million in 2011 and $215 million in 2010. The decrease in eamings over the period from 2010 to 2012 was 
primarily due to lower margins and lower refined product sales volumes. 

The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes: 
2012 2011 2010 

Refined pettoleum product sales (thousands of barrels per day) 389 430 471 
Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 2,300 2,200 2,000 
Electticity (megawatts round the clock) 4,500 4,400 4,100 

Refining: Refining results consist of the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's losses, together with the 
results of Port Reading and other operating activities. Refining generated eamings of $28 million in 2012, a loss 
of $728 million in 2011 and a loss of $445 million in 2010. 

The Corporation did not record any incremental equity income or loss for HOVENSA in 2012, as the 
Corporation fully accraed its estimated funding commitments for HOVENSA's refinery shutdown at 
December 31, 2011. Excluding items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, the Corporation's 
share of HOVENSA's results was a loss of $198 million in 2011 and a loss of $137 million ($222 million before 
income taxes) in 2010, reflecting weak refining margins. U.S. Virgin Island income taxes were not recorded on 
the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's 2011 results due to cumulative operating losses. 
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Other after-tax refining results, principally from Port Reading operations, generated eamings of $28 million 
in 2012, a loss of $5 million in 2011 and a loss of $19 million in 2010. The Port Reading refining facility has a 
capacity of 70,000 bartels per day and the facility operated at a rate of 59,000 barrels per day in 2012, 63,000 
barrels per day in 2011 and 55,000 barrels per day in 2010. In January 2013, the Corporation announced its 
decision to cease refining operations in Febraary at its Port Reading facility. 

The Corporation has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that ttades energy commodities and 
energy derivatives. The Corporation also takes ttading positions for its own account. The Corporation's after-tax 
results from ttading activities, including its share of the results of the ttading partnership, amounted to losses of 
$6 million in 2012, $41 million in 2011 and $1 million in 2010. 

Marketing expenses decreased in 2012 compared with 2011 principally reflecting lower retail credit card 
fees. Marketing expenses increased in 2011 compared with 2010 reflecting higher retail credit card fees, 
maintenance, enviromnental and employee related expenses. 

The Corporation's future M&R eamings may be impacted by supply and demand factors, volatility in 
margins, credit risks, the effects of weather, competitive industry conditions, political risk, environmental risk 
and catasttophic risk. For a more comprehensive description of the risks that may affect the Corporation's M&R 
business, see Item 1 A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations. 

Corporate 

The following table summarizes corporate expenses: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
Corporate expenses (excluding items affecting comparability) $ 262 $ 260 $ 256 
Income taxes (benefits) (104) (106) (104) 

Net corporate expenses, after-tax 158 154 152 
Items affecting comparability of eamings between periods, after-tax — — 7 

Total corporate expenses, after-tax $ 158 $ 154 $ 159 

Corporate expenses were comparable in 2012, 2011 and 2010. After-tax corporate expenses in 2013 are 
estimated to be in the range of $160 million to $170 milhon. 

Interest Expense 

The following table summarizes interest expense: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Total interest incurred $ 447 $ 396 $ 366 
Less: Capitalized interest (28) (13) (5) 

Interest expense before income taxes 419 383 361 
Income taxes (benefits) (159) (149) (140) 

Total interest expense, after-tax $ 260 $ 234 $ 221 

The increase in interest expense incmred in 2012 and 2011 principally reflects higher average debt and bank 
facility fees. Capitalized interest increased in 2012 compared with 2011, primarily due to the sanctioning ofthe 
Tubular Bells project in September 2011. After-tax interest expense in 2013 is expected to be in the range of 
$255 million to $265 million. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The following table sets forth certain relevant measures of the Corporation's liquidity and capital resources 
at December 31: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 642 $ 351 
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt $ 787 $ 52 
Total debt $ 8,111 $ 6,057 
Total equity $21,203 $18,592 
Debt to capitahzation ratio* 27.7% 24.6% 

* Total debt as a percentage ofthe sum of total debt plus equity. 

Cash Flows 

The following table sets forth a summary ofthe Corporation's cash flows: 

2012 2011 2010 
(In millions) 

Net cash provided by (used in): 
Operating activities $ 5,660 $ 4,984 $ 4,530 
Investing activities (7,051) (6,566) (5,259) 
Financing activities 1,682 325 975 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 291 $(1,257) $ 246 

Operating Activities: Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $5,660 million in 2012 
compared with $4,984 million in 2011, reflecting higher operating eamings and increases in cash flows from 
changes in working capital. Operating cash flow increased to $4,984 million in 2011 from $4,530 million in 2010 
principally reflecting higher operating eamings partially offset by a decrease in cash flows from changes in 
working capital. 

Investing Activities: The following table summarizes the Corporation's capital expenditures: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
Exploration and Production 

Exploration $ 619 $ 869 $ 552 
Production and development 6,790 4,673 2,592 
Acquisitions (including leaseholds) 267 1,346 2,250 

7,676 6,888 5,394 
Marketing, Refining and Corporate 119 118 98 

Total $7,795 $7,006 $5,492 

The increased spend on capital expenditures in 2012 primarily reflected additional spending at the Bakken 
oil shale play as a result of drilling new wells, higher working interest wells and increased spending on field 
infrastracture projects. Capital expenditures in 2011 included acquisitions of approximately $800 million for 
195,000 net acres in the Utica Shale play in Ohio, $214 million for interests in two blocks in the Kurdistan 
Region of Iraq and $116 million for an additional 4% interest in the South Ame Field in Denmark. Capital 
expenditures in 2010 included acquisitions of 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play in North Dakota 
from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 million in cash and additional interests of 8% and 13% in the Valhall and 
Hod fields, respectively, for $507 million in cash. 

The Corporation received total proceeds from the sale of assets in the E&P segment of $843 million in 2012, 
$490 million in 2011 and $183 milhon in 2010. 

Financing Activities: During 2012, the Corporation borrowed a net of $1,845 million from available 
credit facilities, which consisted of borrowings of $758 million from its syndicated revolving credit facility, $890 
million from its short-term credit facilities and $250 million from its asset-backed credit facility, partially offset 
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by net repayments of other debt of $53 million. During 2011, net proceeds from borrowings on available credit 
facilities were $422 million. During 2010, net proceeds from bortowings were $1,098 million, including the 
August 2010 issuance of $1,250 million of 30-year fixed-rate public notes with a coupon of 5.6% scheduled to 
mature in 2041. In January 2010, the Corporation completed the repurchase of the remaining $116 million of 
fixed-rate public notes that were scheduled to matiure in 2011. 

Total conunon stock dividends paid were $171 million in 2012, $136 million in 2011 and $131 milhon in 
2010. In 2012, the Corporation made five quarterly common stock dividend payments as a result of accelerating 
payment of the fourth quarter 2012 dividend, which historically would have been paid in the fkst quarter of 2013. 
The Corporation received net proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including related income tax benefits 
of $11 million, $88 million and $54 million m 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Future Capital Requirements and Resources 

The Corporation anticipates investing a total of approximately $6.8 billion in capital and exploratory 
expenditures during 2013, substantially all of which is targeted for E&P operations. This reflects an 18 percent 
reduction from the 2012 total of $8.3 billion. The decrease is substantially attributable to a reduced level of spend 
in the Bakken driven by lower drilling and completion costs and decreased investments in infrastracture projects. 

During 2012, the Corporation funded its capital spending through cash flows from operations, incremental 
borrowings and proceeds from asset sales. The Corporation had a cash flow deficit of approximately $2.5 billion 
in 2012 and the projected deficit for 2013 is expected to moderate versus 2012 based on current commodity 
prices. During 2012, the Corporation announced asset sales totahng $2.4 billion, of which cash proceeds of $843 
million were received in 2012 and approximately $440 million were received in January 2013. The Corporation 
is also pursuing the sale of its Russian operations. Eagle Ford assets and its terminal network. The Corporation 
expects to fund its 2013 capital expenditures and ongoing operations, including dividends, pension contributions 
and debt repayments with existing cash on-hand, cash flows from operations and proceeds from asset sales. 

Crade oil and natural gas prices are volatile and difficult to predict. In addition, unplanned increases in the 
Corporation's capital expenditure program could occur. If conditions were to change, such as a significant 
decrease in commodity prices or an unexpected increase in capital expenditures, the Corporation would take 
steps to protect its financial flexibility and may pursue other sources of liquidity, including the issuance of debt 
securities, the issuance of equity securities, and/or further asset sales. 

See Overview on page 20 for a discussion of Elliott Management Corporation. 

The table below summarizes the capacity, usage, and available capacity of the Corporation's borrowing and 
letter of credit facilities at December 31, 2012: 

Expiration 
Date 

Revolving credit facility April 2016 
Asset-backed credit facility July 2013 (a) 
Committed lines Various (b) 
Uncommitted lines Various (b) 

Total 

Capacity Borrowings 

$4,000 
642 

2,730 
773 

758 
600 
500 
490 

Letters of 
Credit Issued 

(In millions) 

463 
283 

Total Used 

$ 758 
600 
963 
773 

Available 
Capacity 

$3,242 
42 

1,767 

B,145 $2,348 $ 746 $3,094 $5,051 

(a) Total capacity of$l billion subject to the amount of eligible receivables posted as collateral. 
(b) Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dates through 2014. 

The Corporation has a $4 billion syndicated revolving credit facility that matiu-es in April 2016. This facility 
can be used for bortowings and letters of credit. Borrowings on the facility bear interest at 1.25% above the 
London Interbank Offered Rate. A fee of 0.25% per annum is also payable on the amount of the facility. The 
interest rate and facility fee are subject to adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. 

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility secured by certain accounts receivable from its 
M&R operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability to borrow or 
issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion subject to the availability of sufficient levels of eligible receivables. At 
December 31, 2012, outstanding borrowings under this facility of $600 million were collateralized by a total of 
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approximately $1,050 million of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These 
receivables are only available to pay the general obUgations of the Corporation after satisfaction of the 
outstanding obligations under the asset-backed facility. 

On Febmary 27, 2012, the Corporation filed a shelf registtation statement with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under which it may issue additional debt securities, warrants, common stock or preferred stock. 

The Corporation's long-term debt agreements contain a financial covenant that restticts the amount of total 
borrowings and secured debt. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation is permitted to borrow up to an additional 
$27.2 billion for the constmction or acquisition of assets. The Corporation has the ability to bortow up to an 
additional $4.9 billion of secured debt at December 31, 2012. 

The Corporation's $746 million in letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2012 were primarily issued 
to satisfy margin requirements. See also Note 20, Risk Management and Trading Activities in the notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Credit Ratings 

There are three major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation's debt. All three agencies have 
currently assigned an investment grade rating with a stable outlook to the Corporation's debt. The interest rates 
and facility fees charged on some of the Corporation's credit facilities, as well as margin requirements from risk 
management and ttading counterparties, are subject to adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. 

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies 

The following table shows aggregate information about certain conttactual obligations at December 31, 
2012: 

Payments Due by Period 

2014 and 2016 and 
Total 2013 2015 2017 Thereafter 

(In millions) 

Total debt* $8,111 $ 7 8 7 $ 5 3 0 $1,617 $5,177 
Operating leases 2,843 700 831 252 1,060 
Purchase obligations 

Supply commitments 5,702 4,664 723 122 193 
Capital expenditures and other 

investments 3,117 1,558 1,015 407 137 
Operating expenses 2,582 1,387 558 314 323 
Other liabilities 3,972 529 749 392 2,302 

* At December 31, 2012, the Corporation's debt bears interest at a weighted average rate of 5.3%. 

Supply commitments include term purchase agreements at market prices for a portion of the gasoline 
necessary to supply the Corporation's retail marketing system. In addition, the Corporation has conunitments to 
purchase refined pettoleum products, natinal gas and electticity to supply conttacted customers in its energy 
marketing business. These commitments were computed based predominately on year-end market prices. 

The table also refiects future capital expenditures, including the portion of the Corporation's planned 
$6.8 billion capital investment program for 2013 that was contractually committed at December 31, 2012. 
Obligations for operating expenses include commitments for ttansportation, seismic purchases, oil and gas 
production expenses and other normal business expenses. Other long-term liabilities reflect conttactually 
committed obligations in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012, including asset retirement 
obligations, pension plan liabilities and estimates for uncertain income tax positions. 

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gasoline stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and 
other assets for varying periods under leases accounted for as operating leases. 

The Corporation has a contingent purchase obligation to acqune the remaining interest in WilcoHess, a 
retail gasoline station joint venture. This contingent obligation, which expires in April 2014, was approximately 
$210 million at December 31, 2012. 
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The Corporation is contingently liable under $141 million of letters of credit of other entities directly related 
to its business at December 31, 2012. 

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Corporation has leveraged leases not included in its Consohdated Balance Sheet, primarily related to 
retail gasoline stations that the Corporation operates. The net present value of these leases is $342 million at 
December 31, 2012 compared with $388 million at December 31, 2011. If these leases were included as debt, the 
Corporation's December 31, 2012 debt to capitalization ratio would increase to 28.5% from 27.7%. 

See also Note 17, Guarantees and Contingencies in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Foreign Operations 

The Corporation conducts exploration and production activities outside the United States, principally in 
Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brand, China, Denmark, Equatorial Guinea, France, Ghana, Indonesia, the 
Kurdistan region of Iraq, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Russia, Thailand and the United Kingdom. Therefore, the 
Corporation is subject to the risks associated with foreign operations, including political risk, acts of terrorism, 
tax law changes and currency risk. 

See also Item 1 A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations. 

Accounting Policies 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Accounting policies and estimates affect the recognition of assets and liabihties in the Corporation's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet and revenues and expenses in the Statement of Consolidated Income. The 
accounting methods used can affect net income, equity and various financial statement ratios. However, the 
Corporation's accounting policies generally do not change cash flows or liquidity. 

Accounting for Exploration and Development Costs: E&P activities are accounted for using the 
successful efforts method. Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage, including lease 
bonuses, brokers' fees and other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration expenses and 
exploratory dry hole costs are expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive wells, including 
development dry holes, and related production facilities are capitalized. In production operations, costs of 
injected CO2 for tertiary recovery are expensed as incurred. 

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves are capitalized pending determination of 
whether proved reserves have been found. Exploratory drilling costs remain capitalized after drilling is 
completed if (1) the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and 
(2) sufficient progress is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the 
project. If either of those criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational 
viability of the project, the capitalized well costs are charged to expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in 
assessing reserves and the economic and operating viability of a project include: commitment of project 
personnel, active negotiations for sales contracts with customers, negotiations with govemments, operators and 
conttactors and firm plans for additional drilling and other factors. 

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves: The determination of estimated proved reserves is a significant 
element in arriving at the results of operations of exploration and production activities. The estimates of proved 
reserves affect well capitalizations, the unit of production depreciation rates of proved properties and wells and 
equipment, as well as impairment testing of oil and gas assets and goodwill. 

For reserves to be booked as proved they must be determined with reasonable certainty to be economically 
producible from known reservoirs under existing economic conditions, operating methods and govemment 
regulations. In addition, govemment and project operator approvals must be obtained and, depending on the 
amount of the project cost, senior management or the board of directors must commit to fund the project. The 
Corporation maintains its own intemal reserve estimates that are calculated by technical staff that work dkectly 
with the oil and gas properties. The Corporation's technical staff updates reserve estimates throughout the year 
based on evaluations of new wells, performance reviews, new technical data and other studies. To provide 
consistency throughout the Corporation, standard reserve estimation guidelines, definitions, reporting reviews 
and approval practices are used. The intemal reserve estimates are subject to intemal technical audits and senior 

32 



management review. The Corporation also engages an independent third party consulting firm to audit 
approximately 80% ofthe Corporation's total proved reserves. 

Impairment of Long-lived Assets and Goodwill: As explained below, there are significant differences in 
the way long-lived assets and goodwill are evaluated and measured for impairment testing. The Corporation 
reviews long-lived assets, including oil and gas fields, for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recovered. Long-lived assets are tested based on 
identifiable cash fiows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If the carrying 
amounts of the long-lived assets are not expected to be recovered by undiscounted future net cash flow estimates, 
the assets are impaired and an impairment loss is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated 
fair value of the assets generally determined by discounting anticipated future net cash flows, an income 
valuation approach, or by a market-based valuation approach, which are Level 3 fair value measurements. 

In the case of oil and gas fields, the present value of future net cash flows is based on management's best 
estimate of future prices, which is determined with reference to recent historical prices and published forward 
prices, applied to projected production volumes and discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. The projected production 
volumes represent reserves, including probable reserves, expected to be produced based on a stipulated amount 
of capital expenditures. 

The production volumes, prices and timing of production are consistent with intemal projections and other 
extemally reported information. Oil and gas prices used for determining asset impairments will generally differ 
from those used in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, since the standardized measure 
requires the use of historical twelve month average prices. 

The Corporation's impairment tests of long-lived E&P producing assets are based on its best estimates of 
future production volumes (including recovery factors), selling prices, operating and capital costs, the timing of 
future production and other factors, which are updated each time an impairment test is performed. The 
Corporation could have impairments if the projected production volumes from oil and gas fields decrease, cmde 
oil and natmal gas selling prices decline significantly for an extended period or future estimated capital and 
operating costs increase significantly. 

The Corporation's goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or when events or 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not be recoverable. The goodwill test is 
conducted at a reporting unit level, which is defined in accounting standards as an operating segment or one level 
below an operating segment. The reporting unit or units to be used in an evaluation and measurement of goodwill 
for impairment testing are determined from a number of factors, including the manner in which the business is 
managed. The Corporation has concluded that the E&P segment is the reporting unit for the pinposes of testing 
goodwill for impairment, since the E&P segment is managed globally by one segment manager who allocates 
financial and technical resources globally and reviews operating results at the segment level. Accordingly, the 
Corporation expects that the benefits of goodwill will be recovered through the operations of that segment. 

If any of the E&P segment components, such as oin financial reporting regions (United States, Europe, 
Africa and Asia) were considered to be reporting units, an analysis would be performed to determine if these 
components were economically similar as defined in the accounting standard for goodwill (ASC 350-20-35). If 
components are economically similar, that guidance requhes that those components be aggregated and deemed a 
single reporting unit. 

While the Corporation believes that the E&P segment is the reporting unit because of the manner in which 
the business is managed, it also evaluated the required aggregation criteria specified in the accounting standard 
for segment reporting (ASC 280-10-50-11) and determined that its components are economically similar for the 
following reasons: 

• The Corporation operates its exploration and production segment as a single, global business. 
• Each component produces oil and gas. 
• The exploration and production processes are similar in each component. 
• The methods used by each component to market and disttibute oil and gas are similar. 
• Customers of each component are similar. 
• The components share technical resources and support services. 
If the Corporation reorganized its exploration and production business such that there was more than one 

reporting unit, goodwill may be assigned to two or more reporting units. 
The Corporation's fair value estimate of the E&P segment is the sum of: (1) the discounted anticipated cash 

flows of producing assets and known developments, (2) the estimated risk adjusted present value of exploration 
assets, and (3) an estimated market premium to reflect the market price an acquirer would pay for potential 
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synergies including cost savings, access to new business opportunities, enterprise conttol, improved processes 
and increased market share. The Corporation also considers the relative market valuation of similar E&P 
companies. 

The determination of the fair value of the E&P segment depends on estimates about oil and gas reserves, 
future prices, timing of future net cash flows and market premiums. Significant extended declines in crade oil 
and natural gas prices or reduced reserve estimates could lead to a decrease in the fan value of the E&P segment 
that could result in an impairment of goodwill. 

As there are significant differences in the way long-lived assets and goodwill are evaluated and measured 
for impairment testing, there may be impairments of individual assets that would not cause an impairment of the 
goodwill assigned to the E&P segment. 

Income Taxes: Judgments are required in the determination and recognition of income tax assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements. These judgments include the requirement to only recognize the financial 
statement effect of a tax position when management believes that it is more likely than not, that based on the 
technical merits, the position will be sustained upon examination. 

The Corporation has net operating loss carryforwards or credit carryforwards in several jmisdictions, 
including the United States, and has recorded deferred tax assets for those losses and credits. Additionally, the 
Corporation has deferred tax assets due to temporary differences between the book basis and tax basis of certain 
assets and habilities. Regular assessments are made as to the likelihood of those deferred tax assets being 
realized. If it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation 
allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is expected to be realized. In evaluating 
realizability of deferred tax assets, the Corporation refers to the reversal periods for available carryforward 
periods for net operating losses and credit carryforwards, temporary differences, the availability of tax planning 
sttategies, the existence of appreciated assets and estimates of future taxable income and other factors. Estimates 
of future taxable income are based on assumptions of oil and gas reserves and selling prices that are consistent 
with the Corporation's intemal business forecasts. Additionally, the Corporation has income taxes which have 
been deferred on intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and 
equipment remaining within the consolidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on 
intercompany transactions will occur ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrying 
value of these assets. The Corporation does not provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of 
undisttibuted eamings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. 

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporation has material legal obligations to remove and dismantle 
long lived assets and to restore land or seabed at certain exploration and production locations. In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, the Corporation recognizes a liability for the fair value of required asset 
retirement obligations. In addition, the fair value of any legally required conditional asset retkement obligations 
is recorded if the hability can be reasonably estimated. The Corporation capitalizes such costs as a component of 
the carrying amount of the underlying assets in the period in which the liability is incurred. In order to measure 
these obligations, the Corporation estimates the fair value of the obligations by discounting the futme payments 
that will be required to satisfy the obligations. In determining these estimates, the Corporation is required to 
make several assumptions and judgments related to the scope of dismantlement, timing of settlement, 
interpretation of legal requirements, inflationary factors and discount rate. In addition, there are other extemal 
factors which could significantly affect the ultimate settlement costs for these obligations including changes in 
environmental regulations and other statutory requirements, fluctuations in industry costs and foreign currency 
exchange rates and advances in technology. As a result, the Corporation's estimates of asset retirement 
obligations are subject to revision due to the factors described above. Changes in estimates prior to settlement 
result in adjustments to both the liability and related asset values. 

Retirement Plans: The Corporation has funded non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and an 
unfunded supplemental pension plan. The Corporation recognizes in the Consolidated Balance Sheet the net 
change in the funded status ofthe projected benefit obligation for these plans. 

The determination of the obligations and expenses related to these plans are based on several actuarial 
assumptions, the most significant of which relate to the discount rate for measurmg the present value of future 
plan obligations; expected long-term rates of retum on plan assets; and rate of future increases in compensation 
levels. These assumptions represent estimates made by the Corporation, some of which can be affected by 
extemal factors. For example, the discount rate used to estimate the Corporation's projected benefit obligation is 
based on a portfolio of high-quality, fixed income debt instraments with matiuities that approximate the expected 
payment of plan obligations, while the expected retum on plan assets is developed from the expected future 
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retums for each asset category, weighted by the target allocation of pension assets to that asset category. Changes 
in these assumptions can have a material impact on the amounts reported in the Corporation's financial 
statements. 

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instraments for both risk management and ttading 
activities. In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futures, forwards, options and swaps, individually 
or in combination to mitigate its exposure to fiuctuations in the prices of crade oil, natural gas, refined pettoleum 
products and electricity, as well as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. In ttading activities, 
the Corporation, principally through a consolidated partnership, trades energy-related commodities and 
derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, based on expectations of future market conditions. 

All derivative instraments are recorded at fair value in the Corporation's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
Corporation's policy for recognizing the changes in fan value of derivatives varies based on the designation of 
the derivative. The changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently 
in eamings. Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected future cash flows or forecasted ttansactions 
(cash flow hedges) or hedges of firm commitments (fair value hedges). The effective portion of changes in fair 
value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive 
income (loss). Amounts included in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are 
reclassified into eamings in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in eamings. The ineffective 
portion of changes in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is recorded currently in eamings. 
Changes in fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are recognized currently in eamings. The 
change in fan value of the related hedged conunitment is recorded as an adjustment to its carrying amount and 
recognized currently in eamings. 

Derivatives that are designated as either cash flow or fair value hedges are tested for effectiveness 
prospectively before they are executed and both prospectively and retrospectively on an on-going basis to 
determine whether they continue to qualify for hedge accounting. The prospective and retrospective effectiveness 
calculations are performed using either historical simulation or other statistical models, which utilize historical 
observable market data consisting of futures cmves and spot prices. 

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation's derivative instraments are recorded at fair value, with 
changes m fair value recognized in eamings or other comprehensive income each period as appropriate. The 
Corporation uses various valuation approaches in determining fair value, including the market and income 
approaches. The Corporation's fair value measurements also include non-performance risk and time value of 
money considerations. Counterparty credit is considered for receivable balances, and the Corporation's credit is 
considered for accraed liabilities. 

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value when required by 
generally accepted accounting principles. These fair value measurements are recorded in connection with 
business combinations, qualifying non-monetary exchanges, the initial recognition of asset retirement obligations 
and any impairment of long-lived assets, equity method investments or goodwill. 

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value measurements accounting standard 
which established a hierarchy for the inputs used to measine fair value based on the source of the inputs, which 
generally range from quoted prices for identical instraments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to estimates 
determined using related market data (Level 3). Measmements derived indirectly from observable inputs or from 
quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. 

When Level 1 inputs are available within a particular market, those inputs are selected for determination of 
fair value over Level 2 or 3 inputs in the same market. To value derivatives that are characterized as Level 2 and 
3, the Corporation uses observable inputs for similar instraments that are available from exchanges, pricing 
services or broker quotes. These observable inputs may be supplemented with other methods, including intemal 
exttapolation or interpolation, that result in the most representative prices for instraments with similar 
characteristics. Multiple inputs may be used to measure fair value, however, the level of fair value for each 
physical derivative and financial asset or liability is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair 
value hierarchy. 
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Details on the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values are as follows: 
Fair value measurements based on Level 1 inputs: Measurements that are most observable are 

based on quoted prices of identical instraments obtained from the principal markets in which they are ttaded. 
Closing prices are both readily available and representative of fair value. Market ttansactions occur with 
sufficient frequency and volume to assme liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation's exchange 
traded futures and options are considered Level 1. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measurements derived indirectly from 
observable inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. Measurements 
based on Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instraments that are priced on an exchange ttaded 
curve but have conttactual terms that are not identical to exchange ttaded contracts. The Corporation utilizes fair 
value measurements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measmements that are least observable are 
estimated from related market data determined from sources with little or no market activity for comparable 
conttacts or are positions with longer dmations. For example, in its energy marketing business, the Corporation sells 
natinal gas and electricity to customers and offsets the price exposure by pmchasing forward conttacts. The fair 
value of these sales and purchases may be based on specific prices at less liquid delivered locations, which are 
classified as Level 3. Fair values determined using discounted cash flows and other unobservable data are also 
classified as Level 3. 

Impairment of Equity Investees: The Corporation reviews equity method investments for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have 
occiured. The fair value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, 
where available, or other valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows. 

Environment, Health and Safety 
The Corporation's long term vision and values provide a foundation for how we do business and define our 

commitment to meeting the highest standards of corporate citizenship and creating a long lasting positive impact 
on the communities where we do business. Oin strategy is reflected in the Corporation's environment, health, 
safety and social responsibility (EHS & SR) policies and by a management system framework that helps protect 
the Corporation's workforce, customers and local conununities. The Corporation's management systems are 
intended to promote intemal consistency, adherence to policy objectives and continual improvement in EHS & 
SR performance. Improved performance may, in the short-term, increase the Corporation's operating costs and 
could also require increased capital expenditures to reduce potential risks to assets, reputation and license to 
operate. In addition to enhanced EHS & SR performance, improved productivity and operational efficiencies 
may be realized from investments in EHS & SR. The Corporation has programs in place to evaluate regulatory 
compliance, audit facilities, ttain employees, prevent and manage risks and emergencies and to generally meet 
corporate EHS & SR goals and objectives. 

Over the last several years, many refineries have entered into consent agreements to resolve the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) assertions that refining facilities were modified or expanded 
without complying with the New Source Review regulations that require permits and new emission conttols in 
certain circumstances and other regulations that impose emissions conttol requirements. In April 2012, the 
Corporation entered into a consent decree with the EPA to resolve these matters as they relate to its Port Reading 
refinery facility. Under the terms of the Consent Decree, Hess paid a penalty of $850,000 and agreed to 
implement a program to reduce emissions at the refinery. The emissions reduction program in the Consent 
Decree is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the financial condition, results of operations or cash 
flows of the Corporation. In January 2013, the Corporation aimoxmced its decision to cease refining operations in 
Febraary at its Port Reading facility. 

The Corporation recognizes that climate change is a global enviromnental concem. The Corporation 
assesses, monitors and takes measmes to reduce our carbon footprint at existing and planned operations. The 
Corporation is committed to complying with all Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions mandates and the responsible 
management of GHG emissions at its facilities. 

The Corporation will have continuing expenditures for environmental assessment and remediation. Sites 
where corrective action may be necessary include gasoline stations, terminals, onshore exploration and 
production facilities, refineries (including solid waste management units under permits issued pursuant to the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act) and, although not currently significant, "Superfund" sites where the 
Corporation has been named a potentially responsible party. 
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The Corporation accraes for environmental assessment and remediation expenses when the futme costs are 
probable and reasonably estimable. At year-end 2012, the Corporation's reserve for estimated remediation 
liabilities was approximately $55 million. The Corporation expects that existing reserves for environmental 
liabilities will adequately cover costs to assess and remediate known sites. The Corporation's remediation 
spending was $19 million in 2012, $19 million in 2011 and $13 million in 2010. Capital expenditures for 
facilities, primarily to comply with federal, state and local environmental standards, other than for the low sulfm 
requirements, were approximately $70 million in 2012, $95 million in 2011 and $85 million in 2010. 

Forward-looking Information 
Certain sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Business and Properties, Management's 

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures about Market Risk, include references to the Corporation's future results of operations and financial 
position, liquidity and capital resources, capital expenditines, asset sales, oil and gas production, tax rates, debt 
repayment, hedging, derivative, market risk and environmental disclosures, off-balance sheet arrangements and 
conttactual obligations and contingencies, which include forward-looking information. These sections typically 
include statements with words such as "anticipate", "estimate", "expect", "forecast", "guidance", "could", "may", 
"should", "would" or similar words, indicating that future outcomes are imcertain. Forward-looking disclosiu^es are 
based on the Corporation's current imderstanding and assessment of these activities and reasonable assumptions 
about the future. Actual results may differ from these disclosmes because of changes in market conditions, 
govemment actions and other factors. For more information regarduig the factors that may cause the Corporation's 
results to differ from these statements, see Item 1 A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations. 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

In the normal coinse of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the 
prices of crade oil, natural gas, refined pettoleum products and electticity, as well as to changes in interest rates 
and foreign currency values. In the disclosures that follow, risk management activities are referred to as energy 
marketing and corporate risk management activities. The Corporation also has trading operations, principally 
through a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership, that ttades energy-related commodities, securities 
and derivatives. These activities are also exposed to commodity risks primarily related to the prices of crade oil, 
natural gas, refined pettoleum products and electticity. The following describes how these risks are conttolled 
and managed. 

Controls: The Corporation maintains a conttol environment under the direction of its chief risk officer and 
through its corporate risk policy, which the Corporation's senior management has approved. Conttols include 
volumettic, term and value at risk limits. The chief risk officer must approve the ttading of new instraments or 
commodities. Risk limits are monitored and are reported on a daily basis to business units and senior 
management. The Corporation's risk management department also performs independent price verifications 
(IPV's) of sources of fair values, validations of valuation models and analyzes changes in fair value 
measurements on a daily, monthly and/or quarterly basis. These controls apply to all of the Corporation's risk 
management and ttading activities, including the consolidated trading partnership. The Corporation's tteasury 
department is responsible for administering and monitoring foreign exchange rate and interest rate hedging 
programs using similar controls and processes, where applicable. 

The Corporation uses value at risk to monitor and conttol commodity risk within its risk management and 
ttading activities. The value at risk model uses historical simulation and the results represent the potential loss in 
fair value over one day at a 95% confidence level. The model captures both first and second order sensitivities 
for options. Results may vary from time to time as sttategies change in trading activities or hedging levels change 
in risk management activities. 

Instruments: The Corporation primarily uses forward commodity conttacts, foreign exchange forward 
conttacts, futures, swaps, options and energy commodity based securities in its risk management and ttading 
activities. These contracts are generally widely ttaded instraments with standardized terms. The following 
describes these instraments and how the Corporation uses them: 

• Forward Commodity Contracts: The Corporation enters into conttacts for the forward purchase and sale 
of commodities. At settlement date, the notional value of the conttact is exchanged for physical delivery 
of the commodity. Forward contracts that are deemed normal purchase and sale conttacts are excluded 
from the quantitative market risk disclosures. 

37 



• Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts: The Corporation enters into forward conttacts primarily for the 
British Pound and the Thai Baht, which commit the Corporation to buy or sell a fixed amount of these 
currencies at a predetermined exchange rate on a future date. 

• Exchange Traded Contracts: The Corporation uses exchange ttaded conttacts, including futures, on a 
number of different underlying energy commodities. These contracts are settled daily with the relevant 
exchange and may be subject to exchange position limits. 

• Swaps: The Corporation uses financially settled swap conttacts with thurd parties as part of its risk 
management and ttading activities. Cash flows from swap contracts are determined based on underlying 
commodity prices or interest rates and are typically settled over the life of the contract. 

• Options: Options on various underlying energy commodities include exchange ttaded and third party 
contracts and have various exercise periods. As a seller of options, the Corporation receives a premium at 
the outset and bears the risk of unfavorable changes in the price of the commodity underlying the option. 
As a purchaser of options, the Corporation pays a premium at the outset and has the right to participate in 
the favorable price movements in the underlying commodities. 

• Energy Securities: Energy securities include energy-related equity or debt securities issued by a company 
or govemment or related derivatives on these seciuities. 

Risk Management Activities 

Energy marketing activities: In its energy marketing activities, the Corporation sells refined pettoleum 
products, natural gas and electricity principally to commercial and industrial businesses at fixed and floating 
prices for varying periods of time. Commodity conttacts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options together 
with physical assets, such as storage, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatility or lower costs related 
to sales conttacts with customers. 

Corporate risk management: Corporate risk management activities include ttansactions designed to 
reduce risk in the selling prices of crade oil, refined petroleum products or natural gas produced by the 
Corporation or to reduce exposure to foreign currency or interest rate movements. Generally, futures, swaps or 
option strategies may be used to reduce risk in the selling price of a portion of the Corporation's cmde oil or 
natural gas production. Forward contracts may also be used to purchase certain currencies in which the 
Corporation does business with the intent of reducing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. Interest rate 
swaps may also be used, generally to convert fixed-rate interest payments to floating. 

The Corporation has outstanding foreign exchange contracts used to reduce its exposure to fluctuating 
foreign exchange rates for various currencies, including the British Pound and the Thai Baht. At 
December 31, 2012, the Corporation had a receivable for foreign exchange conttacts maturing in 2013 with a fair 
value of $14 million. The change in fair value of the foreign exchange contracts from a 10% strengthening of the 
U.S. Dollar exchange rate is estimated to be a loss of approximately $125 million at December 31, 2012. 

The Corporation's outstanding long-term debt of $7,361 million, including ciurent maturities, has a fair 
value of $8,887 million at December 31, 2012. A 15% decrease in the rate of interest would increase the fair 
value of debt by approximately $200 milhon at December 31, 2012. 

Following is the value at risk for the Corporation's energy marketing and risk management commodity 
derivatives activities, excluding foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives described above: 

2012 2011 
(In millions) 

At December 31 $ 7 $ 94 
Average 49 30 
High 95 94 
Low 7 8 

The decrease in the value at risk for the Corporation's energy marketing and risk management commodity 
derivatives activities in 2012 primarily reflects the matming of Brent crade oil cash flow hedge positions as 
described in Note 20, Risk Management and Trading Activities in the notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
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Trading Activities 

Trading activities are conducted principally through a ttading partnership in which the Corporation has a 
50% voting interest. This consolidated entity intends to generate eamings through various sttategies primarily 
using energy commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes ttading positions for its own 
account. 

Following is the value at risk for the Corporation's ttading activities: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

At December 31 $ 4 $ 4 
Average 6 II 
High 7 16 
Low 4 4 

The information that follows represents 100% ofthe trading partnership and the Corporation's proprietary 
ttading accounts. Derivative trading transactions are marked-to-market and unrealized gains or losses are 
recognized currently in eamings. Gains or losses from sales of physical products are recorded at the time of sale. 
Net realized gains on trading activities amounted to $60 million in 2012 and $44 million in 2011. The following 
table provides an assessment of the factors affecting the changes in fair value of financial instraments and 
derivative commodity conttacts used in trading activities: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at January 1 $ (86) $ 94 
Change in fair value of conttacts outstanding at the begiiming of the year and 

still outstanding at the end of the year 17 (69) 
Reversal of fair value for conttacts closed during the year 70 9 
Fair value of conttacts entered into during the year and still outstanding (97) (120) 

Fair value of conttacts outstanding at December 31 $ (96) $ (86) 

The following table summarizes the sources of net asset (liability) fair values of financial instraments and 
derivative commodity conttacts by year of maturity used in the Corporation's ttading activities at December 31, 
2012: 

Total 

Somces of fair value 
Level 1 $ 8 
Level 2 (141) 
Level 3 37 

Total $ (96) 

2013 

$ 38 
(80) 
10 

$ (32) 

2014 2015 

(In millions) 

$ 4 $ (21) 
(30) (33) 
— 30 

$ (26) $ (24) 

2016 and 
Beyond 

$ (13) 
2 

(3) 

$ (14) 

The following table summarizes the receivables net of cash margin and letters of credit relating to the 
Corporation's trading activities and the credit ratings of counterparties at December 31: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Investment grade determined by outside sources $ 294 $ 389 
Investment grade determined intemally* 59 304 
Less than investment grade 39 89 

Fair value of net receivables outstanding at December 31 $ 392 $ 782 

* Based on information provided by counterparties and other available sources. 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE 

Page 
Number 

Management's Report on Intemal Conttol over Financial Reporting 41 
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fum 42 
Consohdated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012 and 2011 44 
Statement of Consolidated Income for each ofthe three years in the period ended December 31,2012 . . . 45 
Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2012 46 
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2012 . . . 47 
Statement of Consolidated Equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 . . . 48 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 49 
Supplementary Oil and Gas Data 80 
Quarterly Financial Data 89 
Schedule* II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 96 
Financial Statements of HOVENSA L.L.C. as of December 31, 2012 98 

* Schedules other than Schedule II have been omitted because ofthe absence ofthe conditions under which they are required or because the 
required information is presented in the financial statements or the notes thereto. 
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal conttol over financial 
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the 
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we 
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our intemal conttol over financial reporting, as required by 
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, based on the framework in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation, 
management concluded that our intemal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012. 

The Corporation's independent registered public accounting firm, Emst & Young LLP, has audited the 
effectiveness of the Corporation's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, as stated in 
their report, which is included herein. 

By By 

John P. Rielly 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Febraary 28, 2013 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Hess Corporation 

We have audited Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries' (the "Corporation") intemal conttol over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Intemal Conttol — Integrated 
Framework issued by the Cormnittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO 
criteria). The Corporation's management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal conttol over financial 
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal conttol over financial reporting included in the 
accompanying Management's Report on Intemal Conttol over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the Corporation's intemal conttol over financial reporting based on oin audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether effective intemal conttol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our 
audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal conttol over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal conttol based 
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedmes as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal conttol over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accmately and fairly refiect the ttansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assmance that ttansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
conttols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedmes may deteriorate. 

In om opinion, Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective 
intemal conttol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of consolidated income, comprehensive income, cash 
flows and equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 of Hess Corporation and 
consolidated subsidiaries, and om report dated Febraary 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

^ A / y ^ i - 'UoiA/y^Ll? i- "UoiAy^^i 

Febmary 28, 2013 
New York, New York 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Hess Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated 
subsidiaries (the "Corporation") as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of consolidated 
income, comprehensive income, cash flows and equity for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These 
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility ofthe Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that om audits provide a reasonable basis for om 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 
2011, and the consohdated results of their operations and then cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our 
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the information set forth therein. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), Hess Corporation's intemal conttol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on 
criteria established in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Conunittee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated Febraary 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified 
opinion thereon. 

|o /V>«^ i- 'UouML^LL? i - ^ ^ ^ * < ^ > ^ ^ 

Febmary 28, 2013 
New York, New York 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

December 31, 
2012 2011 

(In millions, 
except share amounts) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Trade 
Other 

Inventories 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Total — at cost 

Less: Reserves for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment 

Property, plant and equipment — net 

GOODWILL 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 
OTHER ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Taxes payable 
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 
OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS 

Total liabilities 

EQUITY 
Hess Corporation Stockholders' Equity 

Common stock, par value $1.00 
Authorized — 600,000,000 shares 
Issued: 2012 — 341,527,617 shares; 2011 — 339,975,610 shares 

Capital in excess of par value 
Retained eamings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Total Hess Corporation stockholders' equity 

Noncontrolling interests 

Total equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 

642 

21,090 
113 

21,203 

351 

4,057 
281 

1,259 
2,148 

8,387 

443 

45,553 
16,746 

28,807 

2,208 
3,126 
470 

$ 43,441 $ 

$ 2,809 $ 
3,826 
960 
787 

8,382 

7,324 
2,662 
2,212 
1,658 

22,238 

4,761 
250 

1,423 
1,554 

8,339 

384 

39,710 
14,998 

24,712 

2,305 
2,941 
455 

39,136 

3,712 
3,524 
812 
52 

8,100 

6,005 
2,843 
1,844 
1,752 

20,544 

342 
3,524 
17,717 
(493) 

340 
3,417 
15,826 
(1,067) 

18,516 
76 

18,592 

43,441 $ 39,136 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas 
exploration and production activities. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME 

Years Ended December 31, 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions, 
except per share amounts) 

REVENUES AND NON-OPERATING INCOME 
Sales (excluding excise taxes) and other operating revenues $ 37,691 $ 38,466 $ 33,862 
Loss from equity mvestment in HOVENSA L.L.C — (1,073) (522) 
Gains on asset sales 584 446 1,208 
Other, net 98 32 65 

Total revenues and non-operating income 38,373 37,871 34,613 

COSTS AND EXPENSES 
Cost of products sold (excluding items shown separately below) 24,917 26,774 23,407 
Production expenses 2,752 2,352 1,924 
Marketing expenses 1,057 1,069 1,021 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment 1,070 1,195 865 
Other operating expenses 166 171 213 
General and administtative expenses 707 702 662 
Interest expense 419 383 361 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,949 2,406 2,317 
Asset impairments 598 358 532 

Total costs and expenses 34,635 35,410 31,302 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 3,738 2,461 3,311 
Provision for income taxes 1,675 785 1,173 

NET INCOME $ 2,063 $ 1,676 $ 2,138 
Less: Net income (loss) atttibutable to nonconttolling interests 38 (27) 13 

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO HESS CORPORATION $ 2,025 $ 1,703 $ 2,125 

BASIC NET INCOME PER SHARE $ 5.98 $ 5.05 $ 6.52 
DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE $ 5.95 $ 5.01 $ 6.47 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 

COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING (DILUTED) 340.3 339.9 328.3 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSFVE INCOME 

Years Ended December 31, 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

NET INCOME $ 2,063 $ 1,676 $ 2,138 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS): 
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 

Effect of hedge losses reclassified to income 676 690 1,060 
Income taxes on effect of hedge losses reclassified to income (252) (258) (404) 

Net effect of hedge losses reclassified to income 424 432 656 

Change in fair value of cash flow hedges (156) 4 (326) 

Income taxes on change in fair value of cash flow hedges 60 (2) 128 

Net change in fan value of cash flow hedges (96) 2 (198) 

Change in cash flow hedges, after-tax 328 434 458 

Pension and other postretirement plans 
Change in plan habilities (15) (391) 27 

Income taxes on change in plan liabilities 7 145 1 

Change in plan liabilities, after-tax (8) (246) 28 

Foreign currency translation adjustment and other 256 (94) 31 

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 576 94 517 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,639 1,770 2,655 
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) atttibutable to nonconttolling interests 40 (25) 14 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

HESS CORPORATION $ 2,599 $ 1,795 $ 2,641 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 
2012 2011 

(In millions) 
2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income $ 2,063 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,949 
Loss from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C — 
Asset impairments 598 
Exploratory dry hole costs 377 
Lease impairment 223 
Stock compensation expense 99 
Gains on asset sales (584) 
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (459) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 634 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 168 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accraed liabilities (30) 
Increase (decrease) in taxes payable 28 
Changes in other assets and habilities (406) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,660 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capital expenditures (7,795) 
Proceeds from asset sales 843 
Other, net (99) 

Net cash used in investing activities (7,051) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net borrowings of debt with matmities of 90 days or less 1,648 
Debt with maturities of greater than 90 days 

Borrowings 630 
Repayments (433) 

Cash dividends paid (171) 
Nonconttolling interests, net (3) 
Employee stock options exercised, including income tax benefits 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .. 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 1,676 $ 2,138 

2,406 
1,073 
358 
438 
301 
104 
(446) 
(623) 

(243) 
4 

544 
46 

(654) 

4,984 

(7,006) 
490 
(50) 

(6,566) 

2,317 
522 
532 
237 
266 
112 

(1,208) 
(495) 

(760) 
(16) 

1,141 
95 

(351) 

4,530 

(5,492) 
183 
50 

(5,259) 

100 — 

422 1,278 
(100) (180) 
(136) (131) 

(49) (46) 
11 

1,682 

291 
351 

$ 642 

88 

325 

(1,257) 
1,608 

$ 351 

54 

975 

246 
1,362 

$ 1,608 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED EQUITY 

Conunon 
Stock 

Balance at January 1, 2010 $327 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 

(loss) 

Comprehensive income (loss) . . 
Conunon stock issued for 

acquisition 
Activity related to restticted 

common stock awards, net . . . . 
Employee stock options, 

including income tax benefits . . 
Cash dividends declared 
Noncontrolling interests, net 

Balance at December 31, 2010 . . . 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 

(loss) 

Comprehensive income (loss) . . 
Activity related to restticted 

common stock awards, net . . . . 
Employee stock options, 

including income tax benefits . . 
Cash dividends declared 
Noncontrolling interests, net 

Balance at December 31, 2011 . . . 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 

(loss) 

Comprehensive income (loss) . . 
Activity related to restticted 

common stock awards, net . . . . 
Employee stock options, 

including income tax benefits . . 
Performance share units 
Cash dividends declared 
Nonconttolling interests, net 

Balance at December 31, 2012 . . . 

Acciunulated 
Capital in Other Total Hess 
Excess of Retained Comprehensive Stockholders' Noncontrolling Total 

Par Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity 

$2,481 $12,251 

2,125 

(In millions) 

$(1,675) $13,384 

2,125 

516 516 

$144 $13,528 

13 2,138 

517 

9 

1 

1 
— 
— 

338 

1 

1 
— 
— 

340 

2 

— 
— 
— 

$342 

639 

59 

105 
— 
(28) 

3,256 

52 

138 
— 
(29) 

3,417 

55 

44 
8 
— 
— 

$3,524 i 

— 

— 

(132) 
10 

14,254 

1,703 

— 

(136) 
5 

15,826 

2,025 

— 

— 
(136) 

2 

J17,717 

— 

— 

— 
— 

(1,159) 

92 

— 

— 
— 

(1,067) 

574 

— 

— 
— 
— 

$ (493) 

2,641 

648 

60 

106 
(132) 
(18) 

16,689 

1,703 

92 

1,795 

53 

139 
(136) 
(24) 

18,516 

2,025 

574 

2,599 

57 

44 
8 

(136) 
2 

$21,090 

14 

— 

— 

— 
(38) 

120 

(27) 

2 

(25) 

— 

— 
(19) 

76 

38 

2 

40 

— 

— 
— 
(3) 

$113$ 

2,655 

648 

60 

106 
(132) 
(56) 

16,809 

1,676 

94 

1,770 

53 

139 
(136) 
(43) 

18,592 

2,063 

576 

2,639 

57 

44 
8 

(136) 

(1) 

121,203 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCL^L STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Nature of Business: Hess Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Corporation or Hess) operate in two 

segments. Exploration and Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment explores 
for, develops, produces, purchases, ttansports and sells crade oil and natmal gas. The M&R segment pmchases, 
markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electticity. The Corporation also operates 
terminals and retail gasoline stations, most of which include convenience stores, that are located on the East 
Coast of the United States. Through Febraary 2013, the Corporation also manufactmed refined petroleum 
products. In January 2013, the Corporation announced its decision to cease refining operations at its Port Reading 
facility in Febraary and pmsue the sale of its terminal network. In January 2012, HOVENSA L.L.C. 
(HOVENSA), a 50% owned joint ventme in the U.S. Virgin Islands, shut down its refinery. HOVENSA plans to 
operate the complex as an oil storage terminal while the Corporation and its joint venture partner pursue a sale of 
HOVENSA. 

The Corporation has made significant progress in its ttansformation from an integrated oil and gas company 
to a predominantly E&P company following the shutdown of the HOVENSA joint venture refinery and its 
decision to cease refining operations at its Port Reading facility and pursue the sale of its terminal network. The 
Corporation has also shifted its E&P growth sttategy from one based primarily on high impact exploration to one 
based on a combination of the development of unconventional resomces, exploitation of existing discoveries and 
a smaller, more focused exploratory program. 

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Hess Corporation and entities in which the Corporation owns more than a 50% voting interest or 
entities that the Corporation conttols. The Corporation consolidates the trading partnership in which it owns a 
50% voting interest and over which it exercises conttol. The Corporation's undivided interests in unincorporated 
oil and gas exploration and production ventures are proportionately consolidated. Investments in affiliated 
companies, 20% to 50% owned and where the Corporation has the ability to influence the operating or financial 
decisions of the affiliate, are accounted for using the equity method. 

Certain information in the financial statements and notes has been reclassified to conform to the current 
period presentation. In the preparation of these financial statements, the Corporation has evaluated subsequent 
events through the date of issuance. 

Estimates and Assumptions: In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP), management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and revenues and expenses in the Statement of 
Consolidated Income. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Among the estimates made by 
management are oil and gas reserves, asset valuations, depreciable lives, pension liabilities, legal and 
environmental obligations, asset retirement obligations and income taxes. 

Revenue Recognition: The Corporation recognizes revenues from the sale of crade oil, natural gas, 
refined petroleum products and other merchandise when title passes to the customer. Sales are reported net of 
excise and similar taxes in the Statement of Consolidated Income. The Corporation recognizes revenues from the 
production of natural gas properties based on sales to customers. Differences between E&P natmal gas volumes 
sold and the Corporation's share of natural gas production are not material. Revenues from natural gas and 
electricity sales by the Corporation's marketing operations are recognized based on meter readings and estimated 
deliveries to customers since the last meter reading. 

In its E&P activities, the Corporation engages in crade oil purchase and sale ttansactions with the same 
counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another for the primary pmpose of changing location 
or quality. Similarly, in its marketing activities, the Corporation enters into refined petroleum product purchase 
and sale ttansactions with the same counterparty. These arrangements are reported net in Sales and other 
operating revenues in the Statement of Consolidated Income. 

Exploration and Development Costs: E&P activities are accounted for using the successful efforts 
method. Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage, including lease bonuses, brokers' 
fees and other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration expenses and exploratory dry hole 
costs are expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive wells, including development dry 
holes, and related production facilities are capitalized. In production operations, costs of injected CO2 for tertiary 
recovery are expensed as incurred. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves are capitalized pending determination of 
whether proved reserves have been found. Exploratory drilling costs remain capitalized after drilling is 
completed if (1) the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and 
(2) sufficient progress is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the 
project. If either of those criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational 
viability of a project, the capitalized well costs are charged to expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in 
assessing reserves and the economic and operating viability of a project include commitment of project 
personnel, active negotiations for sales conttacts with customers, negotiations with govemments, operators and 
conttactors, firm plans for additional drilling and other factors. 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization: The Corporation records depletion expense for acquisition costs 
of proved properties using the units of production method over proved oil and gas reserves. Depreciation and 
depletion expense for oil and gas production equipment and wells is calculated using the units of production method 
over proved developed oil and gas reserves. Provisions for impairment of undeveloped oil and gas leases are based 
on periodic evaluations and other factors. Depreciation of all other plant and equipment is determined on the 
sttaight-line method based on estimated useful lives. Retail gas stations and equipment related to a leased property, 
are depreciated over the estimated useful lives not to exceed the remaining lease period. The Corporation records 
the cost of acquired customers in its energy marketing activities as intangible assets and amortizes these costs on the 
sttaight-line method over the expected renewal period based on historical experience. 

Capitalized Interest: Interest from extemal borrowings is capitalized on material projects using the 
weighted average cost of outstanding borrowings until the project is substantially complete and ready for its 
intended use, which for oil and gas assets is at first production from the field. Capitalized interest is depreciated 
over the useful lives of the assets in the same manner as the depreciation of the underlying assets. 

Impairment of Long-lived Assets: The Corporation reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recovered. If the carrying 
amounts are not expected to be recovered by undiscounted futme cash flows, the assets are impaired and an 
impahment loss is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated fan value of the assets 
generally determined by discounting anticipated future net cash flows, an income valuation approach, or by a 
market-based valuation approach, which are Level 3 fair value measmements. In the case of oil and gas fields, 
the net present value of future cash flows is based on management's best estimate of futme prices, which is 
determined with reference to recent historical prices and published forward prices, applied to projected 
production volumes and discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. The projected production volumes represent reserves, 
including probable reserves, expected to be produced based on a stipulated amount of capital expenditmes. The 
production volumes, prices and timing of production are consistent with intemal projections and other extemally 
reported information. Oil and gas prices used for determining asset impairments will generally differ from the 
average prices used in the standardized measure of discounted futme net cash flows. 

Impairment of Equity Investees: The Corporation reviews equity method investments for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have 
occmred. The fair value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, 
where available, or other valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows. 

Impairment of Goodwill: Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or when events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not be recoverable. This 
impairment test is calculated at the reporting unit level, which for the Corporation's goodwill is the E&P 
operating segment. The Corporation identifies potential impairments by comparing the fair value of the reporting 
unit to its book value, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount, 
goodwill is not impaired. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, the Corporation calculates the possible 
impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount. If the implied fair 
value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount, an impairment would be recorded. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily 
convertible into cash and have matmities of three months or less when acquired. 

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For refined pettoleum product 
inventories valued at cost, the Corporation uses principally the last-in, first-out (LIFO) inventory method. For the 
remaining inventories, cost is generally determined using average actual costs. 
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Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are determined using the liability method. The Corporation 
regularly assesses the realizability of deferred tax assets, based on estimates of futme taxable income, the 
availability of tax planning sttategies, the existence of appreciated assets, the available carryforward periods for 
net operating losses and other factors. If it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will 
not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be 
realized. In addition, the Corporation recognizes the financial statement effect of a tax position only when 
management believes that it is more likely than not, that based on the technical merits, the position will be 
sustained upon examination. Additionally, the Corporation has income taxes which have been deferred on 
intercompany ttansactions eliminated in consolidation related to ttansfers of property, plant and equipment 
remaining within the consolidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on intercompany 
ttansactions will occm ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrying value of these 
assets. The Corporation does not provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of undisttibuted eamings 
of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporation classifies interest 
and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as income tax expense. 

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporation has material legal obligations to remove and dismantle long-
lived assets and to restore land or seabed at certain exploration and production locations. The Corporation 
recognizes a liability for the fair value of legally required asset retirement obligations associated with long-lived 
assets in the period in which the retirement obligations are incurred. In addition, the fair value of any legally 
required conditional asset retirement obligations is recorded if the liability can be reasonably estimated. The 
Corporation capitahzes the associated asset retirement costs as part ofthe carrying amount ofthe long-lived assets. 

Retirement Plans: The Corporation recognizes the funded status of defined benefit posttetirement plans in 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan 
assets and the projected benefit obligation. The Corporation recognizes the net changes in the funded status of 
these plans in the year in which such changes occur. Prior service costs and actuarial gains and losses in excess of 
10% of the greater of the benefit obhgation or the market value of assets are amortized over the average 
remaining service period of active employees. 

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instraments for both risk management and ttading 
activities. In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futmes, forwards, options and swaps, individually 
or in combination, to mitigate its exposme to fiuctuations in prices of crade oil, natural gas, refined pettoleum 
products and electricity, as well as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. In ttading activities, 
the Corporation, principally through a consolidated partnership, ttades energy-related conunodities and 
derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps based on expectations of future market conditions. 

All derivative instraments are recorded at fair value in the Corporation's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
Corporation's policy for recognizing the changes in fair value of derivatives varies based on the designation of 
the derivative. The changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently 
in eamings. Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected futme cash flows or forecasted ttansactions 
(cash flow hedges) or hedges of fhm conunitments (fair value hedges). The effective portion of changes in fair 
value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive 
income (loss) while the ineffective portion of the changes in fair value is recorded currently in eamings. Amounts 
included in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are reclassified into eamings 
in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in eamings. Changes in fair value of derivatives designated 
as fair value hedges are recognized currently in eamings. The change in fair value of the related hedged 
commitment is recorded as an adjustment to its carrying amount and recognized currently in eamings. 

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation's derivative instraments are recorded at fair value, with 
changes in fair value recognized in eamings or other comprehensive income each period as appropriate. The 
Corporation uses various valuation approaches in determining fair value, including the market and income 
approaches. The Corporation's fair value measmements also include non-performance risk and time value of 
money considerations. Counterparty credit is considered for receivable balances, and the Corporation's credit is 
considered for accraed liabilities. 

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value when required by 
GAAP. These fair value measurements are recorded in connection with business combinations, qualifying 
nonmonetary exchanges, the initial recognition of asset retirement obligations and any impairment of long-lived 
assets, equity method investments or goodwill. 

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value measurements accounting standard 
which established a hierarchy for the inputs used to measure fair value based on the source of the inputs, which 
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generally range from quoted prices for identical instraments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to estimates 
determined using related market data (Level 3). Measurements derived indirectly from observable inputs or from 
quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. 

When Level 1 inputs are available within a particular market, those inputs are selected for determination of fan-
value over Level 2 or 3 inputs in the same market. To value derivatives that are characterized as Level 2 and 3, the 
Corporation uses observable inputs for similar instraments that are available from exchanges, pricing services or 
broker quotes. These observable inputs may be supplemented with other methods, including intemal exttapolation 
or interpolation, that result in the most representative prices for instraments with similar characteristics. Multiple 
inputs may be used to measme fair value, however, the level of fair value for each physical derivative and financial 
asset or liability is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair value hierarchy. 

Details on the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values are as follows: 
Fair value measurements based on Level 1 inputs: Measurements that are most observable are 

based on quoted prices of identical instraments obtained from the principal markets in which they are ttaded. 
Closing prices are both readily available and representative of fair value. Market ttansactions occm with 
sufficient frequency and volume to assme liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation's exchange 
ttaded futures and options are considered Level 1. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measmements derived indirectly from 
observable inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. Measurements 
based on Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instraments that are priced on an exchange ttaded 
curve, but have conttactual terms that are not identical to exchange ttaded conttacts. The Corporation utilizes fan-
value measmements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measmements that are least observable are 
estimated from related market data, determined from somces with little or no market activity for comparable 
conttacts or are positions with longer durations. For example, in its energy marketing business, the Corporation 
enters into conttacts to sell natural gas and electticity to customers and offsets the price exposme by purchasing 
forward conttacts. The fan value of these sales and pmchases may be based on specific prices at less liquid 
delivered locations, which are classified as Level 3. There may be offsets to these positions that are priced based 
on more liquid markets, which are, therefore, classified as Level 1 or Level 2. Fair values determined using 
discounted cash flows and other unobservable data are also classified as Level 3. 

Share-based Compensation: The fair value of all share-based compensation is recognized as expense on a 
sttaight-line basis over the full vesting period ofthe awards. 

Foreign Currency Translation: The U.S. Dollar is the functional currency (primary currency in which 
business is conducted) for most foreign operations. Adjustments resulting from ttanslating monetary assets and 
liabilities that are denominated in a non-functional currency into the functional currency are recorded in Other, 
net in the Statement of Consolidated Income. For operations that do not use the U.S. Dollar as the functional 
cmrency, adjustments resulting from ttanslating foreign cmrency assets and liabilities into U.S. Dollars are 
recorded in a separate component of equity titled Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 

Maintenance and Repairs: Maintenance and repans are expensed as incurred, including costs of refinery 
turnarounds. Capital improvements are recorded as additions in Property, plant and equipment. 

Environmental Expenditures: The Corporation accmes and expenses environmental costs to remediate 
existing conditions related to past operations when the futme costs are probable and reasonably estimable. The 
Corporation capitalizes environmental expenditures that increase the life or efficiency of property or reduce or 
prevent futme adverse impacts to the environment. 

Changes in Accounting Policies: Effective January 1, 2012, the Corporation adopted the provisions of 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2011-05, Comprehensive 
Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which requnes comprehensive income to be 
presented either at the end of the income statement or as a separate statement immediately following the income 
statement. The Corporation elected to adopt the separate statement method. 
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Effective January 1, 2012, the Corporation adopted FASB ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 
820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measmement and Disclosme Requirements in U.S. GAAP 
and IFRS. For the Corporation, this standard requires additional disclosures related to fair value measurements, 
which are included in Note 20, Risk Management and Trading Activities. 

2. Dispositions 
2012: In October 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Bittem Field (Hess 28%) 

in the United Kingdom North Sea and the associated Triton floating production, storage and offloading vessel for 
cash proceeds of $187 million. The ttansaction resulted in an after-tax gain of $172 million, after deducting the 
net book value of assets including allocated goodwill of $12 million. 

In September 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Schiehallion Field (Hess 16%) 
in the United Kingdom North Sea, its share of the associated floating production, storage and offloading vessel, 
and the West of Shetland pipeline system for cash proceeds of $524 million. The ttansaction resulted in a pre-tax 
gain of $376 million ($349 million after income taxes), after deducting the net book value of assets including 
allocated goodwill of $27 million. 

In January 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Snohvit Field (Snohvit) (Hess 3%), a 
hquefied natmal gas project, offshore Norway, for cash proceeds of $132 milhon. The ttansaction resulted in an after­
tax gain of $36 million, after deducting the net book value of assets including allocated goodwill of $14 milhon. 

See also Note 6, Property, Plant and Equipment in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a 
description ofthe assets held for sale at December 31, 2012. 

2011: In Febraary 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in certain natural gas 
producing assets in the United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $359 million. These disposals resulted in 
pre-tax gains totaling $343 million ($310 million after income taxes). The total combined net book value ofthe 
assets prior to the sale was $16 million, including allocated goodwill of $14 million. 

In August 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Snorre Field (Hess 1%), offshore 
Norway and the Cook Field (Hess 28%) in the United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $131 million. 
These disposals resulted in after-tax gains totaling $103 million. The total combined net book value of the 
disposed assets prior to the sale was $28 million, including allocated goodwill of $11 million. 

2010: In January 2010, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural gas 
development project in Indonesia (Hess 25%) for cash proceeds of $183 million. The ttansaction resulted in an 
after-tax gain of $58 million, after deducting the net book value of assets including goodwill of $7 million. 

3. Acquisitions 
20II: In the third quarter of 2011, the Corporation entered into agreements to acquire approximately 

85,000 net acres in the Utica Shale play in Ohio for approximately $750 million, principally through the 
acquisition of Marquette Exploration, LLC (Marquette). This acquisition sttengthened the Corporation's 
portfolio of unconventional assets. The acquisition of Marquette was accounted for as a business combination 
and the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were recorded at fair value. The fair value measmements of 
the oil and gas assets were based, in part, on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represent a 
Level 3 measmement. The majority of the purchase price was assigned to unproved properties and the remainder 
to producing wells and working capital. 

In October 2011, the Corporation completed the acquisition of a 50% imdivided interest in CONSOL Energy 
Inc.'s (CONSOL) approximately 200,000 acres, in the Utica Shale play in Ohio, for $59 million in cash at closing 
and the agreement to fund 50% of CONSOL's share of the drilling costs up to $534 million within a 5-year period. 
This ttansaction was accoimted for as an asset acquisition. On January 31, 2013, CONSOL aimotmced that there are 
chain of title issues with respect to approximately 36,000 acres, most of which likely carmot be cmed, and that the 
value ofthe Corporation's carry obligation associated with these acres will reduce by approximately $146 million. 
The reduction in carry and the vahdation of title on other acreage is being separately analyzed by the Corporation 
and will not be finally determined until the title verification process is completed. 
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2010: In December, the Corporation acquired approximately 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale 
play (Bakken) in North Dakota from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 milhon in cash. In December, the Corporation 
also completed the acquisition of American Oil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas) for approximately 
$675 million through the issuance of approximately 8.6 million shares of the Corporation's common stock, 
which increased the Corporation's acreage position in the Bakken by approximately 85,000 net acres. The 
properties acquired were located near the Corporation's existing acreage. These acquisitions sttengthened the 
Corporation's acreage position in the Bakken, leveraged existing capabilities and infrastracture and are expected 
to conttibute to future reserve and production growth. Both of these transactions were accounted for as business 
combinations and the majority of the fair value of the assets acquhed was assigned to unproved properties. The 
total goodwill recorded on these ttansactions was $332 million after final post-closing adjustments. 

In September, the Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the 
United Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields offshore 
Norway. This non-monetary exchange was accounted for as a business combination. The ttansaction resulted in a 
pre-tax gain of $1,150 million ($1,072 million after income taxes). The total combined carrying amount of the 
disposed assets prior to the exchange was $702 million, including goodwill of $65 million. The Corporation also 
acquired, from a different third party, additional interests of 8% and 13% in the Valhall and Hod fields, 
respectively, for $507 million in cash. This acquisition was accounted for as a business combination. As a result 
of both of these ttansactions, the Corporation's total interests in the Valhall and Hod fields are 64% and 63%, 
respectively. The primary reason for these ttansactions was to acquire long-lived crade oil reserves and futme 
production growth. 

For all the 2010 acquisitions and the exchange described above, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
were recorded at fair value. The estimated fair value for property, plant and equipment acquired in these 
ttansactions was based primarily on an income approach (Level 3 fair value measmement). 

4. Inventories 
Inventories at December 31 were as follows: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Crade oil and other charge stocks $ 493 $ 451 
Refined pettoleum products and natural gas 1,362 1,762 
Less: LIFO adjustment (1,123) (1,276) 

732 937 
Merchandise, materials and supplies 527 486 

Total inventories $ 1,259 $ 1,423 

The percentage of LIFO inventory to total crade oil, refined pettoleum products and natural gas inventories 
was 71% and 72% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Dming 2012 the Corporation reduced LIFO 
inventories, which are carried at lower costs than current inventory costs. The effect of the LIFO inventory 
liquidations was to decrease Cost of products sold by approximately $165 million in 2012 ($104 million after 
income taxes). 

5. HOVENSA L.L.C. Joint Venture 
The Corporation has a 50% interest in HOVENSA, a joint ventme with a subsidiary of Pettoleos de 

Venezuela, S.A. (PDVSA), which owns a refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Vngin Islands. In January 2012, HOVENSA 
shut down its refinery as a result of continued substantial operating losses due to global economic conditions and 
competitive disadvantages versus other refiners, despite efforts to improve operating performance by reducing 
refining capacity to 350,000 from 500,000 battels per day in the first half of 2011. During 2012 and continuing 
into 2013, HOVENSA and the Govemment of the Virgin Islands engaged in discussions pertaining to 
HOVENSA's plan to ran the facility as an oil storage terminal while the Corporation and its joint ventme partner 
pmsue a sale of HOVENSA. 
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As a result of continued substantial operating losses and unsuccessful efforts to improve operating 
performance by reducing refining capacity, HOVENSA prepared an impairment analysis as of December 31, 
2011, which concluded that undiscounted futme cash flows would not recover the carrying value of its long-lived 
assets, and recorded an impairment charge and other charges related to the decision to shut down the refinery. 
For 2011, the Corporation recorded a total of $1,073 million of losses from its equity investment in HOVENSA. 
These pre-tax losses included $875 million ($525 million after income taxes) due to the impairment recorded by 
HOVENSA and other charges associated with its decision to shut down the refinery. The Corporation's share of 
the impairment related losses recorded by HOVENSA represented an amount equivalent to the Corporation's 
financial support to HOVENSA at December 31, 2011, its planned future funding commitments for costs related 
to the refinery shutdown, and a charge of $135 million for the write-off of related assets held by the subsidiary 
which owns the Corporation's investment in HOVENSA. A deferred income tax benefit of $350 million, 
consisting primarily of U.S. income taxes, was recorded on the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's impairment 
and refinery shutdown related charges. At December 31, 2011-, the Corporation had a liability of $487 million for 
its planned funding commitments, which was fully funded in 2012. 

In December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $300 million before income taxes 
($289 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of its equity investment in HOVENSA to its fair 
value. The investment had been adversely affected by consecutive annual operating losses and a fourth quarter 
2010 debt rating downgrade. The Corporation performed an impairment analysis and concluded that its 
investment had experienced an other than temporary decline in value. The fair value was determined based on an 
income approach using estimated refined pettoleum product selling prices and volumes, related costs of product 
sold, capital and operating expenditmes and a market based discount rate (a Level 3 fair value measurement). 

The Corporation's investment in HOVENSA is accounted for using the equity method. In accordance with 
Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X, the Corporation has filed financial statements for HOVENSA in this report on 
Form 10-K. 

6. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment at December 31 were as follows: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 
Exploration and Production 

Unproved properties $ 3,558 $ 4,064 
Proved properties 4,072 3,975 
Wells, equipment and related facilities 35,385 29,239 

43,015 37,278 
Marketing, Refining and Corporate 2,538 2,432 

Total — at cost 45,553 39,710 
Less: Reserves for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment . . . 16,746 14,998 

Property, plant and equipment — net $28,807 $24,712 

Assets Held for Sale: In September 2012, the Corporation reached an agreement to sell its assets in 
Azerbaijan consisting of its interests in the Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli (ACG) fields and the associated Baku-Tbilisi-
Ceyhan (BTC) pipeline for approximately $1 billion before normal post-closing adjustments. This ttansaction is 
subject to various govemment and regulatory approvals. In October 2012, the Corporation also announced that it 
had reached an agreement to sell its interests in the Beryl fields in the United Kingdom North Sea. The sale was 
completed in January 2013 for cash proceeds of approximately $440 million, see Note 21, Subsequent Events in 
the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2012, long-term assets totaling 
$1,092 million, primarily comprising the net property, plant and equipment balances and allocated goodwill of 
$100 million have been classified as held for sale and reported in Other cmrent assets. In addition, related asset 
retirement obligations and deferred income taxes totaling $539 million were reported in Accraed liabilities. At 
December 31, 2011, long-term assets totaling $764 million, including goodwill of $62 million and liabilities 
totaling $556 million were reported as held for sale. Properties classified as held for sale are not depreciated but 
are subject to impairment testing. 
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Capitalized Exploratory Wells Costs: The following table discloses the amount of capitalized exploratory 
well costs pending determination of proved reserves at December 31, and the changes therein dming the 
respective years: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Beginning balance at January 1 $2,022 $1,783 $1,437 
Additions to capitalized exploratory well costs pending the 

determination of proved reserves 407 512 675 
Reclassifications to wells, facilities and equipment based on the 

determination of proved reserves (41) (171) (87) 
Capitalized exploratory well costs charged to expense (129) (90) (110) 
Dispositions — (12) (132) 

Ending balance at December 31 $2,259 $2,022 $1,783 

Number of wells at end of year 68 59 77 

The preceding table excludes exploratory dry hole costs of $248 million, $348 million and $127 million in 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which were incurred and subsequently expensed in the same year. In 2012, 
capitalized well costs reclassified based on the determination of proved reserves primarily related to projects in 
Indonesia, Russia and the Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand. 

At December 31, 2012, exploratory drilling costs capitalized in excess of one year past completion of 
drilling were incurred as follows (in millions): 

2011 $ 404 
2010 357 
2009 426 
2008 392 
2007 and prior 228 

$1,807 

The capitahzed well costs in excess of one year relate to 10 projects. Approximately 36% relates to Block 
WA-390-P, offshore Westem Austtalia, where development planning and commercial activities, including 
negotiations with potential liquefaction partners, are ongoing. Successful negotiation with a third party 
liquefaction partner is necessary before the Corporation can negotiate a gas sales agreement and sanction 
development of the project. Approximately 36% of the capitahzed well costs in excess of one year relates to the 
Corporation's Pony discovery on Block 468 in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. In the third quarter of 2012, the 
Corporation signed an exchange agreement with partners ofthe adjacent Green Canyon Block 512, which contains 
the Knotty Head discovery. Under this agreement covering Blocks 468 and 512, Hess was appointed operator and 
has a 20% working interest in the blocks, now collectively referred to as Stampede. Field development planning 
for Stampede is progressing and the project is targeted for sanction in 2014. Approximately 14% relates to Area 
54, offshore Libya, where force majeure was withdrawn in March 2012 and the Corporation is pursuing 
commercial options. Approximately 7% relates to offshore Ghana where the Corporation completed drilling its 
seventh consecutive successful exploration well in Febraary 2013. The Corporation now plans to submit an 
appraisal plan to the Ghanaian govemment for approval on or before June 2, 2013. In parallel, the Corporation has 
begun pre-development studies on the block. The remainder of the capitahzed well costs in excess of one year 
relates to projects where further drilhng is plaimed or development plaiming and other assessment activities are 
ongoing to determine the economic and operating viability of the projects. 
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7. Goodwill 

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, all of which relate to the E&P segment, are as follows: 
2012 2011 

(In millions) 
Beginning balance at January 1 $2,305 $2,408 

Dispositions (97) (103) 

Ending balance at December 31 $2,208 $2,305 

8. Asset Impairments 
During 2012, the Corporation recorded total asset impairment charges of $598 million ($360 million after 

income taxes), including three charges totaling $582 million ($344 million after income taxes) in the E&P 
segment. As a result of a competitive bidding process, the Corporation obtained additional information relating to 
the fair value of its interests in the Cotulla area of the Eagle Ford Shale in Texas in Febraary 2013. Based on this 
information and management's anticipated plan for the assets as of December 31, 2012, the Corporation recorded 
an impairment charge of $315 million ($192 million after income taxes). The Corporation also recorded charges 
of $208 million ($116 million after income taxes) related to increases in estimated abandonment liabilities 
primarily for non-producing properties which resulted in the book value of the properties exceeding their fan-
value. In addition, the Corporation recorded a charge of $59 million ($36 million after income taxes) in the 
second quarter related to the disposal of certain Eagle Ford properties as part of an asset exchange with its joint 
venture partner. In 2012, the Corporation also recorded impairment charges of $16 million relating to certain 
marketing properties in the M&R segment. 

During 2011, the Corporation recorded asset impairment charges of $358 million ($140 million after income 
taxes) related to increases in the Corporation's estimated abandonment liabilities primarily for non-producing 
properties which resulted in the book value of the properties exceeding their fair value. During 2010, the 
Corporation recorded an asset impairment charge of $532 million ($334 million after income taxes) to fully 
impair the carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med Block), 
located offshore Egypt, when the Corporation and its partners notified the Egyptian authorities of their decision 
to cease exploration activities on the block and to relinquish a significant portion of the block. For both 2011 and 
2010, these asset impairments related to the E&P segment. 

9. Asset Retirement Obligations 

The following table describes changes to the Corporation's asset retirement obhgations: 
2012 2011 

(In millions) 
Asset retirement obligations at January 1 $2,071 $1,358 

Liabilities incmred 186 25 
Liabilities settled or disposed of (324) (334) 
Accretion expense 135 96 
Revisions of estimated liabilities 529 947 
Foreign currency ttanslation 64 (21) 

Asset retirement obligations at December 31 2,661 2,071 
Less: Curtent obligations 449 227 

Long-term obligations at December 31 $2,212 $1,844 

The revisions in 2012 reflect overall increases in estimated abandonment obligations resulting from changes 
in the expected scope of operations, increases in the time expected to complete dismantlement activities and 
updates to service rates. In 2011, the revisions of estimated liabilities reflect an increase in well abandonment 
obligations resulting from enhanced cement seal verification procedmes, changes in scope and timing due to 
updated work programs and higher service and equipment costs. 

57 



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

10. Debt and Interest Expense 

Long-term debt at December 31 consisted ofthe following: 
2012 2011 

(In millions) 
Revolving credit facility, weighted average rate 1.6% $ 758 $ — 
Asset-backed credit facility, weighted average rate 0.8% 600 350 
Short-term credit facilities, weighted average rate 1.5% 990 100 
Fixed-rate public notes: 

7.0% due 2014 250 250 
8.1% due 2019 998 998 
7.9% due 2029 695 695 
7.3% due 2031 746 746 
7.1% due 2033 598 598 
6.0% due 2040 745 744 
5.6% due 2041 1,242 1,242 

Total fixed-rate public notes 5,274 5,273 
Leased floating production system 180 7 
Other fixed-rate notes, weighted average rate 10.9%, due through 2023 I l l 112 
Project lease financing, weighted average rate 5.1%, due through 2014 78 90 
Pollution control revenue bonds, weighted average rate 5.9%, due through 2034 . . 53 53 
Fair value adjustments — interest rate hedging 65 53 
Other debt 2 19 

Total debt 8,111 6,057 
Less: Short-term debt and cmrent maturities of long-term debt 787 52 

Total long-term debt $7,324 $6,005 

The Corporation has a $4 billion syndicated revolving credit facility that matmes in April 2016. This facility 
can be used for borrowings and letters of credit. Borrowings on the facility bear interest at 1.25% above the 
London Interbank Offered Rate. A fee of 0.25% per annum is also payable on the amount of the facility. The 
interest rate and facility fee are subject to adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. 

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility secmitized by certain accounts receivable from 
its M&R operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability to borrow or 
issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion, subject to the availability of sufficient levels of eligible receivables. At 
December 31, 2012, outstanding borrowings under this facility of $600 million were collateralized by a total of 
approximately $1,050 million of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These 
receivables are only available to pay the general obligations of the Corporation after satisfaction of the 
outstanding obligations under the asset-backed facility. 

During 2012, the Corporation borrowed a net amount of $1,845 million from available credit facilities, 
which consisted of $758 million from its syndicated revolving credit facility, $890 million from the 
Corporation's short-term credit facilities and $250 million from its asset-backed credit facility, which was 
partially offset by net repayments of other debt of $53 million. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation classified 
as long-term $1,598 million of outstanding borrowings under its short-term facilities, based on availability under 
its long-term syndicated revolving credit facility. 

During 2012, the Corporation recorded a net increase of $173 million in long-term debt related to progress 
on constraction of a leased floating production system to be used at the Tubular Bells project. 

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation's fixed-rate public notes have a principal amount of $5,300 million 
($5,274 million net of unamortized discount). Interest rates on the outstanding fixed-rate public notes have a 
weighted average rate of 6.9%. 

The aggregate long-term debt maturing during the next five years is as follows (in millions): 2013 — $37; 
2014 — $524; 2015 — $6; 2016 — $1,604 and 2017 — $13. 
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The Corporation's long-term debt agreements, including the revolving credit facility, contain financial 
covenants that resttict the amount of total borrowings and secured debt. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation 
is permitted to borrow up to an additional $27.2 billion for the constmction or acquisition of assets. The 
Corporation has the ability to borrow up to an additional $4.9 billion of seemed debt at December 31,2012. 

Outstanding letters of credit at December 31 were as follows: 

2012 2011 
(In millions) 

Committed luies* $ 463 $1,063 
Unconunitted lines* 283 462 
Revolving credit facility — 173 

Total $ 746 $1,698 

* Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dates through 2014. 

Of the letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2012, totaling $746 million, $141 milhon relates to 
contingent liabilities and the remaining $605 million relates to liabilities recorded in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet. 

The total amount of interest paid (net of amounts capitalized) was $419 million, $383 million and $319 
million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Corporation capitalized interest of $28 million, $13 million 
and $5 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

11. Share-based Compensation 

Prior to 2012, the Corporation awarded restricted common stock and stock options under its 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, as amended. In March 2012, the Corporation began awarding performance share units 
(PSUs) under this plan. Outstanding restticted stock and PSUs generally vest three years from the date of grant. 
Outstanding stock options vest over three years from the date of grant and have a 10-year term and an exercise 
price equal to the market price on the date of grant. 

The number of shares of common stock to be issued under the PSU agreement is based on a comparison of 
the Corporation's total shareholder retum (TSR) to the TSR of a predetermined group of fifteen peer companies 
over a three-year performance period ending December 31, 2014. Payouts ofthe 2012 performance share awards 
will range from 0% to 200% of the target awards based on the Corporation's TSR ranking within the peer group. 
Dividend equivalents for the performance period will accrae on performance shares and will only be paid out on 
earned shares after the performance period. 

Share-based compensation expense consisted of the following: 

Stock options $ 34 
Restticted stock 
Performance share units 

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes 

2012 2011 

$ 3 4 $ 51 
57 53 
8 — 

2010 2012 

(In millions) 

$ 52 $ 21 
60 35 
— 5 

2011 2010 

$ 31 $ 32 
32 37 
— — 

Total $_99 $104 $112 $_61 $_63 $ 69 

Based on share-based compensation awards outstanding at December 31, 2012, unearned compensation 
expense, before income taxes, will be recognized in futme years as follows (in millions): 2013 — $69, 2014 — 
$43 and 2015 —$8. 
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The Corporation's share-based compensation activity consisted ofthe following: 

Outstanding at January 1, 2012 . 
Granted 

. Exercised 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at December 31,2012* 

Performance i 

Performance 
Share 1 
Units 

(In thousands) 

425 

(11) 
414 

Share Units 

Weighted-
Average 

[•rice on Date 
of Grant 

$ — 

$ 

64.14 

64.14 

64.14 

Stock Options 

1 
Options 

(In thousands) 

13,570 
48 

(212) 

(503) 

12,903 

Weighted-
Average 

ixercise Price 
per Share 

$ 61.68 

$ 

52.47 
49.53 

72.00 

61.45 

Restricted Stock 

Shares of 
Restricted 
Common 1 

Stock 

(In thousands) 

2,447 
1,580 

(883) 
(240) 

2,904 

Weighted-
Average 

Price on Date 
of Grant 

$ 65.38 
63.50 

56.53 
67.25 

$ 66.89 

* Includes 10,789 thousand exercisable options at a weighted average price of $58.99 at December 31, 2012. 

The table below summarizes information regarding the outstanding and exercisable stock options as of 
December 31, 2012: 

Range of 
Exercise Prices 

$20.00 - $40.00 . 
$40.01 - $50.00 . 
$50.01 - $60.00 . 
$60.01 - $80.00 . 
$80.01-$120.00 

Outstanding Options 

Options 

(In thousands) 

1,065 
1,477 
4,153 
2,400 
3,808 

12,903 

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 

(Years) 

2 
3 
5 
7 
7 

5 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 
per Share 

$ 

$ 

27.59 
49.28 
55.12 
60.56 
83.10 

61.45 

Exercisable Options 

Options 

(In thousands) 

1,065 
1,467 
4,089 
1,596 
2,572 

10,789 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 
per Share 

$ 27.59 
49.30 
55.11 
60.53 
82.72 

$ 58.99 

The intrinsic value (or the amoimt by which the market price of the Corporation's common stock exceeds the 
exercise price of an option) at December 31, 2012 totaled $32 million for both outstanding options and exercisable 
options. At December 31, 2012, the weighted average remaining term of exercisable options was five years. 

The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes model to estimate the fair value of stock options. The following 
weighted average assumptions were utilized for stock options awarded: 

2012 2011 2010 

Risk free interest rate 0.64% 
Stock price volatility .397 
Dividend yield .77% 
Expected life in years 4.5 
Weighted average fan value per option granted $16.49 $27.98 $20.18 

1.81% 
.395 

.49% 
4.5 

2.14% 
.390 

.67% 
4.5 

The risk free interest rate is based on the expected life of the options and is obtained from published somces. 
The stock price volatility is determined from historical stock prices using the same period as the expected life of 
the options. The expected stock option life is based on historical exercise pattems. 
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The Corporation uses a Monte Carlo simulation model to estimate the fair value of PSUs. The following 
weighted average assumptions were utilized for PSUs awarded: 

2012 

Risk free interest rate 0.40% 
Stock price volatility .394 
Conttactual term in years 3.0 
Grant date price of Hess common stock $64.14 

The risk free interest rate is based on the vesting period of the award and is obtained from published 
sources. The stock price volatility is determined from the historical stock prices of the peer group using the 
vesting period. The conttactual term is equivalent to the vesting period. 

In May 2008, shareholders approved the 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan, which was amended in May 2010 
and May 2012 to increase the number of new shares of common stock available for awards. The Corporation also 
has stock options outstanding under a former plan. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation had 12.4 million 
shares that remain available for issuance under the 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan, as amended, out of the total 
of 29 million shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan, as 
amended. 

12. Foreign Currency 

Foreign currency gains (losses) before income taxes recorded in the Statement of Consolidated Income 
amounted to a gain of $37 million in 2012, a loss of $29 million in 2011 and a loss of $5 million in 2010. The 
after-tax foreign currency ttanslation adjustments recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
were an increase to stockholders' equity of $169 milhon at December 31, 2012 and a reduction to stockholders' 
equity of $84 million at December 31, 2011. 

13. Retirement Plans 

The Corporation has funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for a significant portion of its 
employees. In addition, the Corporation has an unfunded supplemental pension plan covering certain employees, 
which provides incremental payments that would have been payable from the Corporation's principal pension 
plans, were it not for limitations imposed by income tax regulations. The plans provide defined benefits based on 
years of service and final average salary. Additionally, the Corporation maintains an unfunded posttetirement 
medical plan that provides health benefits to certain qualified retnees from ages 55 through 65. The measurement 
date for all retirement plans is December 31. 

The following table sununarizes the Corporation's benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets and 
shows the funded status of the pension and postretirement medical plans: 

Funded Unfunded Postretirement 
Pension Plans Pension Plan Medical Plan 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Change in benefit obligation 
Balance at January 1 $1,866 $1,497 $ 227 $ 192 $ 125 $ 107 
Service cost 64 49 10 9 7 6 
Interest cost 81 81 7 8 5 5 
Actuarial (gain) loss 134 294 13 31 2 9 
Benefit payments (54) (51) (2) (13) (5) (2) 
Plan settlements* — — (21) — — — 
Foreign curtency exchange rate changes 19 (4) — — — — 

Balance at December 31 2,110 1,866 234 227 134 125 
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Funded 
Pension Plans 

Unfunded 
Pension Plan 

Postretirement 
Medical Plan 

2012 

Change in fair value of plan assets 
Balance at January 1 1,493 
Actual retum on plan assets 155 
Employer contributions 150 
Benefit payments (54) 
Plan settlements* — 
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 

Balance at December 31 

Funded status (plan assets less than benefit 
obligations) at December 31 

Umecognized net actuarial losses 

Net amount recognized $ 

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

1,365 
(3) 

185 
(51) 
— 

(In millions) 

— 

23 
(2) 

(21) 

— 

13 
(13) 
— 

— 

5 
(5) 
— 

— 

2 
(2) 
— 

i 

19 

1,763 

(347) 
850 

503 $ 

(3) 

1,493 

(373) 
829 

456 $_ 

_ 

(234) 
97 

(137) $_ 

— 
— 

(227) 
103 

(124) $_ 

— 
— 

(134) 
39 

(95) $_ 

— 
— 

(125) 
39 

(86) 

In 2012, the Corporation recorded charges related to plan settlements of $9 million ($5 million after income taxes) due to employee retirements. 

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 consisted ofthe following: 
Funded 

Pension Plans 
Unfunded Pension 

Plan 
Postretirement 
Medical Plan 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Accraed benefit hability $ (347) $ (373) $ (234) $ (227) $ (134) $ (125) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax* . . 850 829 97 103 39 39 

Net amount recognized $ 503 $ 456 $ (137) $ (124) $ (95) $ (86) 

* The after-tax reduction to equity recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for these retirement plans was $639 million 
at December 31, 2012 and $631 million at December 31, 2011. 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the funded defined benefit pension plans increased to $1,937 million 
at December 31, 2012 from $1,703 million at December 31, 2011. The accumulated benefit obligation for the 
unfunded defined benefit pension plan was $216 million at December 31, 2012 and $202 million at 
December 31, 2011. 

Components of net periodic benefit cost for funded and unfunded pension plans and the posttetirement 
medical plan consisted of the following: 

Pension Plans 
Postretirement 
Medical Plan 

2012 

Service cost $ 74 
Interest cost 88 
Expected retum on plan assets (116) 
Amortization of umecognized net actuarial losses 83 
Settlement loss 9 

Net periodic benefit cost $ 138 

2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 

58 
89 

(109) 
47 

$ 
(In millions) 

49 
86 

(86) 
48 

$ 7 
5 

— 
2 

$ 6 
5 

— 
2 

$ 5 
4 

— 
1 

85 $ 105 $ 14 $ 13 $ 10 

The Corporation's 2013 pension and posttetirement medical expense is estimated to be approximately 
$135 million, of which approximately $85 million relates to the amortization of umecognized net actuarial 
losses. 
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The weighted average actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation's funded and unfunded pension plans 
were as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations 
at December 31 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit cost for the 
years ended December 31 

Discount rate 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

3.8% 
4.3 

4.3 
7.5 
4.3 

4.3% 
4.3 

5.3 
7.5 
4.4 

5.3% 
4.4 

5.8 
7.5 
4.3 

The actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation's postretirement medical plan were as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31 
Discount rate 3.1% 3.9% 4.8% 
Initial health care ttend rate 7.3% 8.0% 8.0% 
Ultimate ttend rate 4.8% 5.0% 5.0% 
Year in which ultimate ttend rate is reached 2022 2018 2017 

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for each year were established at the end of 
each previous year while the assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were established at each year-
end. The net periodic benefit cost and the actuarial present value of benefit obligations are based on actuarial 
assumptions that are reviewed on an annual basis. The discount rate is developed based on a portfolio of high-
quality, fixed income debt instraments with maturities that approximate the expected payment of plan 
obligations. The overall expected retum on plan assets is developed from the expected futme retums for each 
asset category, weighted by the target allocation of pension assets to that asset category. 

The Corporation's investment sttategy is to maximize long-term retums at an acceptable level of risk 
through broad diversification of plan assets in a variety of asset classes. Asset classes and target allocations are 
determined by the Corporation's investment committee and include domestic and foreign equities, fixed income, 
and other investments, including hedge funds, real estate and private equity. Investment managers are prohibited 
from investing in secmities issued by the Corporation unless indirectly held as part of an index strategy. The 
majority of plan assets are highly liquid, providing ample liquidity for benefit payment requirements. The cmrent 
target allocations for plan assets are 50% equity secmities, 25% fixed income securities (including cash and 
short-term investment funds) and 25% to all other types of investments. Asset allocations are rebalanced on a 
periodic basis throughout the year to bring assets to within an acceptable range of target levels. 
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The following tables provide the fah value of the financial assets of the funded pension plans as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 in accordance with the fair value measurement hierarchy described in Note 1, 
Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
(In millions) 

December 31,2012 
Cash and short-term investment funds $ 2 $ 37 $ — $ 39 
Equities: 

U.S. equities (domestic) 534 — — 534 
Intemational equities (non-U.S.) 61 148 — 209 
Global equities (domestic and non-U.S.) 5 174 — 179 

Fixed income: 
Treasmy and govemment issued (a) — 184 2 186 
Govemment related (b) — 8 — 8 
Mortgage-backed securities (c) — 96 — 96 
Corporate 1 110 — 111 

Other: 
Hedge funds — — 255 255 
Private equity funds — — 75 75 
Real estate funds 9 — 45 54 
Diversified commodities funds — 17 — 17 

$ 612 $ 774 $ 377 $ 1,763 

December 31,2011 
Cash and short-term investment funds $ 2 $ 28 $ — $ 30 
Equities: 

U.S. equities (domestic) 452 — — 452 
Intemational equities (non-U.S.) 50 118 — 168 
Global equities (domestic and non-U.S.) 11 149 — 160 

Fixed income: 
Treasury and govemment issued (a) — 149 1 150 
Govemment related (b) — 12 2 14 
Mortgage-backed securities (c) — 87 — 87 
Corporate — 96 1 97 

Other: 
Hedge funds — — 211 211 
Private equity funds — — 58 58 
Real estate funds 7 — 44 51 
Diversified commodities funds — 15 — 15 

$ 522 $ 654 $ 317 $ 1,493 

(a) Includes securities issued and guaranteed by U.S. and non-U.S. governments. 
(b) Primarily consists of .securities issued by governmental agencies and municipalities. 
(c) Comprised of U.S. residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities. 

Cash and short-term investment funds consist of cash on hand and short-term investment funds. The short-
term investment funds provide for daily investments and redemptions and are valued and carried at a $1 net asset 
value (NAV) per fund share. Cash on hand is classified as Level 1 and short-term investment funds are classified 
as Level 2. 

Equities consist of equity securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. corporations as well as commingled 
investment funds that invest in equity securities. Individually held equity secmities are ttaded actively on 
exchanges and price quotes for these shares are readily available. Individual equity securities are classified as 
Level 1. Conuningled fund values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived from the quoted prices in active 
markets ofthe underlying securities. Equity commingled funds are classified as Level 2. 

Fixed income investments consist of securities issued by the U.S. govemment, non-U.S. govemments, 
govemmental agencies, municipalities and corporations, and agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities. 
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This investment category also includes commingled investment funds that invest in fixed income securities. 
Individual fixed income securities are generally priced on the basis of evaluated prices from independent pricing 
services. Such prices are monitored and provided by an independent, third-party custodial firm responsible for 
safekeeping plan assets. Individual fixed income secmities are classified as Level 2 or 3. Conuningled fund 
values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived indirectly from observable inputs or from quoted prices in less 
liquid markets of the underlying securities. Fixed income commingled funds are classified as Level 2. 

Other investments consist of exchange-ttaded real estate investment trast secmities as well as commingled 
fund and limited partnership investments in hedge funds, private equity, real estate and diversified commodities. 
Exchange-ttaded seciuities are classified as Level 1. Commingled fund values reflect the NAV per fund share and 
are classified as Level 2 or 3. Private equity and real estate limited partnership values refiect information reported 
by the fund managers, which include inputs such as cost, operating results, discounted future cash fiows, market 
based comparable data and independent appraisals from third-party somces with professional qualifications. Hedge 
funds, private equity and non-exchange-ttaded real estate investments are classified as Level 3. 

The followuig tables provide changes in financial assets that are measured at fair value based on Level 3 
inputs that are held by institutional funds classified as: 

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 
Actual retum on plan assets: 

Related to assets held at December 31, 2011 
Related to assets sold dming 2011 

Pmchases, sales or other settlements 
Net ttansfers in (out) of Level 3 

Balance at December 31, 2011 

Actual retmn on plan assets: 
Related to assets held at December 31, 2012 
Related to assets sold during 2012 

Pmchases, sales or other settiements 
Net transfers in (out) of Level 3 

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 

* Fixed Income includes treasury and government issued, government related, mortgage-backed and corporate .securities. 

The Corporation has budgeted conttibutions of approximately $140 million to its funded pension plans in 
2013. 

Estimated future benefit payments by the funded and unfunded pension plans and the posttetirement 
medical plan, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in millions): 

2013 $101 
2014 98 
2015 102 
2016 119 
2017 113 
Years 2018 to 2022 677 

The Corporation also conttibutes to several defined contribution plans for eligible employees. Employees 
may conttibute a portion of their compensation to the plans and the Corporation matches a portion of the 
employee conttibutions. The Corporation recorded expense of $40 million in 2012, $28 million in 2011 and $24 
million in 2010 for conttibutions to these plans. 
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Income* 

$ 7 

(3) 

4 

— 

(1) 
(1) 

$ 2 

Hedge 
Funds 

1 

$ 187 

(5) 
2 

27 

211 

13 

31 

$ 255 

Private 
Equity 
Funds 

(In millions) 
$ 40 

9 

9 

58 

5 

12 

$ 75 

Real 
Estate 
Funds 

$ 32 

2 

10 

44 

1 

— 

$ 45 

Total 

$ 

1 
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6 
2 

43 

317 

19 
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14. Income Taxes 

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consisted of: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
United States Federal 

Current $ 30 $ 202 $ 151 
Defen-ed (317) (588) (309) 

State 46 17 46 
(241) (369) (112) 

Foreign 
Current 2,019 1,185 1,515 
Deferred (218) (60) (230) 

1,801 1,125 1,285 
Adjustment of deferred tax liability for foreign income tax rate change* . . 115 29 — 

Total provision for income taxes $1,675 $ 785 $1,173 
* Represents the effect ofthe United Kingdom (UK) supplementary income tax rate change to 20% from 32% on dismantlement expenses in 

July 2012. Also reflects the July 2011 increase in the supplementary tax on petroleum operations to 32% from 20% in the UK. 

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted ofthe following: 
2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

United States (a) $ (211) $ 211 $ (108) 
Foreign (b) 3,949 2,250 3,419 

Total mcome before income taxes $3,738 $2,461 $3,311 

(a) Includes substantially all ofthe Corporation's interest expense and the results of hedging activities. 
(b) Foreign income includes the Corporation's Virgin Islands and other operations located outside ofthe United States. 

The components of deferred tax liabilities, deferred tax assets and taxes deferted at December 31 were as 
follows: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 
Deferred tax liabilities 

Property, plant and equipment $(4,951) $(3,742) 
Other (36) (125) 

Total defen-ed tax liabilities (4,987) (3,867) 
Deferred tax assets 

Net operating loss carryforwards 1,985 1,204 
Tax credit carryforwards 373 396 
Property, plant and equipment and investments 3,165 2,217 
Investment in HOVENSA — 331 
Accraed compensation, other liabilities and deferred credits 976 508 
Asset retirement obligations 508 438 
Other 313 332 

Total deferred tax assets 7,320 5,426 
Valuation allowances (1,282) (1,071) 

Total deferred tax assets, net 6,038 4,355 
Net deferred tax assets $ 1,051 $ 488 

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation has recognized a gross deferred tax asset related to net operating 
loss carryforwards of $1,985. million before application ofthe valuation allowances. The deferred tax asset is 
comprised of $1,637 milhon atttibutable to foreign net operating losses, which begin to expire in 2020, $91 
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million attributable to United States federal operating losses which begin to expire in 2020 and $257 million 
attributable to losses in various states which begin to expke in 2013. The deferred tax asset attributable to foreign 
net operating losses, net of valuation allowances, is $1,056 million, substantially all of which relates to loss 
carryforwards in Norway and Indonesia. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation has federal, state and foreign 
altemative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $148 million, which can be carried forward indefinitely and 
approximately $1 million of other business credit carryforwards. Foreign tax credit carryforwards, which begin to 
expire in 2016, total $224 million. Included within Property, plant and equipment and investments in the 
foregoing table are taxes deferted, resulting from intercompany ttansactions eliminated in consolidation related 
to ttansfers of property, plant and equipment remaining within the consolidated group. 

In the Consolidated Balance Sheet, deferred tax assets and liabilities from the preceding table are netted by 
taxing jurisdiction, combined with taxes deferred on intercompany ttansactions, and are recorded at December 31 
as follows: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Other current assets $ 596 $ 398 
Deferred income taxes (long-term asset) 3,126 2,941 
Accraed habilities (9) (8) 
Deferred income taxes (long-term liability) (2,662) (2,843) 

Net deferted tax assets $ 1,051 $ 488 

The difference between the Corporation's effective income tax rate and the United States statutory rate is 
reconciled below: 

2012 2011 2010 

United States statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 
Effect of foreign operations* 11.3 (4.1) 9.4 
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax 0.8 0.4 0.9 
Change in enacted tax rate 3.1 1.2 — 
Gains on asset sales (4.8) (5.0) (10.4) 
Effect of equity loss and operations related to HOVENSA — 2.8 3.1 
Other (0.6) L6 (2.6) 

Total 44.8% 31.9% 35.4% 

The variance in effective income tax rates attributable to the effect of foreign operations primarily resulted from the suspension of 
operations in Libya for most of 2011. 

Below is a reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amounts of umecognized tax benefits: 
2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Balance at January 1 $ 415 $ 400 
Additions based on tax positions taken in the cmrent year 132 62 
Additions based on tax positions of prior years 45 20 
Reductions based on tax positions of prior years (33) (8) 
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities (30) (59) 
Reductions due to lapse of statutes of limitation (6) — 

Balance at December 31 $ 523 $ 415 

At December 31, 2012, the umecognized tax benefits include $466 million, which if recognized, would 
affect the Corporation's effective income tax rate. Over the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that the total 
amount of umecognized tax benefits could decrease by $25 million to $35 million due to settlements with taxing 
authorities and lapsing of statutes of limitation. The Corporation had accraed interest and penalties related to 
umecognized tax benefits of $60 million as of December 31,2012 and $42 million as of December 31,2011. 
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The Corporation has not recognized deferred income taxes for that portion of undistributed eamings of 
foreign subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporation had 
undistributed eamings from foreign subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations of 
approximately $6.7 billion at December 31, 2012. If these eamings were not indefinitely reinvested, a deferred 
tax liability of approximately $2.3 billion would be recognized, not accounting for the utilization of foreign tax 
credits in the United States. 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries file income tax retums in the United States and various foreign 
jurisdictions. The Corporation is no longer subject to examinations by income tax authorities in most 
jurisdictions for years prior to 2005. 

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to $1,822 million, $1,384 million and 
$1,450 million, respectively. 

15. Outstanding and Weighted Average Common Shares 

The following table provides the changes in the Corporation's outstanding common shares: 

2012 2011 2010 

Balance at January 1 
Activity related to restticted common stock awards, net 
Stock options 
Issued for an acquisition* 

Balance at December 31 

340.0 
1.3 
0.2 
— 

341.5 

(In millions) 
337.7 

0.6 
1.7 
— 

340.0 

327.2 
0.8 
1.1 
8.6 

337.7 

* See Note 3, Acquisitions in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share: 

2012 2011 2010 
(In millions, except per share amounts) 

Net income attiibutable to Hess Corporation $2,025 $1,703 $2,125 

Weighted average common shares: 
Basic 338.4 336.9 326.0 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options 0.8 1.6 0.8 
Restticted common stock 1.1 1.4 1.5 

Diluted 340.3 339.9 328.3 

Net income per share: 
Basic $ 5.98 $ 5.05 $ 6.52 
Diluted $ 5.95 $ 5.01 $ 6.47 

The weighted average common shares used in the diluted eamings per share calculations exclude the effect of 
approximately 9.2 million, 3.5 milhon and 5.2 million out-of-the-money stock options for 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, and 414,175 PSUs for 2012 based on the Corporation's TSR through December 31, 2012. Cash 
dividends declared on common stock totaled $0.40 per share ($0.10 per quarter) dming 2012, 2011 and 2010. 

68 



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

16. Leased Assets 

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gasoline stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and 
other assets for varying periods under conttactual obligations accounted for as operating leases. Certain operating 
leases provide an option to purchase the related property at fixed prices. At December 31, 2012, future minimum 
rental payments applicable to non-cancelable operating leases with remaining terms of one year or more (other 
than oil and gas property leases) are as follows (in millions): 

2013 $ 700 
2014 604 
2015 227 
2016 127 
2017 125 
Remaining years 1,060 

Total minimum lease payments 2,843 
Less: Income from subleases 43 

Net minimum lease payments $2,800 

Operating lease expenses for drilling rigs used to drill development wells and successful exploration wells 
are capitalized. 

Rental expense was as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 
(In millions) 

Total rental expense $ 375 $ 348 $ 273 
Less: Income from subleases 15 12 13 

Net rental expense $360 $336 $260 

17. Guarantees and Contingencies 

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation has $141 million in letters of credit for which it is contingently 
liable. The Corporation also has a contingent pmchase obligation to acquire the remaining interest in WilcoHess, 
a retail gasoline station joint venture. This contingent obligation, which expires in April 2014, was approximately 
$210 million at December 31, 2012. 

The Corporation is subject to loss contingencies with respect to various lawsuits, claims and other 
proceedings, including environmental matters. A liability is recognized in the Corporation's consolidated 
financial statements when it is probable a loss has been incmred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If 
the risk of loss is probable, but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or the risk of loss is only reasonably 
possible, a liability is not accraed; however, the Corporation discloses the nature of those contingencies. 

The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasoline, has been a 
party to lawsuits and claims related to the use of methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) in gasoUne. A series of similar 
lawsuits, many involving water utilities or govemmental entities, were filed in jmisdictions across the United States 
against producers of MTBE and pettoleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, including the 
Corporation. The principal allegation in aU cases was that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective product and that 
these parties are strictly liable in proportion to their share of the gasoline market for damage to groundwater 
resomces and are required to take remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the environment of releases of 
MTBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 2010 and 2011, additional cases 
were settied including an action brought in state court by the State of New Hampshire. Two cases brought by the 
State of New Jersey and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico remain uru-esolved. In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 
million was recorded to cover all of the known MTBE cases against the Corporation. 
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The Corporation is from time to time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including 
proceedings relating to other environmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or 
when such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings 
that are in their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues 
may need to be resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual 
matters before a loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in 
management's opinion, based upon curtently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings is 
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of 
the Corporation. 

18. Segment Information 

The Corporation has two operating segments that comprise the stmcture used by senior management to 
make key operating decisions and assess performance. These are (1) Exploration and Production and 
(2) Marketing and Refining. The following table presents financial data by segment: 

Exploration Marketing 
and and Corporate Consolidated 

Production Refining and Interest (a) 

(In millions) 

2012 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $ 12,245 $ 25,520 $ 2 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 75 1 — 

Operating revenues from unaffiliated customers . . . . $ 12,170 $ 25,519 $ 2 $ 37,691 

Net income (loss) atttibutable to Hess Corporation $ 2,212 $ 231 $ (418) $ 2,025 

Interest expense $ — $ — $ 419 $ 419 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,853 83 13 2,949 
Asset impairments 582 16 — 598 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,793 145 (263) 1,675 
Investments in affiliates 75 368 — 443 
Identifiable assets 37,687 5,139 615 43,441 
Capital employed (c) 26,339 2,570 405 29,314 
Capital expenditmes 7,676 113 6 7,795 

2011 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $ 10,646 $ 27,936 $ 1 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 116 1 — 

Operating revenues from unaffiliated customers . . . . $ 10,530 $ 27,935 $ 1 $ 38,466 

Net income (loss) atttibutable to Hess Corporation $ 2,675 $ (584) $ (388) $ 1,703 

Loss from equity investtnent m HOVENSA L.L.C $ — $ (1,073) $ — $ (1,073) 
Interest expense — — 383 383 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,305 88 13 2,406 
Asset impairments 358 — — 358 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,313 (273) (255) 785 
Investments in affihates 97 287 — 384 
Identifiable assets 32,323 6,302 511 39,136 
Capital employed (c) 22,699 2,337 (387) 24,649 
Capital expenditures 6,888 115 3 7,006 
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Exploration Marketing 
and and Corporate Consolidated 

Production Refining and Interest (a) 

(In millions) 

2010 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $ 9,119 $ 24,885 $ 1 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 143 — — 

Operating revenues from unaffiliated customers... $ 8,976 $ 24,885 $ 1 $ 33,862 

Net income (loss) atttibutable to Hess Corporation $ 2,736 $ (231) $ (380) $ 2,125 

Loss from equity investment m HOVENSA L.L.C. . . . $ — $ (522) $ — $ (522) 
Interest expense — — 361 361 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,222 82 13 2,317 
Asset impairments 532 — — 532 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,417 4 (248) 1,173 
Investments in affiliates 57 386 — 443 
Identifiable assets 28,242 6,377 777 35,396 
Capital employed (c) 19,803 2,715 (126) 22,392 
Capital expenditures 5,394 82 16 5,492 

(a) After elimination of transactions between affiliates, which are valued at approximate market prices. 
(b) Sales and operating revenues are reported net of excise and similar taxes in the Statement of Consolidated Income, which amounted to 

approximately $2,580 million, $2,350 million and $2,200 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
(c) E&P, M&R and Corporate only. Calculated as equity plus debt. 

Financial information by major geographic area is as follows: 
United Asia and 
States Europe Africa Other Consolidated 

(In millions) 
2012 

Operating revenues $ 30,784 $ 2,530 $ 2,484 $ 1,893 $ 37,691 
Property, plant and equipment (net) 14,233 8,172* 2,517 3,885 28,807 

2011 
Operating revenues $ 31,813 $ 3,137 $ 1,782 $ 1,734 $ 38,466 
Property, plant and equipment (net) 11,490 6,826* 2,355 4,041 24,712 

2010 
Operating revenues $ 28,066 $ 2,109 $ 2,271 $ 1,416 $ 33,862 
Property, plant and equipment (net) 8,343 6,764* 2,573 3,447 21,127 

* Ofthe total Europe property, plant and equipment (net), Norway represented $6,426 million, $5,031 million and $5,002 million in 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively. 

19. Related Party Transactions 
The following table presents the Corporation's related party ttansactions: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Pmchases: 
HOVENSA (a) $ 145 $3,806 $4,307 
Bayoime Energy Center LLC (b) 20 — — 

Sales: 
WilcoHess 3,058 2,898 2,113 
HOVENSA 191 710 607 
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(a) Following the closure of HOVENSA's refinery in St. Croix in January 2012, the Corporation no longer purchases 50% of HOVENSA's 
production of refined petroleum products, after any sales to unaffiliated parties. 

(b) Represents payments under a 15 year tolling agreement with remaining total minimum payments of approximately $395 million. 

The following table presents the Corporation's related party accounts receivable (payable) at December 31: 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

WilcoHess $119 $127 
Bayorme Energy Center LLC (3) — 
HOVENSA, net* — (22) 

* Excludes the Corporation's planned funding commitments of $487 million at December 31, 2011 related to the refinery shutdown, which 
was paid in 2012. 

20. Risk Management and Trading Activities 

In the normal course of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the 
prices of crade oil, natural gas, refined pettoleum products and electticity, as well as to changes in interest rates 
and foreign currency values. In the disclosmes that follow, risk management activities are referred to as energy 
marketing and corporate risk management activities. The Corporation also has ttading operations, principally 
through a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership, which trades energy-related commodities, securities 
and derivatives. These activities are also exposed to commodity price risks primarily related to the prices of 
cmde oil, natmal gas, refined petroleum products and electricity. 

The Corporation maintains a conttol environment under the direction of its chief risk officer and through its 
corporate risk policy, which the Corporation's senior management has approved. Controls include volumettic, 
term and value at risk limits. The chief risk officer must approve the ttading of new instraments or commodities. 
Risk limits are monitored and reported on a daily basis to business units and senior management. The 
Corporation's risk management department also performs independent price verifications (IPV's) of sources of 
fair values, validations of valuation models and analyzes changes in fair value measurements on a daily, monthly 
and/or quarterly basis. These controls apply to all of the Corporation's risk management and ttading activities, 
including the consolidated trading partnership. The Corporation's tteasury department is responsible for 
administering foreign exchange rate and interest rate hedging programs using similar controls and processes, 
where applicable. 

The Corporation's risk management department, in performing the IPV procedures, utilizes independent 
sources and valuation models that are specific to the individual conttacts and pricing locations to identify 
positions that require adjustments to better reflect the market. This review is performed quarterly and the results 
are presented to the chief risk officer and senior management. The IPV process considers the reliability of the 
pricing services through assessing the number of available quotes, the frequency at which data is available and, 
where appropriate, the comparability between pricing sources. 

Following is a description ofthe Corporation's activities that use derivatives as part of their operations and 
sttategies. Derivatives include both financial instraments and forward pmchase and sale conttacts. Gross notional 
amounts of both long and short positions are presented in the volume tables below. These amounts include long 
and short positions that offset in closed positions and have not reached conttactual maturity. Gross notional 
amounts do not quantify risk or represent assets or liabilities of the Corporation, but are used in the calculation of 
cash settlements under the conttacts. 

Energy Marketing Activities: In its energy marketing activities, the Corporation sells refined pettoleum 
products, natmal gas and electricity principally to commercial and industrial businesses at fixed and floating 
prices for varying periods of time. Commodity conttacts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options, together 
with physical assets such as storage and pipeline capacity, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatility 
or lower costs related to sales contracts with customers. 
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The gross volumes of the Corporation's energy marketing commodity conttacts outstanding at December 31 
were as follows: 

2012 2011 

Crude oil and refined pettoleum products (millions of barrels) 26 28 
Natural gas (millions of mcf) 2,938 2,616 
Electticity (millions of megawatt homs) 278 244 

The changes in fair value of certain energy marketing commodity conttacts that are not designated as hedges 
are recognized currently in eamings. Revenues from the sales contracts are recognized in Sales and other 
operating revenues in the Statement of Consolidated Income, while supply contract pmchases and net settlements 
from financial derivatives related to these energy marketing activities are recognized in Cost of products sold in 
the Statement of Consolidated Income. Net realized and umealized pre-tax gains on derivative conttacts not 
designated as hedges amounted to $127 milhon in 2012, $65 million m 2011 and $247 million in 2010. 

At December 31, 2012, a portion of energy marketing conunodity conttacts are designated as cash flow 
hedges to hedge variability of expected future cash flows of forecasted supply ttansactions. The length of time 
over which the Corporation hedges exposure to variability in future cash flows is predominantly one year or less. 
For contracts outstanding at December 31, 2012, the maximum duration was approximately two years. 

The Corporation records the effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges as a 
component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and then 
reclassifies amounts to Cost of products sold in the Statement of Consolidated Income as the hedged ttansactions 
are recognized in eamings. The after-tax deferred losses relating to energy marketing activities recorded in 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were $22 million and $64 million at December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively. The Corporation estimates that a loss of approximately $14 million will be reclassified into 
eamings over the next twelve months. Dming 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Corporation reclassified after-tax losses 
from Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of $52 million, $105 million and $318 million ($85 
million, $172 million and $527 million of pre-tax losses), respectively. 

The amounts of ineffectiveness recognized immediately in Cost of products sold were a loss of $4 million in 
2011 and a gain of $2 million in 2010. There was no ineffectiveness in 2012. The pre-tax amount of deferred 
hedge losses is reflected in Accounts payable and the related income tax benefits are recorded as deferred income 
tax assets, which are included in Other cmrent assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Corporate Risk Management Activities: Corporate risk management activities include ttansactions designed 
to reduce risk in the selling prices of crade oil, refined petroleum products or natmal gas produced by the 
Corporation or to reduce exposure to foreign currency or interest rate movements. Generally, futmes, swaps or 
option sttategies may be used to fix the forward selling price of a portion of the Corporation's crade oil, refined 
pettoleiun products or natural gas production. Forward conttacts may also be used to pmchase certain currencies in 
which the Corporation does business with the intent of reducing exposme to foreign cmrency fluctuations. These 
forward conttacts comprise various cmrencies including the British Pound and Thai Baht. Interest rate swaps may 
be used to convert interest payments on certain long-term debt from fixed to floating rates. 

The gross volumes of the Corporate risk management derivative contracts outstanding at December 31, were 
as follows: 

2012 2011 

Conunodity, primarily crade oil (millions of barrels) 1 51 
Foreign exchange (miUions of U.S. Dollars) $1,285 $ 900 
Interest rate swaps (millions of U.S. Dollars) $ 880 $ 895 

Diu-ing 2008, the Corporation closed Brent crade oil cash flow hedges covering 24,000 battels per day 
through 2012, by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. As a result, the valuation of those 
conttacts was no longer subject to change due to price fluctuations. The deferred hedge losses as of the date that 
the hedges were closed were recorded in eamings as the hedged ttansactions occmred. For 2012, the Corporation 
entered into Brent crade oil hedges using fixed-price swap conttacts to hedge the variability of forecasted future 
cash flows from 120,000 barrels per day of crade oil sales volumes for the full year. The average price for these 
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hedges was $107.70 per barrel. Both of these hedge programs matmed as of December 31, 2012. Realized losses 
from E&P hedging activities decreased Sales and other operating revenues by $688 million in 2012, $517 million 
in 2011 and $533 million in 2010 ($431 million, $327 million and $338 million after-taxes, respectively). The 
amounts of ineffectiveness related to Brent crade oil hedges were a loss of $9 million in 2012, a gain of $9 
million in 2011 and zero in 2010. The after-tax deferred losses in Accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) related to Brent crade oil hedges was $286 million at December 31, 2011. In January and Febraary of 
2013, the Corporation entered into new Brent crade oil hedges covering 90,000 barrels per day for the remainder 
of 2013 at an average price of approximately $109.70 per barrel. 

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Corporation had interest rate swaps with gross notional amounts of 
$880 million and $895 million, respectively, which were designated as fair value hedges. Changes in the fair 
value of interest rate swaps and the hedged fixed-rate debt are recorded in Interest expense in the Statement of 
Consolidated Income. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Corporation recorded increases of 
$12 million and $45 million (excluding accraed interest), respectively, in the fan value of interest rate swaps and 
a corresponding adjustment in the carrying value of the hedged fixed-rate debt. 

Gains or losses on foreign exchange conttacts not designated as hedges are recognized immediately in 
Other, net in Revenues and non-operating income in the Statement of Consolidated Income. 

Net realized and umealized pre-tax gains (losses) on derivative conttacts used for Corporate risk 
management and not designated as hedges amounted to the following: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Conunodity $ 1 $ 1 $ (7) 
Foreign exchange 43 (15) (7) 

Total $ 44 $(14) $(14) 

Trading Activities: Trading activities are conducted principally through a ttading partnership in which the 
Corporation has a 50% voting interest. This consohdated entity operates to generate eamings through various 
sttategies primarily using energy-related commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes 
trading positions for its own account. The information that follows represents 100% of the ttading partnership 
and the Corporation's proprietary ttading accounts. 

The gross volumes of derivative conttacts outstanding relating to ttading activities at December 31, were as 
follows: 

2012 2011 

Commodity 
Crade oil and refined pettoleum products (millions of barrels) 1,179 2,169 
Natural gas (millions of mcf) 3,377 4,203 
Electticity (millions of megawatt homs) 19 304 

Foreign exchange (millions of U.S. DoUars) $ 412 $ 581 
Other 

Interest rate (millions of U.S. Dollars) $ 167 $ 182 
Equity secmities (millions of shares) 14 16 

Pre-tax umealized and realized gains (losses) recorded in Sales and other operating revenues in the 
Statement of Consolidated Income from trading activities amounted to the following: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 

Commodity $104 $ 44 $ 88 
Foreign exchange 3 — 5 
Other _ 1 0 (28) 10 

Total $117 $ 16 $103 
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Fair Value Measurements: The gross and net fair values of the Corporation's risk management and 
trading derivative instraments were as follows: 

Accounts Accounts 
Receivable Payable 

3,188 
14 
14 

(3,188) 
— 
(8) 

(In millions) 

December 31,2012 
Derivative conttacts designated as hedging instraments 

Conunodity $ 65 $ (124) 
Interest rate and other 72 (2) 

Total derivative conttacts designated as hedging instraments . . . . 137 (126) 

Derivative conttacts not designated as hedging instraments* 
Commodity 
Foreign exchange 
Other 

Total derivative contracts not designated as hedging 
instraments 3,216 (3,196) 

Gross fair value of derivative conttacts 3,353 (3,322) 
Master netting arrangements (2,750) 2,750 
Cash collateral (received) posted (34) 5 

Net fair value of derivative conttacts $ 569 $ (567) 

December 31,2011 
Derivative conttacts designated as hedging instraments 

Conunodity $ 181 $ (216) 
Interest rate and other 61 (3) 

Total derivative conttacts designated as hedging instraments . . . . 242 (219) 

Derivative conttacts not designated as hedging instraments* 
Conunodity 
Foreign exchange 
Otiier 

Total derivative conttacts not designated as hedging 
instraments 9,368 (9,868) 

Gross fair value of derivative conttacts 9,610 (10,087) 
Master netting arrangements (7,962) 7,962 
Cash collateral (received) posted (121) 117 

Net fan- value of derivative conttacts $ 1,527 $ (2,008) 

* Includes trading derivatives and derivatives used for risk management. 

The Corporation generally enters into master netting artangements to mitigate counterparty credit risk. 
Master netting arrangements are standardized conttacts that govem all specified ttansactions with the same 
counterparty and allow the Corporation to terminate all conttacts upon occurtence of certain events, such as the 
counterparty's default or bankraptcy. Where these arrangements provide the right of offset and the Corporation's 
intent and practice is to offset amounts in the case of conttact terminations, the Corporation records fair value on 
a net basis. 
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The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value measurements accounting standard 
which established a hierarchy that categorizes the somces of inputs, which generally range from quoted prices for 
identical instraments in a principal ttading market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data 
(Level 3). The Corporation's net physical derivative and financial assets and (liabilities) that are measured at fah 
value based on this hierarchy were as follows: 

Collateral 
and 

counterparty 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Balance 

(In millions) 
December 31,2012 

Assets 
Derivative conttacts 

Commodity $ 94 $ 445 $ 243 $ (190) $ 592 
Interest rate and other 6 86 1 (1) 92 
Collateral and counterparty nettuig (23) (54) (4) (34) (115) 

Total derivative conttacts 77 477 240 (225) 569 
Other assets measmed at fair value on a recurring basis . . 5 49 — (2) 52 

Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis . . $ 82 $ 526 $ 240 $ (227) $ 621 
Liabilities 

Derivative conttacts 
Commodity $ (83) $ (657) $ (101) $ 190 $ (651) 
Other (1) (2) — 1 (2) 
Collateral and counterparty netting 23 54 4 5 86 

Total derivative conttacts (61) (605) (97) 196 (567) 
Other liabilities measmed at fair value on a recurring 

basis (40) (2) (2) 2 (42) 
Total liabilities measmed at fan: value on a recurring 

basis $ (101) $ (607) $ (99) $ 198 $ (609) 
Other fair value measurement disclosmes 

Long-term debt* $ — $(8,887) $ — $ — $(8,887) 
December 31,2011 

Assets 
Derivative conttacts 

Commodity $ 135 $1,188 $ 511 $ (67) $ 1,767 
Interest rate and other — 66 — — 66 
Collateral and counterparty netting (33) (148) (4) (121) (306) 

Total derivative conttacts 102 1,106 507 (188) 1,527 
Other assets measmed at fair value on a recurring basis . . 7 34 — (2) 39 

Total assets measmed at fair value on a recurring basis . . $ 109 $1,140 $ 507 $ (190) $1,566 

Liabilities 
Derivative conttacts 

Commodity $ (191) $(1,501) $ (650) $ 67 $(2,275) 
Foreign exchange — (15) — — (15) 
Other — (18) (2) — (20) 
Collateral and counterparty nettuig 33 148 4 117 302 

Total derivative conttacts (158) (1,386) (648) 184 (2,008) 
Other liabilities measmed at fair value on a recurring 

basis — (52) (2) 2 (52) 
Total liabilities measmed at fan value on a recurring 

basis $ (158) $(1,438) $ (650) $ 186 $(2,060) 

Other fair value measmement disclosures 
Long-term debt* $ — $(7,317) $ — $ — $(7,317) 

* Long-term debt, including current maturities, had a carrying value of $7,361 million and $6,040 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. 
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In addition to the financial assets and (liabilities) disclosed in the tables above, the Corporation had other 
short-term financial instraments, primarily cash equivalents and accounts receivable and payable, for which the 
carrying value approximated their fair value at December 31,2012 and December 31, 2011. 

The following table provides total net transfers into and out of each level of the fair value hierarchy: 

2012 2011 

Transfers into Level 1 $ 
Transfers out of Level 1 

Transfers into Level 2 $ 
Transfers out of Level 2 

Transfers into Level 3 $ 
Transfers out of Level 3 

The Corporation's policy is to recognize ttansfers in and ttansfers out as of the end of the reporting period. 
Transfers between levels result from the passage of time as contracts move closer to their maturities, fluctuations 
in the market liquidity for certain conttacts and/or changes in the level of significance of fair value measurement 
inputs. 

The following table provides changes in physical derivative and financial assets and liabilities that are 
measmed at fan value based on Level 3 inputs: 

2012 2011 
(In millions) 

Balance at January 1 $ (143) $ 412 
Umealized pre-tax gains (losses) 

Included in eamings (a) (78) (52) 
Included in other comprehensive income (b) 44 25 

Purchases (c) 247 2,294 
Sales (c) (266) (2,524) 
Settlements (d) 271 (115) 
Transfers into Level 3 99 (114) 
Transfers out of Level 3 (33) (69) 

Balance at December 31 $ 141 $ (143) 

(a) The unrealized pre-tax gains (losses) included in earnings for 2012 are comprised of $(44) million refiected in Sales and other operating 
revenues and $(34) million reflected in Cost of products sold in the Statement of Consolidated Income. 

(b) The unrealized pre-tax gains (losses) included in Other comprehensive income are reflected in the Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges in the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income. 

(c) Purchases and sales primarily represent option premiums paid or received, respectively, during the reporting period. 

(d) Settlements represent realized gains and (losses) on derivatives settled during the reporting period. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements for the Corporation's physical 
commodity contracts and derivative instraments primarily include less liquid delivered locations for physical 
commodity contracts or volatility assumptions for out-of-the-money options. The following table provides 
information about the Corporation's significant recurring unobservable inputs used in the Level 3 fair value 
measmements. Fair value measmements for all recurring inputs were performed using a combination of market 
and income approach techniques. Natural gas conttacts are usually quoted and ttansacted using basis pricing 
relative to an active pricing location (e.g., Henry Hub), for which price inputs represent the approximate value of 
differences in geography and local market conditions. All other price inputs below represent full contract prices. 
Significant changes in any of the inputs below, independent or correlated, may result in a different fair value. 
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Unit of 
Measurement Range / Weighted Average 

December 31,2012 
Assets 
Commodity contracts with a fan value of $243 million 

Contract prices 
Crade oil and refined pettoleum products $ / bbl (a) $79.35 - 144.27 / 113.06 
Electricity $/MWH(b) $23.37-79.27/40.81 

Basis prices 
Natmal gas $ / MMBTU (c) $(0.47) - 6.66 / 0.39 

Conttact volatilities 
Crade oil and refined pettoleum products % 23.00 - 27.00 / 26.00 
Natmal gas % 21.00 - 36.00 / 25.00 
Electricity % 18.00-40.00/28.00 

Liabilities 
Commodity contracts with a fair value of $101 million 

Contract prices 
Crade oil and refined pettoleum products $ / bbl (a) $83.49 - 133.38 / 109.94 
Electticity $ / MWH (b) $25.01 - 72.60 / 40.38 

Basis prices 
Natural gas $ / MMBTU (c) $(0.72) -6.66/1.26 

Contract volatilities 
Crade oil and refined pettoleum products % 24.00 - 27.00 / 26.00 
Natmal gas % 21.00-28.00/22.00 

(a) Price per barrel. 
(b) Price per megawatt hour. 
(c) Price per million British thermal units. 

Credit Risk: The Corporation is exposed to credit risks that may at times be concenttated with certain 
counterparties, groups of counterparties or customers. Accounts receivable are generated from a diverse domestic 
and intemational customer base. The Corporation's net receivables at December 31, 2012 are concenttated with 
the following counterparty and customer industry segments: Integrated Oil Companies —23%, Refiners —15%, 
Govemment Entities —11%, Real Estate —8%, Services —8% and Manufactming —6%. The Corporation 
reduces its risk related to certain counterparties by using master netting anangements and requhing collateral, 
generally cash or letters of credit. The Corporation records the cash collateral received or posted as an offset to 
the fair value of derivatives executed with the same counterparty. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the 
Corporation held cash from counterparties of $34 million and $121 million, respectively. The Corporation posted 
cash to counterparties at December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $5 million and $117 million, respectively. 

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation had outstanding letters of credit totaling $746 milhon, primarily issued 
to satisfy margin requirements. Certain of the Corporation's agreements also contain contingent collateral 
provisions that could require the Corporation to post additional collateral if the Corporation's credit rating declines. 
As of December 31, 2012, the net liability related to derivatives with contingent collateral provisions was 
approximately $435 million. There was no cash collateral posted on those derivatives. At December 31, 2012, aU 
three major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation's debt had assigned an investment grade rating. If two of 
the three agencies were to downgrade the Corporation's rating to below investment grade, as of December 31, 2012, 
the Corporation would be required to post additional collateral of approximately $275 million. 
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21. Subsequent Events 

In January 2013, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Beryl fields in the United 
Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of approximately $440 million. The Corporation announced in January 
2013 its decision to cease refining operations at its Port Reading facility in Febraary and pursue the sale of its 
terminal network. 

On January 29, 2013, Elliott Management Corporation (Elliott) sent a letter to Hess shareholders informing 
them that affiliates of EUiott beneficially own 4 percent of the outstanding common stock of the Corporation and 
are nominating five individuals for election as directors at the Corporation's 2013 Annual Meeting. Among other 
things, Elliott stated its view that Hess should (1) spin off the Corporation's Bakken assets along with the Eagle 
Ford and Utica acreage; (2) divest the Corporation's downstteam assets and place midstteam assets into a master 
limited partnership (MLP) or real estate investment tmst (REIT) stmcture; and (3) divest assets from the 
Corporation's remaining intemational portfolio. The Corporation is in the process of reviewing Elliott's 
proposals with the Board and its advisors and intends to respond in the near future. 
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The Supplementary Oil and Gas Data that follows is presented in accordance with ASC 932, Disclosures 
about Oil and Gas Producing Activities, and includes (1) costs incurred, capitalized costs and results of 
operations relating to oil and gas producing activities, (2) net proved oil and gas reserves and (3) a standardized 
measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves, including a reconciliation of 
changes therein. 

The Corporation produces cmde oil, natmal gas liquids and/or natmal gas principally in Algeria, Azerbaijan, 
Denmark, Equatorial Guinea, Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Russia, Thailand, the United Kingdom and 
the United States. Exploration activities are also conducted, or are planned, in additional countries. 

Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities 

United Europe Asia and 
For the Years Ended December 31 Total States (d) Africa Other 

(In millions) 

2012 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $ 267 $ 179 $ 78 $ — $ 10 
Proved — — — — — 

Exploration (b) 1,089 405 89 260 335 
Production and development capital expenditures (c) 7,505 4,236 1,792 506 971 

2011 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $ 1,224 $ 992 $ — $ — $ 232 
Proved 122 6 116 — — 

Exploration (b) 1,325 525 98 292 410 
Production and development capital expenditures (c) 5,645 2,951 1,734 189 771 

2010 
Property acquisitions (a, e) 

Unproved $ 1,887 $ 1,849 $ 38 $ — $ — 
Proved 1,015 443 572 — — 

Exploration (b) 915 185 58 164 508 
Production and development capital expenditures (c) 2,654 1,088 850 289 427 

(a) Includes wells, equipment and facilities acquired with proved reserves and excludes properties acquired in non-cash property 
exchanges. 

(b) Includes $319 million, $432 million and $64 million of exploration costs incurred for unconventional assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

(c) Includes $715 million, $972 million and $62 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to the accruals and revisions for asset 
retirement obligations except obligations acquired in non-cash property exchanges. 

(d) Costs incurred in oil and gas producing activities in Norway, excluding non-monetary exchanges, were as follows for the years ended 
December 31: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $ — $ — $ 1 4 
Proved — — 572 

Exploration — 10 12 
Production and development capital expenditures* 1,081 741 469 

* Includes accruals and revisions for asset retirement obligations except obligations acquired in non-cash property exchanges. 

(e) In 2010, acquisitions include $652 million, representing the non-cash portion of the purchase price for American Oil & Gas Inc., 
primarily through the issuance of common stock. 
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Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities 
At December 31, 

2012 2011 

(In millions) 

Unproved properties $ 3,558 $ 4,064 
Proved properties 4,072 3,975 
Wells, equipment and related facilities 35,385 29,239 

Total costs 43,015 37,278 
Less: Reserve for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment . . 15,558 13,900 

Net capitalized costs $27,457 $23,378 

Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities 
The results of operations shown below exclude non-oil and gas producing activities, primarily gains on sales 

of oil and gas properties, interest expense, gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions and 
other non-operating income. Therefore, these results are on a different basis than the net income from E&P 
operations reported in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
and in Note 18, Segment Information in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

United Europe Asia and 
For the Years Ended December 31 Total States (a) Africa Other (b) 

(In millions) 
2012 
Sales and other operating revenues 

Unaffihated customers $ 10,818 $ 4,029 $ 2,460 $ 2,545 $ 1,784 
Inter-company 75 75 — — — 

Total revenues 10,893 4,104 2,460 2,545 1,784 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 2,752 957 1,013 406 376 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment . . . 1,070 426 71 84 489 
General, administtative and other expenses 314 196 46 17 55 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,853 1,406 466 528 453 
Asset impakments 582 432 119 — 31 

Total costs and expenses 7,571 3,417 1,715 1,035 1,404 

Results of operations before income taxes 3,322 687 745 1,510 380 
Provision for income taxes 1,664 269 334 905 156 

Results of operations $ 1,658 $ 418 $ 411 $ 605 $ 224 

2011 
Sales and other operating revenues 

Unaffiliated customers $ 9,931 $ 3,255 $ 3,019 $ 2,081 $ 1,576 
Inter-company 116 116 — — — 

Total revenues 10,047 3,371 3,019 2,081 1,576 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 2,352 660 968 383 341 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment . . . 1,195 475 76 231 413 
General, administtative and other expenses 313 190 56 17 50 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,305 800 588 502 415 
Asset impairments 358 16 342 — — 

Total costs and expenses 6,523 2,141 2,030 1,133 1,219 
Results of operations before income taxes 3,524 1,230 989 948 357 

Provision for income taxes 1,300 473 522 230 75 
Results of operations $ 2,224 $ 757 $ 467 $ 718 $ 282 
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For the Years Ended December 31 

2010 
Sales and other operating revenues 

Unaffiliated customers 
Inter-company 

Total revenues 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment 
General, administrative and other expenses 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Asset impairments 

Total costs and expenses 

Results of operations before income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Results of operations 

Total 

$ 8,601 
143 

8,744 

1,924 
865 
281 

2,222 
532 

5,824 

2,920 
1,425 

$ 1,495 

United 
States 

( 

$ 2,310 
143 

2,453 

489 
364 
161 
649 

1,663 

790 
305 

$ 485 

Europe 
(a) 

In millions) 

$ 2,251 

2,251 

727 
49 
48 

463 

1,287 

964 
477 

$ 487 

Africa 

$ 2,750 

2,750 

455 
143 
20 

772 
532 

1,922 

828 
580 

$ 248 

Asia and 
Other (b) 

$ 1,290 

1,290 

253 
309 
52 

338 

952 

338 
63 

$ 275 

(a) Results of operations for oil and gas producing activities in Norway were as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2012 2011 2010 

(In millions) 
Sales and other operating revenues—Unaffiliated customers $518 $996 $524 
Costs and expenses 

Production expenses, including related taxes 302 290 149 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment — 10 12 
General, administrative and other expenses 10 9 9 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 139 232 133 

Total costs and expenses 451 541 303 

Results of operations before income taxes 67 455 221 
Provision for income taxes (82) 295 154 

Results of operations $149 $160 $ 67 

(b) Excludes a 2012 income tax charge of $86 million for a disputed application of an international tax treaty. 

Oil and Gas Reserves 

The Corporation's proved oil and gas reserves are calculated in accordance with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) regulations and the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board. Proved oil and gas 
reserves are quantities, which by analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estunated with reasonable 
certainty to be economically producible from known reservoirs under existing economic conditions, operating methods 
and govemment regulations. The Coiporation's estimation of net recoverable quantities of liquid hydrocarbons and 
natmal gas is a highly technical process performed by intemal teams of geoscience professionals and reservoir 
engineers. Estimates of reserves were prepared by the use of appropriate geologic, pettoleum engineering, and 
evaluation principals and techniques that are in accordance with practices generally recognized by the pettoleum 
industry as presented in the pubhcation of the Society of Pettoleum Engineers entitied "Standards Pertaining to the 
Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Information (Revision as of Febraary 19, 2007)." The method or 
combination of methods used in the analysis of each reservoir is based on the maturity of the reservoir, the 
completeness of the subsurface data available at the time of the estimate, the stage of reservoir development and the 
production history. Where apphcable, reliable technologies may be used in reserve estimation, as defined in the SEC 
regulations. These technologies, including computational methods, must have been field tested and demonsttated to 
provide reasonably certain results with consistency and repeatability in the formation being evaluated or in an 
analogous formation. In order for reserves to be classified as proved, any required govemment approvals must be 
obtained and depending on the cost of the project, either senior management or the board of directors must commit to 
fund the development. The Corporation's proved reserves are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which are 
discussed in Item lA, Risk Factors Related to Om Business and Operations of this Form 10-K. 
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Internal Controls 

The Corporation maintains intemal conttols over its oil and gas reserve estimation process which are 
administered by the Corporation's Senior Vice President of E&P Technology and its Chief Financial Officer. 
Estimates of reserves are prepared by technical staff that work directly with the oil and gas properties using 
standard reserve estimation guidelines, definitions and methodologies. Each year, reserve estimates for a 
selection of the Corporation's assets are subject to intemal technical audits and reviews. In addition, an 
independent thhd party reserve engineer reviews and audits a significant portion of the Corporation's reported 
reserves (see below). Reserve estimates are reviewed by senior management and the board of directors. 

Qualifications 

The person primarily responsible for overseeing the preparation ofthe Corporation's oil and gas reserves is 
Mr. Scott Heck, Senior Vice President of E&P Technology. Mr. Heck is a member of the Society of Petroleum 
Engineers and has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas industry with a BS degree in Pettoleum 
Engineering. His experience includes over 15 years primarily focused on oil and gas subsurface understanding 
and reserves estimation in both domestic and intemational areas. The Corporation's upstream technology 
organization, which Mr. Heck manages, focuses on oil and gas industry subsurface and reservoir engineering 
technologies and evaluation techniques. Mr. Heck is also responsible for the Corporation's Global Reserves 
group, which is the intemal organization responsible for establishing the policies and processes used within the 
operating units to estimate reserves and perform intemal technical reserve audits and reviews. 

Reserves Audit 

The Corporation engaged the consulting firm of DeGolyer and MacNaughton (D&M) to perform an audit of 
the intemally prepared reserve estimates on certain fields aggregating 76% of 2012 year-end reported reserve 
quantities on a barrel of oil equivalent basis (81% in 2011). The purpose of this audit was to provide additional 
assurance on the reasonableness of intemally prepared reserve estimates and compliance with SEC regulations. 
The D&M letter report, dated January 31, 2013, on the Corporation's estimated oil and gas reserves was prepared 
using standard geological and engineering methods generally recognized in the pettoleum industry. D&M is an 
independent pettoleum engineering consulting firm that has been providing pettoleum consulting services 
throughout the world for over 70 years. D&M's letter report on the Corporation's December 31, 2012 oil and gas 
reserves is included as an exhibit to this Form lO-K. While the D&M report should be read in its entirety, the 
report concludes that for the properties reviewed by D&M, the total net proved reserve estimates prepared by 
Hess and audited by D&M, in the aggregate, differed by approximately 1% of total audited net proved reserves 
on a barrel of oil equivalent basis. The report also includes among other information, the qualifications of the 
technical person primarily responsible for overseeing the reserve audit. 

Following are the Corporation's proved reserves: 

Net Proved Developed and Undeveloped 
Reserves 
At January 1, 2010 249 
Revisions of previous estimates (a) . 
Extensions, discoveries and other 

additions 
Improved recovery 
Purchases of minerals in place 
Sales of minerals in place 
Production (f) (32) 

At December 31, 2010 

Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids 

United Europe 
States (g) Africa Asia 

(Millions of barrels) 

249 330 314 74 
68 14 22 (1) 

3 19 — 1 

16 150 — — 
— (13) (25) (5) 

(32) (34) (41) (5) 

304 466 270 64 

Total 

967 (b) 
103 

23 

166 
(43) 

(112) 

1,104 (b) 

United 
States 

306 
(7) 

14 

13 

(46) 

280 

Natural Gas 

Asia 
Europe and 

(g) Africa (h) 

(Millions of mcf) 

642 
(9) 

15 

129 
(4) 

(54) 

719 

1,873 
(23) 

1 

_ 
(89) 

(163) 

1,599 

Total 

2,821 
(39) 

30 

142 
(93) 

(263) 

2,598 
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Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids 

United Europe 
States (g) Africa Asia Total 

Natural Gas 

Asia 
Europe and 

(g) Africa (h) Total 
United 
States 

(Millions of barrels) 
Revisions of previous estimates (a) . . . . 33 59 (1) (7) 84 
Extensions, discoveries and other 

additions 70 7 5 — 82 
Improved recovery — — — — — 
Pmchases of minerals in place — 3 — — 3 
Sales of minerals in place — (7) — — (7) 
Production (f) _(34) _(34) _(24) _(5) (97) 

At December 31,2011 373 494 250 52 1,169 (b) 

Revisions of previous estimates (a) . . . . 32 (16) (5) 1 12 
Extensions, discoveries and other 

additions 108 18 17 1 144 
Improved recovery 7 — — — 7 
Pmchases of minerals in place — — — — — 
Sales of minerals in place (2) (49) — — (51) 
Production (f) _(45) _(31) _(28) _(6) (110) 

At December 31,2012 473 416 234 48 1,171 (b) 

Net Proved Developed Reserves (d) 
At January 1,2010 154 171 241 27 593 
At December 31,2010 180 210 215 22 627 
At December 31,2011 190 212 194 25 621 
At December 31,2012 280 181 188 27 676 

Net Proved Undeveloped Reserves (e) 
At January 1,2010 95 159 73 47 374 
At December 31,2010 124 256 55 42 477 
At December 31,2011 183 282 56 27 548 
At December 31,2012 193 235 46 21 495 

36 

85 

(Millions of mcf) 
7 69 112 

85 

1 6 
- (135) 

(42) (34) 

360 

- (135) 
(168) (244) 

563 1,500 2,423 

10 4 42 56 

76 1 171 248 
4 — — 4 

— (192) — (192) 
(50) (19) (175) (244) 
400 (c) 357 1,538 2,295 

205 
199 
199 
232 

417 
424 
273 
190 

923 1,545 
692 1,315 
740 1,212 
798 1,220 

101 
81 

161 
168 

225 
295 
290 
167 

950 1,276 
907 1,283 
760 1,211 
740 1,075 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(fi 

Includes the impact of changes in selling prices on the reserve estimates for production sharing contracts with cost recovery provisions. 
Revisions included reductions to crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids reserves of 2 million barrels, 11 million barrels and 
11 million barrels in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, resulting from higher selling prices. Revisions also included reductions to 
natural gas reserves of 2 million mcf, 83 million mcf and 62 million mcf in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, resulting from higher 
selling prices. 

Includes 8 million barrels in 2012, 10 million barrels in 2011 and 15 million barrels in 2010 of crude oil reserves relating to a 
noncontrolling interest owner of a corporate joint venture. 

Excludes approximately 290 million mcf of carbon dioxide gas for sale or use in company operations. 

Natural gas liquids net proved developed reserves were 76 million barrels, 56 million barrels and 54 million barrels at December 31, 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and 41 million barrels at January 1, 2010. Natural gas liquids net proved developed reserves in the 
United States were 82%}, 74% and 72%o at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Natural gas liquids net proved developed 
reserves in Norway were 10%, 16% and 17% at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Natural gas liquids net proved undeveloped reserves were 60 million barrels, 57 million barrels and 48 million barrels at December 31, 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and 30 million barrels at January I, 2010. Natural gas liquids net proved undeveloped reserves in 
the United States were 72%, 67% and 58% at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Natural gas liquids net proved 
undeveloped reserves in Norway were 25%, 28%} and 28%c at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Natural gas production includes volumes used for fuel. 
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(g) Proved reserves in Norway were as follows: 
Crude Oil, Condensate & 

Naturai Gas liquids Natural Gas 

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 

(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) 
At January 1 293 264 136 388 404 287 
Revisions of previous estimates — 40 (16) 1 (4) (1) 
Purchases of minerals in place — — 150 — — 130 
Sales of minerals in place (5) (3) — (165) — — 
Production (4) (8) (6) (5) (12) (12) 

At December 31 284 293 264 219 388 404 

Net Proved Developed Reserves at December 31 102 108 97 73 137 157 
Net Proved Undeveloped Reserves at December 31 182 185 167 146 251 247 

(h) Natural gas reserves in Africa were 142 million mcf in 2012, 71 million mcf in 2011 and 63 million mcf in 2010. 

Proved undeveloped reserves 
The December 31, 2012 oil and gas reserve estimates disclosed above include 495 million barrels of liquid 

hydrocarbons and 1,075 million mcf of natural gas, or an aggregate of 674 million barrels of oil equivalent (boe), 
classified as proved undeveloped reserves. Overall volumes of proved undeveloped reserves decreased by 
76 million boe compared with year-end 2011. Additions and revisions in proved undeveloped reserves from 
existing fields amounted to 37 million boe, primarily in the United States, Indonesia and Russia. These increases 
resulted from ongoing technical assessments, performance evaluations and development activities. In 2012, 
55 million boe were converted from proved undeveloped reserves to proved developed reserves resulting from 
continuing development activity and new wells principally in North Dakota, Texas and the Gulf of Mexico in the 
United States, Libya, Indonesia, Equatorial Guinea and at the Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand 
(JDA). The Corporation estimates that capital expenditures of $734 million were incurred to convert proved 
undeveloped reserves to proved developed reserves during 2012. Dispositions of assets in 2012 further reduced 
proved undeveloped reserves by 59 million boe. 

The Corporation is involved in multiple long-term projects that have staged developments. Certain of these 
projects have proved reserves, which have been classified as undeveloped for a period in excess of five years, 
totaling 103 million boe or 7% of total 2012 proved reserves. Most ofthe proved undeveloped reserves in excess 
of five years relate to five offshore producing assets. As discussed below, natmal gas projects at the JDA, Natuna 
and Pangkah are being developed in phases to meet long-term natmal gas sales conttacts and oil and gas projects 
at the Valhall Field in Norway and the Azeri-Churag-Guneshli fields in Azerbaijan are being developed in phases. 
A summary ofthe development status of each ofthe five projects follows: 

• JDA — This natural gas project in the Gulf of Thailand currently has a centtal processing platform and 
nine wellhead platforms. Two additional wellhead platforms are currently under constraction and the 
twelfth is in the process of being sanctioned. In addition, a major investment in compression equipment 
was sanctioned in 2012. 

• Natuna A — This natural gas project offshore Sumatta, Indonesia currently has two wellhead 
platforms, two central processing facilities and a floating storage and offloading vessel. Additional 
wellhead platforms and subsea well tie-backs are planned to satisfy gas sales contracts. 

• Pangkah — This natural gas and oil project offshore Java, Indonesia currently has a centtal processing 
platform, accommodation and utility platform, two producing offshore wellhead platforms and onshore 
production facilities. Further development drilling is planned. 

• Valhall — The multi-year Valhall Redevelopment project (VRD) was completed in early 2013. The 
project included the installation of a new production, utilities and accommodation platform, and 
expansion of gross production capacity to 120,000 barrels of liquids per day and 143,000 mcf of 
natmal gas per day. In July 2012, the field was shut-in to complete the installation and commissioning 
of the new facilities and production resumed in January 2013. The operator plans a multi-year 
development drilling program commencing in 2013. 

• Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli — This oil project offshore Azerbaijan in the Caspian Sea has seven 
operational platforms that have been completed over multiple phases of development. This asset is 
classified as held for sale at December 31, 2012. 
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Production sharing contracts 

The Corporation's proved reserves include crade oil and natural gas reserves relating to long-term 
agreements with govemments or authorities in which the Corporation has the legal right to produce or has a 
revenue interest in the production. Proved reserves from these production sharing contracts for each of the three 
years ended December 31, 2012 are presented separately below, as well as volumes produced and received 
during 2012, 2011 and 2010 from these production sharing contracts. 

Production Sharing Contracts 
Proved Reserves* 

At December 31, 2010 . . . 
At December 31, 2011 . . . 
At December 31, 2012 . . . 

Production 
2010 
2011 
2012 

United 
States 

— 
— 

— 

Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids 

Europe Africa Asia 

(Millions of barrels) 

— 108 
— 89 
— 76 

— 33 
— 23 
— 20 

57 
46 
40 

4 
4 
6 

Total 

165 
135 
116 

37 
27 
26 

United 
States 

— 
— 

— 

Natural Gas 

Asia 
and 

Europe Africa 

(Millions of mcf) 

— 1,316 
— 1,230 
— 1,183 

— 130 
— 136 
— 137 

Total 

1,316 
1,230 
1,183 

130 
136 
137 

* Includes natural gas liquids of 5 million barrels in 2012, 5 million barrels in 2011 and 7 million barrels in 2010. 

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves 

Futme net cash flows are calculated by applying prescribed oil and gas selling prices used in determining 
year-end reserve estimates (adjusted for price changes provided by conttactual arrangements) to estimated future 
production of proved oil and gas reserves, less estimated future development and production costs, which are 
based on year-end costs and existing economic assumptions. Futme income tax expenses are computed by 
applying the appropriate year-end statutory tax rates to the pre-tax net cash flows relating to the Corporation's 
proved oil and gas reserves. Future net cash flows are discounted at the prescribed rate of 10%. The discounted 
future net cash flow estimates do not include exploration expenses, interest expense or corporate general and 
administtative expenses. The selling prices of crade oil and natmal gas are highly volatile. The prices which are 
requhed to be used for the discounted future net cash flows do not include the effects of hedges and may not be 
representative of future selling prices. The future net cash flow estimates could be materially different if other 
assumptions were used. 
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United 
At December 31 Total States Europe* Africa Asia 

(In millions) 
2012 

Futme revenues $126,603 $39,900 $44,387 $27,162 $15,154 

Less: 
Futme production costs 32,529 12,603 13,277 3,547 3,102 
Future development costs 17,363 6,465 6,648 1,623 2,627 
Futme income tax expenses 44,201 7,686 16,273 17,510 2,732 

94,093 26,754 36,198 22,680 8,461 

Future net cash flows 32,510 13,146 8,189 4,482 6,693 
Less: Discount at 10% annual rate 11,951 5,906 2,683 1,109 2,253 
Standardized measme of discounted fiitme net cash flows $ 20,559 $ 7,240 $ 5,506 $ 3,373 $ 4,440 

2011 
Future revenues $126,874 $33,225 $50,876 $27,299 $15,474 
Less: 

Future production costs 31,517 9,220 16,020 3,455 2,822 
Future development costs 17,858 5,854 7,751 1,761 2,492 
Future income tax expenses 43,008 7,022 16,368 16,933 2,685 

92,383 22,096 40,139 22,149 7,999 

Futme net cash flows 34,491 11,129 10,737 5,150 7,475 
Less: Discount at 10% annual rate 14,753 6,190 4,599 1,488 2,476 
Standardized measure of discounted fiittire net cash flows $ 19,738 $ 4,939 $ 6,138 $ 3,662 $ 4,999 

2010 
Futme revenues $ 91,336 $21,112 $36,157 $21,150 $12,917 
Less: 

Futme production costs 21,635 6,155 9,536 3,332 2,612 
Future development costs 13,554 3,178 6,534 1,269 2,573 
Future income tax expenses 30,250 4,423 11,745 12,173 1,909 

65,439 13,756 27,815 16,774 7,094 

Future net cash flows 25,897 7,356 8,342 4,376 5,823 
Less: Discount at 10% annual rate 10,195 3,764 3,361 1,028 2,042 
Standardized measure of discounted fiittire net cash flows $ 15,702 $ 3,592 $ 4,981 $ 3,348 $ 3,781 
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At December 31, the standardized measure of discounted future net cashflows relating to proved reserves in Norway were as follows: 

Future revenues 
Less: 

Future production costs 
Future development costs 
Future income tax expenses 

Future net cashflows 
Less: Discount at 10% annual rate 
Standardized measure of discounted future net cashflows $ 3,170 

2012 

$33,974 

9,734 
4,507 

14,976 

29,217 

4,757 
1,587 

$ 3,170 

2011 

(In millions) 
$34,495 

10,596 
4,270 

13,247 

28.113 

6,382 
2,755 

$ 3,627 

2010 

$23,115 

4,399 
3,426 
9,908 

17,733 

5,382 
2,156 

$ 3.226 

Chaises in Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves 

For the Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 
(In millions) 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at January 1 $19,738 $15,702 $11,401 
Changes during the year 

Sales and ttansfers of oil and gas produced during the year, net of production 
costs (8,141) (7,695) (6,820) 

Development costs incurted during year 6,790 4,673 2,592 
Net changes in prices and production costs applicable to future production . . . . 1,678 9,233 7,970 
Net change in estimated futme development costs (2,181) (1,963) (1,678) 
Extensions and discoveries (including improved recovery) of oil and gas reserves, 

less related costs 3,612 1,040 356 
Revisions of previous oil and gas reserve estimates 1,890 2,587 1,885 
Net pmchases (sales) of minerals in place, before income taxes (1,856) (398) 3,193 
Accretion of discount 4,032 3,096 2,011 
Net change in mcome taxes (1,906) (5,234) (5,848) 
Revision in rate or timing of futme production and other changes (3,097) (1,303) 640 

Total 821 4,036 4,301 
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at December 31 $20,559 $19,738 $15,702 



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

QUARTERLY FINANCLVL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Following are quarterly results of operations: 

Sales and 
Other 

Operating 
Revenues 

2012 
Fnst $ 9,682 
Second 9,304 
Thnd 9,194 
Fourth 9,511 

2011 
Fnst $10,215 
Second 9,853 
Thu-d 8,665 
Fourth 9,733 

Gross 
Profit (a) 

Net 
Income (Loss) 
Attributable to 

Hess 
Corporation 

Net Income (Loss) 
Per Share 

Attributable to 
Hess Corporation 
Basic Diluted 

(In millions, except per share amounts) 

$ 1,357 
1,524 
1,207 
1,164 

$ 1,761 
1,536 

622 
1,417 

$ 545 (b) 
549 (c) 
557 (d) 
374 (e) 

$ 929 (f) 
607 
298 (g) 

(13I)(h) 

$1.61 
1.62 
1.65 
1.10 

$2.77 
1.80 
0.89 

(0.39) 

$1.60 
1.61 
1.64 
1.10 

$2.74 
1.78 
0.88 

(0.39) 

(a) Gross profit represents Sales and other operating revenues, less Cost of products sold. Production expenses. Marketing expenses. Other 
operating expenses. Depreciation, depletion and amortization and Asset impairments. 

(b) Includes an after-tax gain of $36 million related to an asset sale. 

(c) Includes an after-tea charge of $36 million related to an asset impairment. 

(d) Includes an after-tax gain of $349 million related to an asset sale, partially offset by after-tax charges of $116 million for a.sset 
impairments and $56 million to write off the Corporation's exploration assets in Peru and an income tax charge of $115 million to 
reflect a change in the United Kingdom supplementary income tax rate applicable to deductions for dismantlement expenditures. 

(e) Includes an after-tax charge of $192 million for an asset impairment, an income tax charge of $86 million and after-tax charges of $33 
million for asset impairments and other charges, partially offset by an after-tax gain of $172 million related to an asset sale and after-tax 
income of $104 million from the partial liquidation of LIFO inventories. 

(f) Includes an after-tax gain of $310 million related to asset sales. 

(g) Includes an after-tax charge of $140 million related to asset impairments and an income tax charge of $29 million for an increase in the 
United Kingdom supplementary tax rate, partially offset by after-tax gains of $103 million related to asset sales. 

(h) Includes an after-tax charge of $525 million related to the shutdown ofthe HOVENSA LLC. (HOVENSA) refinery in St. Croix, U.S. 
Virgin Islands. 

The results of operations for the periods reported herein should not be considered as indicative of future 
operating results. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Based upon their evaluation of the Corporation's disclosure conttols and procedmes (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of December 31, 2012, John B. Hess, Chief Executive Officer, 
and John P. Rielly, Chief Financial Officer, concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were 
effective as of December 31, 2012. 

There was no change in intemal conttols over financial reporting identified in the evaluation required by 
paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 in the quarter ended December 31, 2012 that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, intemal conttols over financial reporting. 

Management's report on intemal conttol over financial reporting and the attestation report on the 
Corporation's intemal conttols over financial reporting are included in Item 8 of this annual report on 
Form 10-K. 

Item 9B. Other Information 

None. 

PART HI 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 
Information relating to Directors is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of Directors" from the 

Registtant's definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 

The Corporation has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to the Corporation's 
directors, officers (including the Corporation's principal executive officer and principal financial officer) and 
employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on the Corporation's website. In the event that 
we amend or waive any of the provisions of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that relate to any element 
of the code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K, we intend to disclose the same on 
the Corporation's website at www.hess.com. 

Information relating to the audit committee is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of Directors" 
from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 
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Executive Officers of the Registrant 

The following table presents information as of Febraary 1, 2013 regarding executive officers of the 
Registrant: 

Year Individual 
Became an 
Executive 

Name Age Office Held* Officer 

John B. Hess 58 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and 1983 
Director 

Gregory P. Hill 51 Executive Vice President and President of Worldwide 2009 
Exploration and Production and Director 

F. Borden Walker 59 Executive Vice President and President of Marketing and 1996 
Refinmg and Director 

Timothy B. Goodell 55 Senior Vice President and General Counsel 2009 
Lawrence H. Ornstein . . . . 61 Senior Vice President 1995 
John P. Rielly 50 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2002 
John J. Scelfo 55 Senior Vice President 2004 
Mykel J. Ziolo 60 Senior Vice President 2009 
Robert M. Biglin 48 Vice President and Treasurer 2010 

* All officers referred to herein hold office in accordance with the By-laws until the first meeting of the Directors following the annual 
meeting of stockholders of the Registrant and until their successors shall have been duly chosen and qualified. Each of .said officers was 
elected to the office opposite his name on May 2, 2012. 

Except for Messrs. Hill and Goodell, each of the above officers has been employed by the Registrant or its 
subsidiaries in various managerial and executive capacities for more than five years. Mor to joining the 
Corporation, Mr. Hill served in senior executive positions in exploration and production operations at Royal 
Dutch Shell and its subsidiaries, where he was employed for 25 years. Before joining the Corporation in 2009, 
Mr. Goodell was a partner in the law firm of White & Case LLP. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information relating to executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of 
Directors — Executive Compensation and Other Information," from the Registtant's definitive proxy statement 
for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters 

Information pertaining to secmity ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated 
herein by reference to "Election of Directors — Ownership of Voting Securities by Certain Beneficial Owners" 
and "Election of Directors — Ownership of Equity Securities by Management" from the Registtant's definitive 
proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 

See Equity Compensation Plans in Item 5 for information pertaining to securities authorized for issuance 
under equity compensation plans. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Information relating to this item is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of Directors" from the 
Registtant's definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

Information relating to this item is incorporated by reference to "Ratification of Selection of Independent 
Auditors" from the Registrant's definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. 
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PART IV 
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 
(a) 1. and 2. Financial statements and financial statement schedules 

The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the accompanying 
index to financial statements and schedules in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

3. Exhibits 
3(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registtant, including amendment thereto dated 

May 3, 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of Registtant's Form 10-Q for the 
three months ended June 30, 2006. 

3(2) By-laws of Registtant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(1) of Form 8-K of Registtant 
dated Febraary 2, 2011. 

4(1) Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of April 14, 2011, among Registtant, certain 
subsidiaries of Registtant, J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as lender and administtative agent, 
and the other lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(1) of Form 8-K 
of Registrant dated April 14, 2011. 

4(2) Indentme dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registtant and The Chase Manhattan Bank, 
as Trastee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) of Form 10-Q of Registtant for the 
three months ended September 30,1999. 

4(3) Furst Supplemental Indentme dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registtant and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank, as Trastee, relating to Registtant's 7^8% Notes due 2009 and 1''!^% Notes 
due 2029, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Form 10-Q of Registtant for the 
three months ended September 30, 1999. 

4(4) Prospectus Supplement dated August 8, 2001 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to 
Registtant's 5.30% Notes due 2004, 5.90% Notes due 2006, 6.65% Notes due 2011 and 
7.30% Notes due 2031, incorporated by reference to Registrant's prospectus filed pursuant to 
Rule 424(b)(2) under the Secmities Act of 1933 on August 9, 2001. 

4(5) Prospectus Supplement dated Febraary 28, 2002 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating 
to Registrant's 7.125% Notes due 2033, incorporated by reference to Registrant's prospectus 
filed pmsuant to Rule 424(b)(2) under the Secmities Act of 1933 on March 1, 2002. 

4(6) Indenture dated as of March 1, 2006 between Registtant and The Bank of New York Mellon 
as successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trastee, including form of Note. Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4 to Registtant's Form S-3ASR filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on March 1, 2006. 

4(7) Form of 2014 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among 
Registtant and The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase as Trastee. 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to Registtant's Form 8-K filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on Febraary 4, 2009. 

4(8) Form of 2019 Note issued pmsuant to Indentme, dated as of March 1, 2006, among 
Registtant and The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trastee. 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Registtant's Form 8-K filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on Febraary 4, 2009. 

4(9) Form of 6.00% Note, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registtant 
filed on December 15, 2009. 

4(10) Form of 5.60% Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registtant 
filed on August 12, 2010. Other instraments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt 
of Registtant and its consolidated subsidiaries are not being filed since the total amount of 
securities authorized under each such instrament does not exceed 10 percent of the total 
assets of Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Registtant agrees to fumish 
to the Commission a copy of any instraments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt 
of Registtant and its subsidiaries upon request. 

10(1) Extension and Amendment Agreement between the Govemment of the Virgin Islands and 
Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-Q of 
Registtant for the three months ended June 30, 1981. 

10(2) Restated Second Extension and Amendment Agreement dated July 27, 1990 between Hess 
Oil Virgin Islands Corp. and the Govemment of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 19 of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended September 30,1990. 
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10(3) Technical Clarifying Amendment dated as of November 17, 1993 to Restated 
Second Extension and Amendment Agreement between the Govemment of the Virgin 
Islands and Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(3) of 
Form 10-K of Registtant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993. 

10(4) Third Extension and Amendment Agreement dated April 15, 1998 and effective October 30, 
1998 among Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp., PDVSA V.I., Inc., HOVENSA L.L.C. and the 
Govemment of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-K 
of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 

10(5)* Incentive Cash Bonus Plan description incorporated by reference to Item 5.02 of Form 8-K 
of Registrant filed on March 13, 2012. 

10(6)* Financial Counseling Program description incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(6) of 
Form lO-K of Registtant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. 

10(7)* Hess Corporation Savings and Stock Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(7) 
of Form 10-K of Registtant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. 

10(8)* Performance Incentive Plan for Senior Officers, as amended, as approved by stockholders on 
May 4, 2011, incorporated by reference to Annex A to the definitive proxy statement ofthe 
Registtant dated March 25, 2011. 

10(9)* Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan dated January 19,1990 incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10(9) of Form 10-K of Registtant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989. 

10(10)* Amendment dated December 31, 2006 to Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(10) of Form 10-K of Registtant for fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2006. 

10(11)* Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2001 between Registtant and John P. Rielly relating to 
Mr. Rielly's participation ui the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan, incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(18) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,2002. 

10(12)* Second Amended and Restated 1995 Long-term Incentive Plan, including forms of awards 
thereunder incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(11) of Form 10-K of Registtant for fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2004. 

10(13)* 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to Registtant's 
definitive proxy statement filed on March 27, 2008. 

10(14)* Fkst Amendment dated March 3, 2010 and approved May 5, 2010 to Registtant's 2008 
Long-term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B of Registrant's definitive 
proxy statement dated March 25, 2010. 

10(15)* Forms of Awards under Registtant's 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(14) of Registtant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

10(16)* Form of Performance Award Agreement under Registtant's 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(2) of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on March 13, 
2012. 

10(17)* Modified Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Registtant's 2008 Long-term 
Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(3) of Form 8-K of Registtant filed on 
March 13, 2012. 

10(18)* Second Amendment dated March 23, 2012 and approved May 2, 2012 to Registtant's 2008 
Long-term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex A of Registtant's definitive 
proxy statement dated March 23, 2012. 

10(19)* Compensation program description for non-employee directors, incorporated by reference to 
Item 1.01 of Form 8-K of Registtant filed on January 4, 2007. 

10(20)* Amended and Restated Change of Conttol Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of 
May 29, 2009 between Registrant and F. Borden Walker, incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10(1) of Form 10-Q of Registtant for the three months ended June 30, 2009. A 
substantially identical agreement (differing only in the signatories thereto) was entered into 
between Registtant and John B. Hess. 

10(21)* Change of Conttol Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009 between 
Registtant and John P. Rielly incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(17) of Registtant's 
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. Substantially identical agreements 
(differing only in the signatories thereto) were entered into between Registtant and other 
executive officers (including the named executive officers, other than those referred to in 
Exhibit 10(17)). 

10(22)* Letter Agreement dated March 18, 2002 between Registtant and F. Borden Walker relating 
to Mr. Walker's participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registtant for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,2001. 
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10(23)* 

10(24)* 

10(25)* 

10(26) 

10(27) 

21 

23(1) 

23(2) 

31(1) 

31(2) 

32(1) 

32(2) 

99(1) 

lOl(INS) 

lOl(SCH) 

lOl(CAL) 

lOl(LAB) 

lOl(PRE) 

lOl(DEF) 

Agreement between Registrant and Gregory P. Hill relating to his compensation and other 
terms of employment, incorporated by reference to Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed 
January 7, 2009. 

Agreement between Registtant and Timothy B. Goodell relating to his compensation and 
other terms of employment incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(20) of Registtant's 
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. 
Deferred Compensation Plan of Registtant dated December 1, 1999 incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1999. 

Asset Purchase and Conttibution Agreement dated as of October 26, 1998, among 
PDVSA V.I., Inc., Hess Oil Vkgui Islands Corp. and HOVENSA L.L.C. (includuig Glossary 
of definitions) incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on 
November 13,1998. 

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of HOVENSA L.L.C. dated 
as of October 30, 1998 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K of Registtant 
filed on November 13,1998. 

Subsidiaries of Registtant. 
Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated 
Febraary 28, 2013, to the incorporation by reference in Registtant's Registtation Statements 
(Form S-3 No. 333-179744, and Form S-8 Nos. 333-43569, 333-94851, 333-115844, 
333-150992, 333-167076 and 333-181704), of its reports relating to Registtant's financial 
statements. 

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton dated Febraary 28, 2013. 

Certification requhed by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) 
(17CFR240.15d-14(a)). 

Certification requhed by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) 
(17CFR240.15d-14(a)). 

Certification requhed by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) 
(17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Tide 18 of the United States 
Code (18 U.S.C. 1350). 

Certification requhed by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) 
(17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Tide 18 of the United States 
Code (18 U.S.C. 1350). 
Letter report of DeGolyer and MacNaughton, Independent Pettoleum Engineering 
Consulting Firm, dated January 31, 2013, on proved reserves audit as of December 31, 2012 
of certain properties atttibutable to Registtant. 

XBRL Instance Document 

XBRL Schema Document 

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document 

XBRL Labels Linkbase Document 

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document 

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document 

* These exhibits relate to executive compensation plans and arrangements. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

Dming the three months ended December 31, 2012, Registtant filed or fumished the following report on 
Form 8-K: 

1. Filing dated November 2, 2012 reporting under Items 2.02 and 9.01, a news release dated November 2, 
2012 reporting results for the third quarter of 2012 and furnishing under Items 7.01 and 9.01 the 
prepared remarks of John B. Hess, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of 
Hess Corporation, at a public conference call held November 2,2012. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized, on the 28th day of February 2013. 

HESS CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

By /s/ JOHN P. RIELLY 

(John P. Rielly) 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed 
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature 

/s/ JOHN B. HESS 

/s/ 

/s/ 

/s/ 

/s/ 

/s/ 

John B. Hess 

SAMUEL W . BODMAN 

Samuel W. Bodman 

NICHOLAS F . BRADY 

Nicholas F. Brady 

GREGORY P. HILL 

Gregory P. Hill 

EDITH E . HOLIDAY 

Edith E. Holiday 

THOMAS H . KEAN 

Thomas H. Kean 

/s/ RISA LAVIZZO-MOUREY 

/s/ 

/s/ 

/s/ 

/s/ 

Risa Lavizzo-Mourey 

CRAIG G . MATTHEWS 

Craig G. Matthews 

JOHN H . MULLIN 

John H. Mullin 

SAMUEL A. NUNN 

Samuel A. Nunn 

FRANK A. OLSON 

Frank A. Olson 

/s/ JOHN P. RIELLY 

John P. Rielly 

/s/ ERNST H . VON METZSCH 

/s/ 

/s/ 

Ernst H. von Metzsch 

F. BORDEN WALKER 

F. Borden Walker 

ROBERT N . WILSON 

Tifle 

Director, Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Senior Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Date 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febmary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febmary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 

Febraary 28, 2013 
Robert N. Wilson 
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Schedule II 

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For the Years Ended December 31,2012,2011 and 2010 

Additions 
Charged 
to Costs Charged Deductions 

Balance and to Other from 
Description January 1 Expenses Accounts Reserves 

(In millions) 
2012 

Losses on receivables $ 55 $ — $ — $ 21 

Deferted income tax valuation $ 1,071 $ 248 $ — $ 37 

2011 
Losses on receivables $ 58 $ 4 $ 1 $ 8 

Deferted income tax valuation $ 444 $ 648 $ — $ 21 

2010 
Losses on receivables $ 54 $ 9 $ 1 $ 6 

Deferred income tax valuation $ 500 $ 135 $ — $ 191 

Balance 
December 31 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

L 

34 

1,282 

55 

1,071 

58 

444 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Members 
HOVENSA L.L.C. 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of HOVENSA L.L.C. ("the Company") as of 
December 31, 2011, and the related statements of operations, comprehensive loss and (accumulated deficit) 
retained eamings, and cash fiows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2011. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted om audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the 
Company's intemal conttol over financial reporting. Om audits included consideration of intemal conttol over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal conttol over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of HOVENSA L.L.C. at December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each 
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

^A/yyQ^i- ' U o u / y ^ L l ? i - ^ ^ ^ * < ^ > ^ ^ 

Febraary 27, 2012 
New York, New York 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

BALANCE SHEETS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 
2012 2011 

(Unaudited) (Audited) 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 336,570 $ 42,275 
Debt service fund — 11,361 
Accounts receivable: 

Members and affiliates 268 36,694 
Trade (less allowance in 2012 of $6,859 and 2011 of $52,416) 8,783 104,776 
Other 851 228 

Inventories 68,230 159,594 
Deposits and prepaid expenses 1,485 15,707 

Total current assets 416,187 370,635 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Land — 19,315 
Refinery facilities — 3,012,619 
Other — 108,307 
Constraction in progress — 29,722 

Total — at cost — 3,169,963 

Less: Accumulated depreciation — (3,169,963) 

Property, plant and equipment — net — — 

OTHER ASSETS 119 10,374 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 416,306 $ 381,009 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 
CURRENT LL\BILITIES 

Accounts payable: 
Members and affiliates $ — $ 423,706 
Trade 19,117 346,917 

Tax-exempt revenue bonds — 355,683 
Accraed liabilities 190,158 76,480 
Interest and taxes payable 64,843 1,459 
Payable to members for financial support 1,622,000 654,000 

Total cun-ent liabilities 1,896,118 1,858,245 

OTHER LLVBILITIES 102,222 115,223 

Total habilities 1,998,340 1,973,468 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Members' initial investment 1,343,429 1,343,429 
Accumulated deficit (2,885,218) (2,898,232) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (40,245) (37,656) 

Total members' equity (1,582,034) (1,592,459) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS'EQUITY $ 416,306 $ 381,009 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
AND (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 
2012 2011 2010 

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

SALES $ 1,633,357 $13,126,326 $12,258,297 
OPERATING EXPENSES 

Product costs 1,073,019 12,803,408 11,926,310 
Operating expenses 324,794 554,516 586,336 
Depreciation and amortization — 128,403 142,503 
Asset impahments and shutdown related charges 152,759 2,072,600 — 

Total operating expenses 1,550,572 15,558,927 12,655,149 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 82,785 (2,432,601) (396,852) 

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) 
Interest expense (82,419) (38,689) (25,904) 
Other income (expense), net 12,648 (15,962) (15,173) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 13,014 $(2,487,252) $ (437,929) 

COMPONENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
Net income (loss) $ 13,014 $(2,487,252) $ (437,929) 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Change in rethement plan habilities (2,589) 9,898 (1,789) 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 10,425 $(2,477,354) $ (439,718) 

(ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS 
Opening balance $(2,898,232) $ (410,980) $ 26,949 
Net income (loss) 13,014 (2,487,252) (437,929) 

CLOSING BALANCE $(2,885,218) $(2,898,232) $ (410,980) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 

2012 i o n 2010 

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income (loss) $ 13,014 $(2,487,252) $(437,929) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization — 128,403 142,503 
Asset impairments and shutdown related charges 152,759 2,072,600 — 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 177,445 181,227 (104,173) 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 80,724 65,698 16,043 
(Increase) decrease in deposits and prepaid expenses 12,353 (510) (55) 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 10,255 16,419 26,695 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accraed liabilities (812,828) (218,068) 47,343 
Increase (decrease) in interest and taxes payable 63,384 (509) 143 
Increase (decrease) m other liabilities (26,489) (25,473) (2,798) 

Net cash used in operating activities (329,383) (267,465) (312,228) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capital expenditures — (39,373) (70,206) 

Net cash used in investmg activities — (39,373) (70,206) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
(Increase) decrease in debt service fund 11,361 (11) (17) 
Increase (decrease) in long-term debt, net (355,683) (350,000) 350,000 
Increase in payable to members for financial support 968,000 654,000 — 

Net cash provided by financing activities 623,678 303,989 349,983 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 294,295 (2,849) (32,451) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .. 42,275 45,124 77,575 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $336,570 $ 42,275 $ 45,124 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCLVL STATEMENTS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

1. Basis of Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Business 

Background: HOVENSA L.L.C. (the "Company" or "HOVENSA") was formed as a 50/50 joint ventme 
between subsidiaries of Petroleos de Venezuela, SA. ("PDVSA") and Hess Corporation ("Hess"), to own and 
operate the Company's refinery located in St. Croix, United States (U.S.) Virgin Islands. The Company's 
members are PDVSA V.I., Inc., a subsidiary of PDVSA, and Hess Oil Vngin Islands Corp. ("HOVIC"), a 
subsidiary of Hess. Through January 2012, the Company purchased cmde oil from PDVSA, Hess and third 
parties, and manufactured and sold petroleum products primarily to PDVSA and Hess. 

HOVENSA operates under a Concession Agreement with the Govemment of the U.S. Virgin Islands. The 
original Concession Agreement was entered into on September 1, 1965 and the Third Amendment to the 
Concession Agreement is due to expire on August 1, 2022. The Concession Agreement can be extended with 
Virgin Islands govemment approval which has occurred on two previous occasions. 

Shutdown of Refinery: In December 2011, the Company's members agreed to shut down refining 
operations effective January 18, 2012. As a result of this decision, the Company recorded non-cash charges 
totaling $2,072,600 in December 2011 to fully impair its property, plant and equipment and recognize certain 
other expenses related to the shutdown decision. Following the refinery shutdown, the Company redeemed its 
outstanding debt, liquidated a majority of its inventory and settled a portion of its liabilities. In 2012, additional 
shutdown related charges totaling $152,759 were recorded, primarily for the estimated legal obligations for 
hydrocarbon removal and tank cleaning costs. 

During 2012 and continuing into 2013, HOVENSA and the Govemment of the Virgin Islands engaged in 
discussions pertaining to HOVENSA's plan to ran the facility as an oil storage terminal while Hess and PDVSA 
pursue a sale of HOVENSA. 

Basis of Presentation and Going Concern 

The accompanying financial statements of HOVENSA have been prepared in conformity with United States 
generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"). These financial statements have been prepared 
assuming HOVENSA will continue as a going concem. As further explained in Notes 2 and 3 below, the 
Company fully impaired its property, plant and equipment and recorded certain refinery shutdown costs at 
December 31, 2011. Additional refinery shutdown costs were recorded in 2012. The Company received financial 
support from the members in 2012 to fund expenditmes for the refinery shutdown and conversion to an oil 
storage terminal. The Company believes that it has adequate funding for 2013 activities. 

Use of Estimates 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management makes estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and revenues and 
expenses in the statement of operations. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Among the estimates 
made by management are asset impairments, refinery shutdown costs, inventory and other asset valuations, legal 
and environmental obligations and pension liabilities. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenues from the sale of pettoleum products when title passes to the customer, 
which generally occurs when products are shipped or delivered in accordance with the terms of the respective 
sales agreements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into cash and have 
maturities of three months or less when acquired. 

Debt Service Fund 

The debt service fund is cash held by a trastee representing six months of interest and fees payable on the 
Company's outstanding tax-exempt revenue bonds. 

Inventories 

Inventories of crade oil and refined products used in refining operations are valued at the lower of last-in, 
first-out ("LIFO") cost or market. Other inventories, including refined products purchased for resale or used in 
operations, as well as materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost or market. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation of refinery facilities through December 31, 2011 was determined principally on the units-of-
production method based on estimated production volumes. Depreciation of all other equipment was determined 
on the sttaight-line method based on estimated useful lives. 

Maintenance and Repairs 

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incmred. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The impairment recognized is the amount by which the 
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair market value of the assets. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

Asset retirement obligations must be recorded at fan value in the period in which it is determuied that a 
legal obligation exists and a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the liability can be made. 

Environmental Expenditures 

Liabilities for future remediation costs are recorded when environmental assessments or remedial efforts are 
probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Other than for assessments, the timing and magnitude of 
these accraals generally are based on the completion of investigations or other studies or a commitment to a 
formal plan of action. Environmental liabilities are based on best estimates of probable undiscounted future costs 
using currently available technology and applying cmrent regulations. Such accraals are adjusted as further 
information develops or circumstances change. Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from other parties 
are recorded as assets when their receipt is deemed probable. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Income Taxes 

The Company is a limited liability company and, as a result, income taxes are the responsibility of the 
members. Accordingly, no effect of income tax has been recognized in the accompanying financial statements. 

Retirement Plans 

The Company recognizes on its balance sheet the underfunded status of its defined benefit retirement plans 
measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit obligations. The benefit 
obligation is the projected benefit obligation in the case of the non-contributory defined benefit pension plan and 
the projected post-retirement benefit obligation for the post-retirement medical plan. The Company recognizes 
the net changes in the plan assets and benefit obligations of its defined benefit retirement plans in the year in 
which such changes occur. 

Prior service costs and gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation or the 
market value of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees. 

The determination of the obligations and expenses related to these plans are based on several actuarial 
assumptions, the most significant of which relate to the discount rate for measming the present value of future 
plan obligations; expected long-term rates of retum on plan assets and rate of future increases in compensation 
levels. These assumptions represent estimates made by the Company, some of which can be affected by extemal 
factors. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through Febraary 28,2013. 

2. Asset Impairment and Refinery Shutdown Related Charges 

On January 18, 2012, HOVENSA announced the decision to shut down its refinery operations after 
experiencing substantial operating losses due to global economic conditions and competitive disadvantages 
versus other refiners. Such losses were incurted despite efforts to improve operating performance by reducing 
refining capacity to 350,000 battels per day from 500,000 barrels per day in the first half of 2011. Operating 
losses were also projected to continue. The Company prepared an impahment analysis as of December 31, 2011, 
which indicated that undiscounted future cash flows would not recover the carrying value of its assets. As a 
result, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $1,900,349 representing the difference between the 
carrying value and the estimated fair market value of property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2011. 
Estimated fair value was determined based on discounted future cash flows (a Level 3 fan value measure). In 
addition, the Company recorded other charges for obligations incurred in 2011 related to the decision to shut 
down the refinery totaling $172,251, including recognition of legally required employee and contractor severance 
costs and a reduction in carrying value of warehouse inventory and other assets. 

During 2012, the Company recorded an additional $152,759 primarily for estimated obligations incmred 
due to hydrocarbon removal and tank cleaning costs, which became legal obligations upon shutdown of the 
refinery. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

3. Future Refinery Shutdown Expenditures 

The Company is expected to incur additional refinery shutdown costs in excess of amounts that can be 
accraed at December 31, 2012 and 2011 under US GAAP, including costs related to the preservation of refinery 
process equipment, enhanced employee and conttactor severance and benefits, estimated losses on long-term 
conttacts and other costs. The Company estimated that after liquidation of current assets and liabilities 
approximately $900,000 would be required to settle all obligations at December 31, 2011. Approximately 
$735,000 was paid in 2012, with no material change in the total estimated obligations. 

4. Related Party Transactions 

During 2012 and 2011, HOVENSA received financial support from its members primarily by delaying the 
normal timing of payments to PDVSA for crade oil pmchases, as well as accelerating payments from Hess for 
refined product sales. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, interest bearing financial support provided by both 
members in the aggregate of $1,622,000 and $654,000, respectively, is recorded as a current liability in the 
balance sheet. Interest expense incurred of $82,419 in 2012 relates primarily to the payable to members for 
financial support. 

The Company has long-term crade oil supply agreements with Petroleum Marketing Intemational 
("Pettomar") a subsidiary of PDVSA, under which Pettomar agrees to seU to HOVENSA a monthly average of 
155,000 barrels per day of Mesa crade oil and 115,000 barrels per day of Merey crade oil. The Company also has 
a product sales agreement with Hess and Pettomar that requires Hess and Pettomar each to pmchase after any 
sales of refined products by HOVENSA to third parties, 50% of HOVENSA's gasoline, distillate, residual fuel 
and other products at market prices. Pmchases and sales under these agreements ceased on April 1, 2012 
following the shutdown of refining operations. 

A summary of all material transactions between the Company, its members and affiliates follows: 

2012 2011 2010 

Sales of petroleum products: 
Hess 
PDVSA 

Pmchases of crade oil and products: 
Hess 
PDVSA 

Administtative service agreement fee paid to Hess . 
Bareboat charter of tugs and barges paid to HOVIC 
Marine revenues received from PDVSA and Hess . . 

(Unaudited) 

$144,797 
147,232 

191,425 
524,517 

4,286 
2,880 
— 

(Audited) 

$3,805,821 
3,937,571 

709,570 
6,412,491 

4,018 
2,873 
567 

(Audited) 

$4,307,112 
4,254,761 

607,040 
6,214,869 

6,481 
3,161 
911 

Inventories 

Inventories as of December 31 were as follows: 

2012 
(Unaudited) 

Crade oil $ 52,878 
Refined and other finished products 92,154 
Less: LIFO adjustinent (103,318) 

41,714 
Materials and supplies 26,516 

Total $ 68,230 

2011 
(Audited) 

$ 183,345 
657,914 

(734,177) 

107,082 
52,512 

$ 159,594 
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During 2012 and 2011, reductions of inventory quantities resulted in a liquidation of LIFO inventories 
cartied at below market costs, which improved operating results by approximately $745,000 and $270,000 
respectively. During 2013, the Company intends to liquidate its remaining crade oil, refined and other finished 
products inventory. 

6. Tax Exempt Revenue Bonds and Other Long-term Debt 

Outstanding bortowings at December 31 consisted ofthe following: 

2012 2011 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2002) at 6.50% $ — $126,753 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2003) at 6.125% — 74,175 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2004) at 5.875% — 50,660 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2007) at 4.70% — 104,095 

Total tax exempt revenue bonds $ — $355,683 

During 2012, the Company successfully tendered a cash offer for its $355,683 outstanding tax-exempt 
revenue bonds. The terms of the tender offer included a purchase price at par value, plus accraed but unpaid 
interest up to the pmchase date, subject to the terms of the offering document. 

HOVENSA had a 5-year $400,000 revolving credh facility until December 30, 2011, when it repaid 
outstanding borrowings and terminated the revolving credit facility. The agreement was collateralized by the 
physical assets and certain material conttacts of the Company. 

7. Environmental Matters 

In 2011, the Company signed a Consent Decree with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
which among other things requnes the Company to install equipment and implement additional operating 
procedures to reduce emissions over the next 10 years. The cost of installing this equipment would have been 
approximately $700,000. Since the refining facilities were shut down in 2012, with plans to subsequently operate 
as an oil storage terminal, the Company believes it will not be required to make material expenditures as outlined 
in the Consent Decree. Under the terms of the Consent Decree, the Company paid a penalty of $5,375 in 2011. 

In the normal comse of its business, the Company records liabilities for future environmental remediation 
expenditmes when such environmental obligations are probable and reasonably estimable. 

The Company is required to provide financial assurance to the EPA in connection with various forms of 
environmental compliance. The required financial assurance totaled approximately $41,000 at December 31, 
2012 and $48,000 at December 31, 2011. This requirement was met by posting a letter of credit in 2012 and by 
passing a financial test in 2011. 

8. Contingencies 

The Company is subject to loss contingencies with respect to various lawsuits, claims and other 
proceedings, including environmental matters. A liability is recognized in the Company's financial statements 
when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If the risk of loss is 
probable, but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or the risk of loss is only reasonably possible, a liability 
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is not accraed; however, the Company discloses the nature of those contingencies. In management's opinion, 
based upon cmrently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such loss contingencies will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

9. Retirement Plans 

The Company has a funded non-conttibutory, defined benefit pension plan for substantially all of its 
employees. The plan provides defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary. At 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the actuarial assumptions for the determination ofthe projected benefit obligation 
reflect the ttansition of the refinery to an oil storage terminal. The non-contributory defined benefit pension plan 
will remain in place and meet futme obligations in accordance with terms of the plan, but terminated employees 
will no longer earn service toward future benefits. 

The following table reconciles the projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and shows the 
funded status of the pension plan: 

2012 2011 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

Reconciliation of projected benefit obligation: 
Benefit obhgation at January 1 $128,567 $116,572 
Service costs 5,707 9,243 
Interest costs 5,413 6,373 
Actuarial (gain) loss 6,560 (1,403) 
Benefit payments (3,089) (2,218) 

Projected benefit obligation at December 31 143,158 128,567 

Reconciliation of fan value of plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 84,751 72,400 
Actual retum on plan assets 9,480 1,809 
Employer conttibutions 13,100 12,760 
Benefit payments (3,089) (2,218) 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 104,242 84,751 

Funded status (plan assets less than benefit obligation) (38,916) (43,816) 
Unrecognized net actuarial losses 37,941 36,367 

Net amount recognized $ (975) $ (7,449) 

The accumulated benefit obligation was $137,831 at December 31, 2012 and $124,769 at December 31, 
2011. 

Components of funded pension expense consisted ofthe following: 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Amortization of umecognized net actuarial losses , 

Net periodic benefit cost 

2012 2011 2010 
(Unaudited) 

$ 5,707 
5,413 
(6,221) 
1,727 

$ 6,626 

(Audited) 

$ 9,243 
6,373 
(5,427) 
1,896 

$12,085 

(Audited) 

$ 8,964 
5,684 
(4,095) 
1,944 

$12,497 

106 



HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCL\L STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the Company's pension plan were as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31: 
Discount rate 4.0% 4.4% 5.6% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 

Assumptions used to determine net costs for years ended December 31: 
Discount rate 4.4% 5.6% 6.0% 
Expected retum on plan assets 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 

The assumptions used to detennine net periodic benefit cost for each year were established at the end of 
each previous year while the assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were established at each year-
end. The net periodic benefit cost and the actuarial present value of benefit obligations are based on actuarial 
assumptions that are reviewed on an annual basis. The discount rate is developed based on a portfolio of high-
quality fixed-income investments that matches the maturity of the plan obligations. The overall expected retum 
on plan assets is developed from the expected future retums for each asset category, weighted by the expected 
allocation of pension assets to that asset category. The Company engages an independent investment consultant 
to assist in the development of expected retums. 

The Company's pension plan assets by category are as follows: 

2012 2011 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

Asset category 
Equity securities 27% 56% 
Debt securities 73 44 

Total 100% 100% 

In order to reduce risk to the pension plan assets, target investment allocations were revised in 2012 to 73% 
debt securities and 27% equity securities. The target investment allocations for 2011 were 55% equity securities 
and 45% debt securities. Asset allocations are rebalanced on a regular basis throughout the year to bring assets to 
within a 2-3% range of target levels. Target allocations take into account analyses performed by the Company's 
pension consultant to optimize long-term risk/retum relationships. All assets are highly liquid and may be readily 
adjusted to provide liquidity for current benefit payment requirements. 

For purposes of valuing pension investments, a hierarchy for the inputs is used to measure fan value based 
on the source of the input, which generally range from quoted prices for identical instraments in a principal 
ttading market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data (Level 3). 

The following tables provide the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets of the qualified pension plan as 
of December 31, 2012 and 2011: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

December 31,2012 (Unaudited) 
Cash and short-term investment funds $ — $ 144 $ — 

U.S. equities (domestic) 22,934 — — 
Intemational equities (non-U.S.) 5,537 — — 
Fixed income 75,627 — — 

Total $ 104,098 $ 144 $ — 
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

December 31,2011 (Audited) 
Cash and short-term investment funds $ — $ 329 $ 

U.S. equities (domestic) 38,872 — 
Intemational equities (non-U.S.) 8,338 — 
Fixed income 37,212 — 

Total $84,422 $ 329 $ 

Cash and short-term investment funds consist of cash on hand, which is invested in a short-term investment 
fund that provides for daily investments and redemptions and is valued and cartied at a $1 net asset value (NAV) 
per fund share. 

Equities consist of registered mutual fund investments whose diversified holdings primarily include 
common stock securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. corporations, respectively. Mutual fund shares are valued 
daily, with the NAV per fund share published at the close of each business day. These investments are classified 
as Level 1. 

Fixed income securities consist of registered mutual fund investments whose diversified holdings primarily 
include U.S. Treasury securities, corporate bonds and mortgage backed securities. 

HOVENSA has budgeted conttibutions of approximately $13,000 to its funded pension plan in 2013. 

Estimated future pension benefit payments, which refiect expected future service, are as follows: 

2013 $ 4,713 
2014 4,816 
2015 4,891 
2016 4,956 
2017 5,072 
Years 2018 to 2022 27,174 

The Company also maintains an unfunded post-rethement medical plan that provides health benefits to 
certain qualified retirees from ages 55 through 65. The projected benefit obligation for this plan was 
approximately $11,325 as of December 31, 2012 and $11,864 as of December 31, 2011. The decrease in the 
projected benefit obligation includes a change in actuarial assumptions to reflect the transition of the refinery to 
an oil storage terminal. This plan will also remain in place and meet future obligations in accordance with terms 
ofthe plan, but terminated employees will no longer cam service toward future benefits. 
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Exhibit 21 

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

Name of Company Jurisdiction 

Hess (Netherlands) Oil & Gas Holdings C.V The Netherlands 
Hess (Netherlands) U.S. GOM Ventures B.V The Netiieriands 
Hess Capital Services Corporation Delaware 
Hess Capital Services L.L.C Delaware 
Hess Energy Exploration Limited Delaware 
Hess Equatorial Guinea Inc Cayman Islands 
Hess Exploration & Production Holdings Limited Delaware 
Hess Gulf of Mexico Ventmes L.L.C Delaware 
Hess Intemational Holdings Corporation Delaware 
Hess Intemational Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 
Hess Intemational Pettoleum, Inc Cayman Islands 
Hess Libya (Waha) Limited Cayman Islands 
Hess Limited United Kingdom 
Hess Norge AS Norway 
Hess Oil and Gas Holdings Inc Cayman Islands 
Hess West Africa Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 

Other subsidiaries (names omitted because such unnamed subsidiaries, considered in the aggregate as a single 
subsidiary, would not constitute a significant subsidiary). 

Each of the foregoing subsidiaries conducts business under the name listed, and is 100% owned by the 
Registtant. 



Exhibit 23(1) 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements: 

(1) Registtation Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-43569) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Employees' 
Savings Plan, 

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-94851) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Amended and 
Restated 1995 Long-term Incentive Plan, 

(3) Registtation Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-115844) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Second 
Amended and Restated 1995 Long-term Incentive Plan, 

(4) Registtation Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-150992) pertaining to the Hess Corporation 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, 

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-167076) pertaining to the Hess Corporation 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, 

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-181704) pertaining to the Hess Corporation 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, and 

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-179744) of Hess Corporation; 

of our reports dated Febraary 28, 2013, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of 
Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries and the effectiveness of intemal conttol over financial reporting 
of Hess Corporation and om report dated Febraary 27, 2012 with respect to the financial statements of 
HOVENSA L.L.C, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

^ A / i ^ ' f 'Uou/^^Li? •f "Uou/^i 

New York, New York 
Febraary 28, 2013 



Exhibit 23(2) 

DEGOLYER AND MACNAUGHTON 
5001 SPRING VALLEY ROAD 

SUITE 800 EAST 
DALLAS, TEXAS 75244 

Febmary 28, 2013 

Hess Corporation 
1185 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, New York 10036 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We hereby consent to the use of the name DeGolyer and MacNaughton, to references to DeGolyer and 
MacNaughton as an independent pettoleum engineering consulting firm, to references to our third party letter 
report dated January 31, 2013, containing our opinion on the proved reserves attributable to certain properties 
owned by Hess Corporation, as of December 31, 2012, (om "Report"), under the heading "Oil and Gas Reserves-
Reserves Audit," and to the inclusion of om Report as an exhibit in Hess Corporation's Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012. We also consent to all such references, including under the heading 
"Experts," and to the incorporation by reference of our Report in the Registration Statements filed by Hess 
Corporation on Fomi S-3 (No. 333-179744) and Form S-8 (No. 333-43569, No. 333-94851, No. 333-115844, 
No. 333-150992, No. 333-167076 and No. 333-181704). 

Very traly yoms. 

By 
i)^iI^J%x% 
DEGOLYER AND MACNAUGHTON 



Exhibit 31(1) 

I, John B. Hess, certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hess Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrae statement of a material fact or omit 
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the chcumstances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, 
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registtant 
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registtant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosme 
conttols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal conttol over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registtant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure conttols and procedmes, or caused such disclosure conttols and procedures to 
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal conttol over financial reporting, or caused such intemal conttol over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosme conttols and procedmes and presented in this 
report om conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosme conttols and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registtant's intemal conttol over financial reporting that 
occmred during the registtant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registtant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registtant's intemal 
control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registtant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
intemal conttol over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registtant's 
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal conttol over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registtant's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registtant's intemal conttol over financial reporting. 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Febraary 28, 2013 



Exhibit 31(2) 

I, John P. Rielly, certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hess Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrae statement of a material fact or omit 
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, 
fahly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registtant 
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registtant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
conttols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal conttol over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registtant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure conttols and procedmes, or caused such disclosme conttols and procedures to 
be designed under our supervision, to ensme that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal conttol over financial reporting, or caused such intemal conttol over financial 
reporting to be designed under om supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registtant's disclosme controls and procedures and presented in this 
report om conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttols and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registtant's intemal conttol over financial reporting that 
occurred during the registtant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registtant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal 
conttol over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
intemal conttol over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registtant's 
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal conttol over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registtant's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registtant's intemal conttol over financial reporting. 

A/tU^ 

John P. Rielly 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: Febraary 28, 2013 



Exhibit 32(1) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report of Hess Corporation (the Corporation) on Form 10-K for the period 
ending December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
Report), I, John B. Hess, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certify, 
pmsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secmities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fahly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Corporation. 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Febraary 28, 2013 



Exhibit 32(2) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report of Hess Corporation (the Corporation) on Form 10-K for the period 
ending December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
Report), I, John P. Rielly, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, certify, pmsuant 
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pmsuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requhements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secmities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fahly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Corporation. 

AlUl^ 

John P. Rielly 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: Febraary 28, 2013 
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS 
HESS CORPORATION 

Amounts in millions, except per share data 

FINANCIAL - FOR THE YEAR 2011 2010 

Sales and other operating revenues 

Net income attributable to Hess Corporation 

Net income per share diluted 

Common stock dividends per share 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Capital and exploratory expenditures 

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 

$38,466 

$ 1,703 

$ 5.01 

$ .40 

$ 4,984 

$ 7,462 

339.9 

$33,862 

$ 2,125 

$ 6.47 

$ .40 

$ 4,530 

$ 5.855 

328.3 

FINANCIAL - AT YEAR END 2011 2010 

Total assets 

Total debt 

Total equity 

Debt to capitalization ratio<=' 

Common stock price 

$ 39,136 

$ 6,057 

$ 18,592 

24.6% 

$ 56.80 

$35,396 

$ 5,583 

$ 16,809 

24.9% 

$ 76.54 

OPERATING - FOR THE YEAR 2011 2010 

Production — net 

Crude oil and natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day) 

United States 

International 

94 

172 

89 

218 

Total 266 307 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 

United States 

International 

100 

523 

108 

561 

Total 623 669 

Barrels of oil equivalent (thousands of barrels per day) 

Marketing and Refining (thousands of barrels per day) 

Refining crude runs - HOVENSA L.L.C.̂ "' 

Refined petroleum products sold 

370 

142 

430 

418 

195 

471 

(a) Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt and total equity. 

(b) Reflects the Corporation's 50% share of HOVENSA's crude runs. 

See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results. 



LETTER TO 
STOCKHOLDERS 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

While 2011 was a challenging year operationally, we 

continued to make significant progress in increasing our 

crude oil and natural gas reserves, acquiring strategic 

acreage and positioning our company for long-term 

profitable growth. 

For the year 2011, our company achieved earnings of 

$1.7 billion, or $5.01 per share, reflecting lower crude oil 

and natural gas sales volumes, weaker refining results 

and the impact of higher crude oil selling prices. 

Exploration and Production earned nearly $2.7 billion, 

which was comparable to the previous year. Crude oil 

and natural gas production was 370,000 barrels of oil 

equivalent per day, an 11 percent decrease compared to 

the 418,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day we averaged 

the previous year. Most of the decline was due to several 

short-term setbacks, including weather related delays in 

North Dakota, the temporary shut in of the Llano No.3 

well in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, a fire at the Valhall 

Field in Norway and civil unrest in Libya. We continue 

to make progress in restoring these lost production 

volumes. At year end in 2011, we had replaced 147 

percent of production at a finding, development and 

acquisition cost of about $36 per barrel of oil equivalent. 

Our proved reserves stood at 1.573 billion barrels of 

oil equivalent and our reserve life was 11.4 years. 

In Exploration and Production, we made important 

strategic acreage acquisitions during the year in the 

emerging Utica Shale play in Eastern Ohio and in the 

Kurdistan Region of Iraq. We gained a leadership 

position in the Utica by entering into an agreement 

with CONSOL Energy to acquire a 50 percent interest 

in nearly 200,000 acres and acquiring Marquette 

Exploration for another 85,000 acres. With these 

transactions, the company now has the critical mass 

in shale resources to make a significant contribution 

to our future production and reserve growth with 

lower risk than has been the case in the past. We 

also acquired an 80 percent interest in two highly 

prospective blocks covering more than 670 square 

miles in a major petroleum province in Kurdistan. 

Marketing and Refining lost $584 million. This loss 

included an after tax charge of $525 million following 

the difficult decision to close the HOVENSA joint venture 

refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Virgin Islands and operate the 

complex as an oil storage terminal. HOVENSA examined 

every option to maximize value, but ultimately severe 

financial losses due to adverse market conditions left 

no other choice. The Retail and Energy Marketing 

businesses, which earned $185 million in 2011, will 

continue to be a strategic part of our portfolio with a 

well established brand that generates attractive financial 

retums and offers selective growth opportunities. 

Our financial position remains strong. Our debt to 

capitalization ratio at year end was 25 percent, which 

was essentially unchanged from a year earlier. In 2012, 

our company's capital and exploratory expenditures 

are budgeted at $6.8 billion, with substantially all 

dedicated to Exploration and Production. We plan 

to invest $2.5 billion, or nearly 40 percent of our 

projected spend, in unconventionals. In addition, we 

have budgeted $1.6 billion for production, $1.8 billion 

for development and $800 million for exploration. 

We expect to fund the majority of our 2012 capital 

program from intemally generated cash flow and asset 

sales. To protect our cash flow, we have hedged 

120,000 barrels per day, or approximately 45 percent 

of our forecasted oil production for the calendar year 

2012, at an average Brent price of $107.70 per barrel. 



EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION 

In the Bakken oil shale play in North Dakota, we 

generated strong growth throughout the second half of 

the year and exited 2011 at a net rate of approximately 

50,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day, compared 

to an exit rate of 20,000 barrels of oil equivalent in 

2010. We continued to develop critical infrastructure 

projects, including our crude oil rail loading and 

storage facility, which becomes fully operational in 

ttie first quarter of 2012, and the Tioga gas plant 

expansion, which will be completed in 2013. We also 

plan to continue the appraisal of our acreage in the 

Eagle Ford Shale in Texas and the Utica Shale. 

We continued investment in our conventional opport­

unities, sanctbning the Tubular Bells project in the deep-

water Gulf of Mexico, in which Hess has a 57 percent 

interest and is the operator. We anticipate first production 

in 2014 and expect peak annual net production rate of 

about 25,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day. In 

Australia, we are pursuing commercial options for Block 

WA-390-P, where we have had 13 natural gas discoveries 

and our appraisal program is ongoing. In exploration, our 

company announced a discovery in the Paradise-1 well 

offshore Ghana, wtiere we have a 90 percent interest. 

The well encountered an estimated 490 net feet of oil 

and gas condensate. Further exploration drilling is 

planned in 2012. 

MARKETING AND REFINING 

Refining results were lower than 2010, principally 

tjecause of losses associated with our HOVENSA joint 

venture refinery, which has completed its shutdown. 

Retail Marketing, which has 1,360 gasoline stores along 

ttie East Coast of the United States, experienced a 2 

percent decline in both convenience store sales and 

average gasoline volumes, reflecting the weak economic 

environment. Retail expanded its popular Dunkin' Donuts 

offering to 555 locations. Energy Marketing, which 

provides natural gas, electricity and fuel oil to more 

than 21,000 commercial and industrial customers in 

the Eastern United States, generated strong operating 

results with increased sales volumes of natural gas and 

electricity. The Bayonne Energy Center, a 512-megawatt, 

natural gas fueled power plant that will provide electricity 

to New York City, will begin operations in 2012. 

SAFETY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Our employee safety performance improved for the 

seventh consecutive year in 2011 but our results 

deteriorated in terms of contractor safety. We have 

taken aggressive steps to ensure the continuous 

improvement in safety for our entire workforce. 

Our company is committed to making a long-term 

positive impact on ttie communities where we do 

business. In North Dakota, we announced a five-year 

$25 million partnership to enhance the transition 

from school to work for students across the state 

beginning in 2012. In Equatorial Guinea, we expect 

to begin in 2012 a second five-year phase expanding 

our successful partnership with the govemment to 

help transform primary and secondary education. 

Our company also supported community development 

activities in more than 20 countries in the areas of youth 

and community development, education and health. 

Hess was recognized for our efforts to communicate 

openly about sustainable business practices. We were 

cited by Bloomtserg as first among 2,454 oil companies 

in the world for disclosure of environmental, social and 

corporate govemance issues. Hess was also ranked 

No.1 among S&P 500 companies for "Clean Capitalism" 

by Corporate Knights, a Canadian magazine promoting 

responsible business practices. We were again ranked in 

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index for North America 

and included in NASDAQ CRD Analytics Global 

Sustainability Index. 

We deeply appreciate the hard work and dedication 

of our employees to build a company to sustain 

profitable growth. We are grateful, as always, for 

the outstanding advice and guidance of our Board 

of Directors. We especially want to thank you, our 

stockholders, for your continued interest and support. 

^ O '^TW^ 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 
March 7, 2012 
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OUR GLOBAL OPERATIONS 

We continue to make significant progress in increasing our crude 
oil and natural gas reserves, acquiring strategic acreage and 
positioning our company for long term profitable growth. 



EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION 
HIGHLIGHTS 

• Doubled Bakken production to 30 mboe/d despite 
harsh winter weather and severe spring floods 

• Executed strategic entry into emerging Utica Shale play 
in Ohio where Hess now has nearly 200,000 net acres 

• Sanctioned the Hess operated Tubular Bells 
development in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico 

• Encountered 490 feet of net hydrocarbon pay at the 
Hess operated Paradise-1 well in Ghana 

• Acquired two promising exploration blocks in the 
Kurdistan Region of Iraq covering a combined area 
of approximately 670 square miles 

MARKETING AND REFINING 
HIGHLIGHTS 

• Advanced construction of a 512-megawatt natural 
gas fired power plant in Bayonne, NJ which when 
operational in 2012 will generate enough electricity 
to power 500,000 homes in the New York City area 

• Expanded Supply & Terminals marine diesel fuel sales 
to include Philadelphia harbor 

• Opened three new Hess Express locations and 
expanded our Dunkin' Donuts offering to a total of 
555 sites 

• Achieved outstanding safety performance 

• Closed HOVENSA joint venture refinery in St. Croix, 
U.S. Virgin Islands after three years of losses 
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EXPLORATION 
AND PRODUCTION 

With the addition of our newly acquired acreage position in 

the Utica Shale, the company now has the critical mass in 

shale resources to make a significant contr ibution to our future 

production and reserve growth. 



PRODUCTION 

In 2011, net production averaged 370,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day, down from 418,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day in 2010. This decrease 

primarily resulted from short-term setbacks, including 

severe weather in North Dakota, the temporary 

shut-in of the Uano No. 3 well in the Gulf of Mexico 

because of mechanical issues, a two month shut-in 

of the non-operated Valhall Field in Norway due to 

a fire and civil unrest in Libya. We continue to make 

progress restoring lost volumes at these assets. 

Net production from the Bakken doubled to 30,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day from 15,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day the previous year, 

despite harsh winter weather and severe flooding 

in the spring. We generated strong growth throughout 

the second half of the year and exited 2011 at a 

net peak rate of approximately 50,000 barrels of oil 

equivalent per day. We also continued to invest in 

infrastructure projects, including our crude oil rail 

loading facility and the Tioga gas plant expansion. 

In May, we commenced initial production in the 

Eagle Ford Shale in Texas, where we have more 

than 100,000 net acres. By year end, we had drilled 

28 new wells in the Eagle Ford and completed 

22. We plan to continue to delineate our acreage 

position, operating a three rig program and 

drilling approximately 25 to 30 wells in 2012. 

In the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, net production from 

the Shenzi Field in which Hess has a 28 percent interest 



averaged 29,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day. In 

March, the United States government granted approval 

to continue drilling the previously suspended Shenzi 

production well. A second Shenzi production well and 

a water injection well were also drilled and completed. 

Additional wells are planned in 2012 and 2013. 

Equatorial Guinea Block G, in which Hess holds an 

85 percent interest and is the operator, produced 

at a net rate of 54,000 barrels of oil equivalent 

per day. A 4D seismic survey of the block has 

identified additional drilling opportunities to extend 

the life of the fields. In Russia, a subsidiary in 

which Hess holds a 90 percent interest drilled 28 

wells with production reaching a net rate of 50,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day at year end. 

DEVELOPMENT 

We achieved a significant milestone in the third 

quarter of 2011 with ttie sanctioning of the Tubular 

Bells project in the deepwater Guff of Mexico, in 

which Hess has a 57 percent interest and is the 

operator. Hull and topsides fatirication commenced 

and first production is targeted for 2014. 

Several projects in Europe hit important milestones. In 

ttie Norwegian North Sea, redevelopment of the Valhall 

Field (Hess 64%) progressed with the completion 

of the new living quarters in March and startup of 

gas lift at the Valhall Flank South wellhead platform 

in June. In the United Kingdom, the Schiehallion 

Field (Hess 16%) Floating Production, Storage and 

Offloading Vessel (FPSO) replacement project was 

sanctioned. In Denmark, fabrication of the platform 

jacket and deck commenced for Phase 3 development 

of the South Arne Field (Hess 62%, operator). 

In Australia, appraisal of Block WA-390-P (Hess 100%, 

operator) is expected to be completed in 2012 and 

we are pursuing commercial options with potential 

liquefaction partners. 

Development of the Malaysia Thailand Joint 

Development Area (JDA) (Hess 50%) progressed 

with the installation of wellhead platform No. 7, 

fabrication of platform No. 8 and sanctioning of 

platforms No. 9 and No. 10. In Indonesia, Ujung 

Pangkah's (Hess 75%, operator) central processing 

and accommodation and utility platforms were 

completed and gas production commenced in June. 

EXPLORATION 

In Ghana, the Paradise-1 well was completed on 

the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points Block and 

a Notice of Discovery was filed with the Minister 

of Energy of Ghana. The well encountered an 

estimated 490 net feet of oil and gas condensate 

pay over three separate intervals. Hess is the 

operator and has a 90 percent interest in the license. 

Additional exploration drilling is planned in 2012. 
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Drilling Operations, Texas 
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Exploration Drilling, Ghana 
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On the Semai V Block in Indonesia, the Andalan No.1 

and No. 2 wells were completed without encountering 

commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. Hess is 

the operator and has a 100 percent interest in the 

license. Data from both wells are being processed 

and interpreted. On Block CA-1 in Brunei, the 

Julong Center well was completed but did not 

encounter commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. 

Hess has a 14 percent interest in the license 

and additional wells are planned during 2012. 

In Peru, on Block 64 in the Maraiion Basin, the 

Situche Norte 4X well spud in November and will be 

completed in 2012. This well follows the previous 

Situche Central light oil discoveries. Hess has a 50 

percent working interest with Talisman as operator. 

In August, our company acquired Marquette 

Exploration for approximately $750 million, which 

included 85,000 net acres in the emerging Utica 

Shale play in Otiio. This transaction was followed 

by the formation of a joint venture with CONSOL 

Energy that added an addlttonal 100,000 net 

acres in Ohkj, bringing our position in the Utica 

to nearly 200,000 net acres. In 2012, we plan to 

acquire more than 400 square miles of seismic 

and drill approximately 29 appraisal wells. 

In Australia's Beetaloo Basin, Hess announced a 

partnership with Falcon Oil & Gas on the EP76, 117 

and 98 licenses. These licenses cover more than 6.2 

million acres in a large under-explored basin in northern 

Australia with conventional and unconventional 

potential. Hess has an option to earn a 63 percent 

interest in the area. A 2D seismic program commenced 

in 2011 and will continue in 2012. 

In Kurdistan, Hess and partner Petroceltic 

International signed production sharing contracts (PSE) 

with the Kurdistan Regional Government of Iraq for 

the Shakrok and Dinarta blocks. Hess is the operator 

and has an 80 percent paying interest in these licenses. 

The blocks are located northeast of Erbil and cover 

a combined area of approximately 670 square miles. 

Each PSC has an initial three-year exploration period 

in which the joint venture plans to acquire 2D seismic 

and drill at least one exploration well in each block. 
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MARKETING 
AND REFINING 

Our Retail and Energy Marketing businesses remain a strategic 

part of our portfolio with a well established brand that generates 

strong financial returns and offers selective growth opportunities. 

12 



REFINING 

HOVENSA, a joint venture between Hess Corporation 

and Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. announced in 

January 2012 that it would shutdown its refinery 

on St. Croix, United States Virgin Islands. Following 

the shutdown, the complex will operate as an oil 

storage terminal. Losses at the HOVENSA refinery 

totaled $1.3 billion over the past three years and 

were projected to continue. These losses were 

caused primarily by weakness in demand for refined 

petroleum products due to the global economic 

slowdown and the addition of new refining capacity 

in emerging markets. In the past three years, these 

factors have caused the closure of 18 refineries in ttie 

United States and Europe with capacity totaling 

more than 2 million barrels of oil per day. In 

addition, the low price of natural gas in the 

United States put HOVENSA, an oil-fueled 

refinery, at a competitive disadvantage. 

Hess' Port Reading, New Jersey, fluid catalytic 

cracking (FCC) facility located near New York 

Harbor produces gasoline and fuel oil primarily for 

markets in the Northeast United States. The facility 

averaged feedstock runs of about 63,000 barrels 

per day in 2011 versus 55,000 barrels per day in 

2010. Feedstock runs were higher in 2011 due to 

a planned major turnaround the previous year. 

13 



SUPPLY & TERMINALS 

Hess operates a network of 20 refined product 

terminals on the East Coast of the United States, as 

well as an oil storage facility in St. Lucia. Our East 

Coast terminals provide the company a competitive 

advantage in the supply of refined products to our 

Retail and Energy Marketing businesses. 

ENERGY MARKETING 

Hess Energy Marketing is a major supplier of 

natural gas, electricity and fuel oil to commercial, 

industrial and utility customers in the Eastern United 

States. In 2011, natural gas and electricity volumes 

grew and operating margins improved due to strong 

supply optimization results. In 2011 construction 

continued in New Jersey on the Bayonne Energy 

Center, a 512-megawatt, natural gas fueled electric 

power plant 50 percent owned by Hess Corporation. 

Once operational in mid-2012, the facility will 

generate enough electricity to power approximately 

500,000 homes in the New York City area. 

RETAIL MARKETING 

Retail Marketing is the leading independent gasoline 

convenience store retailer on the East Coast with 

1,360 Hess branded locations. Annual convenience 

store revenues in 2011 excluding petroleum products 

were approximately $1.2 billion, a decrease of 

2 percent from 2010. Overall store gross margins, 

however, increased in 2011 versus the prior year, 

driven by improved store offerings including 

development of a new fresh food concept and 

testing of nationally branded quick-serve restaurant 

concepts. 

In addition, during the year the company opened 

three new HESS EXPRESS locations and expanded 

its successful Dunkin' Donuts offering to a total 

of 555 Hess and WilcoHess locations. 
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CORPORATE AND 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

We are committed to effective stakeholder engagement and 

Strategic social investments in our host communities that lead 

to sustainable and measurable improvements, especially in 

education and health. 
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Our company is committed to helping meet the 

world's increasing demand for energy in a manner that 

safeguards our employees, preserves the environment 

and makes a positive impact on the communities 

where we operate. We strive each day to be a 

trusted energy partner to communities, employees, 

business partners, customers and investors 

through sustainable business practices, which we 

believe are essential to our license to operate. 

Employee safety performance improved for the 

seventh consecutive year in 2011. Contractor 

safety performance deteriorated, driven primarily by 

significantly increased activity in our North Dakota 

operations. We took aggressive steps to address 

this challenge, resulting in marked improvements 

in safety performance by year end. We expect these 

improvements to continue and we are focused on 

regaining our trend of continuous improvement in safety. 

With our rapid growth in unconventional energy 

resources, we took measures to assure the public about 

our approach to hydraulic fracturing. We registered 

as a voluntary user of the web-based FracFocus 

database, www.FracFocus.org, where we publicly 

disclose the chemical composition of drilling fluids. 

While we are focused on preventing safety, health and 

environmental incidents, we recognize the importance 

of maintaining a high level of emergency response 

preparedness. As part of an effort to learn from the 

Macondo incident in the Gulf of Mexico, Hess carried 

out a comprehensive review of our emergency response 

preparations. We joined the Marine Well Containment 
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Company and Helix Well Containment Group, 

giving us access to rapidly deployable state of the 

art containment response systems. In addition, 

Hess participated in industry working groups and 

task forces focusing on emergency preparedness 

and response capabilities in the United States 

and globally. At the same time, we confirmed the 

integrity of our deepwater drilling operating methods 

and adherence to worldwide drilling standards. 

With respect to climate change, Hess has taken 

measures to assess, monitor and reduce our carbon 

footprint at existing and future operations. We made 

considerable progress toward our 2013 goal of a 

20 percent reduction in greenhouse gas emissions 

intensity based on a 2008 baseline. We decreased 

flaring from operations in Algeria and Equatorial 

Guinea by more than 50 percent during the past 

several years, achieving our flare reduction target 

ahead of schedule. Our climate change strategy 

also includes the purchase of certified renewable 

energy certificates equivalent to at least 10 percent 

of our annual net purchased electricity, along with 

the purchase of certified carbon offsets to ensure 

that the impact of our commercial air travel is 

carbon neutral. For the third consecutive year, Hess 

was included in the Carbon Disclosure Project's 

Global 500 and S&P 500 leadership indexes for 

the quality of our climate change disclosure. 

Hess is an active supporter of several international 

multi-stakeholder frameworks that seek to protect 

the environment, promote transparency and advance 

human rights, including the Extractive Industries 

Transparency Initiative, the United Nations Global 

Compact, the Voluntary Principles on Security 

and Human Rights and the International Labour 

Organization's Fundamental Principles and Rights 

at Work. 

We are committed to effective stakeholder 

engagement and strategic social investments in 

our host communities that lead to sustainable and 

measurable improvements, especially in education 

and health. The first five-year phase of our partnership 

in Equatorial Guinea to improve primary education is 

nearing completion. A second five-year program will 

launch in early 2012 and will focus on strengthening 

secondary education and vocational training. We will 

also continue efforts to support primary education. 

In North Dakota, we announced a five-year $25 

million partnership with the state government to 

enhance secondary, higher and vocational education 

in order to better prepare students to succeed in the 

workforce. The company also supported activities 

in more than 20 countries in the areas of youth and 

community development, education and health. 
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